

tembec

Notice of Meeting and Management Information Circular

For the Special Meeting of Shareholders of Tembec Inc. To be held on Thursday July 27, 2017

tembec.com

Management Information Circular Summary

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this Management Information Circular. It does not contain all of the information that you should consider. Please read the entire Management Information Circular carefully before voting.

At the meeting, you will be asked to vote on the acquisition, by way of a plan of arrangement, of Tembec Inc. by Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc.

Vote Recommendation

The Tembec Board has unanimously approved the Arrangement and recommends that Tembec Shareholders vote FOR the Arrangement Resolution.

Record Date

You are entitled to vote at the meeting if you were a holder of Tembec Shares at the close of business on June 19, 2017.

Proxy Submission Deadline

To ensure that your vote is counted, please vote by 5:00 pm (Eastern Time) on Tuesday July 25, 2017.

Attending the Special Meeting

If you plan to attend the Special Meeting, please follow the instructions in this Management Information Circular under "General Information Concerning the Meeting and Voting – Appointment and Revocation of Proxies".

Thank you for your interest in Tembec Inc.

Your vote is very important! These materials are important and require your immediate attention.

If you have any questions, please contact Shorecrest Group, our proxy solicitation agent, by telephone at 1-888-637-5789 toll-free in North America or by e-mail at contact@shorecrestgroup.com.

Banks, brokers and collect calls outside North America 1-647-931-7454.

Special Meeting Information

Date: Thursday July 27, 2017

Time: 10:00 am (Eastern Time)

Place: 41st Floor – Rooms Mont-Royal 1 and 2, at the offices of Stikeman Elliott LLP, 1155 René-Lévesque Blvd. West in Montréal, Québec

How you can vote

Your vote is important. To ensure that your shares will be represented and voted at the meeting, please submit your vote as soon as possible by one of the following methods:

Registered holders can vote:

By Internet:

investorvote.com using the control number located on your proxy

By Telephone:

Call 1-866-732-8683 using the control number located on your proxy

By Mail:

Mark, sign and date your proxy form and return it in the enclosed postage-paid envelope

Beneficial holders can vote:

By internet:

www.proxyvote.com using the control number located on your Broadridge VIF

By telephone:

The toll-free number to call along with your control number are listed on your VIF

I tembec

Plan of Arrangement Summary

Tembec Shareholders are being asked to consider and, if thought advisable, approve the Arrangement involving, among other things, the acquisition by Rayonier AM, of all of the outstanding Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement dated May 24, 2017 between Tembec and Rayonier AM.

Payment for Tembec Shares

Under the Arrangement, each Tembec Shareholder may elect to receive at the Effective Time of the Arrangement in respect of each Tembec Share held, either: (i) CAD \$4.05 in cash or (ii) 0.2302 of a Rayonier AM Share. These elections are subject to proration to ensure that no more than 63.3% of the aggregate Tembec Shares will receive the Per Share Cash Amount and no more than 36.7% of the aggregate Tembec Shares will receive the Per Share Stock Consideration. See "The Arrangement – Description of the Arrangement" and "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure".

Payment Election Procedure

You are encouraged to make your election as soon as possible to ensure that you do not miss the election deadline.

If you hold your Tembec Shares directly, you must sign and return the enclosed Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and return it with your Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary.

If you hold your Tembec Shares through a broker or intermediary, you should contact your broker directly and instruct them to make an election on your behalf.

See "The Arrangement – Description of the Arrangement" and "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure" for more information.

Premium to Tembec Shareholders

Based on the 5 - day volume weighted average price of the Rayonier AM Shares of US\$13.0694 and the currency exchange rate on May 24, 2017, the Arrangement values the Tembec Shares at CAD \$4.05 per Tembec Share. This represents a premium of approximately 37% over the closing price of Tembec Shares of CAD \$2.95 on May 24, 2017, the last trading day prior to the public announcement by Tembec and Rayonier AM of the proposed Arrangement.



About Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc.

Rayonier AM is a global leader in the production of cellulose specialties. Rayonier AM Shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol "RYAM."

I tembec



Dear Tembec Inc. Shareholder,

On behalf of the board of directors of Tembec Inc. ("**Tembec**"), it is my pleasure to invite you to attend a special meeting (the "**Meeting**") of the shareholders of Tembec ("**Tembec Shareholders**") to be held on the 41st Floor – Rooms Mont-Royal 1 and 2, at the offices of Stikeman Elliott LLP located at 1155 René-Lévesque Blvd. West in Montréal, Québec on July 27, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time).

At the Meeting, you will be asked to consider and, if thought advisable, to pass, with or without variation, a special resolution (the "**Arrangement Resolution**") with respect to the arrangement (the "**Arrangement**") involving the acquisition by Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc. ("**Rayonier AM**") of all of the outstanding common shares of Tembec (the "**Tembec Shares**"), pursuant to an arrangement agreement dated as of May 24, 2017 between Tembec and Rayonier AM.

Under the Arrangement, as more particularly described in the accompanying management proxy circular (the "**Circular**"), you can elect to receive at the effective time of the Arrangement in respect of each of your Tembec Shares either: (i) \$4.05 in cash (the "**Per Share Cash Amount**"); or (ii) 0.2302 of a share of Rayonier AM common stock (the "**Per Share Stock Consideration**" and collectively, the "**Consideration**"), these elections being subject to proration to ensure that no more than 63.3% of the aggregate Tembec Shares shall receive the Per Share Cash Amount and no more than 36.7% will receive the Per Share Stock Consideration. See "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure" in the accompanying Circular. Tembec Shares currently trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the trading symbol "TMB" and shares of Rayonier AM common stock ("**Rayonier AM Shares**") currently trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol "RYAM".

Based on the 5-day volume weighted average price of the Rayonier AM Shares on the New York Stock Exchange of US\$13.0694 and the currency exchange rate on May 24, 2017, the Arrangement values the Tembec Shares at \$4.05 per Tembec Share. This represents a premium of approximately 37% over the closing price of Tembec Shares of \$2.95 on May 24, 2017, the last trading day prior to the public announcement by Tembec and Rayonier AM of the proposed Arrangement.

To become effective, the Arrangement Resolution must be approved by at least two-thirds of the votes cast at the Meeting by all Tembec Shareholders. The Arrangement also requires the approval of the Superior Court of Québec and the satisfaction of certain other conditions of the Arrangement.

The board of directors of Tembec (the "Board") has unanimously determined that the Arrangement is in the best interests of Tembec. The Board has unanimously approved the Arrangement and recommends that Tembec Shareholders vote <u>FOR</u> the Arrangement Resolution. In making its recommendation, the Board considered a number of factors as described in the Circular under the heading "The Arrangement – Reasons for the Recommendation".

The Circular and the documents incorporated by reference therein contain a detailed description of the Arrangement and other information relating to Tembec and Rayonier AM, including the Rayonier AM Shares. We urge you to consider carefully all of the information in the Circular and the documents incorporated by reference therein. In particular, you should consider the matters discussed under "Risk Factors – Risks Related to the Arrangement", "Information Relating to Tembec – Risk Factors" and "Information Relating to Rayonier AM – Risk Factors". Neither the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "**SEC**") nor any securities commission of any state in the United States has approved or disapproved of the securities to be issued in connection with the transactions described in the Circular or determined if the Circular is accurate or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence. If you require assistance, please consult your financial, legal or other professional advisor. If you have any questions or require more information with regard to the procedures for voting or completing your letter of transmittal and election form, please contact Shorecrest Group, our proxy solicitation agent, by telephone at 1-888-637-5789 toll-free in North America or by e-mail at contact@shorecrestgroup.com. For banks, brokers and collect calls outside North America, please call 1-647-931-7454.

This is an important matter affecting the future of Tembec and your vote is important regardless of the number of Tembec Shares you own. If you are unable to attend the Meeting in person, we encourage you to vote by completing the enclosed form of proxy or, alternatively, by telephone, or over the internet, in each case in accordance with the enclosed instructions. Voting by proxy will not prevent you from voting in person if you attend the Meeting and will ensure that your vote will be counted if you are unable to attend. A proxy will not be valid for use at the Meeting unless the completed form of proxy is deposited at the office of Tembec Inc., c/o Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 8th Floor, 100

University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2Y1 (Attn: Proxy Department) or the proxy vote is otherwise registered in accordance with the instructions thereon, not later than 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on July 25, 2017, or if the Meeting is postponed or adjourned, not later than 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time for holding the postponed or adjourned meeting.

We encourage all registered Tembec Shareholders to complete and return the enclosed letter of transmittal and election form (printed on yellow paper) (the "Letter of Transmittal and Election Form"), together with the certificate(s) representing your Tembec Shares, to Computershare Trust Company of Canada (the "Depositary") at the address specified in the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form. The Letter of Transmittal and Election Form contains procedural information relating to the Arrangement and should be reviewed carefully. We recommend that you complete, sign and return the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form with your accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary as soon as possible. To make a valid election as to the form of consideration that you wish to receive under the Arrangement (subject to proration), you must sign and return, if applicable, the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and make a proper election thereunder and return it with accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary prior to the election deadline, being 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on the business day which is three business days preceding the effective date of the Arrangement (the "Election Deadline"). Tembec will provide at least two business days' notice of the Election Deadline to Tembec Shareholders by means of a press release disseminated on a newswire. If you fail to make a proper election prior to the Election Deadline, or if the Depositary determines that your election was not properly made with respect to your Tembec Shares, you will be deemed to have elected to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration in respect of the Tembec Shares you hold.

If you are a non-registered holder of Tembec Shares and have received these materials through your broker, investment dealer or other intermediary, you will not receive a form of proxy or Letter of Transmittal and Election Form. Please follow the instructions provided by such broker, investment dealer or other intermediary to ensure that your vote is counted at the Meeting and for instructions and assistance in delivering the share certificate(s) representing those shares and, if applicable, making an election with respect to the form of Consideration you wish to receive. See "General Information Concerning the Meeting and Voting – Voting by Non-Registered Shareholders" in the accompanying Circular.

Subject to obtaining court and other approvals and clearances and satisfaction or waiver of all other conditions precedent to the Arrangement, if Tembec Shareholders approve the Arrangement Resolution, it is anticipated that the Arrangement will be completed by the end of 2017.

On behalf of Tembec, we would like to thank all Tembec Shareholders for their ongoing support as we prepare to take part in this important event in the history of Tembec.

Yours truly,

ames V Continenza

James V. Continenza Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors



Tembec Inc.

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, pursuant to an order of the Superior Court of Québec dated June 13, 2017 (the "**Interim Order**"), a special meeting (the "**Meeting**") of shareholders ("**Tembec Shareholders**") of Tembec Inc. ("**Tembec**") will be held on the 41st Floor – Rooms Mont-Royal 1 and 2, at the offices of Stikeman Elliott LLP located at 1155 René-Lévesque Blvd. West in Montréal, Québec, on July 27, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time) for the following purposes:

- 1. to consider and, if thought advisable, to pass, with or without variation, a special resolution (the "Arrangement Resolution"), the full text of which is set forth in Appendix C to the accompanying management information circular (the "Circular"), approving an arrangement (the "Arrangement") under Section 192 of the *Canada Business Corporations Act*, as amended (the "CBCA"), all as more particularly described in the Circular, which Arrangement Resolution, to be effective, must be passed by an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes cast at the Meeting in person or by proxy by Tembec Shareholders; and
- 2. to transact such further and other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any postponement or adjournment thereof.

Specific details of the matters proposed to be put before the Meeting are set forth in the Circular which accompanies this Notice of Special Meeting.

The record date for determining the Tembec Shareholders entitled to receive notice of and vote at the Meeting is the close of business on June 19, 2017 (the "**Record Date**"). Only Tembec Shareholders whose names appear in the register of Tembec Shareholders as of the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Meeting.

Whether or not you are able to attend the Meeting in person, you are encouraged to provide voting instructions in accordance with the instructions on the enclosed form of proxy or voting instruction form provided to you by your broker, investment dealer or other intermediary as soon as possible. To be included at the Meeting, your voting instructions must be received by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 100 University Avenue, 8th Floor, Toronto, Ontario M5J 2Y1, in the enclosed envelope, by mail or by hand delivery, by 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on July 25, 2017 (or if the Meeting is postponed or adjourned, at least 48 hours (excluding non-business days) prior to the date of the postponed or adjourned Meeting). Please note, if you received a voting instruction form, you hold your shares through a broker, investment dealer or other intermediary as specified in the voting instruction form and by the deadline set out therein (which may be an earlier time than set out above). Tembec reserves the right to accept late proxies and to waive the proxy cut-off, with or without notice, but is under no obligation to accept or reject any particular late proxy.

Tembec Shareholders are encouraged to review the Circular carefully before submitting the proxy form.

Pursuant to the Interim Order, registered Tembec Shareholders have been granted the right to dissent in respect of the Arrangement Resolution ("**Dissent Rights**"). If the Arrangement becomes effective, a registered Tembec Shareholder who exercises Dissent Rights in respect of the Arrangement Resolution (a "**Dissenting Shareholder**") is entitled to be paid the fair value of such Dissenting Shareholder's Tembec shares, provided that such Dissenting Shareholder has delivered a written objection to the Arrangement Resolution (a "**Dissent Notice**") to Tembec not later than 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on July 25, 2017, being the business day which is two business days immediately preceding the Meeting (or, if the Meeting is postponed or adjourned, the business day which is two business days immediately preceding the date of the postponed or adjourned Meeting) and has otherwise complied strictly with the dissent procedures described in the Circular, including the relevant provisions of Section 190 of the CBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order. Dissent Rights are described in detail in the accompanying Circular under the heading "Rights of Dissenting Shareholders". The text of Section 190 of the CBCA, which will be relevant in any dissent proceeding, is set forth in Appendix I to this Circular.

Persons who are beneficial owners of Tembec Shares registered in the name of a broker, investment dealer, custodian, nominee or other intermediary who wish to exercise Dissent Rights should be aware that only registered Tembec Shareholders

are entitled to dissent. Accordingly, a beneficial owner of Tembec Shares desiring to exercise Dissent Rights must make arrangements for the Tembec Shares beneficially owned by such Tembec Shareholder to be registered in the Tembec Shareholder's name prior to the time the Dissent Notice is required to be received by Tembec or, alternatively, make arrangements for the registered holder of such Tembec Shares to exercise Dissent Rights on the Tembec Shareholder's behalf.

Failure to comply strictly with the dissent procedures described in the Circular may result in the loss of any Dissent Rights. It is strongly suggested that any Tembec Shareholder wishing to dissent seek independent legal advice, as the failure to comply strictly with the provisions of the CBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order, may result in the loss of such Tembec Shareholder's Dissent Rights.

If you have any questions or require more information with regard to the procedures for voting or completing your letter of transmittal and election form, please contact Shorecrest Group, our proxy solicitation agent, by telephone at 1-888-637-5789 toll-free in North America or by e-mail at contact@shorecrestgroup.com. For banks, brokers and collect calls outside North America, please call 1-647-931-7454.

Montreal this 13th day of June, 2017.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Cull \$3

PATRICK LEBEL Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

TABLE OF CONTENTS

REPORTING CURRENCY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION	1
DEFINED TERMS	1
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	1
EXCHANGE RATE DATA	3
NOTICE REGARDING INFORMATION	4
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	5
NOTICE TO TEMBEC SHAREHOLDERS IN THE UNITED STATES	5
NOTICE TO ALL TEMBEC SHAREHOLDERS	6
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MEETING AND THE ARRANGEMENT	6
SUMMARY	
GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE MEETING AND VOTING	
Time, Date and Place	
Record Date	
Solicitation of Proxies	
Appointment and Revocation of Proxies	
Voting by Non-Registered Shareholders	
Quorum	
Principal Holders of Tembec Shares	
THE ARRANGEMENT	
Background to the Arrangement	
Recommendation of the Board	
Reasons for the Recommendation	
Fairness Opinions	
Description of the Arrangement	
Procedure for the Arrangement to Become Effective	
Tembec Shareholder Approval	
Voting Agreements	
Court Approval and Completion of the Arrangement	
Letter of Transmittal and Election Form	
Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure	
Treatment of IQ Warrants	
Treatment of DSUs	
Stock Exchange Listing and Reporting Issuer Status	
Interests of Certain Persons in the Arrangement	
Depositary	41
INFORMATION RELATING TO TEMBEC	41
Information Respecting Directors and Officers	
Trading Price and Volume of Tembec Shares	
Prior Sales	
Available Information	
Risk Factors	
Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Tembec	
Tembec Documents Incorporated by Reference	
INFORMATION RELATING TO RAYONIER AM	

Overview	45
Description of Capital Stock	46
Risk Factors	
Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Rayonier AM	50
Rayonier AM Documents Incorporated by Reference	51
INFORMATION RELATING TO THE COMBINED COMPANY	52
General	
Selected Unaudited Pro forma Financial Information	52
Unaudited Comparative Per Share Information	53
Share Prices	54
THE ARRANGEMENT AGREEMENT	55
Representations and Warranties	55
Conditions Precedent to the Arrangement	56
Covenants	58
Termination of the Arrangement Agreement	61
Amendment	63
REGULATORY MATTERS	64
Canadian Securities Law Matters	64
United States Securities Law Matters	64
Stock Exchange Approvals	65
Other Regulatory Matters	65
ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT IN CANADA	68
CERTAIN CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	69
Holders Resident in Canada	70
Holders Not Resident in Canada	72
CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	73
U.S. Holders	74
Non-U.S. Holders	76
FATCA Withholding and Reporting	77
Information Reporting and Backup Withholding	77
ACCOUNTING TREATMENT	78
RISK FACTORS	78
Risks Related to the Arrangement	78
Risks Related to the Combined Company	81
RIGHTS OF DISSENTING SHAREHOLDERS	83
INTERESTS OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS	85
INTERESTS OF EXPERTS OF TEMBEC AND RAYONIER AM	86
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	86
APPROVAL OF THE BOARD	87
CONSENT OF SCOTIA CAPITAL	88
CONSENT OF NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL	89
APPENDIX A GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS	
APPENDIX B UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RAYONIER AI	MB-1
APPENDIX C FORM OF ARRANGEMENT RESOLUTION	C-1
APPENDIX D PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT	
APPENDIX E NOTICE OF PRESENTATION FOR THE FINAL ORDER	E-1

APPENDIX F INTERIM ORDER	F-1
APPENDIX G SCOTIA CAPITAL FAIRNESS OPINION	G-1
APPENDIX H NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL FAIRNESS OPINION	H-1
APPENDIX I SECTION 190 OF THE CBCA	I-1
APPENDIX J COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF TEMBEC SHAREHOLDERS AND RAYONIER AM	
STOCKHOLDERS	J-1



MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR

This management information circular ("Circular") is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by or on behalf of the management of Tembec Inc. ("Tembec") of proxies to be used at the special meeting of shareholders ("Tembec Shareholders") of Tembec (the "Meeting") to be held on the 41st Floor – Rooms Mont-Royal 1 and 2, at the offices of Stikeman Elliott LLP located at 1155 René-Lévesque Blvd. West in Montréal, Québec on July 27, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time) and at any adjournment(s) or postponement(s) thereof for the purposes set forth in the Notice of Meeting.

REPORTING CURRENCY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Except as otherwise indicated in this Circular, references to "Canadian dollars" and "\$" are to the currency of Canada and references to "U.S. dollars" or "US\$" are to the currency of the United States. See "Exchange Rate Data".

All financial statements and financial data derived therefrom included or incorporated by reference in this Circular pertaining to Tembec have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and are audited in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and all financial statements and financial data derived therefrom included or incorporated by reference in this Circular pertaining to Rayonier AM, including the unaudited *pro forma* condensed combined financial statements of Rayonier AM, have been prepared and presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, the presentation of the consolidated financial statements of Rayonier AM and the unaudited *pro forma* condensed combined financial statements of Rayonier AM may vary in a material way from financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. Management has reviewed the consolidated financial statements of Rayonier AM and the unaudited *pro forma* condensed combined financial statements there are material U.S. GAAP to IFRS measurement differences applicable to such financial statements. For further details, see the notes to the unaudited *pro forma* condensed combined financial statements. For further details, see the notes to the unaudited *pro forma* condensed combined financial statements. But there are material U.S. Circular.

Pro forma financial information included in this Circular is for informational purposes only and is unaudited. All unaudited *pro forma* financial information contained in this Circular has been derived from underlying financial statements prepared and adjusted in accordance with U.S. GAAP to illustrate the effect of the Arrangement. The *pro forma* financial information set forth in this Circular should not be considered to be what the actual financial position or other results of operations would have necessarily been had Rayonier AM and Tembec operated as a single combined company as, at, or for the periods stated.

DEFINED TERMS

This Circular contains defined terms. For a list of the defined terms used herein, see Appendix A to this Circular.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Circular, including the documents incorporated by reference herein, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are provided for the purpose of presenting information about management's current expectations and plans relating to the future, and readers are cautioned that such statements may not be appropriate for other purposes. These statements may include, without limitation, statements regarding the operations, business, financial condition, expected financial results, performance, prospects, opportunities, priorities, targets, goals, ongoing objectives, strategies and outlook of Tembec, Rayonier AM or the Combined Company. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words such as "expect", "anticipate", "believe", "foresee", "could", "estimate", "goal", "intend", "plan", "seek", "strive", "will", "may" and "should" and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements reflect current estimates, beliefs and assumptions, which are based on

Rayonier AM's and Tembec's perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors management believes are appropriate in the circumstances. Rayonier AM's and Tembec's estimates, beliefs and assumptions are inherently subject to significant business, economic, competitive and other uncertainties and contingencies regarding future events and as such, are subject to change. Rayonier AM and Tembec can give no assurance that such estimates, beliefs and assumptions will prove to be correct. In particular, certain statements included in the sections entitled "The Arrangement — Reasons for the Recommendation" and "Information Relating to the Combined Company" are forward-looking statements.

This Circular, including the documents incorporated by reference herein, contains forward-looking statements concerning:

- expectations regarding whether the Arrangement will be consummated, including whether conditions to the consummation of the Arrangement will be satisfied, or the anticipated timing for the closing of the Arrangement;
- expectations regarding receipt of all necessary approvals and the expiration of relevant waiting periods;
- the anticipated value of the Consideration to be received by the Tembec Shareholders, which was set in the Arrangement Agreement and may fluctuate in value due to trading prices of the Rayonier AM Shares forming part of the Consideration;
- the number of Rayonier AM Shares issuable to Tembec Shareholders;
- expectations for the effects of the Arrangement or the Combined Company's financial position, cash flow and growth prospects;
- anticipated tax treatment of the Arrangement for Tembec Shareholders; and
- anticipated future results and financial information relating to the Combined Company.

Certain material factors or assumptions are applied in making forward-looking statements. With respect to the Arrangement and this Circular, the expectations and assumptions expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements, include, but are not limited to the ability of the parties to receive, in a timely manner and on satisfactory terms, Tembec Shareholder Approval, regulatory approvals and stock exchange and Court approvals for the Arrangement, the ability of the parties to satisfy, in a timely manner, the conditions to the closing of the Arrangement and other expectations and assumptions concerning the Arrangement and expectations and assumptions concerning the Arrangement and expectations and assumptions concerning the Arrangement and expectations.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Circular, including documents incorporated by reference herein, are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties and other factors which could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated by the forward-looking statements. The factors which could cause results to differ from current expectations include, but are not limited to:

- there can be no assurance that the Arrangement will occur or that the anticipated strategic benefits and operational, competitive and cost synergies will be realized;
- the Arrangement is subject to various regulatory approvals, including approvals under the Investment Canada Act (if required), the Competition Act, the HSR Act and under applicable Antitrust Laws in Germany and China, and the fulfillment of certain conditions, and there can be no assurance that any such approvals will be obtained and/or any such conditions will be met. The Arrangement could be modified, restructured or terminated by each of Tembec and Rayonier AM in certain circumstances, and as such, the market price of Tembec Shares or the business and operations of Tembec may be materially adversely affected;
- the Exchange Ratio is fixed, and there can be no assurance that the market value of the Rayonier AM Shares that the holders of Tembec Shares may receive on the Effective Date will equal or exceed the market value of the Tembec Shares held by such Tembec Shareholders prior to the Effective Date;
- changes in tax laws, regulations or future assessments;

- failure to realize anticipated results, including revenue growth, anticipated cost savings or operating efficiencies from the Combined Company's major initiatives, including those from restructuring; and
- assumptions and estimates required for the preparation of the *pro forma* financial statements may be materially different from the Combined Company's actual results and experience in the future.

The foregoing risks or other risks arising in connection with the Arrangement, including the diversion of management attention from conducting the business of Tembec, may have a material adverse effect on Tembec's business operations, financial results and share price. Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive. Other risks and uncertainties not presently known to Rayonier AM and Tembec or that Rayonier AM and Tembec presently believe are not material could also cause actual results or events to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements contained herein.

Additional information on these and other factors that could affect the operations or financial results of Rayonier AM, Tembec or the Combined Company are included in reports filed by Rayonier AM and Tembec with applicable securities regulatory authorities and may be accessed through the SEC's website (www.sec.gov) and the SEDAR website (www.sedar.com), respectively. These risks and other factors are also discussed in more detail in this Circular under "Risk Factors", "Information Relating to Tembec — Risk Factors", "Information Relating to Rayonier AM — Risk Factors" and "Information Relating to the Combined Company". Readers are encouraged to read such sections in detail.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Circular, including the documents incorporated by reference herein, are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. Tembec and Rayonier AM cannot guarantee that the results or events expressed or implied in any forward-looking statement and information will materialize, and accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect Rayonier AM's and Tembec's expectations only as of the date of this Circular (or in the case of forward-looking statements in a document incorporated by reference herein, as of the date indicated in such document). Rayonier AM and Tembec disclaim any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

EXCHANGE RATE DATA

The following table sets out the high and low exchange rates for one Canadian dollar expressed in U.S. dollars, for each of the periods indicated, the exchange rate at the end of each such period and the average of such exchange rates for each such period, in each case, based upon historical closing rates as quoted by the Bank of Canada.

		th Period ded		Year Ended	
	Mar. 25, 2017	Mar. 26, 2016	Sep. 24, 2016	Sep. 26, 2015	Sep. 27, 2014
High	US\$0.7685	US\$0.7784	US\$0.7977	US\$0.9006	US\$0.9719
Low	US\$0.7377	US\$0.6869	US\$0.6869	US\$0.7492	US\$0.8893
Rate at end of period	US\$0.7474	US\$0.7553	US\$0.7592	US\$0.7510	US\$0.8965
Average rate per period	US\$0.7529	US\$0.7387	US\$0.7555	US\$0.8174	US\$0.9242

On June 13, 2017, the exchange rate for one Canadian dollar expressed in U.S. dollars based upon the daily closing exchange rate as quoted by the Bank of Canada was US\$0.7554.

Unless otherwise indicated, in this Circular, references to U.S. dollars when discussing the aggregate Per Share Cash Amount and Per Share Stock Consideration components of the Consideration are based upon the daily rates of exchange posted by the Bank of Canada for June 13, 2017.

NOTICE REGARDING INFORMATION

The information concerning Rayonier AM incorporated by reference or contained in this Circular has been publicly filed or provided by Rayonier AM. Although Tembec has no knowledge that would indicate that any statements contained in this Circular taken from or based upon such documents, records or sources are untrue or incomplete, Tembec does not assume any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information taken from or based upon such documents, records or sources, or for any failure by Rayonier AM, any of its affiliates or any of their respective Representatives to disclose events which may have occurred or may affect the significance or accuracy of any such information but which are unknown to Tembec. In accordance with the Arrangement Agreement, Rayonier AM provided Tembec with all necessary information concerning Rayonier AM that is required by law to be included in this Circular and ensured that such information does not contain any misrepresentations (as such term is defined in the Arrangement Agreement).

All summaries of, and references to, the Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement in this Circular are qualified in their entirety by, in the case of the Arrangement Agreement, the complete text of the Arrangement Agreement, available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com, and in the case of the Plan of Arrangement, the complete text of the Plan of Arrangement, a copy of which is attached as Appendix D to this Circular. You are urged to read carefully the full text of the Plan of Arrangement and the Arrangement Agreement.

Information in this Circular is given as at June 13, 2017 unless otherwise indicated and except for information contained in the documents incorporated herein by reference, which is given as at the respective dates stated therein.

This Circular is delivered in connection with the solicitation of proxies by and on behalf of management for use at the Meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof. No Person is authorized to give any information or make any representation not contained or incorporated by reference in this Circular and, if given or made, such information or representation should not be relied upon as having been authorized or as being accurate. For greater certainty, to the extent that any information provided on Tembec's website or by Tembec's proxy solicitation agent is inconsistent with this Circular, you should rely on the information provided in this Circular.

This Circular does not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to purchase, any securities, or the solicitation of a proxy, by any Person in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the Person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any Person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation of an offer or proxy solicitation. Neither delivery of this Circular nor any distribution of the securities referred to in this Circular will, under any circumstances, create an implication that there has been no change in the information set forth herein since the date of this Circular.

Tembec Shareholders should not construe the contents of this Circular as legal, tax or financial advice and should consult with their own legal, tax, financial or other professional advisors.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This Circular incorporates important business and financial information about Tembec and Rayonier AM from documents that are not included in or delivered with this Circular. This information is available to you without charge upon your request. You can obtain the documents incorporated by reference into this Circular free of charge by requesting them in writing or by telephone from the appropriate company at the following addresses and telephone numbers:

Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc.	Tembec Inc.
1301 Riverplace Boulevard, Suite 2300	100-4 Place Ville-Marie
Jacksonville, FL 32207	Montréal, Québec, H3B 2E7
(904) 357-4600	514 871-0137

For a more detailed description of the information incorporated by reference into this Circular and how you may obtain it, see "Information Relating to Tembec – Tembec Documents Incorporated by Reference" and "Information Relating to Rayonier AM – Rayonier AM Documents Incorporated by Reference".

NOTICE TO TEMBEC SHAREHOLDERS IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rayonier AM Shares to be issued under the Arrangement will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or the securities laws of any state of the United States. Such securities will instead be issued in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 3(a)(10) of the U.S. Securities Act. The Rayonier AM Shares to be issued under the Arrangement will be freely transferable under United States federal securities Laws, except that the U.S. Securities Act imposes restrictions on the resale of Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement by Persons who are, become after the consummation of the Arrangement or within 90 days of the Effective Time have been, "affiliates" of Rayonier AM. See "Regulatory Matters – United States Securities Law Matters".

Tembec Shareholders subject to U.S. federal income taxation should be aware that the Arrangement described herein may have tax consequences both in the United States and in Canada. Such consequences for Tembec Shareholders may not be described fully herein. For a general discussion of certain Canadian income tax consequences of the Arrangement to investors who are resident in the United States, see "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations – Holders Not Resident in Canada". For a general discussion of certain U.S. federal income tax consequences of the exchange of Tembec Shares for Rayonier AM Shares and/or cash pursuant to the Arrangement and to the ownership and disposition of Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement, see "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations". Holders subject to Canadian and U.S. federal income tax consequences and the applicability of any federal, state, local, foreign and other tax laws.

Tembec is a "foreign private issuer", within the meaning of Rule 3b-4 under the U.S. Exchange Act, and this solicitation of proxies is not subject to the proxy requirements of Section 14(a) of the U.S. Exchange Act. Accordingly, the solicitation contemplated herein is being made to Tembec Shareholders resident in the United States only in accordance with Canadian corporate and securities laws, and this Circular has been prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of Canadian Securities Laws. Tembec Shareholders resident in the United States should be aware that, in general, such Canadian disclosure requirements are different from those applicable to proxy statements, prospectuses or registration statements prepared in accordance with Laws of the United States. The financial statements of Tembec incorporated by reference herein have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, and are subject to Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. The principal differences between IFRS and United States generally accepted accounting principles as they apply to Tembec are summarized in the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial statements of Rayonier AM that give effect to the Arrangement, which are set forth in Appendix B to this Circular.

The enforcement by investors of civil liabilities under the United States securities laws may be affected adversely by the fact that Tembec is organized under the laws of a jurisdiction other than the United States, that some or all of its officers and directors are residents of countries other than the United States, that some or all of the experts named in this Circular may be residents of countries other than the United States, or that all or a substantial portion of the assets of Tembec and such Persons are located outside the United States. As a result, it may be difficult or impossible for Tembec Shareholders resident in the United States to effect service of process within the United States upon Tembec, its officers and directors or the experts named herein, or to realize, against them, upon judgments of courts of the United States predicated upon civil liabilities under the securities laws of the United States of Canada: (a) would enforce judgments of United States courts obtained in actions against such Persons predicated upon civil liabilities under the securities laws of the United States.

THE RAYONIER AM SHARES ISSUABLE PURSUANT TO THE ARRANGEMENT ARE BEING ISSUED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT AND THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES IN WHICH TEMBEC SHAREHOLDERS RESIDE AND THEY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR OTHERWISE QUALIFIED FOR DISTRIBUTION UNDER THE LAWS OF ANY OTHER JURISDICTION. For a discussion of regulatory issues relating to U.S. Tembec Shareholders, see "Regulatory Matters – United States Securities Law Matters".

THE RAYONIER AM SHARES ISSUABLE PURSUANT TO THE ARRANGEMENT HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SEC OR ANY SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN THE UNITED STATES NOR HAS THE SEC OR ANY SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN THE UNITED STATES PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS CIRCULAR. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

NOTICE TO ALL TEMBEC SHAREHOLDERS

Rayonier AM is incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware and all of the directors and officers of Rayonier AM and some or all of its experts named in the Circular may reside outside of Canada. All or a substantial portion of the assets of these Persons and Rayonier AM are located outside Canada. Accordingly, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within Canada upon all of the directors, officers and experts referred to above. It may also not be possible to enforce against Rayonier AM, its directors and officers and such experts judgments obtained in Canadian courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of applicable securities laws in Canada. In addition, the rights of a stockholder of a Delaware corporation differ from the rights of a shareholder of a CBCA corporation. See Appendix J to this Circular for a summary comparison of the rights of Tembec Shareholders and stockholders of Rayonier AM.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MEETING AND THE ARRANGEMENT

The information contained below is of a summary nature and therefore is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information contained elsewhere in or incorporated by reference into this Circular, including the Appendices hereto, the form of proxy and the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, all of which are important and should be reviewed carefully. Capitalized terms used in these Questions and Answers but not otherwise defined herein have the meanings set forth in Appendix A to this Circular.

Q: What am I voting on?

A: You are being asked to consider and, if thought advisable, approve the Arrangement involving, among other things, the acquisition by Rayonier AM, of all of the outstanding Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement dated as of May 24, 2017 between Tembec and Rayonier AM.

Q: Does the Board support the Arrangement?

A: Yes. The Board has unanimously determined that the Arrangement is in the best interests of Tembec and Tembec Shareholders should vote FOR the Arrangement Resolution.

In making its recommendation, the Board considered a number of factors which are described in this Circular under the heading "The Arrangement – Reasons for the Recommendation", including the opinions from Scotia Capital and National Bank Financial that, as of May 24, 2017, the Consideration under the Arrangement is fair, from a financial point of view, to Tembec Shareholders. See "The Arrangement – Background to the Arrangement" and "The Arrangement – Fairness Opinions".

Q: What approvals are required of Tembec Shareholders at the Meeting?

A: To be effective, the Arrangement Resolution must be approved, with or without variation, by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes cast on the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders, present in person or represented by proxy at the Meeting. See "The Arrangement – Tembec Shareholder Approval".

Rayonier AM has also entered into voting agreements with all of the directors and Executives of Tembec who hold Tembec Shares, pursuant to which they have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of their respective voting agreement, to vote their Tembec Shares in favour of the Arrangement Resolution. The directors and Executives collectively beneficially own or exercise control or direction over an aggregate of 754,403 Tembec Shares collectively representing approximately 0.754% of the Tembec Shares. See "The Arrangement – Voting Agreements".

Q: What other approvals are required for the Arrangement?

A: The Arrangement is subject to certain regulatory approvals or clearances, including, without limitation, antitrust filings in four jurisdictions (notably under the Competition Act, the HSR Act and under applicable Antitrust Laws in Germany and China), consent of the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry, consent of the Independent Electricity System Operator and consent of the Ontario Minister of Northern Development and Mines and, if required, Investment Canada Act Approval. The process to obtain these approvals or clearances has been initiated. These approvals and clearances are conditions precedent to the closing of the transaction. See "Regulatory Matters – Other Regulatory Matters".

The Arrangement must also be approved by the Court. The Court will be asked to make an order approving the Arrangement and to determine that the Arrangement is fair to the Tembec Shareholders. Tembec will apply to the Court for such order if the Tembec Shareholders approve the Arrangement at the Meeting. See "The Arrangement – Court Approval and Completion of the Arrangement".

Q: What will I receive for my Tembec Shares under the Arrangement?

A: Under the Arrangement, each Tembec Shareholder may elect to receive at the Effective Time of the Arrangement in respect of each Tembec Share held, either: (i) \$4.05 in cash, without interest (the "**Per Share Cash Amount**"); or (ii) 0.2302 of a Rayonier AM Share (the "**Per Share Stock Consideration**" and collectively, the "**Consideration**"). These elections are subject to proration to ensure that no more than 63.3% of the aggregate Tembec Shares shall receive the Per Share Stock Consideration. See "The Arrangement – Description of the Arrangement" and "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure".

Q: How do I elect to receive my Consideration under the Arrangement?

A: Each registered holder of Tembec Shares will have the right to elect to receive its preferred form of Consideration, subject to proration, by delivering its Letter of Transmittal and Election Form to the Depositary prior to the Election Deadline, being 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on the Business Day which is three Business Days preceding the Effective Date. Tembec will provide at least two Business Days' notice of the Election Deadline to Tembec Shareholders by means of a press release disseminated on a newswire.

Any Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, once deposited with the Depositary, will be irrevocable and may not be withdrawn by a Tembec Shareholder.

Tembec Shareholders whose Tembec Shares are registered in the name of a broker, investment dealer or other intermediary should contact that broker, investment dealer or other intermediary for instructions and assistance on making an election with respect to the form of Consideration they wish to receive. See "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure".

Q: What happens if I do not make an election in respect of the Consideration I wish to receive under the Arrangement?

A: Tembec Shareholders who do not make an election prior to the Election Deadline, or for whom the Depositary determines that their election was not properly made with respect to any Tembec Shares, will be deemed to have elected to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration in respect of the Tembec Shares held by them.

Q: What are the Canadian federal income tax consequences of the elections that I make with respect to the Arrangement?

A: Tembec Shareholders who are residents of Canada for purposes of the ITA will realize a taxable disposition of their Tembec Shares under the Arrangement regardless of whether they elect, or are deemed to elect, to receive cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares.

Tembec Shareholders who are not residents of Canada for purposes of the ITA, hold their Tembec Shares as capital property, and do not hold their Tembec Shares as "taxable Canadian property" will not be subject to tax under the ITA on the disposition of their Tembec Shares under the Arrangement regardless of whether they elect, or are deemed to elect, to receive cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares. See "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations".

Tax matters are complicated and the tax consequences of the Arrangement to you will depend upon the facts of your particular circumstances. Because individual circumstances may differ, you should consult your own tax advisor as to the specific tax consequences of the Arrangement to you.

Q: What are the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Arrangement?

A: The exchange of Tembec Shares for the Consideration pursuant to the Arrangement will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In general, a U.S. Holder (as defined under the heading "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations") that exchanges Tembec Shares for the Consideration pursuant to the Arrangement will recognize gain or loss on the exchange of its Tembec Shares in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between (a) the sum of the fair market value of any Rayonier AM Shares (determined as of the Effective Date) and the U.S. dollar value of the amount of cash received in exchange for Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement and (b) the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the Tembec Shares exchanged therefor. A Non-U.S. Holder (as defined under the heading "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations") generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on any gain recognized on the exchange of Tembec Shares for the Consideration pursuant to the Arrangement unless (i) the gain is effectively connected with the conduct by the Non-U.S. Holder of a trade or business in the United States or (ii) the Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of disposition and certain other conditions are met. See "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations".

Tax matters are complicated and the tax consequences of the Arrangement to you will depend upon the facts of your particular circumstances. Because individual circumstances may differ, you should consult your own tax advisor as to the specific tax consequences of the Arrangement to you, including the applicability of U.S. federal, state, local, non-U.S. and other tax laws.

Q: What will happen to Tembec if the Arrangement is completed?

A: If the Arrangement is completed, Rayonier AM will acquire all of the Tembec Shares and Tembec will become a direct or indirect wholly-owned Subsidiary of Rayonier AM. Rayonier AM intends to have the Tembec Shares de-listed from the TSX. In addition, it is expected that Tembec will apply to cease to be a reporting issuer in all jurisdictions in which it is a reporting issuer and thus will terminate its reporting obligations in Canada following completion of the Arrangement.

Q: Are the Rayonier AM Shares listed on a stock exchange?

A: Yes. Rayonier AM Shares currently trade on the NYSE under the symbol "RYAM". Rayonier AM will apply to list the Rayonier AM Shares issuable under the Arrangement on the NYSE, and it is a condition of closing that Rayonier AM will have been authorized for this listing.

Q: Are Tembec Shareholders entitled to Dissent Rights?

A: Yes. Under the Interim Order, Registered Shareholders are entitled to Dissent Rights but only if they follow the procedures specified in the CBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order. Persons who are beneficial owners of Tembec Shares registered in the name of an intermediary who wish to exercise Dissent Rights should be aware that only Registered Shareholders are entitled to Dissent Rights. Accordingly, a beneficial owner of Tembec Shares desiring to exercise Dissent Rights must make arrangements for the Tembec Shares beneficially owned by such Tembec Shareholder to be registered in the Tembec Shareholder's name prior to the time Dissent Notice is required to be received by Tembec or, alternatively, make arrangements for the registered holder of such Tembec Shares to exercise Dissent Rights on the Tembec Shareholder's behalf.

If you wish to exercise Dissent Rights, you should review the requirements summarized in this Circular carefully and consult with your legal advisor. See "Rights of Dissenting Shareholders".

Q. What will happen if the Arrangement Resolution is not approved or the Arrangement is not completed for any reason?

A: If the Arrangement Resolution is not approved or the Arrangement is not completed for any reason, the Arrangement Agreement may be terminated. A termination fee of \$20 million would be payable by Tembec to Rayonier AM in certain circumstances, and Tembec would also be entitled to a reverse termination fee of \$20 million from Rayonier AM if the Arrangement is not completed in certain circumstances. If, for any reason, the Arrangement is not completed or its completion is materially delayed and/or the Arrangement Agreement is terminated, the market price of the Tembec Shares may be materially adversely affected. Tembec's financial condition or results of operations could also be subject to various material adverse consequences, including that Tembec would remain liable for costs relating to the Arrangement. See "The Arrangement".

Q: What do I need to do now in order to vote on the Arrangement Resolution?

A: You should carefully read and consider the information contained in this Circular. Registered Tembec Shareholders should then vote by completing, dating and signing the enclosed form of proxy or, alternatively, by telephone, or over the internet, in each case in accordance with the enclosed instructions. To be used at the Meeting, the completed proxy form must be deposited at the office of Tembec Inc., c/o Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 8th Floor, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2Y1, (Fax: 1-866-249-7775 (toll free within North America) or 416-263-9524 (outside North America)) by mail or fax or the proxy vote is otherwise registered in accordance with the instructions thereon. To be effective, a proxy must be received by Computershare not later than 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on July 25, 2017, or in the case of any postponement or adjournment of the Meeting, not less than 48 hours, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted, prior to the time of the postponed or adjourned Meeting. **Tembec reserves the right to accept or reject late proxies with or without notice, but is under no obligation to accept or reject any particular late proxy.**

If you hold your Tembec Shares through a broker, investment dealer or other intermediary, please follow the instructions provided by such broker, investment dealer or other intermediary to ensure that your vote is counted at the Meeting and contact your intermediary for instructions and assistance in delivering the share certificate(s) representing those shares and, if applicable, making an election with respect to the form of Consideration you wish to receive. See "General Information Concerning the Meeting and Voting – Appointment and Revocation of Proxies".

Q: Should I send in my proxy now?

A: Yes. To ensure your vote is counted, you need to complete and submit the enclosed form of proxy or, if applicable, provide your broker, investment dealer or other intermediary with voting instructions. You are encouraged to vote well in advance of the proxy cut-off at 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on July 25, 2017 (or if the Meeting is postponed or adjourned, not later than 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time for holding the postponed or adjourned meeting).

Q: Should I send in my Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and Tembec Share certificates now?

A: Yes. It is recommended that all registered holders of Tembec Shares should complete, sign and return the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form with accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary prior to the Election Deadline. To make a valid election as to the form of Consideration that you wish to receive under the Arrangement (subject to proration), you must sign and return, if applicable, the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and make a proper election thereunder and return it with accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary prior to the Election Deadline, being 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on the Business Day which is three Business Days preceding the Effective Date. Tembec will provide at least two Business Days' notice of the Election Deadline to Tembec Shareholders by means of a press release disseminated on a newswire. If you fail to make a proper election by the Election Deadline, you will be deemed to have elected to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration in respect of each Tembec Share held. Please be sure to use the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form (printed on yellow paper). See "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure".

Q: If my Tembec Shares are held by my broker, investment dealer or other intermediary, will they vote my Tembec Shares or make an election for me?

A: A broker, investment dealer or other intermediary will vote the Tembec Shares held by you, or make an election on your behalf, <u>only</u> if you provide instructions to them on how to vote or which election to make. Without instructions, those Tembec Shares will not be voted and no election will be made on your behalf. Tembec Shares by following the directions provided to them by their brokers. Unless your broker, investment dealer or other intermediary gives you its proxy to vote the Tembec Shares at the Meeting, you cannot vote those Tembec Shares owned by you at the Meeting. See "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure".

If you fail to make a proper election by the Election Deadline, you will be deemed to have elected to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration in respect of your Tembec Shares. See "General Information Concerning the Meeting and Voting – Voting by Non-Registered Shareholders".

Q: When will I receive the Consideration payable to me under the Arrangement for my Tembec Shares?

A: You will receive the Consideration due to you under the Arrangement as soon as practicable after the Arrangement becomes effective and your Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and Tembec Share certificate(s) and all other required documents are properly completed and received by the Depositary. It is anticipated that the Arrangement will be completed by the end of 2017 assuming the Arrangement Resolution is approved, all Court and all other approvals and clearances have been obtained, including, without limitation, antitrust filings in four jurisdictions (notably under the Competition Act, the HSR Act and under applicable Antitrust Laws in Germany and China), consent of the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry, consent of the Independent Electricity System Operator consent of the Ontario Minister of Northern Development and Mines, and, if required, Investment Canada Act Approval, and all

conditions of closing have been satisfied or waived. See "The Arrangement – Procedure for the Arrangement to Become Effective".

Q: What happens if I send in my Tembec Share certificate(s) and the Arrangement Resolution is not approved or the Arrangement is not completed?

A: If the Arrangement Resolution is not approved or if the Arrangement is not otherwise completed, your Tembec Share certificate(s) will be returned promptly to you by the Depositary.

Q: Can I change my vote after I have voted by proxy?

A: Yes. In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by law, a Tembec Shareholder executing the enclosed form of proxy has the power to revoke it by depositing an instrument in writing executed by the Tembec Shareholder or his or her legal representative authorized in writing or, where the Tembec Shareholder is a corporation, by the corporation or a representative of the corporation. To be valid, an instrument of revocation must be received at Tembec's registered office by fax at (514) 397-0896, or by mail at 4 Place Ville-Marie, Suite 100, Montréal, Québec H3B 2E7 at any time up to and including the last Business Day preceding the day of the Meeting, or in the case of any postponement or adjournment of the Meeting on the day fixed for the Meeting, and prior to the start of the Meeting or any postponement or adjournment thereof.

If you hold your shares through an intermediary, the methods to revoke your proxy may be different and you should carefully follow the instructions provided to you by your intermediary. See "General Information Concerning the Meeting – Appointment and Revocation of Proxies".

Q: Who can help answer my questions?

A: If you have any questions about this Circular or the matters described in this Circular, please contact your professional advisor. Tembec Shareholders who would like additional copies, without charge, of this Circular or have additional questions about the procedures for voting Tembec Shares or making an election, should contact their broker or Shorecrest Group, our proxy solicitation agent, by telephone at 1-888-637-5789 toll-free in North America or by e-mail at contact@shorecrestgroup.com. For banks, brokers and collect calls outside North America, please call 1-647-931-7454.

SUMMARY

The following is a summary of certain information contained elsewhere in, or incorporated by reference into, this Circular, including the Appendices hereto. Certain capitalized terms used in this summary are defined in the Glossary of Defined Terms or elsewhere in this Circular. This summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information appearing elsewhere, or incorporated by reference, in this Circular.

Purpose of the Meeting

The purpose of the Meeting is for Tembec Shareholders to consider and, if thought advisable, to pass, with or without variation, the Arrangement Resolution with respect to the Arrangement under Section 192 of the CBCA involving the acquisition by Rayonier AM of all of the Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement.

Date, Time and Place

The Meeting will be held on the 41st Floor – Rooms Mont-Royal 1 and 2, at the offices of Stikeman Elliott LLP located at 1155 René-Lévesque Blvd. West in Montréal, Québec on July 27, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time).

Record Date

The record date for determining the Tembec Shareholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Meeting is June 19, 2017. Only Tembec Shareholders of record as of the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Meeting.

Background to the Arrangement

On May 24, 2017, Tembec and Rayonier AM entered into the Arrangement Agreement, which sets out the terms and conditions for implementing the Arrangement. The Arrangement Agreement is the result of extensive arm's length negotiations conducted among representatives of Tembec and Rayonier AM and their respective legal and financial advisors.

See "The Arrangement - Background to the Arrangement".

Tembec Shareholder Approval

The Board unanimously recommends that Tembec Shareholders vote FOR the Arrangement Resolution. To be effective, the Arrangement Resolution must be approved, with or without variation, by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes cast on the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders present in person or represented by proxy at the Meeting.

See "The Arrangement - Tembec Shareholder Approval".

Effects of the Arrangement

If the Arrangement Resolution is passed and all of the other conditions to closing of the Arrangement are satisfied, Rayonier AM will acquire all of the issued and outstanding Tembec Shares (other than those already held by Rayonier AM and its affiliates and Dissenting Shareholders). Each Tembec shareholder may elect to receive at the Effective Time of the Arrangement in respect of each Tembec Share held, either: (i) the Per Share Cash Amount; or (ii) the Per Share Stock Consideration. These elections are subject to proration to ensure that no more than 63.3% of the aggregate Tembec shares shall receive the Per Share Cash Amount and no more than 36.7% will receive the Per Share Stock Consideration. If the Arrangement is completed, Tembec will become a direct or indirect wholly-owned Subsidiary of Rayonier AM.

See "The Arrangement Agreement".

Information Relating to Tembec

Tembec is a corporation existing under the CBCA and maintains its principal and head office at 100-4 Place Ville-Marie, Montréal, Québec, H3B 2E7 (telephone (514) 871-0137). Tembec is an integrated forest products company with operations principally located in Canada and France. Its business segments are specialty cellulose pulp, forest products, paper pulp and paper. Tembec operates 12 manufacturing locations in North America and France and directly manages approximately 10 million hectares (approximately 25 million acres) of Canadian forestlands in keeping with responsible forest management practices, thereby ensuring its long-term fiber supply.

See "Information Relating to Tembec".

Information Relating to Rayonier AM

Rayonier AM, a corporation incorporated in the State of Delaware maintaining its head office at 1301 Riverplace Blvd. Suite 2300 Jacksonville, FL 32207 (telephone (904) 357-4600), is a global leader in the production of cellulose specialties. Cellulose specialties are natural polymers, used as raw materials to manufacture a broad range of consumer-oriented products such as cigarette filters, liquid crystal displays, impact-resistant plastics, thickeners for food products, pharmaceuticals, cosmetics, high-tenacity rayon yarn for tires and industrial hoses, food casings, paints and lacquers.

See "Information Relating to Rayonier AM".

The unaudited *pro forma* combined financial statements of Rayonier AM that give effect to the Arrangement are set forth in Appendix B to this Circular.

Recommendation of the Board

After careful consideration, the Board unanimously determined that the Arrangement is fair to Tembec Shareholders and in the best interests of Tembec. The Board unanimously recommends that Tembec Shareholders vote FOR the Arrangement Resolution.

See "The Arrangement – Recommendation of the Board" .

Reasons for the Recommendation of the Board

In making its recommendation, the Board consulted with the Special Committee, Tembec's management, Stikeman, Cahill, Scotia Capital and National Bank Financial, reviewed a significant amount of information and considered a number of factors, including those listed below. The following includes forward-looking information and readers are cautioned that actual results may vary.

In making its determinations and recommendations, the Board considered and relied upon a number of substantive factors, including, among others:

- **Premium to Tembec Shareholders.** Based on the 5-day volume weighted average price of the Rayonier AM Shares of US\$13.0694 and the currency exchange rate on May 24, 2017, the Arrangement values the Tembec Shares at \$4.05 per Tembec Share. This represents a premium of approximately 37% over the closing price of the Tembec Shares of \$2.95 on May 24, 2017, the last trading day prior to the public announcement by Tembec and Rayonier AM of the proposed Arrangement, and approximately 34% over the 52-week closing high price of the Tembec Shares. Based on the 5-day volume weighted average price of the Rayonier AM Shares of US\$16.7280 and the currency exchange rate on June 13, 2017, such premiums have now increased to approximately 50% and 47%, respectively.
- Ability to Elect Form of Consideration. The Tembec Shareholders are entitled to elect to receive Rayonier AM Shares or cash pursuant to the Arrangement, subject to proration.

- Benefits of Rayonier AM and Tembec Combination. The Board believes that the combination with Rayonier AM represents an excellent strategic fit through increased financial strength and flexibility, a broader array of product offerings, an expanded geographic footprint, opportunities to achieve manufacturing and distribution efficiencies and increased manufacturing scale. The Combined Company will also benefit from lower debt levels and a solid capital structure, enabling it to make high-return investments to support continued growth. Tembec Shareholders who receive Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will have the opportunity to participate in these benefits and any future increase in value of the Combined Company.
- Maintaining Presence and Operations in Québec, Ontario and France. Rayonier AM expects to retain Tembec's Canadian headquarters in Montreal, Québec and a presence in Ontario, and to continue to operate all Tembec facilities. Rayonier AM has also announced its intention to proceed with Tembec's recently announced four-year investment plan for its Québec facilities and make additional investments in other key facilities and operations to further enhance growth potential and competitiveness.
- Increased Market Liquidity. Upon the completion of the Arrangement, the Combined Company will have a broader shareholder base with increased market liquidity and a larger public float than Tembec. During the year prior to the Arrangement, the average daily aggregate trading value of Rayonier AM shares was approximately US\$7.76 million compared with an average daily aggregate trading value of Tembec shares of approximately US\$280,000. As of June 13, 2017, the Combined Company had a *pro forma* market capitalization of approximately US\$1 billion compared with Tembec's market capitalization of approximately US\$220 million on the day prior to the Arrangement. Rayonier AM's existing liquidity profile and the increased market capitalization of the Combined Company are expected to provide the Tembec Shareholders who receive Rayonier AM Shares under the Arrangement with greater liquidity for such shares than currently available with respect to their Tembec Shares.
- Fairness Opinions. The fairness opinions delivered by each of Scotia Capital and National Bank Financial, which state that, as at May 24, 2017, and subject to the assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other matters contained therein, the Consideration to be received by the Tembec Shareholders under the Arrangement is fair, from a financial point of view, to Tembec Shareholders. See "The Arrangement Fairness Opinions", Appendix G "Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion" and Appendix H "National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion".
- **Comprehensive and Rigorous Sales Process.** The Arrangement arose out of a comprehensive and rigorous process conducted by Tembec, with the assistance of its financial advisors, to seek alternative transactions involving a sale of the whole or any part of Tembec over a significant period of time. A number of interested parties were contacted to determine whether they were interested in entering a transaction leading to the sale of the whole or any part of Tembec. Following this process, the Board concluded that no alternative transaction was available at a superior value and that the Arrangement represented the best alternative currently available to Tembec Shareholders.

In making its determinations and recommendation, the Board also observed that a number of procedural safeguards were and are present to permit the Board to represent effectively the interests of Tembec, the Tembec Shareholders and Tembec's other stakeholders, including, among others:

• Ability to Respond to Superior Proposals. Notwithstanding limitations contained in the Arrangement Agreement on Tembec's ability to solicit interest from third parties, the Arrangement Agreement allows the Board to engage in discussions or negotiations with respect to an unsolicited, written, bona fide Acquisition Proposal at any time prior to the approval of the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders and after the Board determines, in good faith, after consultation with its financial advisor and its outside legal counsel, that such Acquisition Proposal could reasonably be expected to lead to a Superior Proposal.

- Strategic Review Process Overseen by the Board. The Board reviewed a number of strategic initiatives for the purpose of maximizing or enhancing value for Tembec Shareholders, including, among others, the sale of the whole or any part of Tembec, the continuation of Tembec's existing stand-alone business plan and a strategic repositioning of Tembec, potential asset combinations of Tembec's forest products, newsprint and/or specialty pulp businesses with other industry players, the possible divestiture of certain of Tembec's core and non-core business segments or other refinancing strategies.
- Role of the Special Committee. The evaluation and negotiation process was monitored by the Special Committee, being members of the Board who are independent of management and who have no financial interest in the Arrangement that is different from that of the Tembec Shareholders. The Special Committee met regularly with Tembec's advisors and management.
- Shareholder and Court Approvals. The Arrangement is subject to the following shareholder and Court approvals, which protect Tembec Shareholders:
 - the Arrangement Resolution must be approved by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes cast on the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders, present in person or represented by proxy at the Meeting; and
 - the Arrangement must be approved by the Court, which will consider, among other things, the fairness and reasonableness of the Arrangement to Tembec Shareholders.
- **Dissent Rights.** The availability of Dissent Rights to Registered Shareholders with respect to the Arrangement.

The Board also considered a number of uncertainties, risks and other potential negative factors associated with the Arrangement, including the following:

- **Non-Completion.** The risks and costs to Tembec if the Arrangement is not completed, including the potential diversion of management and employee attention, potential employee attrition and the potential effect on business and stakeholder relationships.
- **Conduct of Business Restrictions.** The restrictions on the conduct of Tembec's business prior to the completion of the Arrangement, requiring Tembec to conduct its business in the ordinary course, subject to specific exceptions, which may delay or prevent Tembec from undertaking business opportunities that may arise pending completion of the Arrangement.
- **Rayonier AM Termination Fee.** The potential payment of the Reverse Termination Fee, being \$20 million, may not be sufficient to adequately compensate Tembec in the event of a failure to obtain the necessary approvals, clearances and rulings under applicable Antitrust Laws or, if required, under the Investment Canada Act.
- **Tembec Termination Fee.** The potential payment of the Termination Fee, being \$20 million, by Tembec under certain circumstances specified in the Arrangement Agreement, and that such Tembec Termination Fee may act as deterrent to the emergence of a Superior Proposal.
- **Fees and Expenses.** The fees and expenses associated with the Arrangement, a portion of which will be incurred regardless of whether the Arrangement is consummated.
- Other Risks. The other risks associated with the Arrangement and the business of Tembec, Rayonier AM and the Combined Company described under "Information Relating to Tembec Risk Factors", "Information Relating to Rayonier AM Risk Factors" and "Risk Factors".

See "The Arrangement – Reasons for the Recommendation", "Regulatory Matters – Other Regulatory Matters" and "The Arrangement – Court Approval and Completion of the Arrangement".

Fairness Opinions

Tembec retained Scotia Capital as its financial advisor to advise and assist Tembec with respect to a review of strategic alternatives available to Tembec in connection with a potential transaction involving the direct or indirect sale or disposition of the whole or any part of Tembec. As part of the mandate, Scotia Capital was requested to provide the Board with its opinion as to the fairness to the Tembec Shareholders, from a financial point of view, of the Consideration to be received in connection with the Arrangement. In connection with this mandate, Scotia Capital has prepared the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion. The Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion states that, on the basis of the assumptions, limitations and qualifications set forth therein, Scotia Capital is of the opinion that, as of May 24, 2017, the Consideration under the Arrangement was fair, from a financial point of view, to the Tembec Shareholders. The full text of the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion, setting out the assumptions made, matters considered and limitations and qualifications on the review undertaken in connection with the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion in this Circular is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion. The Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion. The Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion in this Circular is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion. The Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion. The Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion is not a recommendation as to whether or not Tembec Shareholders should vote in favour of the Arrangement. See "The Arrangement – Fairness Opinions – Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion" and Appendix G "Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion" and Appendix G "Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion".

The Special Committee also retained National Bank Financial as a financial advisor to provide an opinion on a non-contingent fixed fee basis in connection with the Arrangement. As part of this mandate, National Bank Financial was requested to provide the Special Committee with its opinion as to the fairness to the Tembec Shareholders, from a financial point of view, of the Consideration to be received in connection with the Arrangement. In connection with this mandate, National Bank Financial has prepared the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion. The National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion states that, on the basis of the assumptions, limitations and qualifications set forth therein, National Bank Financial point of view, to the Tembec Shareholders. The full text of the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion, setting out the assumptions made, matters considered and limitations and qualifications on the review undertaken in connection with the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion, is attached as Appendix H to this Circular. The summary of the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion. The National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion is not a recommendation as to whether or not Tembec Shareholders should vote in favour of the Arrangement. See "The Arrangement – Fairness Opinions – National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion is not a recommendation as to whether or not Tembec

Court Approval and Completion of the Arrangement

Completion of the Arrangement requires approval by the Court under Section 192 of the CBCA. Prior to the mailing of this Circular, Tembec obtained the Interim Order providing for the calling and holding of the Meeting and other procedural matters. A copy of the Interim Order is attached hereto as Appendix F. A copy of the Notice of Presentation for the Final Order is attached hereto as Appendix E.

Subject to the approval of the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders at the Meeting, the hearing of the application for the Final Order is expected to take place on or about August 7, 2017 at the Court at 1 Notre Dame Street West, Montréal, Québec at 9:00 a.m. or as soon thereafter as is reasonably practicable. The Court will consider, among other things, the fairness and reasonableness of the Arrangement and the rights of every Person affected. The Court may approve the Arrangement in any manner the Court may direct, subject to compliance with such terms and conditions, if any, as the Court deems fit. The Court has further been advised that the Final Order granted by the Court will constitute the basis for the exemption from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act provided by Section 3(a)(10) thereof with respect to the Rayonier AM Shares to be issued pursuant to the Arrangement.

Any Tembec Shareholder or other Person who wishes to participate, to appear or be represented and to present evidence or arguments at the hearing, must serve and file an answer and satisfy the other requirements of the Court, as directed in the Interim Order appended hereto as Appendix F and as the Court may direct in the future. If the hearing is postponed, adjourned or rescheduled then, subject to further direction of the Court, only those Persons having previously served an answer in compliance with the Interim Order will be given notice of the new date.

Although Tembec's objective is to have the Effective Date occur as soon as possible after the Meeting, the Effective Date could be delayed for a number of reasons, including, but not limited to, an objection before the Court at the hearing of the application for the Final Order or any delay in obtaining any required approvals. Tembec and Rayonier AM may determine not to complete the Arrangement without prior notice to or action on the part of Tembec Shareholders.

See "The Arrangement - Court Approval and Completion of the Arrangement".

Letter of Transmittal and Election Form

A Letter of Transmittal and Election Form (printed on yellow paper) has been mailed, together with this Circular, to each Person who was a registered holder of Tembec Shares on the Record Date. Each registered Tembec Shareholder must forward a properly completed and signed Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, with accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s), in order to receive the Consideration to which such Tembec Shareholder is entitled under the Arrangement. It is recommended that Tembec Shareholders complete, sign and return the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form with accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary as soon as possible. The Letter of Transmittal and Election Form is available on Tembec's website at http://www.tembec.com/ and on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Any Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, once deposited with the Depositary, shall be irrevocable and may not be withdrawn by a Tembec Shareholder except that all Letters of Transmittal and Election Forms will be automatically revoked if the Depositary is notified in writing by Tembec and Rayonier AM that the Arrangement Agreement has been terminated. If a Letter of Transmittal and Election Form is automatically revoked, the certificate(s) for the Tembec Shareholder submitting the same to the address specified in the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form.

See "The Arrangement – Letter of Transmittal and Election Form" and "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure".

Proration and Election Procedure

Available Elections and Procedure

Each registered holder of Tembec Shares will have the right to elect in the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form to receive the Consideration set out below. To make a valid election as to the form of Consideration that you wish to receive under the Arrangement, you must sign and return, if applicable, the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and make a proper election thereunder and return it with accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary prior to the Election Deadline, being 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on the Business Day which is three Business Days preceding the Effective Date. Tembec will provide at least two Business Days' notice of the Election Deadline to Tembec Shareholders by means of a press release disseminated on a newswire. Any Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, once deposited with the Depositary, will be irrevocable and may not be withdrawn by a Tembec Shareholder.

An election will have been properly made by registered holders of Tembec Shares only if the Depositary has received, by the Election Deadline, a Letter of Transmittal and Election Form properly completed and signed and accompanied by the certificate(s) for the Tembec Shares to which the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form relates, properly endorsed or otherwise in proper form for transfer.

Tembec Shareholders whose Tembec Shares are registered in the name of a broker, investment dealer or other intermediary should contact that broker, investment dealer or other intermediary for instructions and assistance in delivery of the share certificate(s) representing those shares and making, if applicable, an election with respect to the form of Consideration they wish to receive.

The determination of the Depositary as to whether elections have been properly made and when elections were received by it will be binding. **TEMBEC SHAREHOLDERS WHO DO NOT MAKE AN ELECTION PRIOR TO THE ELECTION DEADLINE, OR FOR WHOM THE DEPOSITARY DETERMINES THAT THEIR ELECTION WAS NOT PROPERLY MADE WITH RESPECT TO ANY TEMBEC SHARES, WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE ELECTED TO RECEIVE THE PER SHARE STOCK CONSIDERATION IN RESPECT OF THE TEMBEC SHARES HELD BY SUCH PERSON.** The Depositary may, with the mutual agreement of Tembec and Rayonier AM, make such rules as are consistent with the Arrangement for the implementation of the elections contemplated by the Arrangement and as are necessary or desirable to fully effect such elections.

Proration

A registered holder of Tembec Shares may elect in accordance with the holder's Letter of Transmittal and Election Form (and a Non-Registered Shareholder may elect in accordance with instructions provided by their broker, investment dealer or other intermediary), for every Tembec Share held, one of the following options the (i) Per Share Cash Amount; or (ii) Per Share Stock Consideration, subject to proration to ensure that no more than 63.3% of the aggregate Tembec Shares will receive the Per Share Cash Amount and no more than 36.7% of the aggregate Tembec Shares will receive the Per Share Stock Consideration.

The total number of Tembec Shares to be entitled to receive the Per Share Cash Amount will be equal to the Cash Consideration Number. All other Tembec Shares will be entitled to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration. Cash payments in connection with the Arrangement will be denominated in Canadian dollars.

If the aggregate number of Cash Electing Shares exceeds the Cash Consideration Number, then (i) all Stock Electing Shares shall be exchanged for the Per Share Stock Consideration, and (ii) the number of Cash Electing Shares of each Tembec Shareholder that will be exchanged for the Per Share Cash Amount shall be equal to the product obtained by multiplying (x) the number of Cash Electing Shares held by such Tembec Shareholder by (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is the Cash Consideration Number and the denominator of which is the Cash Election Number, rounded to the nearest whole Tembec Share, with the remaining number of such shareholder's Cash Electing Shares being exchanged for the Per Share Stock Consideration.

If the aggregate number of Cash Electing Shares is less than the Cash Consideration Number, then (i) all Cash Electing Shares shall be exchanged for the Per Share Cash Amount, and (ii) the number of Stock Electing Shares of each Tembec Shareholder that shall be exchanged for the Per Share Cash Amount in respect of that number of Stock Electing Shares shall be equal to the product obtained by multiplying (x) the number of Stock Electing Shares held by such Tembec Shareholder by (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is the Shortfall Number and the denominator of which is the total number of Stock Electing Shares, rounded to the nearest whole Tembec Share, with the remaining number of such Tembec Shareholder's Stock Electing Shares being exchanged for the Per Share Stock Consideration.

See "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure".

Stock Exchange Listing and Reporting Issuer Status

If the Arrangement is completed, the Tembec Shares will be de-listed from the TSX. The Rayonier AM Shares currently trade on the NYSE under the symbol "RYAM". Rayonier AM will apply to list the Rayonier AM Shares issuable under the Arrangement on the NYSE and it is a condition of closing that Rayonier AM will have been authorized for this listing.

See "The Arrangement - Stock Exchange Listing and Reporting Issuer Status".

The Arrangement Agreement

On May 24, 2017, Tembec and Rayonier AM entered into the Arrangement Agreement, pursuant to which it was agreed, among other things, to implement the Arrangement in accordance with and subject to the terms and conditions contained therein and in the Plan of Arrangement.

See "The Arrangement Agreement".

Procedure for the Arrangement to Become Effective

The Arrangement is proposed to be carried out under Section 192 of the CBCA. The following procedural steps must be taken in order for the Arrangement to become effective:

- the Court must grant the Final Order approving the Arrangement;
- all conditions precedent to the Arrangement further described in the Arrangement Agreement must be satisfied or waived by the appropriate party; and
- if applicable, the Final Order, the Articles of Arrangement and related documents, in the form prescribed by the CBCA, must be filed with the Director.

Dissent Rights

Under the Interim Order, Registered Shareholders are entitled to Dissent Rights only if they follow the procedures specified in the CBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order. Persons who are beneficial owners of Tembec Shares registered in the name of an intermediary who wish to exercise Dissent Rights should be aware that only Registered Shareholders are entitled to Dissent Rights. Accordingly, a beneficial owner of Tembec Shares desiring to exercise this right must make arrangements for the Tembec Shares beneficially owned by such Tembec Shareholder to be registered in the Tembec Shareholder's name prior to the time the Dissent Notice is required to be received by Tembec or, alternatively, make arrangements for the registered holder of such Tembec Shares to dissent on the Tembec Shareholder's behalf.

If you wish to exercise Dissent Rights, you should review the requirements summarized in this Circular carefully and consult with your legal advisor.

See "Rights of Dissenting Shareholders".

Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations

Tembec Shareholders who are residents of Canada for purposes of the ITA will realize a taxable disposition of their Tembec Shares under the Arrangement.

Tembec Shareholders who are not residents of Canada for purposes of the ITA, hold their Tembec Shares as capital property and do not hold their Tembec Shares as "taxable Canadian property" will not be subject to tax under the ITA on the disposition of their Tembec Shares under the Arrangement.

See "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations" for a general summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations relevant to certain Tembec Shareholders who are either residents or non-residents of Canada for purposes of the ITA, including certain Canadian federal income tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of any Rayonier AM shares received pursuant to Arrangement.

Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

The exchange of Tembec Shares for cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In general, a U.S. Holder (as defined under the heading "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations") that exchanges Tembec Shares for cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will recognize gain or loss on the exchange of its Tembec Shares in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between (a) the sum of the fair market value of any Rayonier AM Shares (determined as of the Effective Date) and the U.S. dollar value of the amount of cash received in exchange for Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement and (b) the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the Tembec Shares exchanged therefor. A Non-U.S. Holder (as defined under the heading "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations") generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on any gain recognized on the exchange of Tembec Shares for cash and Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement unless (i) the gain is effectively connected with the conduct by the Non-U.S. Holder of a trade or business in the United States or (ii) the Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of disposition and certain other conditions are met.

See "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations" for a general summary of certain U.S. federal income tax considerations relevant to Tembec Shareholders, including certain U.S. federal income tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of any Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement.

Risk Factors

There are a number of risk factors relating to the Arrangement, the business of Tembec, the business of Rayonier AM and the Rayonier AM Shares all of which should be carefully considered by Tembec Shareholders.

See "Risk Factors – Risks Related to the Arrangement", "Information Relating to Tembec – Risk Factors" and "Information Relating to Rayonier AM – Risk Factors".

Canadian Securities Law Matters

The Rayonier AM Shares to be issued in exchange for Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will be issued in reliance upon exemptions from the prospectus requirements of securities legislation in each province and territory of Canada.

Upon completion of the Arrangement, Rayonier AM will become a reporting issuer in each of the provinces and territories of Canada by virtue of the completion of the Arrangement with Tembec. Pursuant to NI 71-102, Rayonier AM will be generally exempt from Canadian statutory financial and other continuous and timely reporting requirements, including the requirement for insiders of Rayonier AM to file reports with respect to trades of Rayonier AM securities, provided Rayonier AM complies with the requirements of U.S. securities Laws and U.S. market requirements in respect of all financial and other continuous and timely reporting matters and Rayonier AM files with the relevant provincial securities regulatory authorities copies of its documents filed with the SEC under the U.S. Exchange Act.

See "Regulatory Matters - Canadian Securities Law Matters".

United States Securities Law Matters

The Rayonier AM Shares issuable in connection with the Arrangement will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act and will be issued in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 3(a)(10) of the U.S. Securities Act. The Final Order of the Court will, if granted, constitute a basis for the exemption from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act with respect to the Rayonier AM Shares issued in connection with the Arrangement.

Tembec Shareholders who are not "affiliates" (as defined in Rule 144 of the U.S. Securities Act) of Rayonier AM, did not become affiliates after consummation of the Arrangement and were not affiliates of Rayonier AM within 90 days of the Effective Time may resell such shares without restriction under the U.S. Securities Act. Any Tembec Shareholder who is an affiliate of Rayonier AM, became an affiliate after

consummation of the Arrangement or was an affiliate of Rayonier AM within 90 days of the Effective Time may not resell such shares except in accordance with the provisions in Rule 144 of the U.S. Securities Act.

See "Regulatory Matters – United States Securities Law Matters".

Other Regulatory Matters

Completion of the Arrangement is subject to the conditions precedent contained in the Arrangement Agreement having been satisfied, including receipt of the following:

- Tembec Shareholder Approval,
- The Final Order,
- Stock exchange approval,
- Investment Canada Act Approval (if required),
- Competition Act Approval,
- HSR Act approval,
- Antitrust clearance under applicable Antitrust Laws in Germany and China,
- Consent of the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry,
- Consent of the Independent Electricity System Operator,
- Consent of the Ontario Minister of Northern Development and Mines.

See "Regulatory Matters - Other Regulatory Matters".

Selected Unaudited Pro forma Financial Information

The following selected unaudited *pro forma* combined balance sheet data gives effect to the Arrangement as if it had been completed on March 25, 2017, while the unaudited *pro forma* combined income statement data for the three months ended March 25, 2017 and the year ended December 31, 2016 gives effect to the Arrangement as if it had been completed at the beginning of the respective period.

The following selected unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information has been prepared for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of what Rayonier AM's consolidated financial position or results of operations actually would have been had the Arrangement been completed as of the dates indicated. In addition, the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information does not purport to project the future financial position or results of operations of Rayonier AM's future financial position may vary significantly from the *pro forma* balance sheet data presented because of various factors, including differences between historical market prices for Rayonier AM Shares and historical exchange rates between Canadian dollars and U.S. dollars relative to market prices for Rayonier AM Shares and the exchange rate between Canadian dollars and U.S. dollars as of the final determination of the fair values of assets to be acquired and liabilities to be assumed. See "Accounting Treatment". Future results of operations may vary significantly from the *pro forma* statement of operations data presented because of various factors, including those discussed in "Risk Factors", "Information Relating to Tembec – Risk Factors" and "Information Relating to Rayonier AM – Risk Factors". The following selected unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial statements of Rayonier AM whi

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Earnings Data For the three months ended March 25, 2017 (US\$ in millions, except per share amounts)

				Pro Forma	1	Pro Forma
	Ray	onier AM	 Tembec ⁽¹⁾	 Adjustments		Combined
Net Sales	\$	201	\$ 301	\$ -	\$	502
Operating income	\$	26	\$ 32	\$ -	\$	58
Interest expense, net	\$	(8)	\$ (14)	\$ 5	\$	(17)
Net Income available to Common Stockholders	\$	7	\$ 20	\$ -	\$	27
Earnings per share						
Basic earnings in dollar per share	\$	0.15			\$	0.53
Diluted earnings in dollar per share	\$	0.15			\$	0.47

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Earnings Data For the year ended December 31, 2016 (US\$ in millions, except per share amounts)

				Pro Forma	1	Pro Forma
	Ray	onier AM	 Tembec ⁽¹⁾	 Adjustments		Combined
As of December 31, 2016						
Net Sales	\$	869	\$ 1,175	\$ -	\$	2,044
Operating income	\$	138	\$ 83	\$ -	\$	221
Interest expense, net	\$	(35)	\$ (52)	\$ 24	\$	(63)
Net Income available to Common Stockholders	\$	68	\$ 38	\$ 13	\$	119
Earnings per share						
Basic earnings in dollar per share	\$	1.61			\$	2.34
Diluted earnings in dollar per share	\$	1.55			\$	2.23

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet Data As of March 25, 2017 (US\$ in millions, unless otherwise noted)

				Pro Forma	Pro Forma
	Rayon	ier AM	 Tembec ⁽¹⁾	 Adjustments	 Combined
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	345	\$ 42	\$ (366)	\$ 21
Long-term debt, excluding current portion	\$	771	\$ 514	\$ (85)	\$ 1,200
Stockholders' equity	\$	215	\$ 102	\$ (68)	\$ 249
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$	1,429	\$ 907	\$ (156)	\$ 2,180
Common shares outstanding (millions)		43.3		8.4	51.7

Note (1) As adjusted to US\$ and U.S. GAAP.

GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE MEETING AND VOTING

Time, Date and Place

The Meeting will be held on the 41st Floor – Rooms Mont-Royal 1 and 2, at the offices of Stikeman Elliott LLP located at 1155 René-Lévesque Blvd. West in Montréal, Québec on July 27, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time).

Record Date

The record date for determining the Tembec Shareholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Meeting is June 19, 2017 (the "**Record Date**"). Only Tembec Shareholders of record as of the close of business (Eastern Time) on the Record Date are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Meeting.

Solicitation of Proxies

This Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the management of Tembec for use at the Meeting and any postponement or adjournment thereof for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Special Meeting. It is expected that the solicitation of proxies will be made primarily by mail. However, the directors, executive officers, officers and employees of Tembec may also solicit proxies by telephone, e-mail facsimile or in person. In addition, Tembec has retained the services of Shorecrest Group Ltd. to solicit proxies for a fee of approximately \$50,000 and will be reimbursed for its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. All costs of solicitation by management will be borne by Tembec.

Appointment and Revocation of Proxies

Accompanying this Circular is a form of proxy for holders of Tembec Shares. The persons named in the enclosed proxy form are Mr. James V. Continenza, Executive Chairman of the Board and James M. Lopez, President and Chief Executive Officer and Director of Tembec. A Tembec Shareholder has the right to appoint a person, other than the persons named in the enclosed proxy form, to represent such shareholder at the Meeting. A Tembec Shareholder wishing to appoint some other Person to represent him or her at the Meeting may do so by inserting such other person's name in the blank space provided in the proxy form and delivering the completed proxy form to Tembec Inc., c/o Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 8th Floor, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2Y1. The applicable form of proxy must be received by Computershare Trust Company of Canada no later than 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on July 25, 2017 or 48 hours prior to the time of any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting. Failure to deposit a form of proxy shall result in its invalidation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the chair of the Meeting has the discretion to accept or reject proxies received after such deadline and the chair of the Meeting is under no obligation to accept or reject any particular late proxy. The time limit for deposit of proxies may be waived or extended by the chair of the Meeting at his or her discretion, without notice.

In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by Law, any Tembec Shareholder executing the proxy form may revoke it at any time, as long as it has not been exercised, by instrument in writing executed by such shareholder or his attorney authorized in writing and deposited either at the head office of Tembec at 100-4 Place Ville-Marie, Montréal, Québec, H3B 2E7 at any time up to and including the last Business Day preceding the date of the Meeting, or any adjournment or postponement thereof, or with the chair of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Voting by Non-Registered Shareholders

The information set out in this section is of importance to shareholders who do not hold Tembec Shares in their own name. Persons who hold Tembec Shares through their brokers, intermediaries, trustees or other Persons, or who otherwise do not hold such securities in their own name (the "**Non-Registered Shareholders**") should note that only proxies deposited by Persons whose names appear on the records of Tembec may be recognized and acted upon at the Meeting. If Tembec Shares are listed in an account statement provided to a Non-Registered Shareholder by a broker, then in almost all cases, those Tembec Shares will not be registered in the Non-Registered Shareholder's name on the records of Tembec. Such Tembec Shares will most likely be registered under the names of the broker or an agent of that broker. In Canada, the vast majority of shares are registered under the name of CDS & Co., which

acts as nominee for many Canadian brokerage firms. Tembec Shares held by brokers, agents or nominees can only be voted upon the instructions of the Non-Registered Shareholder. Without specific instructions, brokers, agents and nominees are prohibited from voting securities for the brokers' clients. Non-Registered Shareholders should ensure that instructions respecting the voting of their Tembec Shares are communicated to the appropriate Person at the appropriate time.

Additional Information for Non-Registered Shareholders

These Meeting materials are being sent to both Registered Shareholders and Non-Registered Shareholders of Tembec Shares.

If you have received these materials from your intermediary or its agent (such as Broadridge), your intermediary or agent is required to seek your instructions as to the manner in which to exercise the voting rights attached to your Tembec Shares. The voting instruction form that is sent by the intermediary or its agent should contain an explanation as to how you can exercise the voting rights attached to your Tembec Shares, including how to attend and vote directly at the Meeting. Please provide your voting instructions to your intermediary as specified in the voting instruction form that you have received from your intermediary.

Tembec is not relying on the notice-and-access provisions of applicable securities laws for delivery to either Registered Shareholders or Non-Registered Shareholders of Tembec Shares and intends to pay for intermediaries to send the proxy-related materials to all Non-Registered Shareholders.

Quorum

A quorum at meetings of Tembec Shareholders consists of two Persons who are, or who represent by proxy, Tembec Shareholders, who in the aggregate, hold at least 20% of the total number of issued and outstanding Tembec Shares entitled to be voted at the Meeting.

Principal Holders of Tembec Shares

The authorized share capital of Tembec consists of an unlimited number of Tembec Shares. As at June 13, 2017, 100,000,000 Tembec Shares were issued and outstanding.

The Board has fixed the close of business on June 19, 2017 as the Record Date for the purpose of determining the Tembec Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the Meeting, but the failure of any Tembec Shareholder who was a Tembec Shareholder on the Record Date to receive notice of the Meeting does not deprive the Tembec Shareholder of the right to vote at the Meeting.

As at June 13, 2017, other than the following Persons, to the knowledge of Tembec's directors and officers, no person or company beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, Tembec Shares carrying more than 10% or more of voting rights attached to all Tembec Shares.

Name of Shareholder	Number of Tembec Shares	Approximate % of Outstanding Tembec Shares
Oaktree Capital Management L.P.	19,900,000	19.90
Restructuring Capital Associates L.P.	17,947,325	17.95
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited	15,862,194 ¹	15.86

¹ As of June 19, 2017, Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited has announced that it has sold its remaining position in Tembec over the facilities of the TSX.

THE ARRANGEMENT

Background to the Arrangement

As part of its mandate to strengthen the business of Tembec and enhance value for Tembec's stakeholders, the Board has regularly reviewed its corporate strategy and considered various strategic options and other opportunities that may be in the best interests of Tembec. The following is a summary of the material negotiations, discussions and actions taken by Tembec, the Board and management to achieve these goals, which ultimately resulted in the execution of the Arrangement Agreement. The terms and conditions of the Arrangement Agreement are the result of arm's length negotiations conducted between representatives of Tembec and Rayonier AM and their respective legal and financial advisors.

In its fiscal year ended September 29, 2012, Tembec's adjusted EBITDA declined from \$98 million to \$64 million (-35%) as compared to the prior fiscal year ended September 24, 2011. The results were negatively impacted by a decrease in the selling price of paper pulps and a relatively strong Canadian dollar, which had averaged US\$0.992 in fiscal 2012. The trading price of Tembec's common shares averaged \$2.77 in fiscal 2012, a 30% decline from \$3.95 in the prior fiscal year. At September 29, 2012, Tembec had liquidity of \$140 million, which was within its minimum target range of \$135 million to \$150 million. However, in fiscal 2012, Tembec had spent approximately \$59 million on the construction of a new boiler and turbine at its Temiscaming specialty cellulose mill. It was estimated that approximately \$131 million of capital expenditures would be required to complete the project. In this respect, on October 17, 2012, the Board broadened the mandate of the Special Committee and authorized the Special Committee to review and consider the terms and to supervise the process to be carried out by Tembec in evaluating and implementing any strategic transaction proposed to Tembec, to identify actions to increase liquidity and to make recommendations to the Board with respect thereto.

The Board and the Special Committee reviewed a number of strategic initiatives for the purpose of maximizing or enhancing value for Tembec's stakeholders, including, among others, the continuation of Tembec's existing stand-alone business plan and a strategic repositioning of Tembec, cost reduction plans, potential asset combinations of Tembec's forest products, newsprint and/or specialty pulp businesses with other industry players, the possible divestiture of certain of Tembec's core and non-core business segments and several strategies to refinance Tembec's maturing debt obligations and provide additional necessary liquidity. As such, Tembec has, since 2012, engaged in numerous discussions with various lenders and potential strategic counterparties to assess the opportunities available to Tembec.

Tembec's financial results improved during the fiscal year ended September 28, 2013, as adjusted EBITDA increased from \$64 million in the prior fiscal year to \$98 million (+53%). Higher lumber and high-yield paper pulp prices generated the improvement. The Canadian dollar remained relatively unchanged, averaging US\$0.985. Tembec's average share price in fiscal 2013 was \$2.69, a 3% decline from the prior year. However, liquidity declined to \$109 million, below the stated minimum level of \$135 million. Capital expenditures totalled \$137 million, including \$78 million for the Temiscaming specialty cellulose boiler and turbine project. The estimated total cost of the project also increased from \$190 million to \$235 million, principally due to an increase in labour costs, and it was determined that a further \$98 million would be required to complete the project.

In fiscal 2014, Tembec generated adjusted EBITDA of \$90 million, a slight decline (-8%) from the prior fiscal year. Lower paper and viscose pulp prices were partially offset by a weaker Canadian dollar, which averaged US\$0.924. Tembec's share price averaged \$2.79 in fiscal 2014. Liquidity further declined to \$84 million. Capital expenditures totalled \$151 million in fiscal 2014, including \$117 million for the Temiscaming specialty cellulose boiler and turbine project. The estimated cost of the project also increased from \$235 million to \$265 million, as a result of increased labour costs, and it was determined that a further \$9 million (in addition to the \$98 million referred to above) would be required to complete construction. Against this background in 2014, the Board considered and approved a series of actions in an effort to address and improve Tembec's worsening liquidity situation. In this respect, the Board proceeded with the sale of certain lands and non-core assets, in particular Tembec's paper pulp mill assets located in British Columbia. In addition, Tembec entered into discussions with various lenders and investors with a view to securing new financing or to provide Tembec additional necessary liquidity, including the refinancing of Tembec's outstanding senior secured notes which had an interest rate of 11.25% and existing ABL revolving credit facility. These efforts resulted in Tembec reducing its annual interest

expense burden by refinancing its existing 11.25% senior secured notes with senior secured notes having an interest rate of 9% in October 2014.

In fiscal 2015, Tembec's financial results were significantly impacted by a decline in demand and prices for specialty cellulose pulps and adjusted EBITDA declined to \$70 million, a 22% decline from \$90 million in the prior fiscal year. Currency provided a partial offset as the Canadian dollar averaged US\$0.817. While the average share price in fiscal 2015 was \$2.47, the share price at the end of September 2015 declined to \$1.38. Tembec's senior secured notes traded down to US\$0.65 per US\$1.00 of principal in the month of September 2015. At this point, Tembec's liquidity had declined to \$56 million. Tembec spent a total of \$57 million on capital expenditures in fiscal 2015, including \$19 million to complete the construction of the Temiscaming specialty cellulose boiler and turbine. The final project cost was \$273 million, \$83 million higher than the original estimate of \$190 million. In order to address these issues, the Board continued to consider a broad range of strategic alternatives to address Tembec's immediate liquidity needs and in May 2015, the Board mandated the Special Committee and management to conduct, with the assistance of Houlihan Lokey Capital Inc. ("Houlihan Lokey"), a review of the strategic refinancing alternatives available to Tembec and to identify a solution to Tembec's liquidity needs, which remained challenging.

In July 2015, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated ("**BofA Merrill Lynch**") was also retained by the Special Committee to conduct an evaluation of various strategic options available to Tembec, including the continuation of its current business plan. On July 30, 2015, BofA Merrill Lynch presented its findings to the Board, including a financial analysis and valuations of the underlying business units of Tembec, the feasibility of a potential combination with a third party industry participant ("**Party A**") and a preliminary review of the other strategic alternatives available to Tembec. At the same meeting, Houlihan Lokey presented its findings in respect of the financing alternatives available to Tembec to address its near-term liquidity needs. Stikeman Elliott LLP ("**Stikeman**"), Canadian counsel to Tembec, and Cahill Gordon & Reindel LLP ("**Cahill**"), U.S. counsel to Tembec, were also present at this meeting.

Pursuant to the strategic initiatives reviewed with BofA Merrill Lynch, Tembec entered into a nondisclosure agreement and exclusivity agreement with Party A in connection with a potential business combination, which ultimately did not result in a proposal.

Between August 2015 and November 2015, the Board met a number of times to receive updates from the Special Committee and Houlihan Lokey regarding the status of the negotiations in connection with the refinancing process.

On November 18, 2015, Tembec announced that it had entered into a new credit facility composed of a \$150 million asset-based revolving credit facility (the "**New ABL Facility**") and a new US\$62 million "first-in, last out" term loan. The New ABL Facility replaced Tembec's existing \$175 million ABL revolving credit facility.

Subsequent to discussions with a third party ("**Party B**") interested in acquiring Tembec's forest products business, the Special Committee determined in January 2016 that the assistance of a financial advisor would be advisable and in the best interest of Tembec. On February 23, 2016, Scotia Capital was retained as financial advisor by the Special Committee to conduct a review of Tembec's forest products business in connection with a potential divestiture of all or part of such business segment.

In early April 2016, representatives of Rayonier AM met with James V. Continenza, Executive Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Special Committee, and James Lopez, the President and Chief Executive Officer of Tembec, to discuss Rayonier AM's interest in Tembec's specialty cellulose pulp business segment. On April 25, 2016, Rayonier AM entered into a non-disclosure and standstill agreement and the parties entered into preliminary discussions regarding a potential transaction.

Concurrently, representatives of Tembec continued discussions with Party B regarding a potential transaction involving Tembec's forest products business segment. While Party B expressed interest in pursuing discussions relating to the acquisition of Tembec's forest products business segment, following a careful review of such expression of interest, the Board concluded that the proposed terms on which such transaction might be completed was inadequate and should not be pursued at that time. The mandate with BofA Merrill Lynch was terminated in June 2016.

On July 6, 2016, Scotia Capital's mandate was expanded to provide the Board with an assessment of Tembec's business value and to assist Tembec in identifying potential strategic alternatives to enhance shareholder value, including the sale of the whole or any part of Tembec. On July 28, 2016, Scotia Capital presented its findings to the Board under various scenarios, a preliminary review of the various alternatives considered, including the continuation of Tembec's existing stand-alone business plan, the sale of certain assets or business units of Tembec or the entire company. Scotia Capital advised that it was an attractive time to consider a sale process of the Temiscaming, Québec and Tartas, France sites for a number of reasons, including that it could provide significant value for Tembec. With the advice of Scotia Capital, the Board identified a list of potential interested parties who would be contacted as part of the sale process. Stikeman and Cahill were also present at this meeting.

Between late September and November 2016, Scotia Capital assisted Tembec in its strategic review process and contacted 11 potential bidders, including other dissolving wood pulp industry participants and potential strategic counterparties as well as Rayonier AM, eight of such potential bidders entered into confidentiality agreements and were provided with a confidential information memorandum. As part of this process undertaken by Tembec, eight parties were granted the right to conduct due diligence, including Rayonier AM, and two non-binding expressions of interests for the acquisition of the Temiscaming, Québec and Tartas, France sites were received (from "**Party C**" and "**Party D**", respectively). Rayonier AM, while conveying an interest in certain dissolving wood pulp assets of Tembec, did not formally submit an expression of interest.

On November 17, 2016, the Board met to receive an update from Scotia Capital on the process and analysis carried out by them, the proposals submitted by the potential interested parties and the pricing and other relevant terms and conditions put forth by these potential interested parties. Although Scotia Capital was instructed to contact Rayonier AM, Party C and Party D to request revised and improved offers, it was noted by the Board that it was unlikely that a transaction would materialize under the proposed structures or terms and that, unless improved and revised offers were presented, there was no basis to pursue further discussions at that time. None of such parties presented acceptable revised offers. The Board and management also discussed potential refinancing strategies for the coming year, given improving financial performance and liquidity.

During the week of January 23, 2017, James V. Continenza was contacted by Paul G. Boynton, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Rayonier AM to discuss the possibility of a potential bid by Rayonier AM for the entire company. On January 25, 2017, the Special Committee provided an update to the Board in respect of these discussions. Concurrently, Scotia Capital provided Tembec's revised financial information to Rayonier AM.

On February 2, 2017, James Lopez reported to the Special Committee that Tembec had received a fourth non-binding expression of interest from a third party ("**Party E**") regarding the acquisition of the Temiscaming, Québec and Tartas, France sites and its related businesses and Scotia Capital presented the Special Committee with a review of the proposed financial terms. The Special Committee determined that the expression of interest was not acceptable. Scotia Capital was instructed to contact Party E to request improved terms. Scotia Capital was also asked to encourage Rayonier AM to submit an indication of interest in writing. Scotia Capital provided Tembec's revised financial information to Party E. While Party E presented a revised non-binding expression of interest, it was also deemed not acceptable.

Representatives of Rayonier AM and Scotia Capital spoke in mid-February 2017, at which time Rayonier AM presented a non-binding indication of interest that contemplated an acquisition of all of the issued and outstanding shares of Tembec on the basis of \$3.15 per Tembec Share. The Board met on February 24, 2017 to receive input from the Special Committee and management regarding Rayonier AM's proposal. Following this review, the Board determined that the total consideration offered by Rayonier AM was not compelling and Scotia Capital was instructed to request that Rayonier AM increase the consideration offered under its proposal.

On February 27, 2017, Rayonier AM's advisors presented Scotia Capital with a revised indication of interest which contemplated a transaction under which Rayonier AM would acquire all of the issued and outstanding Tembec Shares at a value of \$3.70 per Tembec Share. The Special Committee met on March 1, 2017 to review and consider the revised proposal and received input from management and Scotia Capital as to the financial terms of the revised indication of interest. The Special Committee then considered, among other things, the benefits that could be derived from a transaction with Rayonier AM, Rayonier AM's financial capabilities, the expected performance and associated risks to Tembec based on its stand-alone business plan and the Special Committee also reviewed other potential strategic alternatives in lieu of Rayonier AM's indication of interest. Following this review,

the Special Committee concluded that the overall valuation remained too low and Scotia Capital was instructed to inform Rayonier AM's advisors.

On March 14, 2017, representatives of Tembec and Rayonier AM met in person. At this meeting, Rayonier AM informed Tembec's representatives that it would be prepared to increase the consideration from \$3.70 to \$4.00 per Tembec Share. On March 20, 2017, the Special Committee met with Scotia Capital, Stikeman and management to review the revised terms of Rayonier AM's proposal. Scotia Capital presented an analysis of the revised terms and the key considerations to bear in mind in connection with the Rayonier AM proposal. Following a lengthy discussion, the Special Committee determined that Rayonier AM's improved terms were sufficient to proceed with transaction due diligence and to start negotiations regarding a potential transaction.

Between March 20, 2017 and May 24, 2017, Rayonier AM, Tembec and their respective advisors were provided access to additional due diligence materials with respect to each other's business operations, including a management presentation held on April 6, 2017, and engaged in discussions on the principal terms of the proposed transaction to be contained in the transaction agreements.

On April 24, 2017, the Board met to receive a further presentation from Scotia Capital on Rayonier AM's proposal. Stikeman and Cahill provided an overview of the material issues raised by the Arrangement Agreement proposed by Rayonier AM, including the consideration and proposed corporate structure of the Arrangement. Stikeman and Cahill also provided an update on the duties and responsibilities of the Board in considering the Arrangement and Arrangement Agreement.

Between May 2, 2017 and May 19, 2017, the Board met four times to receive updates as to the status of the negotiations. At these meetings, Scotia Capital, Stikeman and Cahill were present to update the Board on the status of the outstanding financial and legal matters and the transaction documentation which had not yet been definitively resolved, as well as provide advice regarding the legal considerations relating to the proposed terms of the Arrangement.

On May 10, 2017, the Special Committee retained National Bank Financial to provide a fairness opinion on a non-contingent fixed fee basis in connection with the Arrangement.

At the end of the day on May 19, 2017, representatives of Tembec and Rayonier AM met with their respective financial advisors to finalize the key terms of the Arrangement, namely the price and form of consideration, due diligence findings by Rayonier AM, termination fees payable by the parties and the key closing conditions. At such meeting, Rayonier AM agreed to an increase in the consideration offered from \$4.00 to \$4.05 per Tembec Share, 63.3% payable in cash and 36.7% in shares of Rayonier AM. The cash and share split of the Consideration would result in less than 20% of the issued and outstanding Rayonier AM Shares being issued in connection with the proposed transaction, and accordingly, would not require a vote of Rayonier AM's shareholders.

Between May 20, 2017 and May 24, 2017, representatives of Tembec and Rayonier AM, assisted by their respective legal advisors, continued to negotiate the remaining outstanding terms of the transaction agreements.

On the afternoon of May 24, 2017, the Board met to consider the final terms of the Arrangement Agreement. Stikeman and Cahill updated the Board regarding the status of negotiations and each of Scotia Capital and National Bank Financial presented the Board their fairness opinions to the effect that the Consideration was fair, from a financial point of view, to the Tembec Shareholders. Following such presentations, the Board discussed each of the strategic alternatives available to Tembec, including the likelihood of a potential business combination transaction with another specialty cellulose industry participant or strategic counterparty. The Board also considered the expected performance of Tembec based on its stand-alone business plan and the prior history of Tembec's negotiations with a large number of third party industry and strategic counterparties. Further to such discussions, the Board concluded that it was unlikely that any counterparty would make a proposal that was superior to Rayonier AM's and that such proposal would deliver more value to Tembec than pursuing activities on a stand-alone basis and unanimously determined that the Arrangement was in the best interest of Tembec, approved the entering into of the Arrangement Agreement and resolved to recommend that Tembec Shareholders vote in favour of the Arrangement Resolution. In determining whether to approve the Arrangement, the Board considered, among other things, the factors set forth herein and the reasons for the recommendation as set forth under "The Arrangement – Reasons for the Recommendation".

Later in the evening of May 24, 2017, the Parties executed the Arrangement Agreement and a press release announcing the Arrangement was disseminated before the opening of the financial markets on May 25, 2017.

Recommendation of the Board

After careful consideration, the Board unanimously determined that the Arrangement is fair to Tembec Shareholders and in the best interests of Tembec. The Board unanimously recommends that Tembec Shareholders vote **FOR** the Arrangement Resolution.

Reasons for the Recommendation

In making its recommendation, the Board consulted with the Special Committee, Tembec's management, Stikeman, Cahill, Scotia Capital and National Bank Financial, reviewed a significant amount of information and considered a number of factors, including those listed below. The following includes forward-looking information and readers are cautioned that actual results may vary.

In making its determinations and recommendations, the Board considered and relied upon a number of substantive factors, including, among others:

- **Premium to Tembec Shareholders**. Based on the 5-day volume weighted average price of the Rayonier AM Shares of US\$13.0694 and the currency exchange rate on May 24, 2017, the Arrangement values the Tembec Shares at \$4.05 per Tembec Share. This represents a premium of approximately 37% over the closing price of the Tembec Shares of \$2.95 on May 24, 2017, the last trading day prior to the public announcement by Tembec and Rayonier AM of the proposed Arrangement, and approximately 34% over the 52-week closing high price of the Tembec Shares. Based on the 5-day volume weighted average price of the Rayonier AM Shares of US\$16.7280 and the currency exchange rate on June 13, 2017, such premiums have now increased to approximately 50% and 47%, respectively.
- Ability to Elect Form of Consideration. The Tembec Shareholders are entitled to elect to receive Rayonier AM Shares or cash pursuant to the Arrangement, subject to proration.
- Benefits of Rayonier AM and Tembec Combination. The Board believes that the combination with Rayonier AM represents an excellent strategic fit through increased financial strength and flexibility, a broader array of product offerings, an expanded geographic footprint, opportunities to achieve manufacturing and distribution efficiencies and increased manufacturing scale. The Combined Company will also benefit from lower debt levels and a solid capital structure, enabling it to make high-return investments to support continued growth. Tembec Shareholders who receive Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will have the opportunity to participate in these benefits and any future increase in value of the Combined Company.
- Maintaining Presence and Operations in Québec, Ontario and France. Rayonier AM expects to retain Tembec's Canadian headquarters in Montreal, Québec and a presence in Ontario, and to continue to operate all Tembec facilities. Rayonier AM has also announced its intention to proceed with Tembec's recently announced four-year investment plan for its Québec facilities and make additional investments in other key facilities and operations to further enhance growth potential and competitiveness.
- Increased Market Liquidity. Upon the completion of the Arrangement, the Combined Company will have a broader shareholder base with increased market liquidity and a larger public float than Tembec. During the year prior to the Arrangement, the average daily aggregate trading value of Rayonier AM shares was approximately US\$7.76 million compared with an average daily aggregate trading value of Tembec shares of approximately US\$280,000. As of June 13, 2017, the Combined Company had a *pro forma* market capitalization of approximately US\$1 billion compared with Tembec's market capitalization of approximately US\$220 million on the day prior to the Arrangement. Rayonier AM's existing liquidity profile and the increased market capitalization of the Combined Company are expected to provide the Tembec Shareholders who receive Rayonier AM Shares under the

Arrangement with greater liquidity for such shares than currently available with respect to their Tembec Shares.

- Fairness Opinions. The fairness opinions delivered by each of Scotia Capital and National Bank Financial, which state that, as at May 24, 2017, and subject to the assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other matters contained therein, the Consideration to be received by the Tembec Shareholders under the Arrangement is fair, from a financial point of view, to Tembec Shareholders. See "The Arrangement Fairness Opinions", Appendix G "Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion" and Appendix H "National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion".
- **Comprehensive and Rigorous Sales Process.** The Arrangement arose out of a comprehensive and rigorous process conducted by Tembec, with the assistance of its financial advisors, to seek alternative transactions involving a sale of the whole or any part of Tembec over a significant period of time. A number of interested parties were contacted to determine whether they were interested in entering a transaction leading to the sale of the whole or any part of Tembec. Following this process, the Board concluded that no alternative transaction was available at a superior value and that the Arrangement represented the best alternative currently available to Tembec Shareholders.

In making its determinations and recommendation, the Board also observed that a number of procedural safeguards were and are present to permit the Board to represent effectively the interests of Tembec, the Tembec Shareholders and Tembec's other stakeholders, including, among others:

- Ability to Respond to Superior Proposals. Notwithstanding limitations contained in the Arrangement Agreement on Tembec's ability to solicit interest from third parties, the Arrangement Agreement allows the Board to engage in discussions or negotiations with respect to an unsolicited, written, bona fide Acquisition Proposal at any time prior to the approval of the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders and after the Board determines, in good faith, after consultation with its financial advisor and its outside legal counsel, that such Acquisition Proposal could reasonably be expected to lead to a Superior Proposal.
- Strategic Review Process Overseen by the Board. The Board reviewed a number of strategic initiatives for the purpose of maximizing or enhancing value for Tembec Shareholders, including, among others, the sale of the whole or any part of Tembec, the continuation of Tembec's existing stand-alone business plan and a strategic repositioning of Tembec, potential asset combinations of Tembec's forest products, newsprint and/or specialty pulp businesses with other industry players, the possible divestiture of certain of Tembec's core and non-core business segments or other refinancing strategies.
- Role of the Special Committee. The evaluation and negotiation process was monitored by the Special Committee, being members of the Board who are independent of management and who have no financial interest in the Arrangement that is different from that of the Tembec Shareholders. The Special Committee met regularly with Tembec's advisors and management.
- Shareholder and Court Approvals. The Arrangement is subject to the following shareholder and Court approvals, which protect Tembec Shareholders:
 - the Arrangement Resolution must be approved by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes cast on the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders, present in person or represented by proxy at the Meeting; and
 - the Arrangement must be approved by the Court, which will consider, among other things, the fairness and reasonableness of the Arrangement to Tembec Shareholders.
- **Dissent Rights.** The availability of Dissent Rights to Registered Shareholders with respect to the Arrangement.

The Board also considered a number of uncertainties, risks and other potential negative factors associated with the Arrangement, including the following:

- **Non-Completion.** The risks and costs to Tembec if the Arrangement is not completed, including the potential diversion of management and employee attention, potential employee attrition and the potential effect on business and stakeholder relationships.
- **Conduct of Business Restrictions.** The restrictions on the conduct of Tembec's business prior to the completion of the Arrangement, requiring Tembec to conduct its business in the ordinary course, subject to specific exceptions, which may delay or prevent Tembec from undertaking business opportunities that may arise pending completion of the Arrangement.
- **Rayonier AM Termination Fee.** The potential payment of the Reverse Termination Fee, being \$20 million, may not be sufficient to adequately compensate Tembec in the event of a failure to obtain the necessary approvals, clearances and rulings under applicable Antitrust Laws or, if required, under the Investment Canada Act.
- **Tembec Termination Fee.** The potential payment of the Termination Fee, being \$20 million, by Tembec under certain circumstances specified in the Arrangement Agreement, and that such Tembec Termination Fee may act as deterrent to the emergence of a Superior Proposal.
- Fees and Expenses. The fees and expenses associated with the Arrangement, a portion of which will be incurred regardless of whether the Arrangement is consummated.
- Other Risks. The other risks associated with the Arrangement and the business of Tembec, Rayonier AM and the Combined Company described under "Information Relating to Tembec Risk Factors", "Information Relating to Rayonier AM Risk Factors" and "Risk Factors".

Fairness Opinions

Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion

As part of the mandate, Scotia Capital was requested to provide the Board with its opinion as to the fairness to the Tembec Shareholders, from a financial point of view, of the Consideration to be received in connection with the Arrangement. In connection with this mandate, Scotia Capital has prepared the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion. The Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion states that, on the basis of the assumptions, limitations and qualifications set forth therein, Scotia Capital is of the opinion that, as of May 24, 2017, the Consideration under the Arrangement was fair, from a financial point of view, to the Tembec Shareholders.

Scotia Capital is the global corporate and investment banking and capital markets business of Scotiabank Group, one of North America's premier financial institutions. In Canada, Scotia Capital is one of the country's largest investment banking firms with operations in all facets of corporate and government finance, mergers and acquisitions, equity and fixed income sales and trading and investment research. Scotia Capital has participated in a significant number of transactions involving private and public companies and has extensive experience in preparing valuations and fairness opinions. The Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion represents the opinion of Scotia Capital and the form and content of the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion have been approved for release by a committee of its directors, each of whom is experienced in merger, acquisition, divestiture and fairness opinion matters.

The Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion is not a recommendation as to whether or not Tembec Shareholders should vote in favour of the Arrangement. See "The Arrangement – Fairness Opinions – Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion" and Appendix G "Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion".

The full text of the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion, which sets forth the assumptions made, general procedures followed, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by Scotia Capital, is reproduced as Appendix G to this Circular. This summary of the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion. Tembec has agreed to pay Scotia Capital a fee for providing its opinion and for its financial advisory services which is, in part, contingent on the successful

completion of the Arrangement. Tembec has also agreed to reimburse the expenses of Scotia Capital and to indemnify Scotia Capital in respect of certain liabilities that may be incurred by Scotia Capital in connection with the provision of its services.

National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion

The Special Committee also retained National Bank Financial to provide an opinion on a non-contingent fixed fee basis in connection with the Arrangement. As part of this mandate, National Bank Financial was requested to provide the Special Committee with its opinion as to the fairness to the Tembec Shareholders, from a financial point of view, of the Consideration to be received in connection with the Arrangement. In connection with this mandate, National Bank Financial has prepared the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion. The National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion states that, on the basis of the assumptions, limitations and qualifications set forth therein, National Bank Financial is of the opinion that, as of May 24, 2017, the Consideration under the Arrangement was fair, from a financial point of view, to the Tembec Shareholders.

National Bank Financial is a leading Canadian investment dealer whose businesses include corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, equity and fixed income sales and trading and investment research. The National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion is the opinion of National Bank Financial and the form and content thereof has been reviewed and approved for release by a group of managing directors of National Bank Financial, each of whom is experienced in merger, acquisition, divestiture, valuation and fairness opinion matters.

The full text of the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion, which sets out the assumptions made, general procedures followed, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken in connection by National Bank Financial reproduced as Appendix H to this Circular. This summary of the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion in this Circular is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion. Tembec has agreed to pay National Bank Financial a fee for providing its opinion and for its financial advisory services which is not contingent on the successful completion of the Arrangement. Tembec has also agreed to reimburse the expenses of National Bank Financial and to indemnify National Bank Financial in respect of certain liabilities that may be incurred by National Bank Financial in connection with the provision of its services. The National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion is not a recommendation as to whether or not Tembec Shareholders should vote in favour of the Arrangement. See "The Arrangement – Fairness Opinion".

Description of the Arrangement

The following description of the Arrangement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Plan of Arrangement which is attached as Appendix D to this Circular.

If approved, the Arrangement will become effective at the Effective Time (which is expected to be at 12:01 a.m. (Eastern Time) on a date to be determined not later than the Outside Date, or such later date as may be agreed to in writing by Tembec and Rayonier AM). At the Effective Time, the following transactions will be deemed to occur in the following order and at the following times without any further authorization, act or formality:

- (a) first, at the Effective Time, the following transactions shall occur simultaneously:
 - (i) the Tembec Articles shall be amended to set out therein the amount of the stated capital of the Tembec Shares;
 - (ii) the Tembec Investments Articles shall be amended to create the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares and to add such Tembec Investments Preferred Shares to the share capital of Tembec Investments; and
 - (iii) the Tembec Construction Articles shall be amended to create the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares and to add such Tembec Construction Preferred Shares to the share capital of Tembec Construction;

- (b) second, and five minutes after the Effective Time, all of the assets of Mattagami Railroad Company shall be deemed to have been assigned and transferred (free and clear of all Liens) to Tembec Construction in exchange for Tembec Construction Preferred Shares;
- (c) third, and ten minutes after the Effective Time, Mattagami Railroad Company shall be deemed to have been liquidated into Tembec Industries;
- (d) fourth, and fifteen minutes after the Effective Time, the following transactions shall occur simultaneously:
 - (i) each Employee DSU outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, whether vested or unvested, shall, without any further action by or on behalf of the holder thereof, be deemed to be assigned and transferred by such holder to Tembec in exchange for a cash payment from Tembec equal to the Consideration Cash Value (net of applicable withholdings), and each such Employee DSU shall immediately be cancelled;
 - (ii) each Employee Performance DSU outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, whether vested or unvested, shall, without any further action by or on behalf of the holder thereof, be deemed to be assigned and transferred by such holder to Tembec in exchange for a cash payment from Tembec equal to the Consideration Cash Value (net of applicable withholdings) and each such Employee Performance DSU shall immediately be cancelled, provided that any Employee Performance DSU in respect of which the performance goals have not been satisfied shall be cancelled for no consideration;
 - (iii) each Employee PCSU outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, whether vested or unvested, shall, without any further action by or on behalf of the holder thereof, be deemed to be assigned and transferred by such holder to Tembec in exchange for a cash payment from Tembec equal to the Consideration Cash Value (net of applicable withholdings) and each such Employee PCSU shall immediately be cancelled, provided that any Employee PCSU in respect of which the performance goals have not been satisfied shall be cancelled for no consideration;
 - (iv) each Director DSU outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, whether vested or unvested, shall, without any further action by or on behalf of the holder thereof, be deemed to be assigned and transferred by such holder to Tembec in exchange for a cash payment from Tembec equal to the Consideration Cash Value, and each such Director DSU shall immediately be cancelled; and
 - (v) notwithstanding the foregoing, any payment or settlement in respect of a DSU that immediately prior to the exchange described above constituted deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code shall be made on the earliest practicable payment or settlement date for such DSU that does not give rise to a violation of, or the imposition of taxes or penalties under, Section 409A of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code;
- (e) fifth, and twenty minutes after the Effective Time, the following transactions shall occur simultaneously:
 - (i) each warrant to purchase Tembec Shares pursuant to the 2012 IQ Loan Agreement and the 2013 IQ Loan Agreement (each, an "IQ Warrant") that is outstanding and unexercised as of immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be cancelled and converted into the right to receive from Rayonier AM an amount in cash, without interest, equal to the product of (i) the excess, if any, of the Consideration Cash Value over the exercise price per Tembec Share of such IQ Warrant, multiplied by (ii) the number of Tembec Shares subject to such IQ Warrant as of immediately prior to the Effective Time; provided that any IQ Warrant that has an exercise price per Tembec Share that equals or exceeds the Consideration Cash Value shall be cancelled for no consideration;

- (f) sixth, and twenty-five minutes after the Effective Time, all Tembec Shares held by Dissenting Shareholders shall be deemed to have been assigned and transferred (free and clear of all Liens) to Rayonier AM in exchange for a debt claim against Rayonier AM in an amount determined in accordance with the Plan of Arrangement, and
 - such Dissenting Shareholders shall cease to be the holders of such Tembec Shares and to have any rights as Tembec Shareholders other than the right to be paid the fair value for such Tembec Shares pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement;
 - (ii) the name of each such holder will be removed as Tembec Shareholders, as applicable from the registers of Tembec Shareholders, as applicable, maintained by or on behalf of Tembec in respect of such Tembec Shares; and
 - (iii) Rayonier AM shall be deemed to be the transferee of such Tembec Shares (free and clear of all Liens) and shall be entered in the registers of Tembec Shareholders maintained by or on behalf of Tembec;
- (g) seventh, and thirty minutes after the Effective Time, the following transactions shall occur simultaneously:
 - (i) each Tembec Share that is a Cash Electing Share shall be deemed to have been assigned and transferred (free and clear of all Liens) to Rayonier AM in exchange for the Per Share Cash Amount; and
 - (ii) each Tembec Share that is a Stock Electing Share shall be deemed to have been assigned and transferred (free and clear of all Liens) to Rayonier AM in exchange for the Per Share Stock Consideration; and
- (h) subject to Section 3.2 of the Plan of Arrangement, the stated capital of the Tembec Shares shall be reduced, without distribution, in an amount up to \$500,000,000 by amending the Tembec Articles.

Rayonier AM may, at its sole discretion, elect to amend the Tembec Articles in accordance with paragraph (h) above by providing Tembec, at least five Business Days before the Effective Date, with a notice in writing stating an amount up to \$500,000,000 by which the stated capital of the Tembec Shares shall be reduced, without distribution. If Rayonier AM does not provide such notice, the step provided in paragraph (h) above shall be omitted in its entirety.

Rayonier AM may, at its sole discretion, designate a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Rayonier AM ("**Rayonier AM Sub**") to be the acquiror for purposes of the Plan of Arrangement by providing Tembec at least five Business Days before the Effective Date with a notice in writing. If Rayonier AM makes such designation, all references to Rayonier AM in Sections 3.1, 4.4(b), 4.4(c) and 5.1(b) of the Plan of Arrangement as well as the corresponding sections in this Circular shall be deemed to refer to Rayonier AM Sub. Rayonier AM, Rayonier AM Sub and Tembec shall make such other changes to, or interpretations of, the Plan of Arrangement as shall be required to give effect to such designation.

Procedure for the Arrangement to Become Effective

The Arrangement is proposed to be carried out under Section 192 of the CBCA. The following procedural steps must be taken in order for the Arrangement to become effective:

- the Court must grant the Final Order approving the Arrangement;
- all conditions precedent to the Arrangement further described in the Arrangement Agreement must be satisfied or waived by the appropriate party; and
- if applicable, the Final Order, the Articles of Arrangement and related documents, in the form prescribed by the CBCA, must be filed with the Director.

Tembec Shareholder Approval

The Board unanimously recommends that Tembec Shareholders vote FOR the Arrangement Resolution. To be effective, the Arrangement Resolution must be approved, with or without variation, by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes cast on the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders present in person or represented by proxy at the Meeting.

Voting Agreements

On May 24, 2017, each of the Tembec directors and Executives who hold Tembec Shares entered into voting agreements with Rayonier AM in connection with the Arrangement. Such shareholders collectively beneficially own or exercise control or direction over 754,403 Tembec Shares, which represents approximately 0.754% of the outstanding Tembec Shares.

Under their respective Voting Agreements, each of the directors and Executives have agreed, among other things:

- to vote or to cause to be voted the Tembec Shares and any other securities directly or indirectly acquired by or issued to such directors and Executives after May 24, 2017 (including without limitation any common shares issued upon further exercise of options to purchase shares), (i) in favour of the Arrangement and any other matter necessary for the consummation of the Arrangement at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof and (ii) against any proposed action or agreement which could impede, interfere with, delay or otherwise adversely affect the consummation of the Arrangement;
- if requested by Rayonier AM, acting reasonably, to deliver or to cause to be delivered to Tembec duly executed proxies or voting instruction forms, as applicable, in favour of Rayonier AM or in favour of Tembec, such proxies instructing the holder thereof to vote in favour of the Arrangement;
- not to exercise any rights to dissent in connection with the Arrangement;
- except in the capacity as director or officer to the extent permitted by the Arrangement Agreement, not to take any action which may in any way adversely affect the success of the Arrangement;
- except in the capacity as director or officer to the extent permitted by the Arrangement Agreement, not to, directly or indirectly, make or participate in or take any action that would reasonably be expected to result in an Acquisition Proposal, or engage in any discussion, negotiation or inquiries relating thereto or accept any Acquisition Proposal; and
- not to, directly or indirectly, sell, transfer, gift, exchange, tender, pledge or assign or agree to sell, transfer, gift, exchange, tender, pledge or assign any of their Tembec Shares or any interest therein, without Rayonier AM's prior written consent.

Each of the directors and Executives may terminate their respective Voting Agreements in the event that, without their prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld), the Arrangement Agreement is amended to reduce or adversely change the consideration to be received by holders of Tembec Shares or is amended in any other respect that is materially adverse to such director or Executive, as applicable.

The foregoing is only a summary of the Voting Agreements and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Voting Agreements.

Court Approval and Completion of the Arrangement

The Arrangement requires approval by the Court under Section 192 of the CBCA. Prior to the mailing of this Circular, Tembec obtained the Interim Order providing for the calling and holding of the Meeting and other procedural matters. A copy of the Interim Order is attached hereto as Appendix F. A copy of the Notice of Presentation for the Final Order is attached hereto as Appendix E.

Subject to the approval of the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders at the Meeting, the hearing of the application for the Final Order is expected to take place on or about August 7, 2017 at the Court at 1 Notre Dame Street West, Montréal, Québec at 9:00 a.m. or as soon thereafter as is reasonably practicable. The Court will consider, among other things, the fairness and reasonableness of the Arrangement and the rights of every Person affected. The Court may approve the Arrangement in any manner the Court may direct, subject to compliance with such terms and conditions, if any, as the Court deems fit. The Court has further been advised that the Final Order granted by the Court will constitute the basis for the exemption from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act provided by Section 3(a)(10) thereof with respect to the Rayonier AM Shares to be issued pursuant to the Arrangement.

Any Tembec Shareholder or other Person who wishes to participate, to appear or be represented and to present evidence or arguments at the hearing, must serve and file an answer and satisfy the other requirements of the Court, as directed in the Interim Order appended hereto as Appendix F and as the Court may direct in the future. If the hearing is postponed, adjourned or rescheduled then, subject to further direction of the Court, only those Persons having previously served an answer in compliance with the Interim Order will be given notice of the new date.

Although Tembec's objective is to have the Effective Date occur as soon as possible after the Meeting, the Effective Date could be delayed for a number of reasons, including, but not limited to, an objection before the Court at the hearing of the application for the Final Order or any delay in obtaining any required approvals. Tembec and Rayonier AM may determine not to complete the Arrangement without prior notice to or action on the part of Tembec Shareholders. See "The Arrangement Agreement – Termination of the Arrangement Agreement".

Letter of Transmittal and Election Form

A Letter of Transmittal and Election Form (printed on yellow paper) has been mailed, together with this Circular, to each Person who was a Registered Shareholder on the Record Date. Each Registered Shareholder must forward a properly completed and signed Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, with accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s), in order to receive the Consideration to which such Tembec Shareholder is entitled under the Arrangement. It is recommended that Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary as soon as possible. **To make a valid election as to the form of Consideration that you wish to receive under the Arrangement, you must sign and return, if applicable, the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and make a proper election thereunder and return it with accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary prior to the Election Deadline, being 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on the Business Day which is three Business Days preceding the Effective Date. Tembec will provide at least two Business Days' notice of the Election Deadline to Tembec Shareholders by means of a press release disseminated on a newswire.**

Any Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, once deposited with the Depositary, shall be irrevocable and may not be withdrawn by a Tembec Shareholder except that all Letters of Transmittal and Election Forms will be automatically revoked if the Depositary is notified in writing by Tembec and Rayonier AM that the Arrangement Agreement has been terminated. If a Letter of Transmittal and Election Form is automatically revoked, the certificate(s) for the Tembec Shareholder submitting the same to the address specified in the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form.

The Letter of Transmittal and Election Form is available on Tembec's website at http://www.tembec.com/ and on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

See "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure".

Any use of the mail to transmit a certificate for Tembec Shares and a related Letter of Transmittal and Election Form is at the risk of the Tembec Shareholder. If these documents are mailed, it is recommended that registered mail, properly insured, be used.

Whether or not Tembec Shareholders forward the certificate(s) representing their Tembec Shares, upon completion of the Arrangement on the Effective Date, Tembec Shareholders will cease to be Tembec Shareholders as of the Effective Date and will only be entitled to receive the Consideration to which they are entitled under the Arrangement or, in the case of Tembec Shareholders who properly exercise Dissent Rights, the right to receive fair value for their Tembec Shares in accordance with the dissent procedures. See "Rights of Dissenting Shareholders".

The instructions for making elections, exchanging certificates representing Tembec Shares and depositing such share certificates with the Depositary are set out in the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form. The Letter of Transmittal and Election Form provides instructions with regard to lost certificates.

Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure

Available Elections and Procedure

Each registered holder of Tembec Shares will have the right to elect in the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form to receive the Consideration set out below. To make a valid election as to the form of Consideration that you wish to receive under the Arrangement, you must sign and return, if applicable, the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and make a proper election thereunder and return it with accompanying Tembec Share certificate(s) to the Depositary prior to the Election Deadline, being 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on the Business Day which is three Business Days preceding the Effective Date. Tembec will provide at least two Business Days' notice of the Election Deadline to Tembec Shareholders by means of a press release disseminated on a newswire. Any Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, once deposited with the Depositary, will be irrevocable and may not be withdrawn by a Tembec Shareholder.

An election will have been properly made by registered holders of Tembec Shares only if the Depositary has received, by the Election Deadline, a Letter of Transmittal and Election Form properly completed and signed and accompanied by the certificate(s) for the Tembec Shares to which the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form relates, properly endorsed or otherwise in proper form for transfer.

Tembec Shareholders whose Tembec Shares are registered in the name of a broker, investment dealer or other intermediary should contact that broker, investment dealer or other intermediary for instructions and assistance in delivery of the share certificate(s) representing those shares and making, if applicable, an election with respect to the form of Consideration they wish to receive.

The determination of the Depositary as to whether elections have been properly made and when elections were received by it will be binding. **TEMBEC SHAREHOLDERS WHO DO NOT MAKE AN ELECTION PRIOR TO THE ELECTION DEADLINE, OR FOR WHOM THE DEPOSITARY DETERMINES THAT THEIR ELECTION WAS NOT PROPERLY MADE WITH RESPECT TO ANY TEMBEC SHARES, WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE ELECTED TO RECEIVE THE PER SHARE STOCK CONSIDERATION IN RESPECT OF THE TEMBEC SHARES HELD BY SUCH PERSON.** The Depositary may, with the mutual agreement of Tembec and Rayonier AM, make such rules as are consistent with the Arrangement for the implementation of the elections contemplated by the Arrangement and as are necessary or desirable to fully effect such elections.

Proration

A registered holder of Tembec Shares may elect in accordance with the holder's Letter of Transmittal and Election Form (and a Non-Registered Shareholder may elect in accordance with instructions provided by their broker, investment dealer or other intermediary), for every Tembec Share held, one of the following options the (i) Per Share Cash Amount; or (ii) Per Share Stock Consideration, subject to proration to ensure that no more than 63.3% of the aggregate Tembec Shares will receive the Per Share Cash Amount and no more than 36.7% of the aggregate Tembec Shares will receive the Per Share Stock Consideration.

The total number of Tembec Shares to be entitled to receive the Per Share Cash Amount will be equal to the Cash Consideration Number. All other Tembec Shares will be entitled to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration. Cash payments in connection with the Arrangement will be denominated in Canadian dollars.

If the aggregate number of Cash Electing Shares exceeds the Cash Consideration Number, then (i) all Stock Electing Shares shall be exchanged for the Per Share Stock Consideration, and (ii) the number of Cash Electing Shares of each Tembec Shareholder that will be exchanged for the Per Share Cash Amount shall be equal to the product obtained by multiplying (x) the number of Cash Electing Shares held by such Tembec Shareholder by (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is the Cash Consideration Number and the denominator of which is the Cash Election Number, rounded to the nearest whole Tembec Share, with the remaining number of such shareholder's Cash Electing Shares being exchanged for the Per Share Stock Consideration.

If the aggregate number of Cash Electing Shares is less than the Cash Consideration Number, then (i) all Cash Electing Shares shall be exchanged for the Per Share Cash Amount, and (ii) the number of Stock Electing Shares of each Tembec Shareholder that shall be exchanged for the Per Share Cash Amount in respect of that number of Stock Electing Shares shall be equal to the product obtained by multiplying (x) the number of Stock Electing Shares held by such Tembec Shareholder by (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is the Shortfall Number and the denominator of which is the total number of Stock Electing Shares, rounded to the nearest whole Tembec Share, with the remaining number of such Tembec Shareholder's Stock Electing Shares being exchanged for the Per Share Stock Consideration.

If the aggregate number of Rayonier AM Shares to be issued in connection with the Arrangement would exceed the Maximum Share Number, the Cash Consideration Number for all purposes under the Plan of Arrangement will be increased by the minimum extent necessary such that the aggregate number of Rayonier AM Shares to be issued in connection with the Arrangement does not exceed the Maximum Share Number.

Exchange Procedure

Following receipt of the Final Order and prior to the Effective Time, Rayonier AM will deliver or arrange to be delivered to the Depositary the Consideration, including certificates representing the Rayonier AM Shares required to be issued to the Tembec Shareholders under the Arrangement, which will be held by the Depositary as agent and nominee for such Tembec Shareholders for distribution to such Tembec Shareholders in accordance with the provisions of the Plan of Arrangement.

Upon surrender to the Depositary for cancellation of a certificate which immediately prior to the Effective Time represented outstanding Tembec Shares that were transferred pursuant to Section 3.1 of the Plan of Arrangement, together with a duly completed and executed Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and such additional documents and instruments as the Depositary may reasonably require, the Tembec Shareholder represented by such surrendered certificate will be entitled to receive in exchange therefor, and the Depositary will deliver to such Tembec Shareholder, as soon as practicable and in accordance with the provisions of the Plan of Arrangement, the Consideration which such Tembec Shareholder has the right to receive under the Arrangement for such Tembec Shares, less any amounts withheld, and any certificate so surrendered will forthwith be cancelled. Any exchange or transfer of Tembec Shares pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement will be free and clear of any Liens or other claims of third parties of any kind.

If you are a Registered Shareholder, and you elect (or are deemed to elect) to receive the Per Share Cash Amount, subject to proration and rounding, you will receive such Per Share Cash Amount in Canadian dollars unless you exercise the right to elect in your Letter of Transmittal and Election Form to receive the Per Share Cash Amount that you are entitled to receive in respect of your Tembec Shares in U.S. dollars. If you do not make such an election in your Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, you will receive payment in Canadian dollars, subject to proration and rounding.

If you are a Non-Registered Shareholder, and you elect (or are deemed to elect) to receive the Per Share Cash Amount, subject to proration and rounding, you will receive the Per Share Cash Amount that you are entitled to receive in Canadian dollars unless you contact the intermediary in whose name your Tembec Shares are registered and request that the intermediary make an election on your behalf. If your intermediary does not make such an election on your behalf, you will receive payment in Canadian dollars, subject to proration and rounding.

The exchange rate that will be used to convert payments from Canadian dollars into U.S. dollars will be the rate established by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, in its capacity as foreign exchange service provider to Tembec, on the date the funds are converted, which rate will be based on the prevailing market rate on the date the funds are converted. The risk of any fluctuations in such rate, including risks related to the particular date and time at which funds are converted, will be solely borne by the Tembec Shareholder. Computershare Trust Company of Canada will act as principal in such currency conversion transactions conducted for Tembec and may earn a commercially reasonable spread between the exchange rate it uses to convert payments and the rate used by any counterparty from which it may purchase U.S. currency as reasonable compensation for its services to Tembec as foreign exchange service provider.

No Fractional Shares

In no event will any Tembec Shareholder be entitled to a fractional Rayonier AM Share. Where the aggregate number of Rayonier AM Shares to be issued to a Tembec Shareholder under the Arrangement would result in a fraction of a Rayonier AM Share being issuable, the number of Rayonier AM Shares to be received by such Tembec Shareholder will be rounded down to the nearest whole Rayonier AM Share. In lieu of any such fractional Rayonier AM Share, each Tembec Shareholder otherwise entitled to a fractional interest in Rayonier AM Share, being issuable, the number of the transformation of a Rayonier AM Share, each Tembec Shareholder otherwise entitled to a fractional interest in Rayonier AM Share will receive a cash payment representing such Tembec Shareholder's proportionate interest, if any, in the proceeds from the sale by the Depositary (reduced by any fees of the Depositary attributable to such sale), as agent for the Tembec Shareholders otherwise entitled to a fractional interests in Rayonier AM Shares, in one or more transactions of Rayonier AM Shares (which Rayonier AM shall issue to the Depositary on behalf of such Tembec Shareholders) equal to the excess of (a) the aggregate number of Rayonier AM Shares that otherwise would, but for the fractional shares restrictions under the Plan of Arrangement, be issued to the Tembec Shareholders pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement over (b) the aggregate number of whole Rayonier AM Shares issued pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement, after giving effect to the fractional shares restrictions thereunder.

Lost Certificates

If any certificate which immediately prior to the Effective Time represented one or more outstanding Tembec Shares that were transferred pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement will have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the Person claiming such certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed, the Depositary will issue in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, the Consideration which such Person is entitled to receive pursuant to the provisions of the Plan of Arrangement, net of amounts required to be withheld in accordance with the Withholding Obligation. When authorizing such payment and delivery in exchange for any lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, the Person to whom such payment is made will, as a condition precedent to the delivery thereof, give a bond satisfactory to Tembec, Rayonier AM and the Depositary (acting reasonably) in such sum as Rayonier AM may direct, or otherwise indemnify Rayonier AM in a manner satisfactory to Rayonier AM, acting reasonably, against any claim that may be made against Rayonier AM and Tembec with respect to the certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed.

Cancellation of Rights

Any certificate which immediately prior to the Effective Time represented outstanding Tembec Shares that is not deposited with all other instruments required on or prior to the sixth anniversary of the Effective Date, shall cease to represent a right or claim of any kind or nature, and the right of the former registered holder of such certificate to receive the Consideration shall terminate and be deemed to be surrendered or forfeited to Rayonier AM, Rayonier AM Sub or Tembec, as applicable, for no consideration.

Withholding Rights

Each of Rayonier AM, Rayonier AM Sub, Tembec and the Depositary will be entitled to deduct and withhold from any amount payable to any Person under the Plan of Arrangement, such amounts as Rayonier AM, Rayonier AM Sub, Tembec or the Depositary is required to deduct and withhold with respect to such payment under the ITA, the Code or any provision of any other Law and will remit such amounts to the appropriate Governmental Entity (a "**Withholding Obligation**"). To the extent that amounts are so deducted, withheld and remitted, such deducted, withheld and remitted amounts will be treated for all purposes hereof as having been paid to the Person in respect of which such deduction, withholding and remittance were made, provided that such amounts are actually

remitted to the appropriate taxing authority. Each of Rayonier AM, Rayonier AM Sub, Tembec and the Depositary will be entitled to sell or otherwise dispose of such number of Rayonier AM Shares otherwise issuable to such Person as is necessary to provide sufficient funds to enable it to comply with any Withholding Obligations.

Non-Registered Shareholders

Tembec Shareholders whose Tembec Shares are registered in the name of a broker, investment dealer or other intermediary should contact that broker, investment dealer or other intermediary for instructions and assistance in making an election with respect to the form of Consideration they wish to receive.

Treatment of IQ Warrants

Each IQ Warrant that is outstanding and unexercised shall be cancelled and converted into the right to receive an amount in cash, without interest, equal to the product of (i) the excess, if any, of the Consideration Cash Value over the exercise price per Tembec Share of such IQ Warrant, multiplied by (ii) the number of Tembec Shares subject to such IQ Warrant as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, effective immediately prior to the Effective Time. Any IQ Warrant that has an exercise price per Tembec Share that equals or exceeds the Consideration Cash Value will be cancelled for no consideration.

Treatment of DSUs

Each Employee DSU and Director DSU, whether vested or unvested, will be, without any act or formality on the part of the holder thereof, cancelled and converted into the right to receive an amount in cash (net of applicable withholdings) equal to the Consideration Cash Value underlying such Employee DSU or Director DSU, as applicable, as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

Each Employee Performance DSU and Employee PCSU, whether vested or unvested, will be, without any act or formality on the part of the holder thereof, cancelled and converted into the right to receive an amount in cash (net of applicable withholdings) equal to the Consideration Cash Value underlying such Employee Performance DSU or Employee PCSU, as applicable, as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, provided that each Employee Performance DSU and Employee PCSU in respect of which the performance goals have not been satisfied will be cancelled for no consideration.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any payment or settlement in respect of a DSU that immediately prior to the exchange described above constituted deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code shall be made on the earliest practicable payment or settlement date for such DSU that does not give rise to a violation of, or the imposition of taxes or penalties under, Section 409A of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

Stock Exchange Listing and Reporting Issuer Status

If the Arrangement is completed, the Tembec Shares will be de-listed from the TSX. The Rayonier AM Shares currently trade on the NYSE under the symbol "RYAM". Rayonier AM will apply to list the Rayonier AM Shares issuable under the Arrangement on the NYSE and it is a condition of closing that Rayonier AM will have been authorized for this listing (subject to customary conditions). See "Regulatory Matters – Stock Exchange Approvals".

Interests of Certain Persons in the Arrangement

In considering the recommendation of the Board with respect to the Arrangement, Tembec Shareholders should be aware that certain members of the Board and of Tembec's management have interests in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement as described in this Circular that may create actual or potential conflicts of interest in connection with such transactions. The Board is aware of these interests and considered them along with the other matters described above in "The Arrangement – Recommendation of the Board".

Ownership of DSUs

Certain of the directors and officers of Tembec hold DSUs which will be affected by the Arrangement as described under the heading "Treatment of DSUs" above.

Termination and Change of Control Benefits

Certain executive officers of Tembec have employment agreements or change of control arrangements with Tembec that may result in payments being made to such individuals as a result of certain events. Pursuant to these agreements, in the event that, within a period of 12 months following a change of control of Tembec, such executive officer's employment is terminated without serious reason or the executive officer resigns due to a substantial modification of monetary conditions (in each case, as defined in the applicable agreement or arrangement), Tembec will provide and pay to the executive benefits for periods varying between 12 to 24 months, two times the executive's annual base salary and two times the monetary compensation related to Tembec's various incentive plans. The Arrangement will constitute a change of control of Tembec for the purposes of these agreements.

Insurance and Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Rayonier AM has agreed that it will honour all rights to indemnification or exculpation now existing in favour of all current and former officers and directors of Tembec and its Subsidiaries, and acknowledges that such rights, as disclosed, will survive the completion of the Arrangement and will continue in full force and effect for a period of not less than six years from the Effective Date.

The Arrangement Agreement provides that Tembec will be permitted to obtain and fully pay for a "tail" insurance policy in respect of the current directors and officers with an extended reporting period of at least six years from and after the Effective Time with respect to directors and officers liability insurance with benefits and level of coverage at least as favorable as Tembec's existing policy with respect to matters existing or occurring at or prior to the Effective Date (including in connection with this Arrangement or the transactions or actions contemplated hereby, provided that, among other things, the annual premium amount for any such extension shall not exceed 300% of the amount paid by Tembec in its current fiscal year.

In the Arrangement Agreement, Rayonier AM has agreed that the rights of each current and former director and officer of Tembec and its Subsidiaries (each, an "**Indemnified Person**") under the Arrangement Agreement will be in addition to any rights such Indemnified Persons may have under the constating documents of Tembec or any of its Subsidiaries, or under any applicable Law. All rights to indemnification and exculpation from liabilities for acts or omissions occurring at or prior to the Effective Time and rights to advancement of expenses relating thereto in favour of any Indemnified Person as provided in the constating documents of Tembec will survive the Effective Time for a period of not less than six years and will not be amended, repealed or otherwise modified in any manner that would adversely affect any right thereunder of any such Indemnified Person.

Depositary

Tembec has retained the services of the Depositary for the receipt of the Letter of Transmittal and Election Forms and the certificates representing Tembec Shares and for the delivery and payment of the Consideration payable for the Tembec Shares under the Arrangement. The Depositary will receive reasonable and customary compensation for its services in connection with the Arrangement, will be reimbursed for certain reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and will be indemnified against certain liabilities, including liabilities under Securities Laws and expenses in connection therewith.

INFORMATION RELATING TO TEMBEC

Tembec was formed under the laws of Canada on January 16, 2008, as Tembec Arrangement Inc. to carry on business as of February 29, 2008 under the name of Tembec Inc. On February 29, 2008, the former Tembec ("Former Tembec"), completed a recapitalization transaction (the "Recapitalization"). As part of the Recapitalization, Former Tembec became Tembec Holdings Inc. and Tembec Arrangement Inc. changed its name to Tembec Inc. Former Tembec was dissolved effective December 8, 2010. Tembec's head and registered office is located at 100-4 Place Ville-Marie, Montréal, Québec, H3B 2E7.

Tembec is an integrated forest products company with operations principally located in Canada and France. Its business segments are specialty cellulose pulp, forest products, paper pulp and paper. Tembec operates 12 manufacturing locations in North America and France and directly manages approximately 10 million hectares (approximately 25 million acres) of Canadian forestlands in keeping with responsible forest management practices, thereby ensuring its long-term fiber supply.

Additional information regarding Tembec is included in the documents incorporated by reference into this Circular.

Information Respecting Directors and Officers

The names of the directors and officers of Tembec, the positions held by them with Tembec and the designation, percentage of class and number of outstanding securities of Tembec beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised by each of them and, where known after reasonable enquiry, by their respective associates, are as follows:

Securities of Tembec Beneficially Owned, Directly or

		Indirectly or over which Control or Direction is Ex						
Name	Position with Tembec	Tembec Shares	% Tembec Shares Outstanding	DSUs	% DSUs Outstanding			
James N. Chapman	Director	_	_	480,526	7.65%			
James V. Continenza	Director (Chair)	—	—	1,168,800	18.61%			
Pierre Gignac	Director	_	_	66,102	1.05%			
Jacques Leduc	Director		—	296,594	4.72%			
James M. Lopez	Director, President and Chief Executive Officer	344,508	0.345%	914,146	14.55%			
Francis M. Scricco	Director	100,000	0.10%	364,946	5.81%			
David J. Steuart	Director		_	364,946	5.81%			
Lorie Waisberg	Director	4,000	0.004%	364,946	5.81%			
Réginald Bastien	Corporate Controller	16,606	0.017%	47,156	0.75%			
Chris Black	Executive Vice President, Forest Products, Pulp and Paper	62,253	0.062%	283,412	4.51%			
Linda Coates	Vice President, Human Resources and Corporate Affairs	17,118	0.017%	237,691	3.78%			
Paolo Dottori	Vice President, Environment, Engineering and Procurement	27,736	0.028%	213,238	3.40%			
Michel J. Dumas	Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer	111,870	0.112%	395,969	6.30%			
Patrick LeBel	Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary	20,243	0.02%	240,593	3.83%			
Marcus Moeltner	Vice President, Business Development	19,054	0.019%	222,073	3.54%			
Lynn Poirier	Treasurer	777	0.001%	28,735	0.46%			
Christian Ribeyrolle	Executive Vice President, Specialty Cellulose and President, Tembec France SAS	30, 238	0.030%	260,419	4.15%			

Trading Price and Volume of Tembec Shares

The Tembec Shares are listed for trading on the TSX under the trading symbol "TMB". The following table sets forth the market price range, in Canadian dollars, and trading volumes of the Tembec Shares on the TSX.

		TSX	
	Price Ra		
	High	Low	Volume
June 2016	1.36	1.07	622,913
July 2016	1.06	0.95	780,952
August 2016	1.06	0.97	603,167
September 2016	1.01	0.90	437,123
October 2016	1.30	0.91	644,525
November 2016	1.75	1.08	1,841,233
December 2016	2.40	1.66	2,437,003
January 2017	3.00	2.01	2,466,267
February 2017	3.02	2.86	1,986,918
March 2017	3.00	2.73	1,729,110
April 2017	3.00	2.83	2,716,342
May 2017	4.47	2.90	18,260,758
June 2017 ⁽²⁾	4.38	4.25	5,658,123

Note:

(1) Based on closing prices on the TSX.

(2) For the period between June 1 and June 13.

Prior Sales

The following table summarizes the issuances of Tembec Shares and DSUs granted by Tembec within the 12 months prior to the date of this Circular.

		Number and Type	
Date of sale	Price per Tembec Share	of Securities	Reasons for issuance
November 16, 2016	\$1.54	957,746 DSUs	Employee DSU Plan
November 17, 2016	\$1.16	1,306,032 DSUs	Director DSU Plan
February 24, 2017	\$2.95	66,102 DSUs	Director DSU Plan

Available Information

Tembec files reports and other information with applicable securities regulatory authorities in each of the provinces and territories of Canada. These reports and information are available to the public free of charge on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Risk Factors

The business and operations of Tembec are subject to risks. In addition to considering the other information in this Circular, Tembec Shareholders should consider carefully the factors set forth in the annual information form of Tembec dated December 16, 2016 for the fiscal year ended September 24, 2016 which is incorporated by reference into this Circular.

Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Tembec

The following summary income statement data of Tembec for each of the years during the two-year period ended September 24, 2016 and the summary consolidated balance sheet data as at September 24, 2016 and September 26, 2015 have been derived from Tembec's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 24, 2016, which are available at www.sedar.com and incorporated by reference into this Circular. The summary statement of data for each of the years ended September 24, 2016, September 26, 2015 and September 27, 2014 and the summary balance sheet data as of September 27, 2014, September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 have been derived from Tembec's audited consolidated financial statements as of and for such years, which are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com but are not incorporated by reference into this Circular. The summary consolidated statements of operations data, consolidated statement of cash flows and other data as at and for the quarter and six month periods ended March 25, 2017 and March 26, 2016 and the summary consolidated balance sheet data as of March 25, 2017 have been derived from Tembec's unaudited consolidated financial statements for the quarter and six months ended March 25, 2017, which are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and incorporated by reference into this Circular. The summary balance sheet data as of December 24, 2016 has been derived from Tembec's unaudited consolidated financial statements for the quarter and three month period ended December 24, 2016, which are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com but are not incorporated by reference into this Circular.

The information set forth below is only a summary and is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations of Tembec or the Combined Company following completion of the Arrangement, and you should read the following information together with Tembec's consolidated financial statements, the related notes and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" for the year ended September 24, 2016, and for the quarter and six months ended March 25, 2017, which are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

	 Six-month ended Year ended										
(in millions of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted)	larch 25, 2017 ⁽¹⁾		March 26, 2016 ⁽¹⁾	Sept	ember 24, 2016 ⁽¹⁾		tember 26, 2015 ⁽¹⁾	tember 27, 2014 ⁽¹⁾			September 29, 2012 ⁽¹⁾
Summary Income Statement Data											
Net sales	\$ 757	\$	734	\$	1,499	\$	1,418	\$ 1,491	\$ 1,53	4	\$ 1,666
Net earnings (loss)	\$ 15	\$	(1)	\$	20	\$	(150)	\$ 9	\$ (3	4)	\$ (82)
Basic and diluted net earnings (loss) in dollars per share	\$ 0.15	\$	(0.01)	\$	0.20	\$	(1.50)	\$ 0.09	\$ (0.3	4)	\$ (0.82)
Average number of common shares outstanding (in millions)	100.0		100.0		100.0		100.0	100.0	100.	0	100.0
Cash dividends declared per common share	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	s -		\$ -
Summary Balance Sheet Information											
Total assets	\$ 1,198	\$	1,208	\$	1,160	\$	1,176	\$ 1,155	\$ 1,02	1	\$ 1,059
Long-term debt, excluding current portion	\$ 688	\$	685	\$	679	\$	613	\$ 455	\$ 36	9	\$ 323
Shereholder's equity	\$ 121	\$	45	\$	59	\$	71	\$ 219	\$ 22	0	\$ 102

(1) Information presented in accordance with IFRS

Tembec Documents Incorporated by Reference

Information in respect of Tembec has been incorporated by reference in this Circular from documents filed with securities commissions or similar authorities in the provinces and territories of Canada. Copies of the documents incorporated by reference herein may be obtained on request without charge from the Corporate Secretary of Tembec Inc. at 100-4 Place Ville-Marie, Montréal, Québec, H3B 2E7 or through the internet on the Canadian System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR) which can be accessed at www.sedar.com.

The following documents filed with the securities commissions or similar authorities in each of the provinces and territories of Canada are specifically incorporated by reference in, and form an integral part of, this Circular:

- 1. the annual information form of Tembec dated December 16, 2016;
- 2. the consolidated annual financial statements of Tembec as at and for the year ended September 24, 2016, together with the notes thereto and the auditors' report thereon;
- 3. management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the year ended September 24, 2016;
- 4. the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the quarter and six months ended March 25, 2017, together with the notes thereto;
- 5. management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the quarter and six months ended March 25, 2017;
- 6. Tembec's management information circular dated December 16, 2016 with respect to the annual and special meeting of Tembec Shareholders held on January 26, 2017; and
- 7. the material change report of Tembec dated June 1, 2017 in respect of the announcement of the Arrangement.

Any statement contained in a document incorporated by reference herein that bears a date earlier than the date of this Circular shall be deemed to be modified or superseded, for the purposes of this Circular, to the extent that a statement contained herein, modifies or supersedes such statement. Similarly, any statement contained in a document incorporated by reference herein that bears a date later than the date of this Circular shall be deemed to modify or supersede, for the purposes of this Circular, any statement contained or incorporated by reference herein to the extent that a statement contained therein modifies or supersedes such statement. The modifying or superseding statement need not state that it has modified or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in the document that it modifies or supersedes. The making of a modifying or superseding statement will not be deemed to be an admission for any purposes that the modified or superseded statement, when made, constituted a misrepresentation, an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, in its unmodified or non-superseded form, to constitute a part of this Circular.

INFORMATION RELATING TO RAYONIER AM

Overview

Rayonier AM, with approximately 456,000 metric tons of cellulose specialties sales in 2016, is a global leader in the production of cellulose specialties. Cellulose specialties are natural polymers, used as raw materials to manufacture a broad range of consumer-oriented products such as cigarette filters, liquid crystal displays, impact-resistant plastics, thickeners for food products, pharmaceuticals, cosmetics, high-tenacity rayon yarn for tires and industrial hoses, food casings, paints and lacquers. Rayonier AM manufactures products tailored to the precise and demanding chemical and physical specifications required by its customers, achieving industry leading purity and product functionality. Rayonier AM's ability to consistently manufacture technically superior products is the result of its proprietary production processes, intellectual property, technical expertise and knowledge of cellulosic chemistry.

Additionally, Rayonier AM produces commodity products for viscose and absorbent materials applications. Commodity viscose is a raw material required for the manufacture of viscose staple fibers which are used in woven applications such as textiles for clothing and other fabrics, and in non-woven applications such as baby wipes, cosmetic and personal wipes, industrial wipes and mattress ticking. Absorbent materials, typically referred to as fluff fibers, are used as an absorbent medium in products such as disposable baby diapers, feminine hygiene products, incontinence pads, convalescent bed pads, industrial towels and wipes and non-woven fabrics. Cellulose specialties typically contain over 95% cellulose, while commodity products typically contain less than 95% cellulose.

Rayonier AM's principal executive offices are located at 1301 Riverplace Boulevard, Suite 2300, Jacksonville, Florida 32207.

Prior to June 27, 2014, Rayonier AM consisted of Rayonier Inc.'s wholly-owned performance fibers segment. On that date, holders of Rayonier Inc. common shares received one share of Rayonier AM's common stock for every three Rayonier Inc. common shares held on the record date. This resulted in the separation of Rayonier AM from Rayonier Inc. (the "**Separation**"). The Separation was structured to be tax free to Rayonier Inc. shareholders for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, following the Separation, Rayonier AM began operating as an independent, publicly traded company.

For further information regarding Rayonier AM and its business activities, see Rayonier AM's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, which is incorporated by reference into this Circular.

Description of Capital Stock

Rayonier AM's authorized capital stock consists of 140,000,000 Rayonier AM Shares and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock. Rayonier AM expects to issue approximately 8.4 million Rayonier AM Shares to Tembec Shareholders under the Arrangement. As of June 13, 2017 there were approximately 43.3 million Rayonier AM Shares outstanding and approximately 1.7 million shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A, par value \$0.01 per share ("Series A Preferred Stock") outstanding.

Rayonier AM Shares

Each holder of Rayonier AM Shares is entitled to one vote for each share on all matters to be voted upon by the common stockholders. There are no cumulative voting rights. The holders of Rayonier AM Shares do not have any preemptive rights to purchase, subscribe for or otherwise acquire any unissued or treasury shares or any other Rayonier AM securities. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Rayonier AM, whether voluntary or involuntary, the holders of Rayonier AM Shares are entitled to share ratably in all remaining assets available for distribution to common stockholders after payment of, or provision for, its liabilities and any prior distribution rights of shares of Rayonier AM preferred stock, if any, then outstanding.

Preferred Stock

Under the terms of Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation, Rayonier AM's board of directors is authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by the DGCL and by the certificate of incorporation, to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of Rayonier AM Preferred Stock in one or more series without further action by the holders of common stock. Rayonier AM's board of directors has the discretion, subject to limitations prescribed by the DGCL and by the certificate of incorporation, to determine the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, dividend rights, conversion rights, redemption privileges and liquidation preferences of each series of Rayonier AM's Preferred Stock. Because Rayonier AM's board of directors has the power to establish the preferences and rights of each series of Rayonier AM Preferred Stock, it may afford the holders of any series of preferred stock preferences and rights, voting or otherwise, senior to the rights of holders of common stock. It is not possible to state the actual effect of the issuance of any shares of Rayonier AM Preferred Stock upon the rights of holders of common stock until the board of directors determines the specific rights of the holders of Rayonier AM Preferred Stock. However, the effects might include:

- restricting dividends on Rayonier AM's common stock;
- diluting the voting power of Rayonier AM's common stock;
- impairing the liquidation rights of Rayonier AM's common stock; and
- delaying or preventing a change in control of Rayonier AM without further action by Rayonier AM Shareholders.

On August 10, 2016, Rayonier AM issued 1,725,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock. Holders of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to dividends as described below. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock will automatically convert into Rayonier AM Shares at a specified conversion rate on August 15, 2019, if not earlier converted at the option of the holder. Upon a fundamental change (including certain consolidation or mergers involving Rayonier AM), holders of the Series A Preferred Stock may have the right to convert their shares at a fundamental change conversion rate and be entitled to receive a fundamental change dividend make-whole amount equal to the present value of all remaining dividend payments on their Series A Preferred Stock, plus accumulated and unpaid dividends, if any.

Dividends on Rayonier AM Capital Stock

On February 24, 2017, Rayonier AM's board of directors declared a first quarter cash dividend of US\$0.07 per share of common stock. The first quarter common stock dividend was payable on March 31, 2017, to stockholders of record on March 17, 2017. On May 23, 2017, Rayonier AM's board of directors declared a second quarter cash dividend of US\$0.07 per share of common stock. The second quarter common stock dividend is payable on June 30, 2017, to stockholders of record on June 16, 2017.

On January 17, 2017 Rayonier AM's board of directors declared a cash dividend of US\$2.00 per share of Series A Preferred Stock. The dividend was paid on February 15, 2017 to holders of record of Series A Preferred Stock as of February 1, 2017. On March 24, 2017 Rayonier AM's board of directors declared a cash dividend of US\$2.00 per share of Series A Preferred Stock. The dividend was payable on May 15, 2017 to holders of record of Series A Preferred Stock as of May 1, 2017.

The declaration and payment of future dividends on Rayonier AM's common stock will be at the discretion of Rayonier AM's board of directors and will be dependent upon Rayonier AM's financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, and other factors the Rayonier AM board of directors deems relevant. Certain of Rayonier AM's debt facilities may also restrict the declaration and payment of dividends, depending upon Rayonier AM's then current compliance with certain covenants. In addition, the terms of Series A Preferred Stock provide that, unless full cumulative dividends have been paid or set aside for payment on all outstanding Series A Preferred Stock for all prior dividend periods, no dividends may be declared or paid on Rayonier AM common stock. Dividends on Series A Preferred Stock are payable on a cumulative basis if and when they are declared by Rayonier AM's board of directors. If declared, dividends will be paid at an annual rate of 8.00% of the liquidation preference of \$100 per share. Dividend payment dates are February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year, commencing on November 15, 2016 and ending on August 15, 2019. Dividends may be paid in cash or, subject to certain limitations, in shares of common stock or any combination of cash and shares of common stock.

Trading Price of Rayonier AM Shares

The Rayonier AM Shares are listed on the NYSE under the trading symbol "RYAM". The following table sets forth the market price range, in U.S. dollars, and aggregate trading volumes of the Rayonier AM Shares.

	Price Ran		
	High	Low	Volume ⁽²⁾
June 2016	13.73	11.98	10,977,787
July 2016	15.25	12.96	8,372,014
August 2016	15.83	11.91	30,308,671
September 2016	13.37	10.72	15,812,269
October 2016	13.77	12.63	15,779,642
November 2016	14.51	11.93	11,659,625
December 2016	16.07	13.77	8,794,418
January 2017	17.13	13.57	9,546,550
February 2017	13.81	12.31	10,557,871
March 2017	13.55	12.45	8,441,810
April 2017	13.34	12.45	7,546,272
May 2017	17.39	12.18	15,705,849
June 2017 ⁽³⁾	17.07	16.47	7,236,669

Note:

(1) Based on the NYSE closing prices.

(2) Based on aggregate trading volumes.

(3) For the period between June 1 and June 13.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Various Provisions of the DGCL and Rayonier AM's Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws

The DGCL and Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws contain provisions that could make more difficult the acquisition of control of Rayonier AM by means of a tender offer, a proxy contest or otherwise, or to remove incumbent officers and directors. These provisions, summarized below, are expected to discourage certain types of coercive takeover practices and takeover bids that Rayonier AM board of directors may consider inadequate and to encourage Persons seeking to acquire control of Rayonier AM to first negotiate with Rayonier AM's board of directors.

Undesignated Preferred Stock

The authority that Rayonier AM's board of directors possesses to issue its preferred stock could potentially be used to discourage attempts by third parties to obtain control of Rayonier AM through a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise by making such attempts more difficult or more costly. Rayonier AM's board of directors may be able to issue preferred stock with voting rights or conversion rights that, if exercised, could adversely affect the voting power of the holders of its common stock.

Cumulative Voting

The DGCL provides that stockholders are denied the right to cumulate votes in the election of directors unless the company's certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting.

Size of Board of Directors and Vacancies

Rayonier AM's bylaws provide that the number of directors on Rayonier AM's board of directors is fixed exclusively by Rayonier AM's board of directors. Any vacancies created in Rayonier AM's board of directors resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors or the death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause will be filled by a majority of Rayonier AM's board of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum is present, or by a sole remaining director. Any director appointed to fill a vacancy on Rayonier AM's board of directors will be appointed for a term expiring at the next election of the class for which such director has been appointed and until his or her successor has been elected and qualified.

Classified Board of Directors; Removal of Directors

Rayonier AM has a classified board of directors. Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that Rayonier AM's board of directors is divided into three classes each comprised of three directors. The three directors designated as Class I directors have terms expiring at the 2018 annual meeting of stockholders, the three directors designated as Class III directors have terms expiring at the 2019 annual meeting of stockholders, and the three directors designated as Class III directors have terms expiring at the 2020 annual meeting of stockholders. Directors for each class will be elected at the annual meeting of stockholders held in the year in which the term for that class expires and thereafter will serve for a term of three years. At any meeting of stockholders for the election of directors at which a quorum is present, the election will be determined by a majority of the votes cast by the stockholders entitled to vote in the election, with directors not receiving a majority of the votes cast required to tender their resignations for consideration by Rayonier AM's board of directors, except that in the case of a contested election. Under the classified board provisions, it would take at least two elections of directors for any individual or group to gain control of Rayonier AM's board of directors. Accordingly, these provisions could discourage a third party from initiating a proxy contest, making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to gain control of the Rayonier AM.

Rayonier AM's bylaws provide that its stockholders may only remove Rayonier AM's directors for cause by the affirmative vote of at least 80% of its voting stock then outstanding.

Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholder Business and Director Nominations

Rayonier AM's bylaws establish advance notice procedures with respect to stockholder nomination of candidates for election as directors or any other business to be properly brought before annual meetings of stockholders, other than nominations made by or at the direction of the board of directors or a committee of the board of directors.

Special Stockholders Meetings

Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation provides that only the chairman of Rayonier AM's board of directors or the board of directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the entire board of directors may call special meetings of Rayonier AM's stockholders. Rayonier AM's stockholders may not call special stockholders meetings.

Stockholders Action by Written Consent

Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation expressly eliminates the right of Rayonier AM's stockholders to act by written consent. Stockholder action must take place at the annual or a special meeting of stockholders.

Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws

Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation provides that the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of Rayonier AM's voting stock then outstanding is required to amend certain provisions relating to the number, term and removal of its directors, the ability of the board to issue preferred stock, the filling of board vacancies, the calling of special meetings of stockholders, stockholder action by written consent and director and officer indemnification. Rayonier AM's bylaws provide that they may be amended by the board of directors or by the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the voting stock then outstanding, except that the affirmative vote of holders of at least 80% of the voting stock then outstanding is required to amend certain provisions relating to the number, term and removal of Rayonier AM's directors, the filling of board vacancies, the calling of special meetings of stockholder action by written consent and director and officer indemnification.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Delaware Law

Rayonier AM is subject to Section 203 of the DGCL, an anti-takeover statute. In general, Section 203 of the DGCL prohibits a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a "business combination" with an "interested stockholder" for a period of three years following the time the Person became an interested stockholder, unless the business combination or the acquisition of shares that resulted in a stockholder becoming an interested stockholder is approved in a prescribed manner. Generally, a "business combination" includes a merger, asset or stock sale, or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder. Generally, an "interested stockholder" is a Person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns (or within three years prior to the determination of interested stockholder status did own) 15% or more of a corporation's voting stock. The existence of this provision would be expected to have an anti-takeover effect with respect to transactions not approved in advance by its board of directors, including discouraging attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares of common stock held by Rayonier AM's stockholders.

Risk Factors

The business and operations of Rayonier AM are subject to risks. In addition to considering the other information in this Circular, Tembec Shareholders should consider carefully the risk factors and other disclosures set forth in documents filed by Rayonier AM with the SEC, which are available at www.sec.gov. As set forth below, certain of these filings are incorporated by reference herein.

Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Rayonier AM

The following summary income statement data of Rayonier AM for each of the years during the three-year period ended December 31, 2016 and the summary balance sheet data of Rayonier AM as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 have been derived from Rayonier AM's audited consolidated financial statements contained in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, which is incorporated by reference into this Circular. The summary balance sheet data as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and the summary balance sheet data as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 have been derived from Rayonier AM's audited consolidated financial statements as of and for such years contained in Rayonier AM's other reports filed with the SEC, which are not incorporated by reference into this Circular. The summary balance sheet data as of December 31, 2012 has been derived from Rayonier AM's accounting records. The summary income statement data for each of the three-month periods ended March 25, 2017 and March 26, 2016 and the summary balance sheet data as of March 25, 2017 have been derived from Rayonier AM's unaudited consolidated financial statements as of and for such years contained in summary balance sheet data as of March 25, 2017 have been derived from Rayonier AM's unaudited consolidated financial statements as of and for such years ended March 25, 2017, which is incorporated by reference into this Circular. The summary balance sheet data as of March 25, 2017, which is incorporated by reference into this Circular. The summary balance sheet data as of March 26, 2016 has been derived from Rayonier AM's unaudited consolidated financial statements as of and for such period contained in Rayonier AM's other reports filed with the SEC, which are not incorporated by reference into this Circular.

The information set forth below is unaudited and is only a summary and is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations of Rayonier AM or the Combined Company following completion of the Arrangement, and you should read the following information together with Rayonier AM's consolidated financial statements, the related notes and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" contained in Rayonier AM's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 and Rayonier AM's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 25, 2017.

	Three Months Ended			Year Ended December 31,										
(millions of U.S. dollars except per share amounts)		rch 25, 017		rch 26, 016		2016	. <u> </u>	2015		2014		2013 ^(a)	20	12 ^(a)
Statement of Income Data:														
Net Sales	\$	201	\$	218	\$	869	\$	941	\$	958	\$	1,047	\$	1,095
Gross margin		36		40		182		202		224		333		380
Operating income		26		32		138		120		63		289		342
Net income available to common stockholders		7		21		68		55		32		220		242
Diluted earnings per share of common stock (b)		0.15		0.49		1.55		1.30		0.75		5.21		5.74
Dividends declared per share of common stock		0.07		0.07		0.28		0.28		0.14		-		-
Balance Sheet Data:														
Total assets	\$	1,429	\$	1,234	\$	1,422	\$	1,279	\$	1,293	\$	1,120	\$	921
Property, plant and equipment, net		787		795		801		804		843		846		681
Total debt		781		805		783		858		934		-		-
Stockholders' equity (deficit)		215		3		212		(17)		(62)		968		725

(a) Prior to 2014, the selected financial data consists of Rayonier Inc.'s performance fibers business for the years presented. For 2014, the balance sheet represents the financial position of Rayonier AM as of December 31, 2014 and the statement of income is presented as if the performance fibers business had been combined with Rayonier AM for the year ended December 31, 2014.

(b) In conjunction with the Separation, 42,176,565 Rayonier AM Shares were distributed to Rayonier Inc. shareholders on June 27, 2014. For the year ended December 31, 2016, diluted earnings per share include the impact of dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock.

Rayonier AM Documents Incorporated by Reference

Information regarding Rayonier AM has been incorporated by reference in this Circular from documents filed by Rayonier AM with the SEC. The documents listed below, which contain important information about Rayonier AM, its business and its financial condition, and which were previously filed by Rayonier AM with the SEC, are specifically incorporated by reference into, and form an integral part of, this Circular:

- Rayonier AM's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016;
- Rayonier AM's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 25, 2017;
- Rayonier AM's Current Reports on Form 8-K (excluding any information "furnished" pursuant to Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 on any Current Report on Form 8-K) filed on June 6, 2017, May 26, 2017, May 25, 2017, May 1, 2017 and January 30, 2017; and
- the portions of Rayonier AM's Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on April 7, 2017, that are incorporated by reference into Part III of Rayonier AM's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.

This Circular incorporates by reference the documents listed above and any future filings Rayonier AM makes with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the U.S. Exchange Act (excluding any information "furnished" pursuant to Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 on any Current Report on Form 8-K) after the date on which this Circular is filed with the securities commissions and until the Meeting has been held. Any statement contained in a document incorporated by reference herein that bears a date earlier than the date of this Circular shall be deemed to be modified or superseded, for the purposes of this Circular, to the extent that a statement contained herein, modifies or supersedes such statement. Similarly, any statement contained in a document incorporated by reference herein that be deemed to modify or supersede, for the purposes of this Circular shall be deemed to modify or supersede, for the purposes of this Circular shall be deemed to modify or supersede, for the purposes of this Circular shall be deemed to modify or supersede, for the purposes of this Circular shall be deemed to modify or supersede, for the purposes of this Circular shall be deemed to modify or supersede, for the purposes of this Circular shall be deemed to modify or supersede, for the purposes of this Circular, any statement contained or incorporated by reference herein to the extent that a statement contained therein modifies or supersedes such statement. The modifying or superseding statement need not state that it has modified or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in the document that it modifies or

supersedes. The making of a modifying or superseding statement will not be deemed to be an admission for any purposes that the modified or superseded statement, when made, constituted a misrepresentation, an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, in its unmodified or non-superseded form, to constitute a part of this Circular.

Rayonier AM will provide a copy of the documents incorporated herein by reference, at no cost, to any Person who receives this Circular. To request a copy of any or all of these documents, you should write or telephone Rayonier AM at: 1301 Riverplace Blvd. Suite 2300 Jacksonville, FL 32207, (904) 357-4600. Copies of documents incorporated herein by reference may also be obtained from the SEC website at www.sec.gov.

INFORMATION RELATING TO THE COMBINED COMPANY

General

On completion of the Arrangement, Rayonier AM will continue to be a corporation governed by the laws of the State of Delaware and Tembec will continue to be a corporation governed by the CBCA. After the Effective Date, Rayonier AM will directly or indirectly own all of the outstanding Tembec Shares. Tembec's operations will be managed and operated as a Subsidiary of Rayonier AM.

Selected Unaudited Pro forma Financial Information

The following selected unaudited *pro forma* combined balance sheet data gives effect to the Arrangement as if it had been completed on March 25, 2017 while the unaudited *pro forma* combined income statement data for the three months ended March 25, 2017 and the year ended December 31, 2016 gives effect to the Arrangement as if it had been completed on January 1, 2016.

The following selected unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information has been prepared for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of what Rayonier AM's consolidated financial position or results of operations actually would have been had the Arrangement been completed as of the dates indicated. In addition, the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information does not purport to project the future financial position or results of operations of Rayonier AM's future financial position may vary significantly from the *pro forma* balance sheet data presented because of various factors, including differences between historical market prices for Rayonier AM Shares and historical exchange rates between Canadian dollars and U.S. dollars relative to market prices for Rayonier AM Shares and the exchange rate between Canadian dollars and U.S. dollars as of the final determination of the fair values of assets to be acquired and liabilities to be assumed. See "Accounting Treatment". Future results of operations may vary significantly from the *pro forma* statement of operations data presented because of various factors, including the *pro forma* statement of operations data presented because of various factors, including those discussed in "Risk Factors". The following selected unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial statements of Rayonier AM which are attach

Selected Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Earnings Data (US\$ in millions, unless otherwise noted)

	For t mont March	For the year ended December 31, 2016			
Net Sales	\$	502	\$	2,044	
Operating income	\$	58	\$	221	
Interest expense, net	\$	(17)	\$	(63)	
Net Income available to Common Stockholders	\$	27	\$	119	
Earnings per share					
Basic earnings in dollar per share	\$	0.53	\$	2.34	
Diluted earnings in dollar per share	\$	0.47	\$	2.23	

Selected Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet Data (US\$ in millions, unless otherwise noted)

	Ma	rch 25, 2017
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	21
Long-term debt, excluding current portion	\$	1,200
Stockholders' equity	\$	249
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$	2,180
Common shares outstanding (millions)		51.7

Unaudited Comparative Per Share Information

The following table summarizes unaudited per share data for (i) Rayonier AM and Tembec on a historical basis (adjusted for US\$ and U.S. GAAP) for the three months ended March 25, 2017 and the year ended December 31, 2016, (ii) Rayonier AM on a *pro forma* combined basis giving effect to the Arrangement and (iii) Tembec on a *pro forma* equivalent basis based on the exchange ratio of 0.2302 of a Rayonier AM Share for each Tembec Share. It has been assumed for purposes of the *pro forma* combined financial information provided below that the Arrangement was completed on January 1, 2016 for earnings per share purposes and on March 25, 2017 for book value per share purposes. The historical earnings per share information should be read in conjunction with Rayonier AM's consolidated financial statements, the related notes and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" contained in Rayonier AM's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, and Rayonier AM's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 25, 2017, which are incorporated by reference into this Circular.

The unaudited *pro forma* combined earnings per share information is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial statements of Rayonier AM which are attached to this Circular as Appendix B. The *pro forma* information is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the operating results or financial position that would have occurred if the Arrangement had been completed as of the beginning of the periods presented, nor is it necessarily indicative of future operating results or financial position of the Combined Company.

Rayonier AM - Historical and Pro Forma Combined Data	For	the three mont 25, 20	For the year ended December 31, 2016				
US\$		Historical	Pro Forma Combined		Historical	Pro Forma Combined	
Earnings per share							
Basic earnings in dollar per share	\$	0.15	\$ 0.53	\$	1.61 \$	2.34	
Diluted earnings in dollar per share	\$	0.15	\$ 0.47	\$	1.55 \$	2.23	
Book Value per share	\$	4.99	\$ 5.01	\$	4.89	N/A	
Cash dividends per common share	\$	0.07	N/A	\$	0.28	N/A	

Share Prices

The following table sets forth the 5-day volume weighted average price per Rayonier AM Share and closing price per Tembec Share, on an actual and equivalent per share basis, on the following dates:

- May 24, 2017, the last full trading day before the public announcement of the Arrangement, and
- June 13, 2017, the last trading day for which this information could be calculated as of the date of this Circular.

		Rayonier AM Shares (5-Day		Rayonier AM Equivalent Per
	Tembec Shares	VWAP)	FX Rate	Share ⁽¹⁾
May 24, 2017	\$2.95	US\$13.07	0.7429	\$4.05
June 13, 2017	\$4.27	US\$16.73	0.7554	\$4.43

Note:

Because the exchange ratio will not be adjusted for changes in the market price of either Rayonier AM Shares or Tembec Shares, the market value of the Rayonier AM Shares that holders of Tembec Shares will have the right to receive on the date the Arrangement is completed may vary significantly from the market value of the Rayonier AM Shares that holders of Tembec Shares would receive if the Arrangement was completed on the date of this Circular. As a result, you should obtain recent market prices of Tembec Shares and Rayonier AM Shares prior to voting your Tembec Shares. See "Risk Factors".

⁽¹⁾ The equivalent per share data for Rayonier AM Shares has been determined by the sum of (i) \$2.56 in cash representing 63.3% cash consideration and (ii) multiplying the market price of one Rayonier AM Share by the exchange ratio of 0.08448 representing 36.7% stock consideration.

THE ARRANGEMENT AGREEMENT

The Arrangement will be carried out pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement. The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Arrangement Agreement and Plan of Arrangement. This summary does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Arrangement Agreement, which has been filed by Tembec on SEDAR at www.sedar.com, and to the Plan of Arrangement, which is appended hereto as Appendix D.

On May 24, 2017, Tembec and Rayonier AM entered into the Arrangement Agreement, pursuant to which Tembec and Rayonier AM agreed that, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Arrangement Agreement, Rayonier AM will acquire all of the issued and outstanding Tembec Shares. Upon completion of the Arrangement, each Tembec Shareholder (other than Dissenting Shareholders) will receive, in exchange for each Tembec Share, one of the following: (i) \$4.05 in cash, without interest; or (ii) 0.2302 of a Rayonier AM Share, subject to proration as set out in the Plan of Arrangement. The terms of the Arrangement Agreement are the result of arm's length negotiation between Tembec and Rayonier AM and their respective advisors.

Representations and Warranties

The Arrangement Agreement contains representations and warranties made by Tembec to Rayonier AM and representations and warranties made by Rayonier AM to Tembec. Those representations and warranties were made as of specific dates solely for the purposes of the Arrangement Agreement and are subject to important qualifications and limitations agreed to by the parties in connection with negotiating its terms. Moreover, some of the representations and warranties contained in the Arrangement Agreement are subject to a contractual standard of materiality (including a Material Adverse Effect) that may be different from that considered material to Tembec Shareholders, or those that may have been used for the purpose of allocating risk between the parties to the Arrangement Agreement rather than for the purpose of establishing facts. Information concerning the subject matter of the representations and warranties may have changed since the date of the Arrangement Agreement. For the foregoing reasons, you should not rely on the representations and warranties contained in the time they were made or otherwise.

The representations and warranties provided by Tembec in favour of Rayonier AM relate to, among other things: (a) the due incorporation, existence, and power and authority of Tembec to own its assets and conduct its business; (b) Tembec's ownership of its Subsidiaries; (c) the capitalization of Tembec; (d) the corporate power, authority and capacity of Tembec to enter into the Arrangement Agreement and perform its obligations thereunder; (e) the execution and delivery of the Arrangement Agreement, and the performance by it of its obligations thereunder not resulting in a violation, conflict or default under (i) any Law or Order (ii) any provision of the articles or constating documents of Tembec or any of its Subsidiaries, or (iii) any Contract to which Tembec or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any of their respective properties or assets is bound or of any license, permit or consent of any Governmental Entity relating in any way to, the properties, assets or business of Tembec or any of its Subsidiaries; (f) reporting issuer status and compliance with requirements of the TSX, Tembec's timely and accurate filing of public documents, the absence of outstanding or unresolved comments with respect to Tembec's public filings and no ongoing review or investigation by the securities commissions or the TSX; (g) Tembec's compliance with all filing requirements for public documents, Tembec's financial statements, internal controls and financial reporting, and the absence of undisclosed liabilities; (h) tax related matters; (i) the absence of certain changes or events; (j) the absence of any claims or proceedings against Tembec or any of its Subsidiaries; (k) the sufficiency and compliance with required Permits; (1) Tembec being in compliance with any applicable Laws; (m) environmental matters; (n) first nations matters; (o) employee benefit plans; (p) labor and employment matters; (q) rights to intellectual property; (r) the performance under material contracts; (s) real property and personal property matters; (t) Tembec's Tenures; (u) Tembec's compliance with corrupt practices legislation; (v) Tembec's insurance policies; (w) the approval of the Arrangement Agreement and the Arrangement by the Board; (x) delivery of the opinions of financial advisors; (y) the absence of any non-arm's length transactions; (z) no brokers or finders; and (z.1) the Investment Canada Act.

The representations and warranties provided by Rayonier AM in favour of Tembec relate to, among other things: (a) the due incorporation, existence and power and authority of Rayonier AM to own its assets and conduct its business; (b) the capitalization of Rayonier AM; (c) the corporate power and authority of Rayonier AM to enter into the Arrangement Agreement and perform its obligations thereunder; (d) the execution and delivery of the

Arrangement Agreement, and the performance by it of its obligations thereunder not resulting in a violation, conflict or default under (i) any Law or Order, (ii) any provision of the certificate of the constating documents of Rayonier AM or any of its Subsidiaries, or (iii) any Contract to which Rayonier AM or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any of their respective properties or assets is bound or of any license, permit, approval or consent of any Governmental Entity or relating in any way to the properties, assets or business of, Rayonier AM or any of its Subsidiaries; (e) Rayonier AM's timely and accurate filing of public documentation, Rayonier AM's financial statements, internal controls and financial reporting, the absence of undisclosed liabilities and Rayonier AM's compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act; (f) Rayonier AM's security ownership of Tembec Shares; (g) the absence of certain material changes or events; (h) litigation matters; (i) Rayonier AM's compliance with all Laws; (j) environmental matters; (k) Rayonier AM's compliance with corrupt practices legislation; (l) the approval of the Arrangement Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby by Rayonier AM's board of directors; (m) no brokers or finders; and (n) Rayonier AM's financing arrangements.

Conditions Precedent to the Arrangement

Mutual Conditions

The obligations of the parties to complete the Arrangement are subject to the fulfillment, on or before the Effective Time, of each of the following conditions precedent, each of which may only be waived in whole or in part with the mutual consent of the parties:

- the Rayonier AM Shares to be issued pursuant to the Arrangement shall either be: (i) exempt from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act pursuant to Section 3(a)(10) thereof, and in compliance with all applicable state securities Laws; or (ii) registered pursuant to an effective registration statement under the U.S. Securities Act;
- the Arrangement Resolution having been approved and adopted by the Tembec Shareholders at the Meeting in accordance with the Interim Order;
- the Rayonier AM shares to be issued pursuant to the Arrangement having been authorized for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance;
- the Interim Order and the Final Order will each have been obtained on terms consistent with the Arrangement Agreement and will not have been set aside or modified in a manner unacceptable to Rayonier AM, acting reasonably, on appeal or otherwise;
- no Law or Order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) having been enacted, entered, promulgated, adopted, issued or enforced by any Governmental Entity that is then in effect and has the effect of making illegal or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement, including the Arrangement; and
- all waiting periods applicable to the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement in connection with the Key Regulatory Approvals shall have expired or terminated, and all approvals, clearances and rulings by, and filings with, Governmental Entities in respect of the Key Regulatory Approvals will have been obtained or made.

Additional Conditions in Favour of Rayonier AM

The obligations of Rayonier AM to complete the Arrangement are subject to the fulfillment of each of the following additional conditions at or prior to the Effective Time (each of which is for the exclusive benefit of Rayonier AM and may only be waived to the extent permitted by applicable Law, in whole or in part, by Rayonier AM in its sole discretion):

• each of the representations and warranties of Tembec set forth in (i) Section 2.3 (Capitalization) of the Arrangement Agreement shall be correct and complete in all respects (other than *de minimis* inaccuracies) as of the Effective Date as though made on and as of the Effective Date, except to the

extent such representations and warranties by their terms speak only as of a certain date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be correct and complete as of such date; (ii) Section 2.1 (Organization and Qualification), Section 2.2 (Subsidiaries), Section 2.4 (Authorization), Section 2.22 (Board Approval), Section 2.23 (Opinions of Financial Advisors) and Section 2.25 (No Brokers or Finders) of the Arrangement Agreement shall be correct and complete in all material respects as of the date of the Arrangement Agreement and as of the Effective Date as though made on and as of the Effective Date, except to the extent such representations and warranties by their terms speak only as of a certain date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be correct and complete as of such date, and (iii) each of the other representations and warranties of Tembec set forth in the Arrangement Agreement (but without regard to any materiality qualifications or references to Material Adverse Effect contained in any representation or warranty) shall be correct and complete in all respects as of the date of the Arrangement Agreement and as of the Effective Date as though made on and as of the Effective Date, except (A) to the extent representations and warranties by their terms speak only as of a certain date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be correct and complete as of such date, (B) where such failures of the representations and warranties to be correct and complete, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Tembec;

- Tembec shall have performed in all material respects all obligations and complied in all material respects with all covenants required by the Arrangement Agreement to be performed or complied with by it at or prior to the Effective Time;
- no event, change, effect, condition, fact or circumstance shall have occurred after the date of the Arrangement Agreement that, individually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Tembec;
- Tembec shall have delivered to Rayonier AM a certification (without personal liability) of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer or another executive officer of Tembec to the effect that each of the conditions specified above is satisfied in all respects;
- the total number of Tembec Shares with respect to which Dissent Rights have been properly exercised and not withdrawn shall not exceed 8% of the outstanding Tembec Shares as of the Effective Date;
- to the extent required by Law, Tembec shall have delivered to Rayonier AM either (i) the consent of the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry to the deemed transfer, pursuant to the Arrangement, of the Tenures granted by the Ontario Government, or (ii) written comfort acceptable to Rayonier AM, acting reasonably, from the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry of its intention to issue a consent to the deemed transfer, pursuant to the Arrangement, of the Tenures granted by the Ontario Government; provided that, if such consent shall not be given solely as a result of a change in Law after the date of the Arrangement Agreement, this condition shall be deemed satisfied; and
- Tembec shall have delivered to Rayonier AM the consent of the Independent Electricity System Operator and the consent of the Ontario Minister of Northern Development and Mines in connection with the transactions contemplated in the Arrangement Agreement, provided that, if such consent shall not be given solely as a result of a change in Law after the date of the Arrangement Agreement, this condition shall be deemed satisfied.

Additional Conditions in Favour of Tembec

The obligations of Tembec to complete the Arrangement are subject to the fulfillment of each of the following additional conditions at or before the Effective Time (each of which is for the exclusive benefit of Tembec and may only be waived to the extent permitted by Law, in whole or in part, by Tembec in its sole discretion):

• each of the representations and warranties of Rayonier AM set forth in (i) Section 3.2 (Capitalization) of the Arrangement Agreement shall be correct and complete in all respects (other than for *de minimis* inaccuracies) as of the date of this Arrangement Agreement and as of the Effective Date as though

made on and as of the Effective Date, except to the extent representations and warranties by their terms speak only as of a certain date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be correct and complete as of such date, (ii) Section 3.1 (Organization and Qualification), Section 3.12 (Rayonier AM Board Approval) and Section 3.13 (No Brokers or Finders) of the Arrangement Agreement shall be correct and complete in all material respects as of the date of the Arrangement Agreement and as of the Effective Date, except to the extent such representations and warranties by their terms speak only as of a certain date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be correct and complete as of such date, and (iii) each of the other representations and warranties of Rayonier AM set forth in the Arrangement Agreement (but without regard to any materiality qualifications or references to Material Adverse Effect contained in any representation or warranty) shall be correct and complete in all respects as of the date of the Arrangement Agreement and as of the Effective Date as though made on and as of the Effective Date, except (A) to the extent such representations and warranties by their terms speak only as of a certain date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be correct and complete as of such date, and (B) where such failures of the representations and warranties to be correct and complete, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Rayonier AM;

- Rayonier AM shall have performed in all material respects all obligations and complied in all material respects with all covenants required by the Arrangement Agreement to be performed or complied with by it at or prior to the Effective Date;
- no event, change, effect, condition, fact or circumstance shall have occurred after the date of the Arrangement Agreement that, individually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Rayonier AM; and
- Rayonier AM shall have delivered to Tembec a certification (without personal liability) of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer or another executive officer of Rayonier AM to the effect that each of the conditions above is satisfied in all respects.

Covenants

General

In the Arrangement Agreement, each of Tembec and Rayonier AM has agreed to certain customary covenants relating to, among other things: (a) the operation of their respective businesses, (b) access and information, (c), the preparation of a proxy circular, (d) tax matters, (e) the Meeting, (f) a pre-closing reorganization, (g) financing arrangements and the treatment of certain financing agreements, (h) indemnification and directors and officers insurance, (i) public announcements, (j) the notification of certain matters, (k) certain litigation, (l) confidentiality, (m) resignations of the members of the Board, and (n) employee matters.

Reasonable Best Efforts and Cooperation

Tembec and Rayonier AM have agreed to cooperate and use its reasonable efforts to take all actions proper to advisable to consummate the transactions contemplated in the Arrangement Agreement, including preparing and filing as promptly as reasonably practicable all documentation to effect all necessary filings, notices, petitions, statements, registrations, submissions of information, applications and other documents and (ii) obtaining and maintaining all approvals, consents, registrations, permits, authorizations and other confirmations required to be obtained from any other Person, including any Governmental Entity, that are necessary, proper or advisable to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, including consent of the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry to the deemed transfer, pursuant to the Arrangement, of the Tenures granted by the Ontario Government.

Tembec and Rayonier AM have also agreed, in furtherance of the above, to make their respective filings pursuant to the HSR Act and any other appropriate filings or applications under all applicable Antitrust Laws in Canada, Germany and the People's Republic of China with respect to the transactions contemplated pursuant to the Arrangement and begin substantive engagement with the appropriate Governmental Entities under all such Antitrust Laws, and, only if applicable, Rayonier AM shall file or cause to be filed an application for review with the applicable Minister under the Investment Canada Act.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Arrangement Agreement, neither Rayonier AM nor any of its Subsidiaries shall be required to (and Tembec shall not, unless requested to do so by Rayonier AM) divest, sell, grant a license in respect of, or dispose or hold separate, or agree to or to consent to any request to divest, sell, grant a license, dispose of, hold separate or restrict its ownership and operation of, all or any portion of the business or assets of Rayonier AM and its Subsidiaries, including, for this purpose, Tembec and its Subsidiaries; provided, however, that Rayonier AM shall be required to take the foregoing actions if the following conditions are satisfied: (1) any such divestitures, sales, grants of license, dispositions or holdings separate, or restrictions of ownership or operation are, individually and in the aggregate, *de minimis* in relation to the businesses, operations and assets of Tembec, Rayonier AM and their respective Subsidiaries and (2) the effect of any such divestitures, sales, grants of license, dispositions or holdings separate, or restrictions of ownership or operation would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a loss (other than a *de minimis* loss) of the reasonably expected benefits to Rayonier AM of the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement. In addition, Rayonier AM will, if required with respect to the Investment Canada Act Approval, agree to such undertakings as are commercially reasonable.

Stock Exchange Listing

Rayonier AM shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Rayonier AM Shares to be issued and paid in the Arrangement to be approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange prior to the Effective Time, subject to official notice of issuance.

Tembec Non-Solicitation

Pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement, Tembec has agreed to, as well as instruct its officers, directors, employees, consultants, representatives and other agents, including investment bankers, attorneys, accountant and other advisors and consultants (collectively, the "**Representatives**") to, immediately cease any discussions or negotiations with any Person that may be ongoing with respect to an Acquisition Proposal and shall (a) discontinue access to, and disclosure of, all confidential information regarding Tembec and its Subsidiaries, and (b) to the extent that such information has not previously been returned or destroyed, promptly request the return or destruction of all copies of any confidential information provided to any such Person.

From and after the date of the Arrangement Agreement until the earlier of the Effective Time or the date of termination of the Arrangement Agreement, Tembec has agreed not to, and has agreed not to authorize or permit any of its Subsidiaries or any of its or their Representatives, directly or indirectly through another Person:

- solicit, initiate, knowingly encourage, or take any other action designed to facilitate, any inquiry, indication of interest or the making of any proposal that constitutes or would reasonably be expected to lead to an Acquisition Proposal;
- participate in any discussions or negotiations regarding any Acquisition Proposal;
- furnish to any Person any information in connection with or in furtherance of any inquiry, indication of interest or proposal that constitutes or would reasonably be expected to lead to an Acquisition Proposal;
- approve, endorse, or recommend any Acquisition Proposal; or
- enter into any letter of intent or similar document or any Contract contemplating or otherwise relating to any Acquisition Proposal.

Tembec shall promptly advise Rayonier AM first orally and then in writing of any Acquisition Proposal and of any request for information or other inquiry that Tembec receives in connection with an inquiry, indication of interest or proposal that constitutes or would reasonably be expected to lead to an Acquisition Proposal. Such notice shall include the financial and other material terms and conditions of any such inquiry, indication of interest, proposal or Acquisition Proposal (including any changes thereto), the identity of the Person making any such request, Acquisition Proposal or inquiry, and copies of any written offer, proposal or other documentation in respect of such request, Acquisition Proposal or inquiry. Tembec shall keep Rayonier AM fully informed of the status and terms (including any change to the financial and other terms thereof) of any such request, Acquisition Proposal or inquiry and shall promptly provide Rayonier AM with copies of any written proposals or draft agreements received or delivered by Tembec relating to any such request, Acquisition Proposal or inquiry.

Notwithstanding the non-solicitation provisions in the Arrangement Agreement, if at any time prior to obtaining the Tembec Shareholder Approval, Tembec receives a bona fide written Acquisition Proposal (that was not solicited after the date of the Arrangement Agreement), Tembec may:

- furnish information with respect to Tembec and its Subsidiaries to the Person making such Acquisition Proposal pursuant to a confidentiality agreement (a copy of which will be provided to Rayonier AM promptly after its execution) not less restrictive of such Person than the Confidentiality Agreement, provided (i) that such confidentiality agreement may not include any provision calling for an exclusive right to negotiate with Tembec and may not restrict Tembec from complying with its non-solicitation obligations under the Arrangement Agreement; and (ii) that all such oral or written information (to the extent that such information has not been previously provided to Rayonier AM) is provided or made available to Rayonier AM prior to or substantially concurrently with the time it is provided or made available to the Person making such Acquisition Proposal; and
- participate in discussions or negotiations with the Person making such Acquisition Proposal (and its Representatives) regarding such Acquisition Proposal.

Except if the Board determines in good faith, after consultation with its outside legal counsel, that any such action or forbearance would be reasonably likely to be inconsistent with its fiduciary duties under applicable Law, Tembec and its Subsidiaries will not release any third party from, or waive, amend or modify any provision of, or grant permission under any (i) standstill provision in any agreement to which Tembec or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or (ii) confidentiality provision in any agreement to which Tembec or any of its Subsidiaries is a party (excluding any waiver, amendment, modification or permission under a confidentiality provision that does not, and would not reasonably be likely to, facilitate or encourage an Acquisition Proposal).

Prior to the approval of the Arrangement Resolution by the Tembec Shareholders, if Tembec receives an Acquisition Proposal that was not obtained in violation of the Arrangement Agreement and which the Board concludes in good faith, after receiving advice of its outside counsel and financial advisors, constitutes a Superior Proposal, the Board may enter into a definitive agreement with respect to such Superior Proposal, withdraw the Board Recommendation and make a Change in Recommendation, if:

- Tembec has provided Rayonier AM five Business Day's written notice (an "Adverse Notice") advising Rayonier AM that the Board has determined that an Acquisition Proposal is a Superior Proposal, that the Board intends to make an Adverse Recommendation Change or to terminate the Arrangement Agreement in order to enter into a definitive agreement providing for such Superior Proposal and containing the financial and other material terms and conditions of any such Acquisition Proposal (including any changes thereto), the identity of the Person making any such Acquisition Proposal or inquiry, together with copies of any written offer or proposal in respect of such Superior Proposal (it being agreed that any revisions to the financial terms or other material terms of such Superior Proposal will require a new Adverse Notice and new five Business Day period);
- during the five Business Day period following delivery of an Adverse Notice, Tembec and its Representatives shall, if requested by Rayonier AM, negotiate in good faith with Rayonier AM and Rayonier AM's Representatives to make such adjustments in the terms of the Arrangement Agreement as would enable Tembec to proceed with the Arrangement on such adjusted terms without effecting an Adverse Recommendation Change or terminating the Arrangement Agreement, as applicable;
- at the end of the five Business Day period following delivery of an Adverse Notice, the Board concludes in good faith (after receiving advice of its outside counsel and financial advisors and taking into account any adjustment or modification of the terms of the Arrangement Agreement proposed in

writing by Rayonier AM) that the Acquisition Proposal continues to constitute a Superior Proposal; and

• prior to or concurrently with entering into such definitive agreement, Tembec terminates the Arrangement Agreement and pays the Termination Fee.

Rayonier AM Financing

Concurrently with the execution and delivery of the Arrangement Agreement, Rayonier AM delivered to Tembec a copy of a commitment letter, dated May 24, 2017, and a corresponding fee letter, dated May 24, 2017. Rayonier AM subsequently delivered to Tembec a copy of an amended and restated commitment letter, dated June 12, 2017, and a corresponding amended and restated fee letter, dated June 12, 2017 (together with all exhibits, annexes and schedules thereto, collectively, the "**Commitment Letter**") evidencing the commitment of Bank of America, N.A., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Suntrust Bank and Suntrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. to provide, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, debt financing to Rayonier AM or its Subsidiaries in the amounts set forth therein (the "**Financing**"). Rayonier AM has represented in the Arrangement Agreement that assuming the Financing is funded in accordance with the Commitment Letter, the net proceeds committed to be delivered pursuant to the Commitment Letter, together with Rayonier AM's and its Subsidiaries' available and committed credit facilities and cash on hand will provide all the funds necessary for Rayonier AM to, on and as of the Effective Date, consummate the Arrangement and the other transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement.

Rayonier AM has agreed under the Arrangement Agreement to use its reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things reasonably necessary to obtain the Financing on the terms and conditions described in the Commitment Letter, including using reasonable best efforts to, among other things, negotiate, enter into and deliver definitive agreements with respect to the Financing on the terms and conditions to funding in the Commitment Letter and to satisfy on a timely basis all conditions to funding in the Commitment Letter and such definitive agreements with respect to the Financing applicable to Rayonier AM that are within its control. Obtaining the Financing or any alternative financing is not a condition to the closing of the Arrangement.

Termination of the Arrangement Agreement

The Arrangement Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time, whether before or after receipt of the Tembec Shareholder Approval:

- by mutual written agreement of Tembec and Rayonier AM;
- by either Tembec or Rayonier AM, if:
 - (a) a Law shall have been enacted, entered or promulgated prohibiting the consummation of the Arrangement substantially on the terms contemplated in the Arrangement Agreement, or (ii) an Order shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated or issued by a Governmental Entity permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the Arrangement or the issuance of Rayonier AM Shares contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement, and such Order shall have become final and non-appealable, provided that the right to terminate the Arrangement Agreement shall not be available to any Party if such Law or Order was due to the failure of such Party to perform any of its obligations under the Arrangement Agreement;
 - (b) the Arrangement shall not have been consummated on or before the Outside Date, provided that the right to terminate the Arrangement Agreement in this manner shall not be available to a Party if the failure of the Arrangement to have been consummated on or before the Outside Date shall have been primarily due to the failure of such Party to perform any of its obligations under the Arrangement Agreement;
 - (c) all of the following shall have occurred:

- the other Party shall have breached or failed to perform in any material respect any of its representations, warranties or covenants under the Arrangement Agreement;
- such breach or failure to perform is reasonably expected to result in any condition set forth in Sections 5.2(a) (*Representations and Warranties of Tembec*), 5.2(b) (*Covenants of Tembec*), 5.3(a) (*Representations and Warranties of Rayonier AM*) or 5.3(b) (*Covenants of Rayonier AM*) of the Arrangement Agreement to not be satisfied;
- such breach or failure to perform is incapable of being cured by the other Party or has not been cured by the other Party prior to the date that is 30 days after receipt of written notice thereof, <u>provided</u> that such Party seeking to terminate is not then in breach of the Arrangement Agreement so as to directly or indirectly cause any condition set forth in Sections 5.2(a) (*Representations and Warranties of Tembec*), 5.2(b) (*Covenants of Tembec*), 5.3(a) (*Representations and Warranties of Rayonier AM*) or 5.3(b) (*Covenants of Rayonier AM*) of the Arrangement Agreement, as applicable, to not be satisfied;
- (d) the approval of the Arrangement Resolution shall not have been obtained by reason of the failure to obtain the Tembec Shareholder Approval at the Meeting;
- by Rayonier AM, prior to the Effective Time, if the Board makes an Adverse Recommendation Change or if Tembec shall have materially violated or materially breached its non-solicitation obligations under the Arrangement Agreement; or
- by Tembec, prior to the Effective Time, if the Board authorizes Tembec to enter into an agreement providing for a Superior Proposal that did not result from a material violation or material breach of the Arrangement Agreement and Tembec enters into a definitive agreement providing for a Superior Proposal substantially concurrently with such termination.

Termination Payments

The Arrangement Agreement provides that Tembec will pay a termination fee in the amount equal to \$20 million to Rayonier AM if the Arrangement Agreement is terminated (each a "**Termination Fee Event**"):

- by Rayonier AM pursuant to Section 6.1(f)(i) of the Arrangement Agreement (*Adverse Recommendation Change*);
- by Rayonier AM pursuant to Section 6.1(f)(ii) of the Arrangement Agreement (*Material Breach of Non-Solicit*) and prior to the date that is 12 months after the effective date of such termination, Tembec will have consummated an Acquisition Proposal or entered into a definitive agreement with respect to an Acquisition Proposal that is later consummated (even if consummated after such 12-month period); provided that, all references to "20% or more" in the definition of "Company Acquisition Proposal" in the Arrangement Agreement shall be deemed to be references to "50% or more";
- by Tembec pursuant to Section 6.1(g) of the Arrangement Agreement (to enter into a Superior *Proposal*); or
- by Rayonier AM or Tembec pursuant to Section 6.1(e) of the Arrangement Agreement (*Failure to obtain the shareholder vote at the Shareholder Meeting*) or by Rayonier AM pursuant to Section 6.1(d) of the Arrangement Agreement (*Breach of representations, warranties or covenants*) (as a result of a breach by Tembec of its covenants under the Arrangement Agreement), and (i) at any time after the date of the Arrangement Agreement and prior to such termination an Acquisition Proposal shall have been announced, disclosed or otherwise communicated to the Board, and (ii) prior to the date that is 12 months after the effective date of such termination, Tembec shall have consummated an Acquisition Proposal that is later consummated (even if consummated after such 12-month period); provided that, all references to "20%

or more" in the definition of "Company Acquisition Proposal" in the Arrangement Agreement shall be deemed to be references to "50% or more".

The Arrangement Agreement provides that Rayonier AM will pay the Reverse Termination Fee in the amount of \$20 million to Tembec if the Arrangement Agreement is terminated by Rayonier AM or Tembec (each a "**Reverse Termination Fee Event**"):

- pursuant to Section 6.1(b) of the Arrangement Agreement (*Law or Order prohibiting the consummation of transactions contemplated by Arrangement*) (as the result only of an Antitrust Law or Order enforced by a Governmental Antitrust Entity or pursuant to provisions of the Investment Canada Act enforced or imposed by a Governmental Entity); or
- pursuant to Section 6.1(c) of the Arrangement Agreement (*Effective Date does not occur before Outside Date*);
- provided, in each case above, that each of the following exists: (i) any of the following conditions are not satisfied: (A) no Law or Order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) will have been enacted, entered, promulgated, adopted, issued or enforced by any Governmental Entity that is then in effect and has the effect of making illegal or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement, including the Arrangement (as the result only of an Antitrust Law or Order enforced or imposed by a Governmental Antitrust Entity or pursuant to provisions of the Investment Canada Act enforced or imposed by a Governmental Entity) or (B) (x) all waiting periods applicable to the transactions contemplated under the Arrangement Agreement under applicable Antitrust Laws in Canada, the U.S., Germany and the People's Republic of China shall have expired or terminated, and all approvals, clearances and rulings by, and filings with, Governmental Antitrust Entities in respect of the transactions contemplated under the Arrangement Agreement under applicable Antitrust Laws in such jurisdictions (including the Competition Act Approval) shall have been obtained or made, and (y) if and only if Section 16 of the Investment Canada Act applies to the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement, the Investment Canada Act Approval shall have been obtained or made; and (ii) all of the other conditions set forth in Article 5 of the Arrangement Agreement have been satisfied or waived (other than those conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the closing of the Arrangement, provided that such conditions would then be capable of being satisfied if the closing of the Arrangement were to take place on such date).

Amendment

The Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement may, at any time before or after the Meeting but not later than the Effective Time, be amended by mutual written agreement of Tembec and Rayonier AM and any such amendment may, subject to the Interim Order and the Final Order and applicable Law, without limitation:

- change the time for performance of any of the obligations or acts of the Parties;
- waive any inaccuracies or modify any representation or warranty contained in the Arrangement Agreement or in any document delivered pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement;
- waive compliance with or modify any of the covenants in the Arrangement Agreement and waive or modify performance of any of the obligations of the Parties;
- waive compliance with or modify any mutual conditions precedent in the Arrangement Agreement; and
- waive inaccuracies in any of the other Party's representations or warranties contained in the Arrangement Agreement or in any document delivered by the other Party.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Canadian Securities Law Matters

Tembec is a reporting issuer (or the equivalent) in all of the provinces and territories of Canada. Tembec Shares currently trade on the TSX. After the Arrangement, Rayonier AM intends to delist the Tembec Shares from the TSX. Rayonier AM is not a reporting issuer in any jurisdiction of Canada. Upon completion of the Arrangement, Rayonier AM will become a reporting issuer in each of the provinces and territories of Canada by virtue of the completion of the Arrangement with Tembec. Pursuant to NI 71-102, Rayonier AM will be generally exempt from Canadian statutory financial and other continuous and timely reporting requirements, including the requirement for insiders of Rayonier AM to file reports with respect to trades of Rayonier AM Shares, provided Rayonier AM complies with the requirements of U.S. securities Laws and U.S. market requirements in respect of all financial and other continuous and timely reporting AM files with the relevant provincial securities regulatory authorities copies of its documents filed with the SEC under the U.S. Exchange Act.

The issue of Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will constitute distributions of securities which are exempt from the prospectus requirements under Canadian Securities Laws. Subject to certain disclosure and regulatory requirements and to customary restrictions applicable to distributions of shares that constitute "control distributions", Rayonier AM Shares issued pursuant to the Arrangement may be resold in each province and territory in Canada, subject in certain circumstances, to the usual conditions that no unusual effort, or no effort, has been made to prepare the market or create demand.

United States Securities Law Matters

The following discussion is only a general overview of certain requirements of U.S. federal securities laws that may be applicable to the holders of Tembec Shares. All holders of such securities are urged to obtain legal advice to ensure that their resale of such securities complies with applicable U.S. securities laws. Further information applicable to the holders of such securities resident in the United States is disclosed in this Circular under the heading "Notice to Tembec Shareholders in the United States".

Exemption from U.S. Registration

The Rayonier AM Shares issuable in connection with the Arrangement have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act and will be issued in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 3(a)(10) of the U.S. Securities Act. Section 3(a)(10) of the U.S. Securities Act exempts from registration a security that is issued in exchange for outstanding securities where the terms and conditions of such issuance and exchange are approved, after a hearing upon the fairness of such terms and conditions at which all Persons to whom it is proposed to issue securities in such exchange have the right to appear, by a court or by a governmental authority expressly authorized by law to grant such approval. Accordingly, the Final Order of the Court will, if granted, constitute a basis for the exemption from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act with respect to the Rayonier AM Shares issued in connection with the Arrangement.

Resale of Rayonier AM Shares Received Pursuant to the Arrangement

The Rayonier AM Shares to be issued under the Arrangement will be freely transferable under United States federal securities laws, except that the U.S. Securities Act imposes restrictions on the resale of Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement by Persons who are, become after consummation of the Arrangement or within 90 days of the Effective Time have been, "affiliates" of Rayonier AM.

An "affiliate" of Rayonier AM is a Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, Rayonier AM and may include certain officers and directors of Rayonier AM as well as principal shareholders of Rayonier AM.

Affiliates – Rule 144

Any holder of Rayonier AM Shares who is an affiliate of Rayonier AM at the time of the proposed resale, became an affiliate of Rayonier AM after consummation of the Arrangement or has been an affiliate within 90 days

of the Effective Time, is urged to consult its own legal advisor to ensure that any proposed resale of Rayonier AM Shares issued to them under the Arrangement complies with the applicable requirements under the U.S. Securities Act.

State "Blue Sky" Securities Laws

No Rayonier AM Shares issued in the Arrangement will be delivered to Persons in any state where the applicable state "blue sky" securities laws do not provide an exemption from the registration or qualification requirements of securities laws of that state. All Rayonier AM Shares that would otherwise be delivered to Persons in such states may be sold on their behalf, and holders may receive a cash payment in the amount of their pro rata entitlement to the net sale proceeds.

Stock Exchange Approvals

Rayonier AM Shares are listed on the NYSE and trade under the symbol "RYAM". Rayonier AM will apply to list the Rayonier AM Shares issuable pursuant to the Arrangement on the NYSE and it is a condition of closing of the Arrangement that Rayonier AM Shares issued pursuant to the Arrangement will have been authorized for listing on the NYSE (subject to customary conditions).

Other Regulatory Matters

Investment Canada Act

The Arrangement is conditional upon the receipt of Investment Canada Act Approval, if required. Subject to certain limited exceptions, the direct acquisition of control of a Canadian business by a non-Canadian that exceeds a financial threshold prescribed under Part IV of the Investment Canada Act (a "**Reviewable Transaction**") cannot be implemented unless the transaction has been reviewed by the Minister responsible for the Investment Canada Act (the "**Minister**") and the Minister is satisfied or is deemed to be satisfied that the transaction is likely to be of net benefit to Canada (the "**net benefit ruling**"). Accordingly, in the case of a Reviewable Transaction, a non-Canadian purchaser must submit an application to the Minister (an "**Application for Review**") seeking approval of the Reviewable Transaction and cannot complete the transaction until it receives a net benefit ruling.

Under the current version of the Investment Canada Act, the Arrangement is a Reviewable Transaction. However, Bill C-30 (*Canada-European Union Comprehensive Economic and Trade Agreement Implementation Act*) is expected to increase the Investment Canada Act's prescribed financial threshold for certain applicable Reviewable Transactions, effective upon the coming into force of such bill. Should this bill come into force before the Investment Canada Act Approval has been obtained, the Arrangement may no longer be a Reviewable Transaction, in which case the Arrangement would not require Investment Canada Act Approval. In such a scenario, the Application for Review would be withdrawn (if it has already been submitted to the Minister) or would not have to be submitted to the Minister (if it has not yet been filed).

As of the date hereof, Rayonier AM has not yet filed an Application for Review pursuant to Part IV of the Investment Canada Act. Filing of an Application for Review triggers an initial review period of up to 45 days. If the Minister has not completed the review by that date, the Minister may unilaterally extend the review period for up to a further 30 days. The Minister and the purchaser may agree to further extensions of the review period.

In determining whether to issue a net benefit ruling, the Minister is required to consider, among other things, the Application for Review and any written undertakings offered by the purchaser to Her Majesty in right of Canada. The prescribed factors that the Minister must consider when determining whether to issue a net benefit ruling include, among other things, the effect of the investment on the economic activity in Canada (including the effect on employment, resource processing, utilization of Canadian products and services and exports), the participation by Canadians in the acquired business, the effect of the investment on productivity, industrial, efficiency, technological development, product innovation, product variety and competition in Canada, the compatibility of the investment with national and provincial industrial, economic and cultural policies, and the contribution of the investment to Canada's ability to compete in world markets.

If, following his review during the initial review period or the extension(s) described above, the Minister is not satisfied or is not deemed to be satisfied that the Reviewable Transaction is likely to be of net benefit to Canada, the Minister is required to send a notice to that effect to the purchaser, advising the purchaser of its right to make further representations and submit (additional) undertakings within 30 days from the date of such notice or any further period that may be agreed to by the purchaser and the Minister.

At any time, and in any event within a reasonable time after the expiry of the last-mentioned period for making representations and submitting undertakings described above, the Minister will send a notice to the purchaser that either the Minister is satisfied that the investment is likely to be of net benefit to Canada (i.e., a net benefit ruling) or confirmation that the Minister is not satisfied that the investment is likely to be of net benefit to Canada. In the latter case, the Reviewable Transaction may not be implemented.

Competition Act Clearance

The Arrangement is conditional upon the receipt of Competition Act Approval. Part IX of the Competition Act requires that parties to any proposed transaction that exceeds specified financial and shareholding thresholds provide to the Commissioner of Competition ("**Commissioner**") prior notice of, and information relating to, the proposed transaction. A proposed transaction is exempt from the foregoing notification requirements if the Commissioner issues an advance ruling certificate in respect of the proposed transaction. The Commissioner may also waive the notification requirements if substantially similar information was previously supplied in relation to a request for an advance ruling certificate. Under the Competition Act, a notifiable transaction may not be completed until the expiry, waiver or termination of the applicable statutory waiting period.

The Arrangement is a notifiable transaction for the purposes of the Competition Act. As soon as reasonably practicable (i) Rayonier AM will file a submission with the Commissioner requesting that he issue an advance ruling certificate pursuant to Section 102 of the Competition Act, or in the alternative a no-action letter, in respect of the Arrangement and (ii) Tembec and Rayonier AM will file merger notifications pursuant to Section 114 of the Competition Act. As of the date of this Circular, such submission and notifications have not yet been filed. The applicable initial statutory waiting period in the case of a transaction notified under the Competition Act is 30 days. The Commissioner may, in his discretion, within the initial 30-day waiting period, issue a "supplementary information request" for additional information and documents to the parties, in which case a new 30-day waiting period will commence following compliance with such supplementary information requests.

The Commissioner's review of a notifiable transaction for substantive competition law considerations may take longer than the statutory waiting period.

Upon completion of the Commissioner's review, the Commissioner may decide to (i) issue an advance ruling certificate with respect to the proposed transaction; (ii) issue a "no action" letter stating that he does not, at that time, intend to make an application to the Competition Tribunal, in respect of the transaction but retains the authority to do so for one year after completion of the transaction; or (iii) make an application to the Competition Tribunal, in respect of the transaction but retains the competition. Where the Commissioner issues an advance ruling certificate and the parties substantially complete the transaction within one year after the advance ruling certificate is issued, he cannot challenge the transaction before the Competition Tribunal solely on the basis of information that is the same or substantially the same as the information on the basis of which the advance ruling certificate was issued.

HSR Act

Under the HSR Act, certain transactions may not be completed until each party has filed a Notification and Report Form with the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice (the "**DOJ**") and with the U.S. Federal Trade Commission (the "**FTC**") and the HSR Act's waiting period has expired or been terminated early. The transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement are subject to the HSR Act. It is a condition to the completion of the Arrangement that the Key Regulatory Approval relating to the HSR Act be obtained and in force at the Effective Time.

Rayonier AM and Tembec filed the pre-merger Notification and Report Forms on June 2, 2017, and, absent a request from the DOJ or FTC for additional information, the waiting period under the HSR Act will expire 30 days

after filing, on July 3, 2017 (this waiting period expires on the thirtieth day after the filing is received or the following Business Day if the thirtieth day does not fall on a Business Day). If a request for additional information is issued, the waiting period will expire at the end of the thirtieth day after Rayonier AM and Tembec have substantially complied with the request, unless the FTC or DOJ and the parties negotiate a longer waiting period. The DOJ, the FTC or others (including states attorneys general and, in certain circumstances, private parties) may challenge the merger on antitrust grounds either before or after expiration or termination of the waiting period. Accordingly, at any time before or after the completion of the merger, the DOJ, the FTC or others could take action under the Antitrust Laws, including seeking to prevent the Arrangement, to rescind the Arrangement, or to conditionally approve the Arrangement upon the divestiture of assets of Rayonier AM and/or Tembec. There can be no assurance that a challenge is made, that it would not be successful.

In addition, prior to acquiring their Rayonier AM Shares, shareholders who as a result of the Arrangement will hold Rayonier AM Shares with a value in excess of U.S. \$80.8 million may, unless exempt, be subject to the filing and waiting period requirements under the HSR Act. This would require each such shareholder, as well as Rayonier AM, to file an HSR Notification and Report Form with the FTC and the DOJ and to observe an initial 30 calendar-day waiting period. The initial waiting period may be terminated by the FTC and the DOJ before its expiration or extended by a request for additional information. Issuance of such a request requires the observation of an additional 30 calendar-day waiting period after the request is complied with. Therefore, compliance with the HSR Act could delay the acquisition of Rayonier AM Shares by affected shareholders and/or the effective date of the Arrangement. These requirements may not apply to a particular shareholder if such shareholder will hold 10% or less of the voting securities of Rayonier AM and is acquiring such voting securities solely for the purpose of investment within the specific meaning of the HSR Act. Any Tembec Shareholder that believes that it may have a filing and waiting obligation under the HSR Act in connection with this transaction should contact Tembec at its head office at 100-4 Place Ville-Marie, Montréal, Québec, H3B 2E7, and consult its own legal counsel.

German Act Against Restraints on Competition

Under the German Act Against Restraints on Competition, certain transactions may not be completed until the Federal Cartel Office (the "**FCO**") has cleared the transaction. The transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement are subject to the Act Against Restraints on Competition. The Arrangement is conditional upon approval under the Act Against Restraints on Competition.

Rayonier AM, in cooperation with Tembec, will file the notification on behalf of both parties as promptly as reasonably practicable. Absent the opening of an in-depth investigation by the FCO, the Arrangement will be cleared within one month from filing. If an in-depth investigation is opened, the FCO will have to take a final decision within four months from filing (this may be extended with consent of the parties). Upon completion of the in-depth review, the FCO may decide to (i) clear the Arrangement without conditions, (ii) clear the Arrangement subject to conditions, (iii) block the Arrangement, or (iv) not render a decision in which case the Arrangement would be deemed to be cleared.

There exists in formal terms a procedure by which the FCO could seek to transfer the examination to the European Commission, which, if invoked, would considerably extend the review period and has the equivalent set of possible outcomes.

Anti-Monopoly Law of the People's Republic of China

The Arrangement is conditional on all applicable waiting periods under the Anti-Monopoly Law of the People's Republic of China (the "AML") having expired or terminated, and approval by, and filing with, the Anti-Monopoly Bureau of the Ministry of Commerce of the People's Republic of China ("MOFCOM"). Pursuant to Sections 21 and 25 of the AML, the Arrangement cannot be implemented until a notification has been submitted to MOFCOM and MOFCOM makes a decision that no further review will be conducted or the Arrangement will not be prohibited, or no decision is made on the expiry of the applicable waiting periods. If competition concerns are identified, restrictive conditions may be attached to the approval for implementing the Arrangement. If MOFCOM is of the view that the Arrangement will or may eliminate or restrict competition and cannot be remedied by restrictive conditions, MOFCOM will issue a decision to prohibit the Arrangement, in which event the Arrangement may not be implemented.

As the purchaser, Rayonier AM is responsible for submitting the merger notification to MOFCOM. After receipt of the notification, MOFCOM will review the notification for completeness. Once the notification is formally accepted as complete, MOFCOM will conduct a preliminary investigation of the Arrangement for a period of up to 30 calendar days (Phase I). MOFCOM may decide to conduct a further review of the Arrangement for an additional period of up to 90 calendar days (Phase II), which may, in certain circumstances, be extended by another 60 calendar days (Phase III).

Timber Supply Agreements

The completion of the Arrangement requires Tembec and Rayonier AM to provide notice to or obtain the consent of certain provincial governments with respect to the Tenures in such provinces. The forestry legislation of certain Canadian provinces provides that the relevant Minister of Natural Resources, in the event of a change of control, may change the amount of allocated wood and territories under forest licenses granted thereunder either before or post-closing.

It is a condition to the completion of the Arrangement that the consent of the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry to the deemed transfer, pursuant to the Arrangement, of the Tenures granted by the Ontario government be obtained and in force and not rescinded at the Effective Time.

Additional Consents

It is a condition to the completion of the Arrangement that Tembec deliver to Rayonier AM the following consents or waivers at or prior to the Effective Time:

- Consent of the Independent Electricity System Operator (the "**IESO**") pursuant to Chapter 7, Section 2.5 of the Market Rules in connection with the transaction contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement and as it relates to Tembec Industries Inc., the *market participant* under the IESO's Market Rules and owner/operator of the registered facilities; and
- Consent of the Minister of Northern Development and Mines pursuant to Section 6.1(t) of the NIER Program Conditional Rebate Agreement, as amended or renewed, in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT IN CANADA

Based on the current provisions of the ITA, the Rayonier AM Shares, if acquired on the date hereof and if listed on a designated stock exchange for purposes of the ITA (which currently includes the NYSE), will be qualified investments under the ITA for trusts governed by a registered retirement savings plan ("**RRSP**"), a registered retirement income fund ("**RRIF**"), a deferred profit sharing plan, a registered education savings plan ("**RRSP**"), a registered disability savings plan ("**RDSP**") and a tax-free savings account ("**TFSA**"), each as defined in the ITA.

Notwithstanding that Rayonier AM Shares may be qualified investments for a trust governed by an RRSP, RRIF and TFSA, the annuitant under an RRSP or RRIF, or the holder of a TFSA, will be subject to a penalty tax on such shares if such shares are a "prohibited investment". Rayonier AM Shares will generally not be a "prohibited investment" provided that the annuitant under the RRSP or RRIF, or the holder of a TFSA, deals at arm's length with Rayonier AM for purposes of the ITA and does not have a "significant interest" (as defined in the ITA) in Rayonier AM. In addition, a Rayonier AM Share will generally not be a "prohibited investment" for a trust governed by an RRSP, RRIF or TFSA if the Rayonier AM Share is an "excluded property" (as defined in the ITA) for such RRSP, RRIF or TFSA. If amendments to the ITA announced by the Minister of Finance (Canada) on March 22, 2017 are enacted as proposed, the rules in respect of "prohibited investments" will also apply to a subscriber of an RESP or a holder of an RDSP. An annuitant under an RRSP or RRIF, a subscriber of an RESP or a holder of an RDSP.

CERTAIN CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations under the ITA relating to the Arrangement that generally apply to beneficial owners of Tembec Shares who, for purposes of the ITA, and at all relevant times, hold their Tembec Shares, and will hold any Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement, as capital property and deal at arm's length with, and are not affiliated with, Tembec and Rayonier AM. Persons meeting such requirements are referred to as a "Holder" or as "Holders" herein, and this summary only addresses Holders.

This summary does not apply to a Holder: (i) with respect to whom Rayonier AM is or will be a "foreign affiliate" within the meaning of the ITA, (ii) that is a "financial institution" for the purposes of the mark-to-market rules in the ITA, (iii) an interest in which is a "tax shelter investment" as defined in the ITA, (iv) that is a "specified financial institution" as defined in the ITA, (v) that reports its "Canadian tax results", as defined in the ITA, in a currency other than Canadian currency, (vi) that is exempt from tax under Part I of the ITA, (vii) that has entered into or will enter into, with respect to its Tembec Shares or Rayonier AM Shares, a "derivative forward agreement" as defined in the ITA, or (viii) that acquired Tembec Shares pursuant to a DSU or any other equity-based employment compensation plan. This summary does not address the possible application of the "foreign affiliate dumping" rules that may be applicable to a Holder that is a corporation resident in Canada that is or becomes, as part of a transaction or event or series of transactions or events that include the acquisition of Rayonier AM Shares, controlled by a non-resident corporation for the purposes of the rules in Section 212.3 of the ITA. Any Holder to which this summary does not apply should consult his, her or its own tax advisor with respect to the tax consequences of the Arrangement.

Tembec Shares and Rayonier AM Shares will generally be considered to be capital property unless such securities are held in the course of carrying on a business, or were acquired in one or more transactions considered to be an adventure or concern in the nature of trade. Certain Holders who are residents of Canada for purposes of the ITA and whose Tembec Shares might not otherwise qualify as capital property, may, in certain circumstances, be entitled to make, or may already have made, an irrevocable election in accordance with subsection 39(4) of the ITA to have their Tembec Shares, and every "Canadian security" (as defined in the ITA) owned by such Holder in the taxation year of the election and in all subsequent taxation years, deemed to be capital property. Any Person contemplating making a subsection 39(4) election should consult their tax advisor for advice as to whether the election is available or advisable in their particular circumstances.

This summary is based on the facts set out in this document, the current provisions of the ITA and counsel's understanding of the published administrative policies and assessing practices of the CRA publicly available prior to the date of this document. This summary takes into account all proposed amendments to the ITA that have been publicly announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior to the date hereof (the "**Proposed Amendments**") and assumes that such Proposed Amendments will be enacted in the form proposed. However, no assurance can be given that such Proposed Amendments will be enacted in the form proposed, or at all.

Except for the Proposed Amendments, this summary does not take into account or anticipate any other changes in law or any changes in the CRA's administrative policies and assessing practices, whether by judicial, governmental or legislative action or decision, nor does it take into account other federal or any provincial, territorial or foreign tax legislation or considerations, which may differ from the Canadian federal income tax considerations described herein.

This summary is not exhaustive of all possible Canadian federal income tax considerations applicable to the Arrangement and/or the holding of Rayonier AM Shares. This summary is of a general nature only and is not intended to be, and should not be construed to be, legal, business or tax advice to any particular shareholder. Shareholders should consult their own tax advisors having regard to their own circumstances.

Generally for purposes of the ITA, all amounts relating to the acquisition, holding or disposition of securities (including dividends, adjusted cost base and proceeds of disposition) must be expressed in Canadian dollars. Amounts denominated in another currency must be converted into Canadian dollars based on exchange rates as determined in accordance with the ITA. The amount of dividends to be included in the income of, and the amount

of capital gains or capital losses realized by, a Holder may be affected by fluctuation in the relevant Canadian dollar exchange rate.

Holders Resident in Canada

The following section of the summary applies to a Holder who, for purposes of the ITA and any applicable income tax treaty, is or is deemed to be a resident of Canada at all relevant times (a "**Resident Shareholder**").

Exchange of Tembec Shares for Cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares

A Resident Shareholder who exchanges Tembec Shares for cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares under the Arrangement will generally be considered to have disposed of such Tembec Shares for proceeds of disposition equal to the sum of (a) the cash consideration received and (b) the fair market value at the Effective Time of the Rayonier AM Shares acquired by such Resident Shareholder on the exchange, and generally will realize a capital gain (or capital loss) to the extent that such proceeds of disposition, net of any reasonable costs of the disposition, exceed (or are less than) the adjusted cost base to the Resident Shareholder of such Tembec Shares immediately before the disposition. See "Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses" below.

The cost to a Resident Shareholder of any Rayonier AM Shares acquired on the exchange will be equal to the fair market value of the Tembec Shares held by the Resident Shareholder at the Effective Time less the cash consideration, if any, received on the exchange. For the purpose of determining the adjusted cost base at any time to a Resident Shareholder of Rayonier AM Shares acquired under the Arrangement, the adjusted cost base of such shares will generally be determined by averaging the cost of such Rayonier AM Shares with the adjusted cost base of all other Rayonier AM Shares held by the Resident Shareholder as capital property at that time.

Dividends on Rayonier AM Shares

A Resident Shareholder will be required to include in computing his, her or its income for a taxation year the amount of dividends, if any, received on Rayonier AM Shares. Dividends received on Rayonier AM Shares by a Resident Shareholder who is an individual will not be subject to the gross-up and dividend tax credit rules in the ITA normally applicable to taxable dividends received from taxable Canadian corporations. A Resident Shareholder that is a corporation will not be entitled to deduct the amount of such dividends in computing its taxable income. A Resident Shareholder that is throughout the year a "Canadian-controlled private corporation" (as defined in the ITA) may be liable to pay a refundable tax of 10 2/3% of its "aggregate investment income" (as defined in the ITA), including any dividends received or deemed to be received on Rayonier AM Shares. Any United States non-resident withholding tax on such dividends may give rise to a Resident Shareholder's entitlement to claim a foreign tax credit or deduction in respect of such United States tax to the extent and under the circumstances provided in the ITA.

Disposition of Rayonier AM Shares

A disposition or deemed disposition of Rayonier AM Shares by a Resident Shareholder will generally result in a capital gain (or capital loss) to the extent that the proceeds of disposition, net of any reasonable costs of the disposition, exceed (or are less than) the adjusted cost base to the holder of the Rayonier AM Shares immediately before the disposition. See "Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses" below. The Resident Shareholder may be entitled to claim a foreign tax credit or deduction in respect of any United States tax payable by the Resident Shareholder on any gain realized on such disposition or deemed disposition to the extent and under the circumstances provided in the ITA.

Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses

Generally one-half of any capital gain (a "**taxable capital gain**") realized by a Resident Shareholder will be included in the Resident Shareholder's income for the year of disposition. One-half of any capital loss (an "**allowable capital loss**") realized by a Resident Shareholder in a taxation year is required to be deducted by the holder against taxable capital gains in that year (subject to and in accordance with the rules of the ITA). Any excess of allowable capital losses over taxable capital gains of the Resident Shareholder realized in a taxation year may be carried back up to three taxation years or carried forward indefinitely and deducted against net taxable capital gains realized in such years, to the extent and under the circumstances provided in the ITA.

Capital gains realized by a Resident Shareholder who is an individual or trust, other than certain specified trusts, may give rise to alternative minimum tax under the ITA.

A Resident Shareholder that is throughout the relevant year a "Canadian-controlled private corporation" (as defined in the ITA) may be liable to pay a refundable tax of 10 2/3% of its "aggregate investment income" (as defined in the ITA), including any taxable capital gains.

If the Resident Shareholder is a corporation, the amount of any capital loss arising from a disposition or deemed disposition of a Tembec Share may be reduced by the amount of dividends received or deemed to have been received by it on the share to the extent and under the circumstances prescribed by the ITA. Similar rules may apply where a corporation is a member of a partnership or a beneficiary of a trust that owns Tembec Shares, or where a trust or partnership of which a corporation is a beneficiary or a member is a member of a partnership or a beneficiary or a member of a partnership or a beneficiary of a trust that owns any such shares. Resident Shareholders to whom these rules may be relevant should consult their own tax advisors.

Offshore Investment Fund Property

The ITA contains rules which, in certain circumstances, may require a Resident Shareholder to include an amount in income in each taxation year in respect of the acquisition and holding of Rayonier AM Shares if (1) the value of such Rayonier AM Shares may reasonably be considered to be derived, directly or indirectly, primarily from certain enumerated portfolio investments and (2) it may reasonably be concluded that one of the main reasons for the Resident Shareholder acquiring, holding or having the Rayonier AM Shares was to derive a benefit from portfolio investments in such a manner that the taxes, if any, on the income, profits and gains from such portfolio investments for any particular year are significantly less than the tax that would have been applicable under Part I of the ITA if the income, profits and gains had been earned directly by the Resident Shareholder.

These rules are complex and their application depends, to a large extent, on the reasons for a Resident Shareholder acquiring or holding Rayonier AM Shares. Resident Shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the application and consequences of these rules in their own particular circumstances.

Foreign Property Information Reporting

A Resident Shareholder which is a "specified Canadian entity" for a taxation year or a fiscal period and whose total "cost amount" of "specified foreign property" (both as defined in the ITA), including Rayonier AM Shares, at any time in the year or fiscal period exceeds \$100,000 will be required to file an information return with the CRA for the year or period disclosing prescribed information in respect of such property. Substantial penalties may apply where a Resident Shareholder fails to file the required information return in respect of its specified foreign property on a timely basis. Resident Shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors regarding any such filing obligation in their particular circumstances.

Dissenting Shareholders

A Dissenting Shareholder will be deemed to have transferred its Dissent Shares to Rayonier AM as of the Effective Time and will receive a cash payment from Rayonier AM in respect of the fair value of the Dissenting Shareholder's Dissent Shares. Such a Dissenting Shareholder will be considered to have disposed of its Dissent Shares for proceeds of disposition equal to the amount received by the Dissenting Shareholder (less any interest awarded by a court). As a result, such Dissenting Shareholder generally will realize a capital gain (or a capital loss) to the extent that such proceeds of disposition net of any reasonable costs of disposition exceed (or are less than) the adjusted cost base to the Dissenting Shareholder of the Dissent Shares immediately before the disposition. See "Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses" above for a general description of the treatment of capital gains and capital losses under the ITA.

Interest awarded to a Dissenting Shareholder by a court will be included in the Dissenting Shareholder's income for the purposes of the ITA. In addition, a Dissenting Shareholder that, throughout the relevant taxation year, is a "Canadian-controlled private corporation" (as defined in the ITA) may be liable to pay a refundable tax of

102/3% of its "aggregate investment income" (as defined in the ITA), including any taxable capital gains and interest income.

A Resident Shareholder who exercises his or her Dissent Rights but who is not ultimately determined to be entitled to be paid fair value for the Tembec Shares held by such Resident Shareholder will be deemed to have participated in the Arrangement and to have transferred their Tembec Shares to Rayonier AM in exchange for the Per Share Cash Amount. In such an event, the tax consequences as discussed above under the heading "Exchange of Tembec Shares for Cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares" will generally apply.

Holders Not Resident in Canada

The following section of the summary applies to a Holder who, (i) for the purposes of the ITA and any applicable income tax treaty and at all relevant times, is not, and is not deemed to be, a resident of Canada, (ii) does not, and is not deemed to, use or hold Tembec Shares and Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement in or in the course of carrying on a business in Canada, (iii) is not an insurer who carries on an insurance business or is deemed to carry on an insurance business in Canada and elsewhere, and (iv) is not an "authorized foreign bank" as defined in the ITA (in this section, a "**Non-Resident Shareholder**").

Exchange of Tembec Shares for Cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares

A Non-Resident Shareholder who exchanges Tembec Shares for Cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares under the Arrangement will realize a capital gain (or capital loss) on the disposition of such Tembec Shares in the same manner as a Resident Shareholder (see "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations – Holders Resident in Canada — Exchange of Tembec Shares for Cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares" above).

Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses

A Non-Resident Shareholder will not be subject to tax under the ITA on any capital gain realized on the disposition of Tembec Shares as part of the Arrangement, unless such Tembec Shares constitute "taxable Canadian property" of the Non-Resident Shareholder for purposes of the ITA at the time of the disposition and the Non-Resident Shareholder is not entitled to relief under an applicable income tax treaty between Canada and the country in which the Non-Resident Shareholder is resident. Generally, the Tembec Shares will not constitute taxable Canadian property of a Non-Resident Shareholder at the time of their disposition provided that (i) the Tembec Shares were listed on a "designated stock exchange" as defined in the ITA (which currently includes the TSX) at that time, and (ii) at no time during the 60-month period immediately preceding that time the following two conditions were met concurrently: (A) the Non-Resident Shareholder, Persons with whom the Non-Resident Shareholder does not deal at arm's length, a partnership in which the Non-Resident Shareholder or a non-arm's length Person holds a membership interest directly or indirectly through one or more partnerships, or the Non-Resident Shareholder together with all such Persons or partnerships, owned 25% or more of the issued shares of any class of Tembec, and (B) more than 50% of the fair market value of the Tembec Shares was derived directly or indirectly from one or any combination of real or immovable property situated in Canada, "Canadian resource properties", "timber resource properties" (both as defined in the ITA), and options in respect of, or interests in, or for civil law, rights in, any such properties, whether or not the property exists. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tembec Shares may be deemed to be taxable Canadian property in certain circumstances specified in the Tax Act.

Even if the Tembec Shares are taxable Canadian property of a Non-Resident Shareholder at the time of the disposition, a capital gain realized upon the disposition of such Tembec Shares may be exempt from tax under an applicable income tax treaty. In the event that any capital gain realized by a Non-Resident Shareholder on the disposition of Tembec Shares as part of the Arrangement is not exempt from tax under the Tax Act by virtue of an applicable income tax treaty, the tax consequences pertaining to capital gains (or capital losses) as described above under "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations – Holders Resident in Canada – Taxation of Capital Gains and Losses" will generally apply. A Non-Resident Shareholder who disposes of taxable Canadian property should consult his, her or its own tax advisors regarding its particular circumstances and any resulting Canadian reporting requirements.

Dissenting Non-Resident Shareholders

A Non-Resident Shareholder who is a Dissenting Tembec Shareholder will realize a capital gain (or capital loss) in the same manner as a Resident Shareholder that is a Dissenting Tembec Shareholder (see "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations - Holders Resident in Canada - Dissenting Tembec Shareholders"). The income tax treatment of capital gains and capital losses of a Non-Resident Shareholder is discussed above (see "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations – Holders Not Resident in Canada — Taxation of Capital Gains and Losses" above).

Interest awarded to a Non-Resident Holder who is a Dissenting Shareholder by a court will not be subject to Canadian withholding tax.

CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of certain U.S. federal income tax considerations generally applicable to U.S. Holders and Non-U.S. Holders (each as defined below) relating to the exchange of Tembec Shares for Rayonier AM Shares and/or cash pursuant to the Arrangement and the ownership and disposition of any Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement. This summary does not address U.S. federal income tax consequences of (i) any conversion into Tembec Shares, Rayonier AM Shares or cash of any notes, debentures or other debt instruments, (ii) any vesting, conversion, assumption, disposition, exercise, exchange, or other transaction involving any rights to acquire Tembec Shares or Rayonier AM Shares, including the DSUs, or (iii) any transaction, other than the Arrangement, in which Tembec Shares, Rayonier AM Shares or cash are acquired.

This summary addresses only holders who hold the Tembec Shares and will hold any Rayonier AM Shares as a "capital asset" (generally, held for investment purposes). This summary is for general information purposes only and does not purport to be a complete analysis of all potential U.S. federal income tax considerations that may be relevant to particular holders in light of their particular circumstances, nor does it address Persons subject to special treatment under the Code, such as brokers, dealers or traders in securities or currencies, banks and other financial institutions, mutual funds, holders subject to the alternative minimum tax, tax-exempt entities (including private foundations). Persons that have a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, qualified retirement plans, individual retirement accounts and other tax-deferred accounts, insurance companies, real estate investment trusts, regulated investment companies, partnerships or other passthrough entities (or investors therein), Persons holding Tembec Shares and/or Rayonier AM Shares as part of a straddle, hedge or conversion transaction or as part of a synthetic security or other integrated transaction, Persons that elect to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for their securities holdings, Dissenting Shareholders, U.S. Holders who hold their Tembec Shares through a non-U.S. broker or other non-U.S. intermediary, Persons that directly, indirectly or constructively own or have owned at any time 5% or more of the outstanding Tembec Shares (or after the Effective Date, any class of shares issued by Rayonier AM), U.S. expatriates, passive foreign investment companies, controlled foreign corporations and Persons that acquired Tembec Shares in connection with employment or otherwise with respect to the performance of services. In addition, this summary does not address tax considerations arising under the laws of any state, local, or non-U.S. jurisdiction, U.S. federal tax considerations other than U.S. federal income tax considerations (such as estate or gift tax or the Medicare contribution tax). Holders should consult their own tax advisors as to the tax considerations applicable to them.

The following is based on the Code, the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial authorities, published positions of the U.S. Internal Revenue Service ("**IRS**") and other applicable authorities, all as in effect on the date hereof and all of which are subject to change or differing interpretations possibly with retroactive effect. No rulings have been or will be sought from the IRS, and Tembec has not received any legal opinion, regarding any of the tax consequences discussed herein. No assurance can be given that the IRS would not assert, or that a court would not sustain, a position contrary to any of the tax consequences set forth below.

As used herein, the term "**U.S. Holder**" means a beneficial owner of Tembec Shares or Rayonier AM Shares, as applicable, that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, (i) an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States, (ii) a corporation created or organized under the laws of the United States, any State thereof or the District of Columbia, (iii) an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source, or (iv) a trust if (A) a U.S. court is able to exercise primary supervision over its administration and one or

more U.S. persons have authority to control all of its substantial decisions or (B) it has a valid election under applicable Treasury regulations in place to be treated as a U.S. person.

As used herein, the term "**Non-U.S. Holder**" means a beneficial owner of Tembec Shares or Rayonier AM Shares, as applicable, that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is an individual, corporation, estate or trust, other than a U.S. Holder.

The tax treatment of a partner in any entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes generally will depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Holders of Tembec Shares or Rayonier AM Shares that are partnerships, and partners in such partnerships, should consult their own tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal, state, local and non-U.S. tax considerations applicable to them relating to the exchange of Tembec Shares for Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement, and the ownership and disposition of any Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement.

U.S. Holders

Exchange of Tembec Shares for Cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares

In General

The exchange of Tembec Shares for cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will be treated as a taxable exchange for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Accordingly, a U.S. Holder that exchanges Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between (i) the sum of the fair market value of the Rayonier AM Shares (determined as of the Effective Date) and the U.S. dollar value of the amount of cash received in exchange for Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement and (ii) the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis (determined in U.S. dollars) in the Tembec Shares exchanged therefor. If a U.S. Holder acquired different blocks of Tembec Shares at different times and at different prices, any gain or loss, as well as the application of the passive foreign investment company ("**PFIC**") rules discussed below, will be determined separately with respect to each block of Tembec Shares surrendered. A U.S. Holder's initial tax basis in any Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement will be their fair market value (determined as of the Effective Date) and the U.S. Holder's holding period in any Rayonier AM shares will begin on the day immediately following the Effective Date.

The U.S. dollar value of cash consideration received in Canadian dollars generally should be determined by reference to the spot rate in effect on the date of sale by the U.S. Holder (which, while not free from doubt, Tembec believes should be the Effective Date), regardless of whether the cash consideration is in fact converted into U.S. dollars. If the Canadian dollars are converted into U.S. dollars, a U.S. Holder generally would have foreign currency exchange gain or loss if the U.S. dollar value received on the conversion differs from the U.S. dollar value of the Canadian dollars treated as received pursuant to the Arrangement. Any foreign currency exchange gain or loss generally will be treated as U.S.-source ordinary gain or loss for U.S. foreign tax credit purposes.

Subject to the following paragraph regarding possible foreign currency exchange gain or loss and the PFIC rules discussed below, any gain or loss on the disposition of Tembec Shares will be capital gain or loss, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder held the Tembec Shares for more than one year. Long-term capital gains recognized by U.S. Holders that are not corporations generally are eligible for reduced rates of U.S. federal income taxation. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

It is unclear whether, in the case of gain or loss from the disposition of common stock, any portion of such gain or loss attributable to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations between the date of acquisition and the date of disposition should be treated as foreign currency exchange gain or loss (taxable as ordinary gain or loss). Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding potential foreign currency exchange gain or loss from the disposition of Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement.

Tax Return Disclosure Requirements

U.S. Treasury regulations meant to require reporting of certain tax shelter transactions cover certain transactions generally not regarded as tax shelters, including certain foreign currency transactions giving rise to

losses in excess of certain minimum amounts. U.S. Holders that recognize a loss upon their disposition of Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement may be required to file a reportable transaction disclosure statement with the IRS pursuant to such regulations. U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors to determine their tax return disclosure obligations, if any, including any requirement to file IRS Form 8886 (Reportable Transaction Disclosure Statement), and the significant penalties for non-compliance with any such requirement.

PFIC Rules

Certain adverse consequences could apply to a U.S. Holder if Tembec has been a PFIC for any taxable year during which the U.S. Holder held any Tembec Shares. In general, Tembec would be considered a PFIC for any taxable year for which, after applying certain look through rules, either (a) at least 75% of its gross income is passive income or (b) at least 50% of the average quarterly value of its gross assets is attributable to assets that produce or are held for the production of passive income. For this purpose, "passive income" generally includes interest, dividends, rents, annuities, royalties, and certain gains, and "passive assets" include cash (even if held for use in an "active" business).

Tembec believes that it should not be treated as a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes for the current taxable year or for any prior taxable year. However, PFIC classification is factual in nature, will depend, among other things, on changes in the composition and relative value of a corporation's revenues, assets and activities and the fair market value of the corporation's outstanding equity in any year, and generally cannot be determined until after the close of the taxable year in question. There can be no assurance that Tembec is not and has not been a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder held or holds Tembec Shares.

If Tembec were treated as a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder held or holds Tembec Shares, any gain recognized by the U.S. Holder on the disposition of its Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement would be allocated ratably over the U.S. Holder's holding period for the Tembec Shares (whether or not Tembec continued to be a PFIC in any subsequent year and unless the U.S. Holder made a proper election to be taxed differently). The amounts allocated to the taxable year of the exchange and to any year before the first taxable year for which Tembec was a PFIC generally would be taxed as ordinary income in the current year. Amounts allocated to other taxable years would be subject to tax at the highest rate in effect for such category of U.S. Holder for each such taxable year, and an interest charge would be imposed on the tax liability for each such prior year as if such liability had actually been due in each such prior year.

U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors as to the possible PFIC status of Tembec and the consequences to them in their particular circumstances.

Ownership and Disposition of Rayonier AM Shares

Distributions on Rayonier AM Shares

Any future distributions on Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement generally will be treated as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent paid from Rayonier AM's current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. To the extent such distributions exceed Rayonier AM's current and accumulated earnings and profits, they will constitute a return of capital and will first reduce the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in its Rayonier AM Shares, but not below zero, and then will be treated as gain from the sale of stock, which will be taxable according to rules discussed under the heading "Sales or Other Dispositions of Rayonier AM Shares" below.

In the case of non-corporate U.S. Holders, dividend income generally is subject to tax at the same preferential rates as net long-term capital gains if certain requirements are satisfied. Corporate U.S. Holders generally will be entitled to claim the dividends received deduction with respect to dividends paid on Rayonier AM Shares, subject to applicable requirements.

Sales or Other Dispositions of Rayonier AM Shares

Generally, a U.S. Holder will recognize gain or loss on any sale or other disposition of Rayonier AM Shares received pursuant to the Arrangement, equal to the difference, if any, between the amount realized by the U.S. Holder on such disposition and the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the Rayonier AM Shares. Any gain or loss on such disposition will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder held the Rayonier AM Shares for more than one year. Long-term capital gains recognized by U.S. Holders that are not corporations generally are eligible for reduced rates of U.S. federal income taxation. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

Non-U.S. Holders

Exchange of Tembec Shares for Cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares

Generally, a Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on any gain recognized on the exchange of Tembec Shares for cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement, unless (i) the gain is effectively connected with the conduct by the Non-U.S. Holder of a trade or business in the United States or (ii) the Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of disposition and certain other conditions are met.

If a Non-U.S. Holder is described in clause (i) above, the Non-U.S. Holder generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its effectively connected income on a net basis in the same manner as if such Non-U.S. Holder were a U.S. Holder, unless an applicable income tax treaty provides otherwise. In addition, if a corporate Non-U.S. Holder is described in clause (i) above, it may be subject to a branch profits tax (on its effectively connected earnings and profits, subject to adjustments) at a 30% rate, unless an applicable income tax treaty provides otherwise. If a Non-U.S. Holder that is an individual is described in clause (ii) above, the individual generally will be subject to tax at a 30% rate (or lower applicable treaty rate) on the gain, which may be offset by certain U.S. capital losses.

Ownership and Disposition of Rayonier AM Shares

Distributions on Rayonier AM Shares

Any distributions on Rayonier AM Shares generally will be treated as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent paid from Rayonier AM's current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. To the extent such distributions exceed Rayonier AM's current and accumulated earnings and profits, they will constitute a return of capital and will first reduce a Non-U.S. Holder's basis in its Rayonier AM Shares, but not below zero, and then will be treated as gain from the sale of stock, which will be taxable according to rules discussed under the heading "Sales or Other Dispositions of Rayonier AM Shares" below. Any dividends paid to a Non-U.S. Holder with respect to Rayonier AM Shares generally will be subject to withholding tax (currently imposed at a 30% rate), subject to any exemption or lower rate under an applicable treaty if the Non-U.S. Holder provides a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN or Form W-8BEN-E (or other applicable form), or subject to an exemption if the Non-U.S. Holder provides a properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI (or other applicable form) relating to income effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business within the United States. Dividends that are effectively connected with the conduct of a Non-U.S. Holder's trade or business in the United States generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis in the same manner as if such Non-U.S. Holder were a U.S. Holder, unless an applicable income tax treaty provides otherwise. Any Non-U.S. Holder that is a corporation may also be subject to a branch profits tax (on its effectively connected earnings and profits, subject to adjustments) at a 30% rate, unless an applicable income tax treaty provides otherwise.

Sales or Other Dispositions of Rayonier AM Shares

This discussion assumes that Rayonier AM Shares will continue to be regularly traded on an established securities market. If Rayonier AM Shares cease to be regularly traded on an established securities market and Rayonier AM is or has been a "United States real property holding corporation" (a "USRPHC") for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any time during the five-year period ending on the date on which a Non-U.S. Holder sells or otherwise disposes of Rayonier AM Shares, adverse tax consequences may apply to such Non-U.S. Holder on such

disposition under the "FIRPTA" rules. Generally, a U.S. corporation is a USRPHC if at least 50% of the fair market value of all of its interests in real property and all of its other assets used or held for use in a trade or business consists of "U.S. real property interests". Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors as to the possible application of the FIRPTA rules to their disposition of Rayonier AM Shares.

Subject to the preceding paragraph, a Non-U.S. Holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on any gain recognized on the sale or other disposition of Rayonier AM Shares, unless (i) the gain is effectively connected with the conduct by the Non-U.S. Holder of a trade or business in the United States or (ii) the Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of disposition and certain other conditions are met.

If a Non-U.S. Holder is described in clause (i) above, the Non-U.S. Holder generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its effectively connected income on a net basis in the same manner as if such Non-U.S. Holder were a U.S. Holder. In addition, if a corporate Non-U.S. Holder falls under clause (i) above, it may be subject to a branch profits tax (on its effectively connected earnings and profits, subject to adjustments) at a 30% rate, unless an applicable income tax treaty provides otherwise. If a Non-U.S. Holder who is an individual is described in clause (ii) above, the individual generally will be subject to a flat 30% (or lower applicable treaty rate) tax on the gain derived from the sale or other disposition, which may be offset by certain U.S. capital losses.

FATCA Withholding and Reporting

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA") generally will impose withholding at a rate of 30% on dividends in respect of, and, after December 31, 2018, gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of, Rayonier AM Shares held by or through (including as an intermediary) certain foreign financial institutions (including investment funds), unless such institution enters into an agreement with the U.S. Department of the Treasury to report, on an annual basis, information with respect to interests in, and accounts maintained by, the institution to the extent such interests or accounts are held by certain U.S. persons and by certain non-U.S. entities that are wholly or partially owned by U.S. persons and to withhold on certain payments. An intergovernmental agreement between the United States and an applicable foreign country, or future Treasury regulations or other guidance, may modify these requirements. Accordingly, the entity through which Rayonier AM Shares are held will affect the determination of whether such withholding is required. Similarly, dividends in respect of, and, after December 31, 2018, gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of, Rayonier AM Shares held by or through (including as an intermediary) a non-financial non-U.S. entity that does not qualify under certain exemptions will be subject to withholding at a rate of 30%, unless such entity either (i) certifies to Rayonier AM that such entity does not have any "substantial United States owners" or (ii) provides certain information regarding the entity's "substantial United States owners", which Rayonier AM will in turn provide to the IRS. Holders are encouraged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the possible implications of FATCA on their ownership and disposition of Rayonier AM Shares.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

In general, information reporting requirements will apply with respect to proceeds received on the disposition of Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement, payments of distributions on Rayonier AM Shares and proceeds received on the sale or other disposition of Rayonier AM Shares. A holder may be subject to U.S. backup withholding tax on these payments (currently imposed at a rate of 28%) if the holder fails to provide its taxpayer identification number to the applicable withholding. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under backup withholding rules will be allowed as a credit against the holder's U.S. federal income tax liability (if any) and may entitle the holder to a refund, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS. Holders should consult their own tax advisors as to the information reporting and backup withholding tax rules.

THE PRECEDING DISCUSSION OF U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES IS FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY AND IS NOT LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE. EACH SHAREHOLDER IS ENCOURAGED TO CONSULT ITS OWN TAX ADVISOR AS TO PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES TO THEM OF THE ARRANGEMENT AND OF OWNING AND DISPOSING OF RAYONIER AM SHARES, INCLUDING THE APPLICABILITY AND EFFECT OF ANY U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL OR NON-U.S. TAX LAWS.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Rayonier AM intends to account for the acquisition of Tembec pursuant to the Arrangement as a business combination under U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, the consideration paid by Rayonier AM pursuant to the Arrangement will be allocated to net tangible and identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed from Tembec based on their respective fair values as of the completion of the acquisition. Any consideration in excess of those fair values will be recorded as goodwill.

The allocation of consideration reflected in the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial statements of Rayonier AM included in this Circular is based upon currency exchange rates and market prices for Rayonier AM Shares as of June 13, 2017 and Rayonier AM management's preliminary estimates and certain assumptions with respect to the fair value of the assets to be acquired and the liabilities to be assumed. The final allocation will be based on currency exchange rates and market prices for Rayonier AM Shares as of the completion of the Arrangement and a full and detailed valuation of the Tembec assets and liabilities to be completed with the assistance of an independent third party. Differences between preliminary assumptions and estimates used in preparing the unaudited *pro forma* combined financial statements of Rayonier AM and amounts determined in the final acquisition accounting will occur and could have a material impact on the Combined Company's future financial position and results of operations. The final allocation is expected to be completed as soon as practical but no later than 12 months following the completion of the acquisition.

RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors should be considered by Tembec Shareholders in evaluating whether to approve the Arrangement Resolution. These risk factors should be considered in conjunction with the other information contained in or incorporated by reference into this Circular. These risk factors relate to the Arrangement. For information on risks and uncertainties relating to the business of Tembec, see "Information Relating to Tembec – Risk Factors" and for information on risks and uncertainties relating to the business of Rayonier AM and the Rayonier AM Shares, see "Information Relating to Rayonier AM-Risk Factors".

Risks Related to the Arrangement

Because the market price of the Rayonier AM Shares and the Tembec Shares will fluctuate and the Exchange Ratio under the Per Share Stock Consideration is fixed, Tembec Shareholders cannot be certain of the market value of the Rayonier AM Shares they will receive for their Tembec Shares under the Arrangement.

The exchange ratio between Tembec Shares and Rayonier AM Shares included in the Per Share Stock Consideration, on a per-share basis, is fixed and will not increase or decrease due to fluctuations in the market price of Rayonier AM Shares or Tembec Shares. The market price of Rayonier AM Shares or Tembec Shares could each fluctuate significantly prior to the Effective Date in response to various factors and events, including, without limitation, the differences between Rayonier AM's and Tembec's actual financial or operating results and those expected by investors and analysts, changes in analysts' projections or recommendations, changes in general economic or market conditions, broad market fluctuations and changes in the currency exchange rate between the U.S. and Canadian dollar. As a result of such fluctuations, historical market prices are not indicative of future market prices or the market value of the Rayonier AM Shares that holders of Tembec Shares may receive on the Effective Date will equal or exceed the market value of the Tembec Shares held by such Shares may receive on the Effective Date. There can also be no assurance that the trading price of the Rayonier AM Shares will not decline following the completion of the Arrangement.

There can be no certainty that all conditions precedent to the Arrangement will be satisfied. Failure to complete the Arrangement could negatively impact the market price of the Tembec Shares.

The Arrangement is subject to certain conditions that may be outside the control of Tembec, including, without limitation, the receipt of the Final Order and the receipt of the Key Regulatory Approvals. There can be no certainty, nor can Tembec provide any assurance, that these conditions will be satisfied or, if satisfied, when they will be satisfied. If the Arrangement is not completed, the market price of the Tembec Shares may decline to the extent that the market price reflects a market assumption that the Arrangement will be completed. If the Arrangement is not completed and the Board decides to seek another merger or business combination, there can be no assurance that it will be able to find a party willing to pay consideration for the Tembec Shares that is equivalent to, or more attractive than, the Consideration payable pursuant to the Arrangement.

The Arrangement Agreement may be terminated by Rayonier AM in certain circumstances.

Each of Rayonier AM and Tembec have the right to terminate the Arrangement Agreement and the Arrangement in certain circumstances. Accordingly, there is no certainty, nor can Tembec provide any assurance, that the Arrangement Agreement will not be terminated by either Rayonier AM or Tembec before the completion of the Arrangement. See "The Arrangement Agreement – Termination of the Arrangement Agreement".

The completion of the Arrangement is subject to the receipt of Key Regulatory Approvals and requires Rayonier AM and Tembec to provide notice to or obtain the consent of certain provincial governments with respect to Tenures.

The completion of the Arrangement is subject to, among other things, the receipt of Key Regulatory Approvals and requires Rayonier AM and Tembec to provide notice to or obtain the consent of certain provincial governments with respect to Tenures in such provinces. The relevant governmental authorities may impose conditions for their approval of the Arrangement that could adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operations of the Combined Company and there can be no assurance that, following the Arrangement, the Combined Company will not experience a reduction in its allocated cutting rights under such provincial forestry legislation, each of which could adversely affect the Combined Company and the value of the Rayonier AM Shares.

Uncertainty surrounding the Arrangement could adversely affect Tembec's retention of customers, suppliers and personnel and could negatively impact Tembec's future business and operations.

Because the Arrangement is dependent upon satisfaction of certain conditions, its completion is subject to uncertainty. In response to this uncertainty, Tembec's customers and suppliers may delay or defer decisions concerning Tembec. Any change, delay or deferral of those decisions by customers and suppliers could have a material adverse effect on the business and operations of Tembec, regardless of whether the Arrangement is ultimately completed. Similarly, current and prospective employees of Tembec may experience uncertainty about their future roles with Rayonier AM until Rayonier AM's strategies with respect to Tembec are announced and executed. This may adversely affect Tembec's ability to attract or retain key management in the period until the Arrangement is completed.

The Termination Fee provided under the Arrangement Agreement may discourage other parties from attempting to acquire Tembec.

Under the Arrangement Agreement, Tembec would be required to pay a Termination Fee of \$20 million in the event the Arrangement Agreement is terminated in certain circumstances. This Termination Fee may discourage other parties from attempting to acquire Tembec Shares or otherwise make an Acquisition Proposal to Tembec, even if those parties would otherwise be willing to offer greater value to Tembec Shareholders than that offered by Rayonier AM under the Arrangement.

Canadian Resident Holders of Tembec Shares will realize a taxable disposition of their Tembec Shares as a result of the Arrangement.

For Canadian federal income tax purposes, the exchange of Tembec Shares for cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will be a fully taxable transaction to a Resident Shareholder (as defined under

"Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations – Holders Resident in Canada"). A Resident Shareholder will realize a capital gain to the extent that the sum of (a) the cash consideration received and (b) the fair market value at the Effective Time of the Rayonier AM Shares acquired by such Resident Shareholder on the exchange, net of any reasonable costs of the disposition, exceed the adjusted cost base to the Resident Shareholder of its Tembec Shares exchanged under the Arrangement. Depending on the form of consideration, in cash, Rayonier AM Shares, or a combination thereof, received by a Resident Shareholder, and the Resident Shareholder's particular circumstances, such Resident Shareholder may not receive sufficient cash in exchange for its Tembec Shares to pay the entirety of any resulting tax liability. Each Resident Shareholder should review the discussion in this Circular found at "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations" and consult its own tax advisor.

U.S. Holders of Tembec Shares will be engaging in a taxable exchange as a result of the Arrangement.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the exchange of Tembec Shares for cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares pursuant to the Arrangement will be a fully taxable transaction to U.S. Holders (as defined under "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations") without regard to whether the U.S. Holder receives cash, Rayonier AM Shares, or a combination thereof. If the U.S. dollar value of the amount of cash plus the fair market value of Rayonier AM Shares (determined as of the Effective Date) received by a U.S. Holder in the Arrangement exceeds the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in its Tembec Shares surrendered in the Arrangement, such U.S. Holder will recognize gain in an amount equal to such excess. Depending on the form of consideration (whether in cash, Rayonier AM Shares, or a combination thereof) received by a U.S. Holder, such U.S. Holder may not receive sufficient cash in exchange for its Tembec Shares to pay the entirety of any resulting tax liability. In addition, if Tembec were classified as a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes for any time prior to consummation of the Arrangement during which a U.S. Holder held Tembec Shares, such U.S. Holder may be subject to adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences on the exchange of its Tembec Shares pursuant to the Arrangement (see "Risk Factors" - Tembec may be or may have been classified as a PFIC for United States federal income tax purposes, which could result in adverse United States federal income tax consequences to U.S. Holders of Tembec Shares"). Each U.S. Holder should review the discussion in this Circular found at "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations" and consult its own tax advisor.

Tembec may be or may have been classified as a PFIC for United States federal income tax purposes, which could result in adverse United States federal income tax consequences to U.S. Holders of Tembec Shares.

If Tembec is treated as a PFIC for any taxable year (or portion thereof) that is included in the holding period of a U.S. Holder (as defined under "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations") of Tembec Shares, certain adverse consequences could apply to the U.S. Holder in respect of gain recognized on the Arrangement. Tembec would be considered a PFIC for any taxable year in which, after applying certain look through rules, either at least 75% of its gross income is passive income or at least 50% of the average quarterly value of all of its gross assets for the taxable year produce or are held for the production of passive income. Based on current assets and activities and on assumptions about activities during the balance of the current taxable year, Tembec does not expect that it will be a PFIC for the current taxable year or that it was a PFIC in its taxable year ending September 24, 2016. The determination of PFIC status is, however, complex and Tembec has not done a complete analysis of the relevant facts and issues for any of these periods, and therefore there is substantial uncertainty as to Tembec's PFIC status and history. In addition, PFIC classification is factual in nature, generally cannot be determined until the close of the taxable year in question, and is determined annually. Moreover, Tembec has not requested or received an opinion from its United States tax counsel as to whether it was a PFIC in past taxable years or will be determined to be a PFIC in the current taxable year. There can be no assurance that Tembec was not and has not been a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder held or holds Tembec Shares. U.S. Holders of Tembec Shares should consult their own tax advisors regarding the possible application of the PFIC rules. See the discussion in the section entitled "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations - U.S. Holders - U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences Relating to the Arrangement – PFIC Rules".

Risks Related to the Combined Company

Rayonier AM and Tembec may not integrate successfully.

The Arrangement will involve the integration of companies that previously operated independently. As a result, the combination will present challenges to management, including the integration of the operations, systems and personnel of the two companies, and special risks, including possible unanticipated liabilities, unanticipated costs, diversion of management's attention and the loss of key employees.

The difficulties management encounters in the transition and integration processes could have an adverse effect on the revenues, level of expenses and operating results of the Combined Company. As a result of these factors, it is possible that any benefits expected from the combination will not be realized.

The provisions in Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation, its by-laws and Delaware law could delay or deter tender offers or takeover attempts that may offer a premium for Rayonier AM Shares.

Certain provisions in Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation, its by-laws and Delaware law could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of Rayonier AM without the cooperation of Rayonier AM's board of directors. These provisions include:

- the ability of Rayonier AM's directors to issue preferred shares with rights as they deem appropriate without stockholder approval;
- a provision that does not permit stockholders to cumulate votes in the election of directors;
- a provision that the number of directors on Rayonier AM's board of directors is fixed exclusively by Rayonier AM's board of directors;
- a provision that any vacancies created in Rayonier AM's board of directors resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors or the death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause will be filled by a majority of Rayonier AM's board of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum is present, or by a sole remaining director;
- the classification of Rayonier AM's board of directors into three classes serving staggered threeyear terms which makes it more difficult to quickly replace board members;
- a provision that Rayonier AM's stockholders may only remove Rayonier AM's directors for cause by the affirmative vote of at least 80% of its voting stock then outstanding;
- a provision that Rayonier AM's stockholders must comply with advance notice provisions to bring director nominations or other matters before meetings of Rayonier AM's stockholders;
- a provision that special meetings of stockholders may only be called by the Chairman of Rayonier AM's board of directors or the board of directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the entire board of directors;
- a prohibition against action by written consent of Rayonier AM's stockholders;
- a provision that certain provisions of Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation relating to the number, term and removal of its directors, the ability of the board to issue preferred stock, the filling of board vacancies, the calling of special meetings of stockholders, stockholder action by written consent and director and officer indemnification require the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of Rayonier AM's voting stock then outstanding to be amended;

- a provision that certain provisions of Rayonier AM"s bylaws relating to the number, term and removal of Rayonier AM's directors, the filling of board vacancies, the calling of special meetings of stockholders, stockholder action by written consent and director and officer indemnification require the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of Rayonier AM's voting stock then outstanding to be amended; and
- a prohibition pursuant to Section 203 of the DGCL of the corporation from engaging in a "business combination" with an "interested stockholder" for a period of three years following the time the Person became an interested stockholder, unless the business combination or the acquisition of shares that resulted in a stockholder becoming an interested stockholder is approved in a prescribed manner.

See "Information Relating to Rayonier AM – Description of Capital Stock" and "Appendix J – Comparison of Rights of Tembec Shareholders and Rayonier AM Stockholders".

The unaudited pro forma combined financial statements are presented for illustrative purposes only and may not be an indication of the Combined Company's financial condition or results of operations following the Arrangement.

The pro forma combined financial statements contained in this Circular are presented for illustrative purposes only and may not be an indication of the Combined Company's financial condition or results of operations following the Arrangement for several reasons. For example, the pro forma combined financial statements have been derived from the historical financial statements of Rayonier AM and Tembec and certain assumptions have been made regarding the value of the consideration payable by Rayonier AM in the Arrangement (which will be affected by both the exchange rate between Canadian dollars and U.S. dollars and the market price of Rayonier AM Shares as of the completion of the Arrangement), the allocation of that value to the assets to be acquired and liabilities to be assumed by Rayonier AM (which will not be finally determined until after the completion of the Arrangement), and various other matters. The information upon which these assumptions have been made is historical, preliminary and subject to change. Moreover, the pro forma combined financial statements do not reflect all costs that are expected to be incurred by the Combined Company in connection with the Arrangement. For example, the impact of any incremental costs incurred in integrating Rayonier AM and Tembec is not reflected in the pro forma combined financial statements. In addition, the assumptions used in preparing the pro forma combined financial information may not prove to be accurate, and other factors may affect the Combined Company's financial condition or results of operations following the Arrangement. The Rayonier AM's share price may be adversely affected if the actual results of the Combined Company fall short of the pro forma combined financial statements contained in this Circular. See "Information Relating to the Combined Company - Selected Unaudited Pro forma Financial Information" and the Unaudited Pro forma Combined Financial Statements of Rayonier AM attached as Appendix B to this Circular.

The Combined Company's indebtedness following completion of the Arrangement will be substantial. This indebtedness could adversely affect the Combined Company's business and its ability to meet its obligations.

The Combined Company's indebtedness following completion of the Arrangement could have adverse consequences for the Combined Company's business, including:

- requiring a substantial portion of the Combined Company's cash flows from operations to make interest payments on its debt;
- making it more difficult to satisfy debt service and other obligations;
- increasing the risk of a future credit ratings downgrade of the Combined Company's debt, which could increase future debt costs and limit the future availability of debt financing;
- increasing the Combined Company's vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;

- reducing the cash flows available to fund capital expenditures and other corporate purposes and to grow the Combined Company's business;
- limiting the Combined Company's flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business and the industry;
- placing the Combined Company at a competitive disadvantage to its competitors that may not be as highly leveraged with debt; and
- limiting the Combined Company's ability to borrow additional funds as needed or take advantage of business opportunities as they arise, pay cash dividends or repurchase common stock.

To the extent the Combined Company incurs additional indebtedness, the risks described above could increase. In addition, the Combined Company's actual cash requirements in the future may be greater than expected. The Combined Company's cash flows from operations may not be sufficient to repay all of the outstanding debt as it becomes due, and the Combined Company may not be able to borrow money, sell assets or otherwise raise funds on acceptable terms, or at all, to refinance its debt.

The Rayonier AM Shares to be received by Tembec Shareholders as a result of the Arrangement will have different rights from the Tembec Shares

Rayonier AM is a Delaware corporation. Tembec is a company incorporated and exiting under the CBCA. Upon completion of the Arrangement, Tembec Shareholders will become Rayonier AM Shareholders and their rights as stockholders will be governed by the Rayonier AM certificate of incorporation, by-laws and Delaware Law. Certain of the rights associated with Rayonier AM Shares under Delaware Law are different from the rights associated with Tembec Shares under the CBCA.

Enforcement of Rights Against the Combined Company in Canada

Rayonier AM is located outside Canada and, following the Effective Time, the majority of its directors, officers and experts are expected to reside outside of Canada. Accordingly, it may not be possible for Rayonier AM Shareholders to effect service of process within Canada upon the Combined Company or the majority of its directors, officers or experts, or to enforce judgments obtained in Canadian courts against the Combined Company or the majority of its directors, officers or experts.

RIGHTS OF DISSENTING SHAREHOLDERS

If you are a Registered Shareholder holding Tembec Shares, you are entitled to exercise Dissent Rights in the manner provided in Section 190 of the CBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order.

This section summarizes the provisions of Section 190 of the CBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order. If you are a Registered Shareholder holding Tembec Shares and wish to exercise Dissent Rights, you should obtain your own legal advice and carefully read the provisions of the Plan of Arrangement, the provisions of Section 190 of the CBCA and the Interim Order, which are attached at Appendix D, Appendix I and Appendix F, respectively.

Anyone who is a beneficial owner of Tembec Shares registered in the name of an intermediary and who wishes to exercise Dissent Rights should be aware that only Registered Shareholders holding Tembec Shares are entitled to exercise Dissent Rights. A Registered Shareholder who holds Tembec Shares as intermediary for one or more beneficial owners, one or more of whom wish to exercise Dissent Rights, must exercise such Dissent Rights on behalf of such holder(s). In such case, the Dissent Notice should specify the number and class of Dissent Shares. A Dissenting Shareholder may only dissent with respect to all the Tembec Shares held on behalf of any one beneficial owner and registered in the name of the Dissenting Shareholder. Registered Shareholders holding Tembec Shares who exercise Dissent Rights as set out in the CBCA as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order will be deemed to have transferred their Dissent Shares to Rayonier AM, or Rayonier AM Sub, as applicable, free and clear of any Liens, as of the Effective Date, and if they:

- (a) ultimately are entitled to be paid fair value for their Dissent Shares, will be entitled to be paid the fair value of such Dissent Shares and will not be entitled to any other payment or consideration (including any payment that would be payable under the Arrangement had they not exercised their Dissent Rights). There can be no assurance that a Dissenting Shareholder will receive consideration for its Dissent Shares of equal value to the Consideration that such Dissenting Shareholder would have received under the Arrangement; or
- (b) are ultimately not entitled, for any reason, to be paid fair value for their Dissent Shares, will be deemed to have participated in the Arrangement and to have transferred their Tembec Shares to Rayonier AM, or Rayonier AM Sub, as applicable, in exchange for the Per Share Cash Amount.

A Registered Shareholder holding Tembec Shares who wishes to exercise Dissent Rights must ensure that a Dissent Notice is received by the Corporate Secretary of Tembec at its office located at 100-4 Place Ville-Marie, Montreal, Québec, H3B 2E7 on or prior to 5:00 p.m. (Eastern time) two Business Days immediately preceding the date of the Meeting (as it may be adjourned or postponed from time to time). It is important that Tembec Shareholders holding Tembec Shares strictly comply with this requirement, which is different from the statutory dissent provisions of the CBCA which would permit a Dissent Notice to be provided at or prior to the Meeting.

The filing of a Dissent Notice does not deprive a Registered Shareholder holding Tembec Shares of the right to vote at the Meeting; however, a Registered Shareholder holding Tembec Shares who has submitted a Dissent Notice and who votes in favour of the Arrangement Resolution will no longer be considered a Dissenting Shareholder with respect to Tembec Shares voted in favour of the Arrangement Resolution. If such Dissenting Shareholder votes in favour of the Arrangement Resolution in respect of a portion of the Tembec Shares registered in his, her or its name and held by same on behalf of any one beneficial owner, such vote approving the Arrangement Resolution will be deemed to apply to the entirety of the Tembec Shares held by such Dissenting Shareholder in the name of that beneficial owner, given that Section 190 of the CBCA provides there is no right of partial dissent. A vote against the Arrangement Resolution will not constitute a Dissent Notice.

Within 10 days after the approval of the Arrangement Resolution, Tembec is required to notify each Dissenting Shareholder that the Arrangement Resolution has been approved. Such notice is not required to be sent to a Registered Shareholder holding Tembec Shares who voted for the Arrangement Resolution or who has withdrawn a Dissent Notice previously filed.

A Dissenting Shareholder must, within 20 days after the Dissenting Shareholder receives notice that the Arrangement Resolution has been approved or, if the Dissenting Shareholder does not receive such notice, within 20 days after the Dissenting Shareholder learns that the Arrangement Resolution has been approved, send a demand for payment containing the Dissenting Shareholder's name and address, the number of Dissent Shares held by the Dissenting Shareholder, and a demand for payment of the fair value of such Dissent Shares. Within 30 days after sending a demand for payment, the Dissenting Shareholder must send to the Secretary Corporate Secretary of Tembec at 100-4 Place Ville-Marie, Montreal, Québec, H3B 2E7, or to Computershare Investor Services Inc. located at 100 University Avenue, 9th Floor, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2YI, the certificates representing the Dissent Shares forfeits its right to make a claim under Section 190 of the CBCA. Tembec or Computershare Investor Services Inc. will endorse on Tembec Share certificates received from a Dissenting Shareholder a notice that the holder is a Dissenting Shareholder under Section 190 of the CBCA and will forthwith return the Tembec Share certificates to the Dissenting Shareholder.

On the filing of a demand for payment (and in any event upon the Effective Date), a Dissenting Shareholder ceases to have any rights in respect of its Dissent Shares, other than the right to be paid the fair value of its Dissent Shares as determined pursuant to Section 190 of the CBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order, except where, prior to the date at which the Arrangement becomes effective: (i) the Dissenting

Shareholder withdraws its demand for payment before Tembec makes an offer to pay to the Dissenting Shareholder; (ii) an offer to pay is not made and the Dissenting Shareholder withdraws its demand for payment; or (iii) the Board revokes the Arrangement Resolution, in which case Tembec will reinstate the Dissenting Shareholder's rights in respect of its Dissent Shares as of the date the demand for payment was sent. Pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement, in no case will Rayonier AM, Rayonier AM Sub, Tembec or any other Person be required to recognize any Dissenting Shareholder as a Shareholder after the Effective Date, and the names of such Shareholders will be deleted from the list of Registered Shareholders at the Effective Date. In addition to any other restrictions under Section 190 of the CBCA, none of the following shall be entitled to exercise Dissent Rights: (i) holders of DSUs, and (ii) holders of Tembec Shares who vote or have instructed a proxyholder to vote such Tembec Shares in favour of the Arrangement Resolution.

No later than 7 days after the later of the Effective Date and the date on which a demand for payment of a Dissenting Shareholder is received, as applicable, each Dissenting Shareholder who has sent a demand for payment must be sent a written offer to pay for its Dissent Shares in an amount considered by the Board to be the fair value thereof, accompanied by a statement showing how the fair value was determined. Every offer to pay in respect of Tembec Shares must be on the same terms as every other offer to pay in respect of Tembec Shares.

Payment for the Dissent Shares of a Dissenting Shareholder must be made within 10 days after an offer to pay has been accepted by a Dissenting Shareholder, but any such offer to pay lapses if an acceptance thereof is not received within 30 days after the offer to pay has been made. If an offer to Pay for the Dissent Shares of a Dissenting Shareholder is not made, or if a Dissenting Shareholder fails to accept an offer to pay that has been made, an application to a court to fix a fair value for the Dissent Shares of Dissenting Shareholders may be made within 50 days after the Effective Date or within such further period as a court may allow.

If no such application is made, a Dissenting Shareholder may apply to the Court for the same purpose within a further period of 20 days or within such further period as a court may allow. A Dissenting Shareholder is not required to give security for costs in such an application.

Upon an application to the Court, all Dissenting Shareholders whose Dissent Shares have not been purchased will be joined as parties and bound by the decision of the court, and each affected Dissenting Shareholder shall be notified of the date, place and consequences of the application and of their right to appear and be heard in person or by counsel. Upon any such application to the Court, the Court may determine whether any other Person is a Dissenting Shareholder who should be joined as a party, and the court will then fix a fair value for the Dissent Shares of all such Dissenting Shareholders. The final order of the Court will be rendered against Tembec in favour of each Dissenting Shareholder joined as a party and for the amount of the Dissent Shares as fixed by the Court. The Court may, in its discretion, allow a reasonable rate of interest on the amount payable to each such Dissenting Shareholder from the Effective Date until the date of payment. Any judicial determination of fair value will result in delay of receipt by a Dissenting Shareholder of consideration for such Dissenting Shareholder's Dissent Shares.

The above is only a summary of the provisions of the CBCA pertaining to Dissent Rights, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order, which are technical and complex. If you are a Shareholder holding Tembec Shares and wish to directly or indirectly exercise Dissent Rights, you should seek your own legal advice as failure to strictly comply with the provisions of the CBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement and the Interim Order, may prejudice your Dissent Rights.

INTERESTS OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed in this Circular or the documents incorporated by reference herein, within the three years prior to the date of this Circular, no insider of Tembec, director or associate or affiliate of any insider or director, has or had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction or proposed transaction which has materially affected or could materially affect Tembec or any of its Subsidiaries.

INTERESTS OF EXPERTS OF TEMBEC AND RAYONIER AM

The following Persons and companies have prepared certain sections of this Circular and/or appendices attached hereto as described below, or are named as having prepared or certified a report, statement or opinion in or incorporated by reference in this Circular.

Name of Expert	Nature of Relationship
Scotia Capital Inc.	Authors responsible for the preparation of the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion
National Bank Financial Inc.	Authors responsible for the preparation of the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion
KPMG LLP	Auditors of Tembec
Grant Thornton LLP	Current auditors of Rayonier AM
Ernst & Young LLP	Former auditors of Rayonier AM

Notes:

(1) To the knowledge of Tembec, none of the experts so named (or any of the designated professionals thereof) held securities representing more than 1% of all issued and outstanding Tembec Shares as at the date of the statement, report or valuation in question, and none of the persons above is or is expected to be elected, appointed or employed as a director, officer or employee of Tembec or of any associate or affiliate of Tembec.

(2) KPMG LLP has advised Tembec that it is independent within the meaning of the relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies in Canada and any applicable legislation or regulation. Note (1) is not intended to apply to KPMG LLP.

(3) Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, reports that they are independent of Rayonier AM in accordance with the applicable rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Ernst & Young LLP are the former auditors of Rayonier AM who audited the 2015 financial statements. They have advised Rayonier AM that, during their audit engagement period, they were independent with respect to Rayonier AM within the meaning of the applicable rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Note (1) is not intended to apply to Ernst & Young LLP or to Grant Thornton LLP.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to Tembec may be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. Financial information is provided in Tembec's audited consolidated financial statements and management's discussion and analysis for the most recently completed financial year. Tembec Shareholders may also contact the Corporate Secretary of Tembec at 100-4 Place Ville-Marie, Montreal, Québec, H3B 2E7 to request copies of Tembec's consolidated financial statements and MD&A.

Rayonier AM files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any of this information at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 or 202-942-8090 for further information on the public reference room. The SEC also maintains an Internet website that contains reports, proxy statements and other information regarding issuers, including Rayonier AM, who file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is www.sec.gov.

APPROVAL OF THE BOARD

The contents and the sending of this Circular have been approved by the Board.

DATED this 13th day of June, 2017.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

fames V continenza

James V. Continenza Chairman

CONSENT OF SCOTIA CAPITAL

To: The Board of Directors of Tembec

We hereby consent to the reference to our firm name and to our opinion dated May 24, 2017 under "Questions and Answers About the Meeting and the Arrangement", "Summary – Reasons for the Recommendation of the Board", "Summary – Fairness Opinions", "The Arrangement – Background to the Arrangement", "The Arrangement – Reasons for the Recommendation", "The Arrangement – Fairness Opinions – Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion" and "Interests of Experts of Tembec and Rayonier AM" and to the inclusion of the Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion as Appendix G to this Circular. In providing such consent, we do not intend that any person other than the Board of Directors of Tembec rely upon such opinion.

Montreal, Québec June 13, 2017

Scotia Capital luc.

SCOTIA CAPITAL INC.

CONSENT OF NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL

To: The Special Committee of the Board of Directors of Tembec

We hereby consent to the reference to our firm name and to our opinion dated May 24, 2017 under "Questions and Answers About the Meeting and the Arrangement", "Summary – Reasons for the Recommendation of the Board", "Summary – Fairness Opinions", "The Arrangement – Background to the Arrangement", "The Arrangement – Reasons for the Recommendation", "The Arrangement – Fairness Opinions – National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion" and "Interests of Experts of Tembec and Rayonier AM" and to the inclusion of the National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion as Appendix H to this Circular. In providing such consent, we do not intend that any person other than the Special Committee of the Board of Directors of Tembec rely upon such opinion.

Montreal, Québec June 13, 2017

National Bank Sinarcial Sne.

NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL INC.

APPENDIX A GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS

The following terms used in this Circular, including without limitation the Notice of Special Meeting of Tembec Shareholders, have the meanings set forth below:

"**2012 IQ Loan Agreement**" means the *Offre de prêt* (Loan Offer) (File D129013) entered into on March 9, 2012, between Investissement Québec, Tembec, Tembec Industries Inc. and Tembec Energy L.P., as amended prior to May 24, 2017.

"**2013 IQ Loan Agreement**" means the *Offre de prêt* (Loan Offer) (File D135683) entered into on September 6, 2013, between Investissement Québec, Tembec, Tembec Industries Inc. and Tembec Energy L.P., as amended prior to May 24, 2017.

"Acquisition Proposal" any oral or written inquiry, proposal, indication of interest or offer, whether or not conditional and whether or not withdrawn, (i) for a merger, amalgamation, consolidation, arrangement, share exchange, liquidation, dissolution, recapitalization or other business combination or similar transaction that would result in any Person, directly or indirectly, beneficially owning 20% or more of any class of equity securities of Tembec, (ii) for the issuance, sale or other disposition, directly or indirectly, to any Person of securities that represent 20% or more of the total voting power of Tembec, (iii) to acquire, directly or indirectly, assets (including equity securities of any Subsidiary of Tembec) that represent 20% or more of the total consolidated assets of Tembec, (iv) for a tender offer or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in any Person, directly or indirectly or more of the total consolidated assets of Tembec, (iv) for a tender offer or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in any Person, directly or indirectly, beneficially owning 20% or more of any class of equity securities of Tembec, or (v) any combination of the foregoing, in each case other than the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement.

"Adverse Notice" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "The Arrangement Agreement – Covenants – Tembec Non-Solicitation".

"Adverse Recommendation Change" means if the Board (A) withdraws (or modifies in a manner adverse to Rayonier AM), the Board Recommendation (it being understood that taking a neutral position or no position with respect to an Acquisition Proposal for a period not exceeding five Business Days shall not be considered an changed in recommendation), (B) fails to reaffirm, without qualification, within five Business Days after Rayonier AM requests in writing that such action be taken, or (C) approves, adopts or recommends, or proposes publicly to approve, adopt or recommend, any Acquisition Proposal.

"affiliate" has the meaning ascribed thereto in NI 45-106, except when such term is used under the headings "Summary – United States Securities Law Matters" and "Regulatory Matters – United States Securities Law Matters – Resale of Rayonier AM Shares Received Pursuant to the Arrangement".

"allowable capital loss" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations – Holders Resident in Canada – Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses".

"AML" means the Anti-Monopoly Law of the People's Republic of China.

"Antitrust Law" means any Law that is designed or intended to prohibit, restrict or regulate actions having the purpose or effect of monopolization or restraint of trade or eliminating, restricting or lessening of competition (including the HSR Act, the Competition Act, the German Act Against Restraints on Competition, the Anti-Monopoly Law of the People's Republic of China and similar Laws).

"**Application for Review**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Regulatory Matters – Other Regulatory Matters – Investment Canada Act".

"Arrangement" means the arrangement of Tembec under Section 192 of the CBCA on the terms and subject to the conditions set out in the Plan of Arrangement, subject to any amendments or variations thereto made in accordance with the terms of the Arrangement Agreement or the Plan of Arrangement or made at the direction of the Court in the Final Order.

"Arrangement Agreement" means the arrangement agreement dated as of May 24, 2017 between Tembec and Rayonier AM, as may be amended, varied or supplemented from time to time.

"Arrangement Resolution" means the special resolution of the Tembec Shareholders approving the Arrangement to be considered at the Meeting substantially in the form attached as Appendix C to this Circular.

"Articles of Arrangement" means the articles of arrangement of Tembec in respect of the Arrangement, required by the CBCA to be sent to the Director after the Final Order is made by the Court, which shall include the Plan of Arrangement and otherwise be in a form and substance satisfactory to Tembec and Rayonier AM, each acting reasonably, subject to any amendments or variations thereto made with the consent of Tembec and Rayonier AM, each acting reasonably.

"Board" means the board of directors of Tembec as the same is constituted from time to time.

"**Board Recommendation**" means the unanimous determination of the Board (without any abstention), after consultation with its legal and financial advisors, that the Arrangement is in the best interests of Tembec and is fair to the Tembec Shareholders and the unanimous recommendation of the Board (without any abstention) to the Tembec Shareholders that they vote in favour of the Arrangement Resolution.

"BofA Merrill Lynch" means Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated.

"Broadridge" means Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc.

"**Business Day**" means any day on which banks are not required or authorized to close in the State of Florida, U.S.A., and the Province of Québec, Canada.

"Cahill" means Cahill Gordon & Reindel LLP.

"**Cash Consideration Number**" means the product (rounded up to the nearest whole share) of (i) 0.633 and (ii) the total number of Tembec Shares issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (excluding the Tembec Shares owned, directly or indirectly, by Rayonier AM), as adjusted pursuant to Section 4.2(d) of the Plan of Arrangement.

"Cash Electing Share" means a Tembec Share to be exchanged for the Per Share Cash Amount.

"**Cash Election Number**" means the aggregate number of the Tembec Shares for which Tembec Shareholders have elected to receive the Per Share Cash Amount pursuant to Section 4.1 of the Plan of Arrangement.

"CBCA" means the *Canada Business Corporations Act*, as amended, including the regulations promulgated thereunder.

"CDS" means CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc.

"**Certificate of Arrangement**" means the certificate of arrangement issued by the Director pursuant to Section 192(7) of the CBCA in respect of the Articles of Arrangement.

"**Circular**" means the notice of the Meeting and this accompanying management information circular, including all schedules, appendices and exhibits thereto, and information incorporated by reference herein, to be sent to the Tembec Shareholders in connection with the Meeting, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

"Code" means the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Combined Company" means Rayonier AM after completion of the Arrangement.

"**Commissioner**" means the Commissioner of Competition appointed under subsection 7(1) of the Competition Act and includes any Person designated by the Commissioner to act on his behalf.

"**Commitment Letter**" means that certain amended and restated letter agreement and a corresponding amended and restated fee letter, both dated June 12, 2017 (together with all exhibits, annexes and schedules thereto), evidencing the commitment of Bank of America, N.A., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Suntrust Bank and Suntrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. to provide Rayonier AM with debt financing, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.

"**Competition Act**" means the *Competition Act* (Canada) and regulations made thereunder, as now in effect and as they may be promulgated or amended from time to time.

"**Competition Act Approval**" means any of: (a) the issuance of advance ruling certificate issued by the Commissioner pursuant to subsection 102(1) of the Competition Act with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement; (b) Rayonier AM and Tembec have given the notice under Section 114 of the Competition Act with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement and the applicable waiting period under Section 123 of the Competition Act has expired or has been terminated in accordance with the Competition Act; or (c) the obligation to give the requisite notice with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement has been waived pursuant to Paragraph 113(c) of the Competition Act, provided that in the case of (b) or (c), Rayonier AM has been advised in writing by the Commissioner that he does not, at that time, intend to make an application under Section 92 of the Competition Act in respect of the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement.

"**Competition Tribunal**" means the Competition Tribunal established under the *Competition Tribunal Act* (Canada).

"Computershare" means Computershare Trust Company of Canada.

"**Confidentiality Agreement**" means the Mutual Non-Disclosure Agreement between Tembec and Rayonier AM dated April 25, 2016, as amended.

"**Consideration**" means the consideration to be received by the Tembec Shareholders pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement consisting of, for each Tembec Share, at the election of the holder thereof, the Per Share Cash Amount or the Per Share Stock Consideration on the basis set out in the Plan of Arrangement, subject to proration in accordance with the Plan of Arrangement.

"**Consideration Cash Value**" means the sum of (a) the product of (i) the Per Share Cash Amount multiplied by (ii) 0.633 plus (b) the product of (i) the Exchange Ratio multiplied by (ii) 0.367 multiplied by (iii) the Rayonier AM Common Share VWAP.

"**Contract**" means any written or oral agreement, contract, obligation, promise, commitment, loan or credit agreement, employment or severance agreement, note, mortgage, bond, indenture, lease, benefit plan, permit, franchise, license or other instrument, understanding, undertaking or arrangement.

"Court" means the Superior Court of Québec.

"CRA" means the Canada Revenue Agency.

"**Depositary**" means Computershare Trust Company of Canada, in its capacity as depositary for the Tembec Shares under the Arrangement.

"DGCL" means the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

"Director" means the Director of companies appointed under Section 260 of the CBCA.

"Director DSUs" means share units granted pursuant to Tembec's Director DSU Plan.

"Director DSU Plan" means Tembec's Share Unit Plan for Non-Executive Directors, as amended from time to time.

"**Dissent Notice**" means a written objection to the Arrangement Resolution provided by a Dissenting Shareholder in accordance with the dissent procedure set out under Article 5 of the Plan of Arrangement.

"Dissent Rights" means the rights of dissent in respect of the Arrangement described in the Plan of Arrangement.

"**Dissent Shares**" means Tembec Shares held by a Dissenting Shareholder and in respect of which the Dissenting Shareholder has validly exercised Dissent Rights.

"**Dissenting Shareholder**" means a Registered Shareholder who validly dissents in respect of the Arrangement in strict compliance with the procedure for exercising Dissent Rights and does not withdraw such dissent prior to the Effective Time.

"DOJ" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Regulatory Matters – Other Regulatory Matters – HSR Act".

"DSUs" means, collectively, the Employee DSUs, Employee PCSUs, Employee Performance DSUs and Director DSUs.

"Effective Date" means the date upon which the Arrangement becomes effective, as set out on the Certificate of Arrangement giving effect to the Arrangement.

"Effective Time" means 12:01 a.m., Eastern Time, on the Effective Date or such other time as agreed to by Rayonier AM and Tembec in writing.

"Election Deadline" means 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on the Business Day which is three business days preceding the Effective Date, at least two Business Days prior notice of which Tembec has given by means of press release disseminated on a newswire.

"**Employee DSUs**" means non-performance deferred share units granted pursuant to Part A of the Employee DSU Plan.

"Employee DSU Plan" means the Tembec Long-Term Equity Based Plan for Executives and Key Employees, as amended from time to time.

"**Employee PCSUs**" means performance-conditioned share units granted pursuant to Part B of the Employee DSU Plan.

"**Employee Performance DSUs**" means performance-conditioned deferred share units granted pursuant to Part A of the Employee DSU Plan.

"Exchange Ratio" means 0.2302 of a validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable Rayonier AM Share.

"Executives" means the following officers of Tembec: James Lopez (President and Chief Executive Officer), Michel Dumas (Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer), Chris Black (Executive Vice President, Forest Products, Pulp and Paper), Christian Ribeyrolle (Executive Vice President, Specialty Cellulose and President, Tembec France SAS), Linda Coates (Vice President, Human Resources and Corporate Affairs), Paul Dottori (Vice President, Environment, Engineering and Procurement), Patrick LeBel (Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary) and Marcus Moeltner (Vice President, Business Development).

"FATCA" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations – FATCA Withholding and Reporting".

"FCO" means the Federal Cartel Office of Germany.

"**Final Order**" means the final order of the Court pursuant to Section 192 of the CBCA approving the Arrangement, as such order may be amended by the Court at any time prior to the Effective Time or, if appealed, then, unless such appeal is withdrawn or denied, as affirmed or as amended on appeal.

"Financing" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "The Arrangement Agreement – Covenants – Rayonier AM Financing".

"Former Tembec" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Information Relating to Tembec".

"FTC" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Regulatory Matters - Other Regulatory Matters - HSR Act".

"Governmental Antitrust Entity" means any federal, state, local or foreign court or other Governmental Entity with jurisdiction over enforcement of any applicable Antitrust Laws.

"Governmental Entity" means any international, multinational, national, federal, provincial, state, municipal, local or foreign governmental authority (including, with respect to France, any regional or departmental direction of a ministry and any independent administrative authority), any instrumentality, subdivision, court, tribunal, administrative agency or commission or other authority thereof, any quasi-governmental or private body exercising any executive, regulatory, judicial, administrative, taxing, importing or other governmental or quasi-governmental authority, or any stock exchange.

"Holder" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations".

"Houlihan Lokey" means Houlihan Lokey Capital Inc.

"HSR Act" means the United States Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended from time to time.

"IESO" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Regulatory Matters – Other Regulatory Matters – Additional Consents".

"IFRS" means International Financial Reporting Standards.

"**Indemnified Person**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "The Arrangement – Interests of Certain Persons in the Arrangement – Insurance and Indemnification of Directors and Officers".

"**Interim Order**" means the interim order of the Court made in connection with the Arrangement and providing for, among other things, the calling and holding of the Meeting, as the same may be amended, supplemented or varied by the Court, a copy of which is attached as Appendix F to this Circular.

"Investment Canada Act" means the *Investment Canada Act* (Canada) and regulations made thereunder, as now in effect and as they may be promulgated or amended from time to time.

"**Investment Canada Act Approval**" means that the Minister has sent a notice to Rayonier AM stating that the Minister is satisfied that the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement are likely to be of net benefit to Canada, or the Minister has been deemed in accordance with the Investment Canada Act to be satisfied that the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement are likely to be of net benefit to Canada.

"**IQ Warrant**" means each warrant to purchase Tembec Shares pursuant to the 2012 IQ Loan Agreement and the 2013 IQ Loan Agreement.

"**IRS**" means the United States Internal Revenue Service.

"ITA" means the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) and the regulations thereunder, both as amended.

"Key Regulatory Approvals" means those sanctions, rulings, consents, orders, exemptions, permits, notices and other approvals (including the lapse, without objection, of a prescribed time under a statute or regulation that states that a transaction may be implemented if a prescribed time lapses following the giving of notice, as applicable with or without an objection being made) of Governmental Entities set out in Exhibit C of the Arrangement Agreement and, if required, the Investment Canada Act Approval.

"Law" or "Laws" means any statute, law (including common law), ordinance, rule, regulation (including European Union directives and regulations), code, circular (including French ministerial circulars regarding polluted soils), order, judgment, injunction, writ, decree, award, governmental guideline, interpretation having force of law or bylaws or other legally binding requirement, in each case of a Governmental Entity.

"Letter of Transmittal and Election Form" means the letter of transmittal and election form (printed on yellow paper) that accompanies this Circular for use by Registered Shareholders.

"Liens" means mortgages, hypothecs, charges, pledges, assignments, liens (statutory or otherwise), security interests, easements, servitudes, encroachments, rights-of-way, rights of refusal, restriction on use or other restrictions, preferential right, "*usufruit*" or other real or personal right ("*droit réel ou personnel*"), prior claims, legal hypothecs or encumbrances of any nature whatsoever, whether contingent or absolute, and any agreement, option, right or privilege (whether by Law, Contract or otherwise) capable of becoming any of the foregoing.

"Material Adverse Effect" means, with respect to any Person, any event, change, effect, condition, fact, development, occurrence or circumstance that, individually or in the aggregate with all other events, changes, effects, conditions, facts, developments, occurrences or circumstances, is or would reasonably be expected to be material and adverse to the business, results of operations, capital, properties, condition (financial or otherwise), assets (tangible or intangible) or liabilities (including any contingent liabilities), obligations (whether absolute, accrued, conditional or otherwise) of such Person and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, except any such event, change, effect, condition, fact, development, occurrence or circumstance resulting from or arising out of (a) any change in global, national or regional political, regulatory or legislative conditions or in general economic, business, regulatory, political or market conditions or in national or global financial or capital markets (including credit market or securities markets); (b) any change generally affecting the industries, in which such Person or any of its Subsidiaries operates; (c) any geopolitical conditions, outbreak of hostilities, act of terrorism, war (whether declared or undeclared) or sabotage or other military actions (including any escalation or general worsening of any such hostilities, acts of terrorism, war or sabotage or other military actions); (d) any earthquakes, hurricanes, tsunamis, tornadoes, floods, mudslides, wild fires or other natural disasters, weather conditions and other force majeure events; (e) any adoption, proposed implementation or change in applicable Law, or any changes in generally accepted accounting practices (or any change in the authoritative interpretation by a Governmental Entity of any of the foregoing); (f) any global or national changes or developments in or relating to currency exchange rates or interest rates; (g) any action taken or refrained from being taken by a party to the Arrangement Agreement, in each case which the other party to the Arrangement Agreement has expressly approved, consented to or requested in writing following the date of the Arrangement Agreement; (h) any change in the market price or trading volume of such Person's securities (it being understood that the facts and circumstances that may have given rise to such change that are not otherwise excluded from the definition of a Material Adverse Effect may be taken into account in determining whether there has been a Material Adverse Effect); (i) any failure by such Person to meet any internal or public financial projections, forecasts or estimates of revenues, earnings or other financial metrics for any period (it being understood that the facts and circumstances that may have given rise to such failure that are not otherwise excluded from the definition of a Material Adverse Effect may be taken into account in determining whether there has been a Material Adverse Effect); or (j) the negotiation, execution, performance or announcement of the Arrangement Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated therein, except, in the case of clauses (a)-(f) above, to the extent that any such event, change, effect, condition, fact, development, occurrence or circumstance has a disproportionate effect on such Person and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, relative to other participants in the industries in which such Person operates (in which case the incremental disproportionate impact or impacts may be taken into account in determining whether there has been, or there is reasonably expected to be, a Material Adverse Effect).

"**Maximum Share Number**" means 19.9% of the issued and outstanding Rayonier AM Shares immediately prior to the entry into the Arrangement Agreement, rounded down to the nearest whole share.

"**Meeting**" means the special meeting of Tembec Shareholders to be held on July 27, 2017 and any adjournment(s) or postponement(s) thereof, to be called and held in accordance with the terms of the Arrangement Agreement and the Interim Order to consider, among other things, the Arrangement Resolution.

"Minister" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Regulatory Matters – Other Regulatory Matters – Investment Canada Act".

"MOFCOM" means Anti-Monopoly Bureau of the Ministry of Commerce of the People's Republic of China.

"National Bank Financial" means National Bank Financial Inc.

"**National Bank Financial Fairness Opinion**" means the opinion provided by National Bank Financial to the effect that as of the date thereof and subject to the assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other matters contained therein, the consideration under the Arrangement is fair, from a financial point of view, to Tembec Shareholders.

"**net benefit ruling**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Regulatory Matters – Other Regulatory Matters – Investment Canada Act".

"New ABL Facility" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "The Arrangement – Background to the Arrangement".

"NI 45-106" means National Instrument 45-106 – Prospectus Exemptions.

"NI 71-102" means National Instrument 71-102 – *Continuous Disclosure and Other Exemptions Relating to Foreign Issuers*.

"**Non-Registered Shareholder**" means a beneficial owner of Tembec Shares that are registered either in the name of an intermediary or in the name of a depositary.

"**Non-Resident Shareholder**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations – Holders Not Resident in Canada".

"Non-U.S. Holder" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations".

"Notice of Meeting" means the notice of the Meeting accompanying the Circular.

"NYSE" means the New York Stock Exchange.

"**Order**" means any order, writ, injunction, judgment, plan, "*arrêté*", "*ordonnance*" or decree of any Governmental Entity.

"**Outside Date**" means February 24, 2018, provided that if on such date the conditions set forth in Section 5.1(d) of the Arrangement Agreement (as the result only of an Antitrust Law or Order enforced by a Governmental Antitrust Entity or pursuant to provisions of the Investment Canada Act enforced or imposed by a Governmental Entity) or Section 5.1(e) of the Arrangement Agreement will not be satisfied but all other conditions set forth in Article 5 of the Arrangement Agreement (other than those capable of being satisfied at the Effective Time only) will have been satisfied, then either Party, provided that it is not in default of its obligations under the Arrangement Agreement, will have the right to extend the Outside Date to April 24, 2018.

"Parties" means Tembec and Rayonier AM, and "Party" means either of them.

"**Per Share Cash Amount**" means \$4.05 in cash, without interest, per Tembec Share, subject to adjustment in the manner and in the circumstances contemplated in the Arrangement Agreement.

"**Per Share Stock Consideration**" means 0.2302 of a validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable Rayonier AM Share and, if applicable, cash in lieu of fractional Rayonier AM Shares payable in accordance with the Plan of Arrangement.

"**Permit**" means any license, permit, certificate, consent, order, grant, approval, classification, registration or other authorization of and from any Governmental Entity.

"**Person**" means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, "groupement d'intérêt économique", "société civile", "société de personnes", "société en participation", "société en nom collectif", a limited liability company, an unlimited liability company, an association, a trust or any other entity or organization, including a Governmental Entity.

"**PFIC**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations – U.S. Holders – Exchange of Tembec Shares for Cash and/or Rayonier AM Shares".

"**Plan of Arrangement**" means the plan of arrangement substantially in the form of Appendix D hereto, and any amendments or variations thereto made in accordance with the Arrangement Agreement or the Plan of Arrangement or upon the direction of the Court in the Final Order.

"Proposed Amendments" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations".

"Rayonier AM" means Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc., a corporation existing under the laws of Delaware.

"**Rayonier AM Common Share VWAP**" means the volume weighted average price of a Rayonier AM Share for a ten trading day period, starting with the opening of trading on the twelfth trading day prior to the Effective Date to the closing of trading on the third to last trading day prior to the Effective Date, as reported by Bloomberg, such amount to be converted in Canadian dollars using the Bank of Canada daily exchange rate on the third to last trading day prior to the Effective Date.

"Rayonier AM Shares" means the shares of common stock in the capital of Rayonier AM.

"Rayonier AM Sub" means a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Rayonier AM.

"Recapitalization" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Information Relating to Tembec".

"Record Date" means June 19, 2017.

"**Registered Shareholder**" means the Person whose name appears on the register of shares as the owner of the Tembec Shares.

"**Representatives**" means, collectively, in respect of a Person, (a) its officers, directors, employees, consultants, representatives and other agents, including investment bankers, attorneys, accountants and other advisors and consultants, and (b) the Person's affiliates and Subsidiaries and the directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives and advisors thereof.

"**Resident Shareholder**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations – Holders Resident in Canada".

"**Reverse Termination Fee**" means the \$20 million that Rayonier AM must pay to Tembec upon the occurrence of a Reverse Termination Fee Event.

"**Reverse Termination Fee Event**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "The Arrangement Agreement – Termination of the Arrangement Agreement – Termination Payments".

"**Reviewable Transaction**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Regulatory Matters – Other Regulatory Matters – Investment Canada Act".

"RDSP" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Eligibility for Investment in Canada".

"RESP" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Eligibility for Investment in Canada".

"RRIF" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Eligibility for Investment in Canada".

"RRSP" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Eligibility for Investment in Canada".

"Scotia Capital" means Scotia Capital Inc., the financial advisor to Tembec.

"Scotia Capital Fairness Opinion" means the opinion provided by Scotia Capital to the effect that as of the date thereof and subject to the assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other matters contained therein, the consideration under the Arrangement is fair, from a financial point of view, to Tembec Shareholders.

"SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Securities Act" means the *Securities Act* (Québec) and the rules, regulations and published policies made thereunder, as now in effect and as they may be promulgated or amended from time to time.

"Securities Laws" means the Securities Act, together with all other applicable Canadian provincial securities laws, rules and regulations and published policies thereunder, as now in effect and as they may be promulgated or amended from time to time.

"SEDAR" means the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval.

"Separation" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Information Relating to Rayonier AM – Overview".

"Series A Preferred Stock" means the shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock in the capital of Rayonier AM.

"**Shortfall Number**" means, in the event the Cash Election Number is less than the Cash Consideration Number, the amount by which the Cash Consideration Number exceeds the Cash Election Number.

"Special Committee" means the special committee of the Board.

"Stikeman" means Stikeman Elliott LLP.

"Stock Electing Share" means a Tembec Share to be exchanged for the Per Share Stock Consideration.

"**Subsidiary**" of any Person shall mean any corporation or other form of legal entity (a) an amount of the outstanding voting securities of which is sufficient to elect at least a majority of its board of directors or other governing body (or, if there are not such voting securities, 50% or more of the equity interests of which) is owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or by one or more of its Subsidiaries or (b) with respect to which such Person or one or more of its Subsidiaries is the general partner or the managing member or has similar authority.

"**Superior Proposal**" means any bona fide written Acquisition Proposal (with all references to "20% or more" (x) in clauses (i), (ii) and (iv) of the definition of "Acquisition Proposal" being deemed to reference "100%" and (y) in clause (iii) of the definition of Acquisition Proposal being deemed to reference "all or substantially all") (i) on terms which the Board determines in good faith (after receiving advice of a financial advisor and of its outside counsel and in light of all relevant circumstances, including all the terms and conditions of such proposal and the Arrangement Agreement) to be more favorable to the Tembec Shareholders from a financial point of view than the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement, (ii) that is not subject to any due diligence or access condition, (iii) which is reasonably likely to be completed, taking into account any financing and approval requirements and all other financial, legal, regulatory and other aspects of such proposal and (iv) for which financing, if a cash transaction (in whole or part), is then fully committed or reasonably determined to be available by the Board.

"taxable capital gain" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations – Holders Resident in Canada – Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses".

"Tembec" means Tembec Inc., a corporation existing under the CBCA.

"Tembec Articles" means the restated articles of incorporation of Tembec dated December 20, 2016.

"Tembec By-Laws" means the general by-laws of Tembec (By-Law No. 2008-1) dated January 16, 2008.

"Tembec Construction" means Tembec Compagnie de Construction Inc.

"**Tembec Construction Articles**" means the articles of incorporation of Tembec Construction Inc. dated March 19, 1990.

"**Tembec Construction Preferred Shares**" means preferred shares having the rights and restrictions described in Exhibit I of the Plan of Arrangement.

"Tembec Industries" means Tembec Industries Inc.

"Tembec Investments" means Tembec Investments Inc.

"Tembec Investments Articles" means the articles of amendment of Tembec Investments Inc. dated June 1, 2010.

"**Tembec Investments Preferred Shares**" means preferred shares having the rights and restrictions described in Exhibit II of the Plan of Arrangement.

"**Tembec Shareholder Approval**" means at least 66²/₃% of the votes cast on the Arrangement Resolution by Tembec Shareholders present in person or represented by proxy at the Meeting.

"Tembec Shareholders" means the holders of Tembec Shares.

"Tembec Shares" means common shares in the capital of Tembec.

"**Tenures**" means all forest licenses, tree farm licenses, timber sale licenses, timber quotas, pulpwood agreements and other Contracts granting harvest rights under the *Sustainable Forest Development Act* (Québec), R.S.Q., C A-18.1 and the *Crown Forest Sustainability Act* (Ontario), S.O. 1994, c 25 or similar legislation in any other jurisdictions held by Tembec and its Subsidiaries.

"**Termination Fee**" means the \$20 million that Tembec must pay to Rayonier AM upon the occurrence of a Termination Fee Event.

"**Termination Fee Event**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "The Arrangement Agreement – Termination of the Arrangement Agreement – Termination Payments".

"TFSA" means a tax-free savings account within the meaning of the ITA.

"**TSX**" means the Toronto Stock Exchange.

"U.S." means the United States of America.

"U.S. Exchange Act" means the *United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934*, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder.

"U.S. GAAP" means accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.

"U.S. Holder" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations".

"U.S. Securities Act" means the *United States Securities Act of 1933*, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder.

"**USRPHC**" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations – Non-U.S. Holders – Ownership and Disposition of Rayonier AM Shares".

"**Voting Agreement**" means each of the voting agreements (including any amendments thereto) dated May 24, 2017 between Rayonier AM and each of the Tembec directors and Executives.

"Withholding Obligation" has the meaning ascribed thereto under "The Arrangement – Elections, Proration and Exchange Procedure – Withholding Rights".

APPENDIX B UNAUDITED *PRO FORMA* COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RAYONIER AM

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

On May 25, 2017, Rayonier Advanced Materials ("**Rayonier AM**") and Tembec Inc. ("**Tembec**") announced they had entered into an Arrangement Agreement (the "**Agreement**") for Rayonier AM to acquire Tembec for a combination of cash and Rayonier AM stock (the "**Acquisition**"). The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information (the "**pro formas**") is based on the historical consolidated financial statements of Rayonier AM and the historical consolidated financial statements of Tembec, and has been prepared to reflect the Acquisition and the projected financing structure established to fund the Acquisition. The pro formas are presented for illustrative purposes only and do not necessarily reflect the results of operations or the financial position of Rayonier AM that actually would have resulted had the Acquisition occurred at the date indicated, nor project the results of operations or financial position of Rayonier AM for any future date or period.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of earnings (the "**pro forma statements of earnings**") for the three months ended March 25, 2017 (the "**2017 pro forma statement of earnings**") and for the year ended December 31, 2016 (the "**2016 pro forma statement of earnings**") is based on the assumption that the Acquisition was completed at the beginning of the 2016 pro forma statement of earnings period. Due to differences in each reporting entities' fiscal year-end, the 2017 pro forma statement of earnings includes the period from January 1, 2017 to March 25, 2017 for Rayonier AM and the period from December 25, 2016 to March 25, 2017 for Tembec. The 2016 pro forma statement of earnings includes the twelve-month period ended on December 31, 2016 for Rayonier AM combined with period from December 26, 2015 to December 25, 2016 for Tembec. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet (the "**pro forma condensed combined balance sheet**") is based on the assumption that the Acquisition occurred on March 25, 2017. Pro forma adjustments reflected in the pro formas are based on items that are factually supportable and directly attributable to the Acquisition. These pro formas exclude from the statement of earnings the estimated impact of non-recurring integration costs or benefits from the Acquisition including potential synergies that may be derived in future periods.

These pro formas should be read in conjunction with:

- Rayonier AM's audited consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto, as well as, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations", contained in its Annual Report on Form 10-K as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and Rayonier AM's unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto, as well as, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations", in each case contained in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as of and for the three months ended March 25, 2017; and
- Tembec's audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended September 24, 2016, together with related notes thereto, and Tembec's unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements as of and for the three months ended December 24, 2016 and as of and for the three and six months ended March 25, 2017, together with related notes thereto.

Tembec's historical consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("**IFRS**") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, which differ in certain respects from the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("**U.S. GAAP**"). Adjustments were made to Tembec's historical financial statements to estimate the conversion from IFRS to U.S. GAAP as well as reclassifications to conform Tembec's historical presentation to Rayonier AM's accounting presentation. Adjustments were also made to translate Tembec's financial statements from Canadian dollars to U.S. dollars based on applicable historical exchange rates, which may differ from future exchange rates. These adjustments reflect Rayonier AM's best estimates based upon the information available to date and are preliminary and subject to change once more detailed information is obtained.

The Acquisition will be accounted for as a business combination in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be recorded based on preliminary estimates of fair

value with the final determination of fair value for purposes of purchase price allocation based upon, in part, valuation work performed by independent valuation professionals. At this time, Rayonier AM does not have detailed information to determine preliminary estimates of fair value for purposes of determining the purchase price allocation. Accordingly, for purposes of these unaudited combined pro forma financial statements, the excess of purchase price over the value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is reflected as an indefinite-lived intangible asset, goodwill.

The pro forma adjustments are based upon the best available information and certain assumptions that Rayonier AM believes to be reasonable. Further, these adjustments could materially change as the allocation of the purchase price for Tembec has not been finalized and the final financial structure has not yet been put into place. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the final allocation of the purchase price or financial structure will not differ from the allocation reflected in the pro formas.

Rayonier AM & Tembec

Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

(US \$ in millions, Except per share amounts)

Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Earnings	_					Pro Forma	P	ro Forma		
For the year end Dec 31, 2016	Rayoni	er AM		Tembec		Financing	A	Acquisition	0	ombined
				(Note 2)		(Note 3)		(Note 4)		
Net Sales	\$	869	\$	1,175	\$	· -	\$	· -	\$	2,044
Cost of Sales		(687)		(1,041)		-		-		(1,728)
Gross Margin		182		134		-		-		316
SG&A		(38)		(54)		-		-		(92)
Other Operating Income (Expense), net		(6)		3		-		-		(3)
Operating Income		138		83		-		-		221
Interest Expense, net		(35)		(52)		24		-		(63)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) on debt		-		11		(11)		-		-
Gain on debt extinguishment		9		-		-		-		9
Income before tax		112		42		13		-		167
Income tax expense		(39)		(4)		-		-		(43)
Net Income attributable to Rayonier AM		73		38		13		-		124
Mandatory convertible stock dividends		(5)		-		-		-		(5)
Net Income attributable to Rayonier AM common stockholders	\$	68	\$	38	\$	13	\$	-	\$	119
Earnings per share										

Basic earnings in dollar per share	\$ 1.61	\$ 2.34
Diluted earnings in dollar per share	\$ 1.55	\$ 2.23

Rayonier AM & Tembec Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements (US \$ in millions, Except per share amounts)

Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Earnings				Pro Forma	adju	stments	Pr	o Forma
For the three months ended Mar 25, 2017	Rayon	ier AM	Tembec	 Financing	A	cquisition	Co	mbined
			(Note 2)	(Note 3)		(Note 4)		
Net Sales	\$	201	\$ 301	\$ -	\$	-	\$	502
Cost of Sales		(165)	(253)	-		-		(418)
Gross Margin		36	48	-		-		84
SG&A		(9)	(16)	-		-		(25)
Other Operating Income (Expense), net		(1)	-	-		-		(1)
Operating Income		26	32	-		-		58
Interest Expense, net		(8)	(14)	5		-		(17)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) on debt		-	5	(5)		-		-
Income before tax		18	23	-		-		41
Income tax expense		(8)	(3)	-		-		(11)
Net Income attributable to Rayonier AM		10	20	-		-		30
Mandatory convertible stock dividends		(3)	-	-		-		(3)
Net Income attributable to Rayonier AM common stockholders	\$	7	\$ 20	\$ -	\$	-	\$	(3)
Earnings per share								
Basic earnings in dollar per share	\$	0.15					\$	0.53
Diluted earnings in dollar per share	\$	0.15					\$	0.47

Rayonier AM & Tembec

Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

(US \$ in millions)

Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet	Payanian AM				 Pro Forma a		·		
As of March 25, 2017	Ra	yonier AM		Tembec	 Financing	Acquisition		Combined	
				(Note 2)	(Note 3)	(Note 4)			
Current Assets:									
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	345	\$	42	\$ (114)	\$ (252)) \$	21	
Accounts receivable		51		110	-	-		161	
Inventory		122		229	-	-		351	
Prepaid and other current assets		30		9	-	-		39	
Total Current Assets		548		390	(114)	(252))	572	
Property, Plant and Equipment,net		787		470	-	-		1,257	
Deferred Tax Assets		45		2	-	-		47	
Other Assets		49		45	(3)	-		91	
Goodwill		-		-	-	213		213	
Total Assets	\$	1,429	\$	907	\$ (117)	\$ (39))\$	2,180	
Current Liabilities:									
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	89	\$	164	\$ -	\$ (7)) \$	246	
Accrued interest		10		10	-	-		20	
Dividends payable		6		-	-	-		6	
Current maturities of long-term debt		10		4	7	-		21	
Other current liabilities		5		4	(3)	-		б	
Current liabilities for disposed operations		15		1	-	-		16	
Total Current Liabilties		135		183	4	(7)	315	
Long-term Debt		771		514	(85)	-		1,200	
Non-Current Liabilities for Disposed Operations		138		8	-	-		146	
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits		161		95	-	-		256	
Other Non-Current Liabilities		9		5	-	-		14	
Stockholders Equity:									
Common stock		-		425	-	(425))	-	
Additional paid-in capital		245		-	-	125		370	
Retained earnings (loss)		78		(340)	(36)	285		(13)	
Accumulated other comprehensive earning (loss)		(108)		17	-	(17))	(108)	
Total Stockholders' Equity		215		102	(36)	(32))	249	
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity	\$	1,429	\$	907	\$ (117))\$	2,180	

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The unaudited pro forma combined financial statements are presented in United States dollars (\$), which is the functional and reporting currency of Rayonier AM. References to C\$ are to the currency of Canada.

These pro formas are based on the historical consolidated financial statements of each of Rayonier AM and Tembec, and have been prepared to reflect the Acquisition, including the estimated stock issuance and projected financing structure established to fund the Acquisition. The pro formas are presented for illustrative purposes only and do not necessarily reflect the results of operations or the financial position of Rayonier AM that actually would have resulted had the Acquisition occurred on the dates indicated, nor project the results of operations or financial position of Rayonier AM for any future dates or periods. The pro forma statements of earnings were developed assuming the Acquisition closed at the beginning of the respective periods while the pro forma balance sheet was developed assuming the transaction closed on March 25, 2017 and uses the May 25, 2017 Rayonier AM closing stock price and exchange rate to value the transaction.

Pro forma adjustments reflected in the pro forma statements of earnings are based on items that are factually supportable, directly attributable to the Acquisition, and are expected to have a continuing impact on Rayonier AM's results of operations and/or financial position. Any non-recurring items directly attributable to the Acquisition are included in the pro forma balance sheet but not in the pro forma statements of earnings. In contrast, any non-recurring items that were already included in Rayonier AM's or Tembec's historical consolidated financial

statements that are not directly related to the Acquisition have not been eliminated. These pro formas do not reflect the non-recurring cost of any integration activities or benefits from the Acquisition including potential synergies that may be generated in future periods.

The pro formas include adjustments to reflect the cost of the projected financing structure established to fund the Acquisition.

Tembec's historical consolidated financial statements ("**Tembec's financial statements**") were prepared in accordance with IFRS, which differs in certain respects from U.S. GAAP. Adjustments were made to Tembec's financial statements to convert them from IFRS to U.S. GAAP and to Rayonier AM's existing accounting policies. In addition, reclassifications have been made to align Tembec's financial statement presentation to Rayonier AM's financial statement presentation.

The following historical exchange rates were used to translate Tembec's financial statements and calculate certain adjustments to the pro forma financial statements from C\$ to U.S. dollars ("**U.S.**\$" or "\$"):

- Average daily closing exchange rate for the three months ended March 25, 2017: U.S.\$0.7552/C\$
- Average daily closing exchange rate for the year ended December 31, 2016: U.S.\$0.7547/C\$
- Closing exchange rate as of March 25, 2017: U.S.\$0.7477/C\$

Note 2. U.S. GAAP Adjustments to Tembec Consolidated Financial Statements

Unaudited adjusted consolidated statement of net earnings For the year ended December 24, 2016

(in millions of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted)

(in millions of Canadian dollars, unless o		IFRS	u)	IFRS		IFRS	 IFRS		(a)		(b)	(c)	 (f)	U	S GAAP	
	Vee	r ended		Deduct		Add	LTM	c1.	utdown		Sales	Pension	Reclassi-		LTM	In US\$
		Sept. 24		Deduct Dec. 26	,	Dec. 24	Dec. 24	ы	costs	т	Deduction	rension	fication		Dec. 24	111 0.55
		-							costs	1	Deduction		incation			
		2016		2015		2016	 2016								2016	
Sales	\$	1,499	\$	354	\$	370	\$ 1,515	\$	-	\$	(6) \$	-	\$ 48	\$	1,557	\$ 1,175
Freight and other deductions		193		47		46	192		-		(192)	-	-		-	\$ -
Cost of sales		1,097		264		270	1,103		(2)		182	(5)	101		1,379	1,041
Selling, general and administrative		62		15		16	63		-		4	-	4		71	54
Share-based compensation		(1)		(1)		4	4		-		-	-	(4)		-	-
Depreciation and amortization		53		12		12	53		-		-	-	(53)		-	-
Other items		(4)		1		1	(4)		-		-	-	-		(4)	(3)
Operating earnings		99		16		21	104		2		-	5	-		111	83
Interest, foreign exchange and other		75		17		16	74		-		-	(5)	-		69	52
Foreign exchange loss (gain) on long-term																
debt		(6)		24		16	(14)		-		-	-	-		(14)	(11)
Net finance costs (income)		69		41		32	60		-		-	(5)	-		55	41
Earnings (loss) before income taxes		30		(25)		(11)	44		2		-	10	-		56	42
Income tax expense (recovery)		10		3		(2)	5		-		-	-	-		5	4
Net earnings (loss)	\$	20	\$	(28)	\$	(9)	\$ 39	\$	2	\$	- \$	10	\$ -	\$	51	\$ 38

Unaudited adjusted consolidated statement of net earnings For the three months ended March 25, 2017

(in millions of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted)

	IFRS		(a)	(b)	(c)		(f)	US GA	AP	
	Mar. 25	Shutdo	wn	Sales	Pension	Recla	ssi-	Mar.	25	In US\$
	2017	co	sts	Deduction		fica	tion	20	17	
Sales	\$ 387	s -	5	\$ (2)	\$ -	\$	13	\$ 3	98	\$ 301
Freight and other deductions	47	-		(47)	-			-		-
Cost of sales	266		2	44	(3)		26	3	35	253
Selling, general and administrative	16	-		1	-		4		21	16
Share-based compensation	4	-		-	-		(4)	-		-
Depreciation and amortization	13	-		-	-		(13)	-		-
Operating earnings (loss)	41		(2)	-	3		-		42	32
Interest, foreign exchange and other	20	-		-	(1)		-		19	14
Foreign exchange loss (gain) on long-term										
debt	(7)	-		-	-		-		(7)	(5
Net finance costs (income)	13	-		-	(1)				12	9
Earnings (loss) before income taxes	28		(2)	-	4		-		30	23
Income tax expense	4	-		-	-		-		4	3
Net earnings (loss)	\$ 24	\$	(2) \$	s -	\$ 4	\$	-	\$	26	\$ 20

Unaudited adjusted consolidated balance sheet As of March 25, 2017

(in millions of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted)

	IFRS Mar. 25 2017	Shute		() Sale Deductio		(c) Pension	I	(d) Environ- mental iabilities	В	(e) Siological Assets		(f) Reclassi- fication		US-GAAP Mar. 25 2017		In US\$
Assets																
Current assets:																
	\$ 55	\$	-	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	2	\$	57	\$	42
Restricted cash	2		-	-		-		-		-		(2)		-		-
Trade and other receivables	147		-	-		-		-		-		-		147		110
Inventories	305		-	-		-		-		-		-		305		229
Prepaid expenses	8		4	-		-		-		-		-		12		9
	517		4	-		-		-		-		-		521		390
Property, plant and equipment	628		-	-		-		-		-		-		628		470
Biological assets	3		-	-		-		-		(3)		-		-		-
Employee future benefits	40		-	-		11		-		-		(51)		-		-
Other assets	7		-	-		-		-		3		51		61		45
Deferred tax assets	3		-	-		-		-		-		-		3		2
	\$ 1,198	\$	4	\$ -	\$	11	\$	-	s	-	\$	-	\$	1,213	\$	907
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity Current liabilities: Operating bank loans	\$4	\$		s -	s		\$		\$		\$		\$	4	s	3
Trade, other payables and accrued charges	215	×		•	Ť	5	•		Č.,	_	Ť		Ť	220	Ť	164
Interest payable	13													13		10
Income tax payable	1			_		_				_				1		1
Provisions	2		-	_		_								2		i
Current portion of long-term debt	5		-	-		-		-		-		-		5		4
	240		-	-		5		-		-		-		245		183
Long-term debt	688		-	-		-		-		-		-		688		514
Provisions	12		-	-		-		4		-		-		16		12
Employee future benefits	136		-	-		(9)		-		-		-		127		95
Other long-term liabilities	1		-	-		-		-		-		-		1		1
	1,077		-	-		(4)		4		-		-		1,077		805
Shareholders' equity:																
Share capital	568		-	-		-		-		-		-		568		425
Deficit	(457)		4	-		2		(4)		-		-		(455)		(340)
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss)	10		-	-		13		-		-		-		23		17
	121		4	-		15		(4)		-		-		136		102

The financial information illustrates the impact of estimated adjustments made to Tembec's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS, in order to present them on a basis consistent with Rayonier AM's accounting presentation and policies under U.S. GAAP. These adjustments reflect Tembec's best estimates based on the information currently available and could be subject to change once more detailed information is obtained.

a) Shutdown Costs

Under IFRS, shutdown costs are expensed when incurred. Under U.S. GAAP, shutdown costs are accounted for using the deferral method under which expenditures related to shutdown are capitalized in other assets when incurred and amortized to production costs on a straight-line basis over the period benefited or the period of time until the next scheduled shutdown.

b) Sales Deduction

Under IFRS, shipping and handling, commissions and prompt payment discount are presented as a sales deduction. Under U.S. GAAP, shipping and handling costs, such as freight to the customers' destinations, are included in cost of sales; commissions are included in SG&A; and prompt payment discount are deducted from sales in the consolidated statements of net earnings.

c) Pension

The following employee future benefit items have been reclassified to conform their presentation to U.S. GAAP:

- i. Accumulated comprehensive loss associated with defined pension plans are adjusted against retained earnings for presentation under IFRS. Under U.S. GAAP, amounts are included in accumulated other comprehensive income and, if actuarial gains and losses exceed ten percent of the greater of plan assets or plan liabilities, the Company will amortize them over the average future service period of employees.
- ii. Under U.S. GAAP, the estimated amount to be paid in the next 12 months is recorded in "Trade, other payables and accrued charges" on the consolidated balance sheet, with the balance recorded as a long-term liability in "Employee future benefits". Under IFRS, there was no allocation to current liabilities.
- iii. Under IFRS, when the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Company. Under U.S. GAAP, there is no limitations to the present value of economic benefits.
- iv. Under IFRS, net interest costs on defined benefit pension plans are recognized in interest, foreign exchange and other. Under U.S. GAAP, the interest costs are included in the current service costs as well as the expected return on plan assets, which reflects the best estimate at the beginning of the period of future market returns on plan assets over the life of the obligation.

d) Environmental Liabilities

Under IFRS, environmental liabilities are accounted for on a discounted basis and included with other "Provisions" in the consolidated balance sheet. Under U.S. GAAP, environmental liabilities are generally accounted for on an undiscounted basis, and it is Rayonier AM's policy to record the liabilities undiscounted.

e) Biological Assets

Under IFRS, the private timberlands are classified as a growing forest, with the standing timber defined and recognized as a biological asset at fair value less costs to sell at each reporting date, with the underlying land being considered a component of property, plant and equipment and recognized at cost. Under U.S. GAAP, the private timberlands are classified in other assets at cost. For the purposes of this presentation, the fair value of the timberlands is estimated to approximate the cost.

f) Reclassification

Classification of certain line items to conform with Rayonier AM's presentation.

Note 3. Pro Forma Adjustments Related to Refinancing

Sources and Uses Related to Refinancing

Rayonier AM intends to refinance Tembec's existing debt through the issuance of a Term Loan of approximately \$450 million and cash of approximately \$114 million. The Term Loan is expected to bear interest at the one-year LIBOR rate plus 3.75% (currently approximately 5.50%). As a result of the refinancing, Rayonier AM will write-off \$13 million in deferred financing costs related to the Tembec debt. Rayonier AM is expected to incur financing costs of approximately \$10 million and loan prepayment costs of \$23 million.

The financing adjustments reflected in the pro forma balance sheet are summarized as follows:

(\$ in millions)	Amount
Cash	\$114
Term Loan	450
Total sources of funds	\$564
Payoff of Tembec existing long-term debt and operating bank loans	\$531
Term Loan B financing costs	10
Loan prepayment costs	23
Total sources of funding	\$564

Interest Expense

The adjustments to interest expense and foreign exchange gain or loss relate to the refinancing of Tembec's debt as a result of the Acquisition which is assumed to be at the beginning of the respective periods. The interest expense and deferred financing costs incurred by Tembec for short and long-term debt of approximately \$51 million and \$11 million for the 2016 pro forma statement of earnings and the 2017 pro forma statement of earnings have been removed and the interest expense and deferred financing costs added related to the projected financing structure. The foreign exchange gain or loss on debt would not have occurred based on the projected financing structure.

Interest expense in the 2016 pro forma statement of earnings on the projected financing would be as follows based on the expected sources of funding described above and amortization of the financing costs on the new term loan over a five year period. The 2016 pro forma statement of earnings presents the following:

(\$ in millions)	Principal	Interest Rate	Inter Expe	
Term Loan	\$ 450	5.50%	\$	(25)
Financing cost and issue discount amortization - Term Loan				(2)
Total interest expense			\$	(27)

Interest expense in the 2017 pro forma statement of earnings on the projected financing would be as follows based on the expected sources of funding described above and amortization of the financing costs on the new term loan over a five-year period. The 2017 pro forma statement of earnings presents the following:

(\$ in millions)	Principal	Interest Rate	Inter Expe	
Term Loan	\$ 450	5.50%	\$	(6)
Financing cost and issue discount amortization - Term Loan				(0)
Total interest expense			\$	(6)

Note 4. Pro Forma Adjustments Related to the Acquisition

Preliminary Purchase Consideration and Allocation

The Acquisition will be accounted for as a business combination in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Under this accounting, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be recorded based on preliminary estimates of fair value. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, fair value is determined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The actual fair values will be determined during the measurement period of the transaction and may vary from these estimates.

On May 24, 2017, Rayonier AM entered into the Agreement to acquire all of the outstanding common shares of Tembec. Tembec shareholders, at their choice, will receive consideration per share consisting of (i) C\$4.05 in cash, or (ii) 0.2302 shares of Rayonier AM common stock, subject to proration to ensure that no more than 63.3% of the aggregate Tembec Shares shall receive the Per Share Cash Amount and no more than 36.7% of the aggregate Tembec Shares will receive the Per Share Stock Consideration, estimated at 8,448,340 shares. The estimated total consideration to be paid to Tembec shareholders is approximately C\$423 million as of May 24, 2017, based on the closing currency exchange rate and Rayonier AM closing common stock price as of that day. Rayonier AM currently intends to finance the cash portion of the consideration with cash on-hand. Completion of the transaction is subject to certain closing conditions, including approval by Tembec's shareholders and the Québec Superior Court and regulatory approvals, as well as other customary closing conditions.

The estimated purchase consideration are as follows:

Tembec estimated shares purchased at March 25, 2017	100,000,000
Exchange ratio adjusted for the shares consideration limit of 36.7 percent as of May 25, 2017	0.08448
Total Rayonier AM shares estimated to be issued to Tembec shareholders	8,448,340
Rayonier AM share price on May 25, 2017	 \$14.76
Total value of Rayonier AM shares estimated to be issued (in millions)	\$ 125
Total cash consideration (including conversion of warrants) (in millions)	190
Total estimated purchase consideration (in millions)	\$ 315

In addition, Rayonier AM is expected to incur transaction related expenses of approximately \$55 million, which are expected to be paid upon the closing of the transaction.

The estimated allocation of purchase consideration is as follows (in millions):

Constant accepte	¢	200
Current assets	\$	390
Property, plant and equipment		470
Deferred tax assets		2
Other assets		45
Goodwill/Intangibles		213
Current liabilities		(183)
Long-term debt		(514)
Non-current liabilities for disposed operations		(8)
Pension and other post-retirement benefits		(95)
Other non-current liabilities		(5)
Net assets acquired	\$	315

APPENDIX C FORM OF ARRANGEMENT RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

- 1. The arrangement (the "**Arrangement**") under Section 192 of the *Canada Business Corporations Act* (the "**CBCA**") involving Tembec Inc. (the "**Corporation**"), as more particularly described and set forth in the management information circular (the "**Circular**") of the Corporation dated June 13, 2017 accompanying the notice of this meeting (as the Arrangement may be amended, modified or supplemented in accordance with the arrangement agreement made as of May 24, 2017, between the Corporation and Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc. (the "**Arrangement Agreement**"), is hereby authorized, approved and adopted.
- 2. The plan of arrangement of the Corporation (the "**Plan of Arrangement**"), the full text of which is set out in Exhibit A of the Arrangement Agreement (as it has been or may be amended, modified or supplemented in accordance with the Arrangement Agreement), is hereby authorized, approved and adopted.
- 3. The (i) Arrangement Agreement and the transactions contemplated therein, (ii) actions of the directors of the Corporation in approving the Arrangement Agreement, and (iii) actions of the directors and officers of the Corporation in executing and delivering the Arrangement Agreement, and any amendments, modifications or supplements thereto, are hereby ratified and approved.
- 4. The Corporation is hereby authorized to apply for a final order from the Québec Superior Court to approve the Arrangement on the terms set forth in the Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement (as they may be amended, modified or supplemented and as described in the Circular).
- 5. Notwithstanding that this resolution has been passed (and the Arrangement adopted) by the shareholders of the Corporation or that the Arrangement has been approved by the Québec Superior Court, the directors of the Corporation are hereby authorized and empowered to, without notice to or approval of the shareholders of the Corporation, (i) amend, modify or supplement the Arrangement Agreement or the Plan of Arrangement to the extent permitted by the Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement and (ii) subject to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, not to proceed with the Arrangement and related transactions.
- 6. Any officer or director of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed for and on behalf of the Corporation to execute and deliver for filing with the Director under the CBCA articles of arrangement and such other documents as are necessary or desirable to give effect to the Arrangement in accordance with the Arrangement Agreement or the Plan of Arrangement, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of such articles of arrangement and any such other documents.
- 7. Any officer or director of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed for and on behalf of the Corporation to execute or cause to be executed and to deliver or cause to be delivered all such other documents and instruments and to perform or cause to be performed all such other acts and things as such person determines may be necessary or desirable to give full effect to the foregoing resolution and the matters authorized thereby, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of such document or instrument or the doing of any such act or thing.

APPENDIX D PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT

PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT UNDER SECTION 192 OF THE CANADA BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Section 1.1 Definitions.

In this Plan of Arrangement, unless there is something in the subject matter or context inconsistent therewith, the following words and terms shall have the meanings hereinafter set forth:

"**2012 IQ Loan Agreement**" means the *Offre de prêt* (Loan Offer) (File D129013) entered into on March 9, 2012, between Investissement Québec, Company, Tembec Industries and Tembec Énergie SEC., as amended prior to the date hereof;

"**2013 IQ Loan Agreement**" means the *Offre de prêt* (Loan Offer) (File D135683) entered into on September 6, 2013, between Investissement Québec, Company, Tembec Industries and Tembec Énergie SEC., as amended prior to the date hereof;

"Acquiror" means Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware;

"Acquiror Common Share VWAP" means the volume weighted average price of a share of Acquiror Common Stock for a ten trading day period, starting with the opening of trading on the twelfth trading day prior to the Effective Date to the closing of trading on the third to last trading day prior to the Effective Date, as reported by Bloomberg, such amount to be converted in Canadian dollars using the Bank of Canada daily exchange rate on the third to last trading day prior to the Effective Date;

"Acquiror Common Stock" means shares of common stock, par value U.S.\$0.01 per share, of Acquiror;

"Acquiror Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a);

"Acquiror Sub" means a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Acquiror;

"Acquiror Sub Designation" has the meaning set forth it Section 3.3(a);

"Affected Securities" means, collectively, the Company Common Shares, Company DSU Awards and the IQ Warrants;

"Affected Securityholders" means, collectively, the Company Shareholders, the holders of any of the Company DSU Awards and the holders of any of the IQ Warrants;

"Aggregate Share Consideration" means the aggregate number of shares of Acquiror Common Stock to be issued to Company Shareholders pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement;

"**Arrangement**" means the arrangement under Section 192 of the CBCA on the terms and subject to the conditions set out in this Plan of Arrangement, subject to any amendments or variations thereto made in accordance with the Arrangement Agreement or made at the direction of the Court in the Final Order with the prior written consent of Company and Acquiror, each acting reasonably;

"**Arrangement Agreement**" means the arrangement agreement, dated as of May 24, 2017, by and between Tembec Inc. and Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc., as the same may be amended, amended and restated or supplemented from time to time in accordance with its terms;

"Arrangement Resolution" means the special resolution of the Company Shareholders to be considered at the Company Special Meeting, approving this Plan of Arrangement;

"Articles of Arrangement" means the articles of arrangement of Company in respect of the Arrangement, required by the CBCA to be sent to the Director after the Final Order is made by the Court, which shall include this Plan of Arrangement and otherwise be in a form and substance satisfactory to Company and Acquiror, each acting reasonably, subject to any amendments or variations thereto made with the consent of Company and Acquiror, each acting reasonably;

"**Business Day**" means any day on which banks are not required or authorized to close in the State of Florida, U.S.A., and the Province of Québec, Canada;

"**Cash Consideration Number**" means the product (rounded up to the nearest whole share) of (i) 0.633 and (ii) the total number of Company Common Shares issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (excluding Company Common Shares owned, directly or indirectly, by Acquiror), as adjusted pursuant to Section 4.2(d);

"**Cash Electing Share**" means a Company Common Share to be exchanged for the Per Share Cash Amount as determined pursuant to Section 4.1 and Section 4.2;

"Cash Election Number" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(b);

"CBCA" means the Canada Business Corporations Act;

"**Certificate of Arrangement**" means the certificate of arrangement issued by the Director pursuant to Section 192(7) of the CBCA in respect of the Articles of Arrangement;

"Company" means Tembec Inc., a corporation continued and existing under the laws of Canada;

"Company Articles" means the restated articles of incorporation of Company dated December 20, 2016;

"Company Common Shares" means common shares in the capital of Company;

"Company Director DSUs" means share units granted pursuant to the Company Director DSU Plan;

"**Company Director DSU Plan**" means the Company's Share Unit Plan for Non-Executive Directors, as amended from time to time;

"**Company DSU Awards**" means, collectively, the Company Employee DSUs, Company Employee PCSUs, Company Employee Performance DSUs and Company Director DSUs;

"**Company Employee DSU Plan**" means the Company's Long-Term Equity Based Plan for Executives and Key Employees, as amended from time to time;

"Company Employee DSUs" means non-performance deferred share units granted pursuant to Part A of the Company Employee DSU Plan;

"**Company Employee PCSUs**" means performance-conditioned share units granted pursuant to Part B of the Company Employee DSU Plan;

"**Company Employee Performance DSUs**" means performance-conditioned deferred share units granted pursuant to Part A of the Company Employee DSU Plan;

"**Company Shareholders**" means the registered and/or beneficial holders of the Company Common Shares, as the context requires;

"**Company Special Meeting**" means the special meeting of Company Shareholders, including any adjournment or postponement thereof in accordance with the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, to be called and held in accordance with the Interim Order to consider the Arrangement Resolution;

"**Consideration Cash Value**" means the sum of (a) the product of (i) the Per Share Cash Amount *multiplied by* (ii) 0.633 *plus* (b) the product of (i) the Exchange Ratio *multiplied by* (ii) 0.367 *multiplied by* (iii) the Acquiror Common Share VWAP;

"**Contract**" means any written or oral agreement, contract, obligation, promise, commitment, loan or credit agreement, employment or severance agreement, note, mortgage, bond, indenture, lease, benefit plan, permit, franchise, license or other instrument, understanding, undertaking or arrangement;

"**Court**" means the Superior Court of Québec, or other court having jurisdiction in respect of the Arrangement, as applicable;

"**Depositary**" means such Person as Company may appoint to act as depositary in relation to the Arrangement, with the approval of Acquiror, acting reasonably;

"Director" means the Director appointed pursuant to Section 260 of the CBCA;

"**Dissent Rights**" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1;

"**Dissenting Shareholder**" means a registered Company Shareholder who has validly exercised its Dissent Rights and has neither withdrawn, nor been deemed to have withdrawn, such exercise of Dissent Rights, but only in respect of the Company Common Shares in respect of which Dissent Rights are validly exercised by such registered Company Shareholder;

"Effective Date" means the date shown on the Certificate of Arrangement giving effect to the Arrangement;

"Effective Time" means 12:01 a.m., Eastern Time, on the Effective Date or such other time as agreed to by Acquiror and Company in writing;

"Election Deadline" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(b);

"Exchange Ratio" means 0.2302;

"**Final Order**" means the final order of the Court pursuant to Section 192 of the CBCA, in a form reasonably acceptable to Company and Acquiror, approving the Arrangement, as such order may be amended by the Court (with the consent of both Company and Acquiror, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld) at any time prior to the Effective Time or, if appealed, then, unless such appeal is withdrawn or denied, as affirmed or as amended (provided that any such amendment is reasonably acceptable to both Company and Acquiror) on appeal;

"**Governmental Entity**" means any international, multinational, national, federal, provincial, state, municipal, local, foreign or other governmental authority (including, with respect to France, any regional or departmental direction of a ministry and any independent administrative authority), any instrumentality, subdivision, court, tribunal, administrative agency or commission or other authority thereof, any quasi-governmental or private body exercising any executive, regulatory, judicial, administrative, taxing, importing or other governmental or quasi-governmental authority, or any stock exchange;

"**Interim Order**" means the interim order of the Court made pursuant to Section 192(4) of the CBCA providing for, among other things, the calling and holding of the Company Special Meeting, as such order may be amended by the Court with the consent of Company and Acquiror, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld;

"**IQ Warrants**" means each warrant to purchase Company Common Shares pursuant to any of the 2012 IQ Loan Agreement and the 2013 IQ Loan Agreement that is outstanding and unexercised as of immediately prior to the Effective Time;

"**Laws**" means any statute, law (including common law), ordinance, rule, regulation (including European Union directives and regulations), code, circulars (including French ministerial circulars regarding polluted soils), order, judgment, injunction, writ, decree, award, governmental guideline, interpretation having force of law or bylaws or other legally binding requirement, in each case of a Governmental Entity;

"Letter of Transmittal and Election Form" means the letter of transmittal and election form to be sent by Company to Company Shareholders in connection with the Arrangement;

"Lien" means mortgages, hypothecs, charges, pledges, assignments, liens (statutory or otherwise), security interests, easements, servitudes, encroachments, rights-of-way, rights of refusal, restriction on use or other restrictions, preferential right, "*usufruit*" or other real or personal right ("*droit réel ou personnel*"), prior claims, legal hypothecs or encumbrances of any nature whatsoever, whether contingent or absolute, and any agreement, option, right or privilege (whether by Law, Contract or otherwise) capable of becoming any of the foregoing;

"**Maximum Share Number**" means 19.9% of the issued and outstanding shares of Acquiror Common Stock immediately prior to the execution of the Arrangement Agreement, rounded down to the nearest whole share;

"**Per Share Cash Amount**" means, in the case of a Cash Electing Share, C\$4.05 in cash per Company Common Share;

"**Per Share Stock Consideration**" means, in the case of a Stock Electing Share, 0.2302 of a share of Acquiror Common Stock;

"**Person**" includes an individual, a corporation, a partnership, "groupement d'intérêt économique", "société civile", "société de personnes", "société en participation", "société en nom collectif", a limited liability company, an unlimited liability company, an association, a trust or any other entity or organization, including a Governmental Entity;

"**Plan of Arrangement**" means this plan of arrangement proposed under Section 192 of the CBCA, and any amendments or variations hereto made in accordance with the terms hereof or of the Arrangement Agreement or upon the direction of the Court in the Final Order;

"Shortfall Number" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2(c);

"**Stock Electing Share**" means a Company Common Share to be exchanged for the Per Share Stock Consideration as determined pursuant to Section 4.1 and Section 4.2;

"**Subsidiary**" of any Person shall mean any corporation or other form of legal entity (a) an amount of the outstanding voting securities of which is sufficient to elect at least a majority of its board of directors or other governing body (or, if there are not such voting securities, 50% or more of the equity interests of which) is owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or by one or more of its Subsidiaries or (b) with respect to which such Person or one or more of its Subsidiaries is the general partner or the managing member or has similar authority;

"**Tax Act**" means the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) and the regulations made thereunder, as now in effect and as they may be promulgated or amended from time to time;

"Tembec Construction" means Tembec Compagnie de Construction Inc.;

"**Tembec Construction Articles**" means the articles of incorporation of Tembec Construction Inc. dated March 19, 1990;

"**Tembec Construction Preferred Shares**" means preferred shares having the rights and restrictions described in Exhibit I;

"Tembec Industries" means Tembec Industries Inc.;

"Tembec Investments" means Tembec Investments Inc.;

"**Tembec Investments Articles**" means the articles of incorporation of Tembec Investments Inc. dated January 28, 1999;

"**Tembec Investments Preferred Shares**" means preferred shares having the rights and restrictions described in Exhibit II;

"U.S. Internal Revenue Code" means the United States *Internal Revenue Code* of 1986, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder; and

"U.S. Securities Act" means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Words and phrases used herein that are defined in the Arrangement Agreement and not defined herein shall have the same meaning herein as in the Arrangement Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires. Words and phrases used herein that are defined in the CBCA and not defined herein or in the Arrangement Agreement shall have the same meaning herein as in the CBCA, unless the context otherwise requires.

Section 1.2 Interpretation.

For the purposes of this Plan of Arrangement, except as otherwise expressly provided:

- (a) "this Plan of Arrangement" means this Plan of Arrangement, including the recitals and all appendices hereto, and not any particular Article, Section, Subsection, clause or other subdivision, recital schedule or exhibit hereof, and includes any agreement, document or instrument entered into, made or delivered pursuant to the terms hereof, as the same may, from time to time, be supplemented or amended and in effect;
- (b) the words "**hereof**", "**herein**", "**hereto**" and "**hereunder**" and other words of similar import refer to this Plan of Arrangement as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section, clause or other subdivision, recital or Appendix hereof;
- (c) all references in this Plan of Arrangement to a designated Article, Section, Subsection, clause or other subdivision, recital, schedule or exhibit hereof are references to the designated Article, Section, clause or other subdivision, recital or Appendix to, this Plan of Arrangement;
- (d) the division of this Plan of Arrangement into Articles, Sections, Subsections, clauses and other subdivisions, recitals, schedules and exhibits, the inclusion of a table of contents and the insertion of headings and captions are for convenience of reference only and are not intended to interpret, define or limit the scope, extent or intent of this Plan of Arrangement or any provision hereof; and
- (e) a reference to a statute in this Plan of Arrangement includes all regulations, rules, policies or instruments made thereunder, all amendments to the statute, regulations, rules, policies or instruments in force from time to time, and any statutes, regulations, rules, policies or instruments that supplement or supersede such statute, regulations, rules, policies or instruments.

Section 1.3 Date for Any Action.

If the date on which any action is required to be taken hereunder by a party is not a Business Day, such action shall be required or permitted to be taken on the next succeeding day which is a Business Day.

Section 1.4 Currency.

Unless otherwise stated, all references in this Plan of Arrangement to sums of money are expressed in lawful money of Canada and "C\$" refers to Canadian dollars.

Section 1.5 Time.

Time shall be of the essence in this Plan of Arrangement.

ARTICLE 2 ARRANGEMENT AGREEMENT

Section 2.1 Arrangement Agreement.

This Plan of Arrangement is made pursuant to, and is subject to the provisions of, the Arrangement Agreement.

Section 2.2 Arrangement Agreement.

This Plan of Arrangement and the Arrangement, upon the filing of the Articles of Arrangement and the issuance of the Certificate of Amendment, will become effective, and be binding on, as applicable, Acquiror, Acquiror Sub, Company, Tembec Construction, Tembec Investments, Mattagami Railroad Company, Tembec Industries, all Company Shareholders, all holders and beneficial owners of Company DSU Awards and IQ Warrants, including Dissenting Shareholders, the registrar and transfer agent of Company, the Depositary and all other Persons, in each case, at and after, the Effective Time without any further act or formality required on the part of any Person.

ARTICLE 3 ARRANGEMENT

Section 3.1 Arrangement.

Pursuant to the Arrangement, at the Effective Time, the following transactions shall occur and shall be deemed to occur consecutively in the following order and at the following times without any further authorization, act or formality:

- (a) first, at the Effective Time, the following transactions shall occur simultaneously:
 - (i) the Company Articles shall be amended to set out therein the amount of the stated capital of the Company Common Shares;
 - the Tembec Investments Articles shall be amended to create the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares and to add such Tembec Investments Preferred Shares to the share capital of Tembec Investments; and
 - (iii) the Tembec Construction Articles shall be amended to create the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares and to add such Tembec Construction Preferred Shares to the share capital of Tembec Construction;
- (b) second, and five minutes after the Effective Time, all of the assets of Mattagami Railroad Company shall be deemed to have been assigned and transferred (free and clear of all Liens) to Tembec Construction in exchange for Tembec Construction Preferred Shares;
- (c) third, and ten minutes after the Effective Time, Mattagami Railroad Company shall be deemed to have been liquidated into Tembec Industries;
- (d) fourth, and fifteen minutes after the Effective Time, the following transactions shall occur simultaneously:
 - (i) each Company Employee DSU outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether vested or unvested), notwithstanding the terms of the Company Employee DSU Plan, shall, without any further action by or on behalf of the holder thereof, be deemed to be assigned and transferred by such holder to the Company in exchange for a cash

payment from the Company equal to the amount of the Consideration Cash Value, and each such Company Employee DSU shall immediately be cancelled;

- (ii) each Company Employee Performance DSU outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether vested or unvested), notwithstanding the terms of the Company Employee DSU Plan, shall, without any further action by or on behalf of the holder thereof, be deemed to be assigned and transferred by such holder to Company in exchange for a cash payment from Company equal to the amount of the Consideration Cash Value and each such Company Employee Performance DSU shall immediately be cancelled, provided that any Company Employee Performance DSU in respect of which the performance goals have not been satisfied shall be cancelled for no consideration;
- (iii) each Company Employee PCSU outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether vested or unvested), notwithstanding the terms of the Company Employee DSU Plan, shall, without any further action by or on behalf of the holder thereof, be deemed to be assigned and transferred by such holder to Company in exchange for a cash payment from Company equal to the amount of the Consideration Cash Value and each such Company Employee PCSU shall immediately be cancelled, <u>provided</u> that any Company Employee Performance PCSU in respect of which the performance goals have not been satisfied shall be cancelled for no consideration;
- (iv) each Company Director DSU outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether vested or unvested), notwithstanding the terms of the Company Director DSU Plan, shall, without any further action by or on behalf of the holder thereof, be deemed to be assigned and transferred by such holder to Company in exchange for a cash payment from Company equal to the amount of the Consideration Cash Value, and each such Company Director DSU shall immediately be cancelled;
- (v) notwithstanding the foregoing, any payment or settlement in respect of a Company DSU Award that immediately prior to the exchange described in this Section 3.1(a) constituted deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code shall be made on the earliest practicable payment or settlement date for such Company DSU Award that does not give rise to a violation of, or the imposition of taxes or penalties under, Section 409A of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code;
- (e) fifth, and twenty minutes after the Effective Time, the following transactions shall occur simultaneously:
 - (i) each IQ Warrant that is outstanding and unexercised as of immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be cancelled and converted into the right to receive from the Acquiror an amount in cash, without interest, equal to the product of (i) the excess, if any, of the Consideration Cash Value over the exercise price per Company Common Share of such IQ Warrant, multiplied by (ii) the number of Company Common Shares subject to such IQ Warrant as of immediately prior to the Effective Time; provided that any IQ Warrant that has an exercise price per Company Common Share that equals or exceeds the Consideration Cash Value shall be cancelled for no consideration.
- (f) sixth, and twenty-five minutes after the Effective Time, all Company Common Shares held by Dissenting Shareholders shall be deemed to have been assigned and transferred (free and clear of all Liens) to Acquiror in exchange for a debt claim against Acquiror in an amount determined in accordance with Section 5.1 hereof, and
 - (i) such Dissenting Shareholders shall cease to be the holders of such Company Common Shares and to have any rights as Company Shareholders other than the right to be paid the fair value for such Company Common Shares as set out in Section 5.1;

- the name of each such holder will be removed as Company Shareholders, as applicable, from the registers of Company Shareholders, as applicable, maintained by or on behalf of Company in respect of such Company Common Shares; and
- (iii) Acquiror shall be deemed to be the transferee of such Company Common Shares (free and clear of any Liens) and shall be entered in the registers of Company Shareholders maintained by or on behalf of Company.
- (g) seventh, and thirty minutes after the Effective Time, the following transactions shall occur simultaneously:
 - (i) each Company Common Share that is a Cash Electing Share shall be deemed to have been assigned and transferred (free and clear of all Liens) to Acquiror in exchange for the Per Share Cash Amount; and
 - (ii) each Company Common Share that is a Stock Electing Share shall be deemed to have been assigned and transferred (free and clear of all Liens) to Acquiror in exchange for the Per Share Stock Consideration.
- (h) Subject to Section 3.2, the stated capital of the Company Common Shares shall be reduced, without distribution, in an amount up to \$500,000,000 by amending the Company Articles.

Section 3.2 Acquiror Election.

- (a) Acquiror may, at its sole discretion, elect to amend the Company Articles in accordance with Section 3.1(h) by providing Company at least five Business Days before the Effective Date with a notice in writing (the "Acquiror Notice") stating an amount up to \$500,000,000 by which the stated capital of the Company Common Shares shall be reduced, without distribution.
- (b) If Acquiror does not provide the Acquiror Notice in accordance with Section 3.2(a), the step provided in Section 3.1(h) shall be omitted in its entirety.

Section 3.3 Designation of Acquiror Sub.

- (a) Acquiror may, at its sole discretion, designate Acquiror Sub to be the acquiror for purposes of this Plan of Arrangement by providing Company at least five Business Days before the Effective Date with a notice in writing (the "Acquiror Sub Designation").
- (b) If Acquiror makes the Acquiror Sub Designation, then
 - (i) all references to Acquiror in Section 3.1, Section 4.4(b), Section 4.4(c) and Section 5.1(b) shall be deemed to refer to Acquiror Sub; and
 - (ii) Acquiror, Acquiror Sub and Company shall make such other changes to, or interpretations of, this Plan of Arrangement as shall be required to give effect to the foregoing.

ARTICLE 4 ARRANGEMENT MECHANICS

Section 4.1 Election.

- (a) With respect to the transfer or exchange, surrender and cancellation of securities effected hereunder:
 - (i) each Company Shareholder may elect (A) the number of its Company Common Shares to be exchanged for the Per Share Stock Consideration, (B) the number of its Company Common Shares to be exchanged for the Per Share Cash Amount, subject to proration as set forth in Section 4.2 and rounding as set forth in Section 4.3; provided that any Company Shareholder who makes an election shall waive all Dissent Rights in connection with making such election;
 - (ii) such election, as provided for in Section 4.1(a)(i), shall be made by depositing with the Depositary, on or prior to the Election Deadline, a duly completed Letter of Transmittal and Election Form indicating such Company Shareholder's election, together with, as applicable, any certificates representing such Company Common Shares and any such additional documents and instruments as may be required in the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and as the Depositary may reasonably require; and
 - (iii) any Company Shareholder who does not deposit with the Depositary a duly completed Letter of Transmittal and Election Form on or prior to the Election Deadline, or otherwise fails to comply with the requirements of this Section 4.1 and the Letter of Transmittal and Election Form (including Company Shareholders who duly exercise Dissent Rights but are ultimately not entitled, for any reason, to be paid fair value for Company Common Shares in respect of which they have exercised Dissent Rights), shall be deemed to have elected to receive, for each Company Common Share, the Per Share Stock Consideration.
- (b) Letters of Transmittal and Election Forms must be received by the Depositary on or before the date that is three (3) Business Days prior to the Effective Date (the "Election Deadline"), unless otherwise agreed in writing by Acquiror and Company. Company shall provide at least two (2) Business Days' notice of the Election Deadline to Company Shareholders by means of a news release disseminated on a newswire.
- (c) Any Letter of Transmittal and Election Form, once deposited with the Depositary, shall be irrevocable and may not be withdrawn by a Company Shareholder.

Section 4.2 Proration.

- (a) The total number of Company Common Shares to be entitled to receive the Per Share Cash Amount shall be equal to the Cash Consideration Number and all other Company Common Shares shall be entitled to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration, subject to rounding as set forth in Section 4.3.
- (b) In the event that the aggregate number of Company Common Shares for which Company Shareholders have elected to receive the Per Share Cash Amount pursuant to Section 4.1 (such number, the "**Cash Election Number**") exceeds the Cash Consideration Number, then
 - (i) each Company Common Share in respect of which an election has been made, or is deemed to have been made, to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration pursuant to Section 4.1 shall be deemed to be a Stock Electing Share; and
 - (ii) the number of Company Common Shares of each Company Shareholder for which such Company Shareholder has elected to receive the Per Share Cash Amount pursuant to

Section 4.1 and that shall be deemed to be Cash Electing Shares shall be equal to the product obtained by multiplying (x) the number of Company Common Shares in respect of which an election has been made to receive the Per Share Cash Amount pursuant to Section 4.1 by (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is the Cash Consideration Number and the denominator of which is the Cash Election Number, rounded to the nearest whole Company Common Share, and the remaining number of Company Common Shares in respect of which an election has been made to receive the Per Share Cash Amount pursuant to Section 4.1 shall be deemed to be Stock Electing Shares.

- (c) In the event that the Cash Election Number is less than the Cash Consideration Number (the amount by which the Cash Consideration Number exceeds the Cash Election Number, the "Shortfall Number"), then
 - (i) each Company Common Share in respect of which an election has been made to receive the Per Share Cash Amount pursuant to Section 4.1 shall be deemed to be a Cash Electing Share; and
 - (ii) the number of Company Common Shares of each Company Shareholder for which such Company Shareholder has elected, or is deemed to have elected, to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration pursuant to Section 4.1 and that shall be deemed to be Cash Electing Shares shall be equal to the product obtained by multiplying (x) the number of Company Common Shares in respect of which an election has been made, or is deemed to have been made, to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration pursuant to Section 4.1 by (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is the Shortfall Number and the denominator of which is the total number of Company Common Shares in respect of which an election has been made, or is deemed to have been made, to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration pursuant to Section 4.1, rounded to the nearest whole Company Common Share, and the remaining number of Company Common Shares in respect of which an election has been made, or is deemed to have been made, to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration pursuant to Section 4.1, rounded to the nearest whole Company Common Share, and the remaining number of Company Common Shares in respect of which an election has been made, or is deemed to have been made, to receive the Per Share Stock Consideration shall be deemed to be Stock Electing Shares.
- (d) If the Aggregate Share Consideration to be issued in connection with the Arrangement would exceed the Maximum Share Number, the Cash Consideration Number for all purposes under the Plan of Arrangement will be increased by the minimum extent necessary such that the Aggregate Share Consideration does not exceed the Maximum Share Number.

Section 4.3 No Fractional Acquiror Common Stock.

(a) In no event shall a Company Shareholder be entitled to a fractional Acquiror Common Stock. Where the aggregate number of Acquiror Common Stock to be issued to a Company Shareholder pursuant to Section 3.1(g)(ii) and Section 4.4(c) would result in a fraction of an Acquiror Common Stock being issuable, (i) the number of Acquiror Common Stock to be received by such former Company Shareholder shall be rounded down to the nearest whole Acquiror Common Stock, and (ii) such former Company Shareholder's proportionate interest, if any, in the proceeds from the sale by the Depositary (reduced by any fees of the Depositary attributable to such sale), as agent for such former Company Shareholders, in one or more transactions of Acquiror Common Stock (which Acquiror shall issue to the Depositary on behalf of such Company Shareholders) equal to the excess of (a) the aggregate number of shares of Acquiror Common Stock that otherwise would, if this Section 4.3(a) did not apply, be issued to the Company Shareholders pursuant to Section 3.1(g)(ii) and Section 4.3(a).

Section 4.4 Transfer of Securities

- (a) With respect to each holder of any of the Company DSU Awards outstanding before the Effective Time, upon and at the time of the disposition of each of the Company DSU Awards effected pursuant to Section 3.1(d)(i) through Section 3.1(d)(iv) as applicable:
 - such holder of any of the Company DSU Awards shall cease to be a holder of Company DSU Awards, and the name of such holder of any of the Company DSU Awards shall be removed from the register or account of holders of Company DSU Awards, maintained by or on behalf of the Company;
 - (ii) the Company Employee DSU Plan and the Company Director DSU Plan shall be cancelled and all agreements relating to any of the Company DSU Awards shall be terminated and shall be of no further force and effect (and all rights issued thereunder shall expire); and
 - (iii) Company shall pay to such holder of Company DSU Awards the cash amount payable to such holder of Company DSU Award pursuant to Section 3.1(d)(i) through Section 3.1(d)(iv) as applicable.
- (b) With respect to each holder of any of the IQ Warrants outstanding before the Effective Time, upon and at the time of the disposition of the IQ Warrants effected pursuant to Section 3.1(e):
 - (i) such holder of any of the IQ Warrants shall cease to be a holder of IQ Warrants and the name of such holder shall be removed from the register or account of holders of IQ Warrants maintained by or on behalf of Company;
 - (ii) IQ Warrants shall be terminated and shall be of no further force and effect (and all rights issued thereunder shall expire); and
 - (iii) Acquiror shall pay or cause to be paid to such holder of IQ Warrants the cash amount payable to such holder of IQ Warrants pursuant to Section 3.1(e)(i).
- (c) With respect to Company Shareholders (other than Dissenting Shareholders), immediately before the Effective Time, upon and at the time of the transfer of Company Common Shares effected pursuant to Section 3.1(g)(i) and Section 3.1(g)(ii), as applicable:
 - such Company Shareholder shall cease to be a Company Shareholder, and the name of such Company Shareholder shall be removed from the register of Company Shareholders maintained by or on behalf of Company;
 - (ii) Acquiror shall become the transferee (free and clear of all Liens) of such Company Common Shares transferred to Acquiror in accordance with Section 3.1(g)(i) and Section 3.1(g)(ii), and shall be added to the register of holders of Company Common Shares maintained by or on behalf of Company;
 - (iii) Acquiror shall pay or cause to be paid and deliver or cause to be delivered to each Company Shareholder, the Per Share Cash Amount payable and deliverable to such Company Shareholder pursuant to Section 3.1(g)(i);
 - (iv) Acquiror shall pay or cause to be paid and deliver or cause to be delivered to each Company Shareholder the Per Share Stock Consideration payable and deliverable to such Company Shareholder pursuant to Section 3.1(g)(ii), and the name of such Company Shareholder shall be added to the register of holders of Acquiror Common Stock maintained by or on behalf of Acquiror;

(v) an amount equal to the total of all amounts each of which is the fair market value of the Company Common Shares (or portion thereof) transferred to Acquiror by a Company Shareholder in exchange for the delivery by Acquiror of the Per Share Stock Consideration shall be added to the stated capital account maintained for the Acquiror Common Stock, and Acquiror shall be deemed to have purchased each such Company Common Share (or portion thereof) for a purchase price equal to such fair market value.

ARTICLE 5 DISSENT PROCEDURES

Section 5.1 Rights of Dissent.

- (a) Registered Company Shareholders (other than Acquiror and its affiliates) may exercise dissent rights with respect to Company Common Shares held by such Dissenting Shareholders ("Dissent Rights"), in connection with the Arrangement pursuant to and in the manner set forth in Section 190 of the CBCA, as modified by the Interim Order and this Section 5.1; provided that, notwithstanding Section 190(5) of the CBCA, the written objection to the Arrangement Resolution referred to in Section 190(5) of the CBCA must be received by Company not later than 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, two Business Days immediately preceding the date of the Company Special Meeting (as it may be adjourned or postponed from time to time).
- (b) Each Dissenting Shareholder who duly exercises its Dissent Rights in accordance with this Section 5.1 shall be deemed to have assigned and transferred all Company Common Shares held by such Dissenting Shareholder, and in respect of which Dissent Rights have been validly exercised, to Acquiror free and clear of all Liens, as provided in Section 3.1(f) and if such Dissenting Shareholder:
 - (i) is ultimately entitled to be paid fair value for its Company Common Shares, such Dissenting Shareholder: (A) shall be deemed not to have participated in the transactions in Article 3 (other than Section 3.1(f)); (B) will be entitled to be paid the fair value of such Company Common Shares by Acquiror, which fair value, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Part XV of the CBCA, shall be determined as of the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding the date on which the Arrangement Resolution was adopted; and (C) will not be entitled to any other payment or consideration, including any payment that would be payable under the Arrangement if such Dissenting Shareholder had not exercised its Dissent Rights in respect of such Company Common Shares; or
 - (ii) ultimately is not entitled, for any reason, to be paid fair value for such Company Common Shares, such Dissenting Shareholder shall be deemed to have participated in the Arrangement on the same basis as a non-dissenting holder of Company Common Shares and shall be deemed to have elected to receive for such Company Common Shares the consideration set forth in Section 4.1(a)(iii).

Section 5.2 Recognition of Dissenting Shareholders

- (a) In no circumstances shall Acquiror, Acquiror Sub, Company or any other Person be required to recognize a Person exercising Dissent Rights unless such Person is the registered holder of the Company Common Shares in respect of which such Dissent Rights are purported to be exercised.
- (b) For greater certainty, in no case shall Acquiror, Acquiror Sub, Company or any other Person be required to recognize any Dissenting Shareholder as a holder of Company Common Shares in respect of which Dissent Rights have been validly exercised after the completion of the transfer under Section 3.1(f), and the name of such Dissenting Shareholder shall be removed from the register of Company Shareholders as to those Company Common Shares in respect of which Dissent Rights have been validly exercised at the same time as the event described in Section 3.1(f) occurs. In addition to any other restrictions under Section 190 of the CBCA, none of the

following Persons shall be entitled to exercise Dissent Rights: (i) any holder of any of the Company DSU Awards of the IQ Warrants; (ii) any Company Shareholder who votes or has instructed a proxyholder to vote such Company Shareholder's Company Common Shares in favour of the Arrangement Resolution (but only in respect of such Company Common Shares); and (iii) any Company Shareholder who has made an election pursuant to Section 4.1.

ARTICLE 6 DELIVERY OF CONSIDERATION

Section 6.1 Delivery of Consideration.

- At or before the Effective Time, (i) Acquiror or Acquiror Sub, as applicable, shall deposit or cause (a) to be deposited with the Depositary, for the benefit of and to be held on behalf of the Company Shareholders, the aggregate cash amount required for the payments in respect of each Company Common Share pursuant to Section 4.4(c), (ii) Acquiror or Acquiror Sub, as applicable, shall deposit or cause to be deposited with the Depositary, for the benefit of and to be held on behalf of the holders of any of the IQ Warrants, the aggregate cash amount required for the payments in respect of each of the IQ Warrants pursuant to Section 4.4(b) and (iii) Acquiror or Acquiror Sub, as applicable, shall deposit or cause to be deposited with the Depositary, for the benefit of and to be held on behalf of the Company Shareholders, a treasury order or other evidence regarding the issuance of, the aggregate number of Acquiror Common Stock required in respect of each Company Common Share pursuant to Section 4.4(c), and (iv) unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Acquiror and Company, Company shall deposit or cause to be deposited with the Depositary, for the benefit of and to be held on behalf of the holders of any of the Company DSU Awards, the aggregate cash amount required for the payments in respect of each of the Company DSU Awards pursuant to Section 4.4(a).
- (b) Upon surrender to the Depositary for cancellation of a certificate which immediately prior to the Effective Time represented one or more outstanding Company Common Shares, together with a duly completed and executed Letter of Transmittal and Election Form and any such additional documents and instruments as the Depositary may reasonably require, each Company Common Share represented by such surrendered certificate shall be exchanged by the Depositary, and the Depositary shall deliver to the applicable Company Shareholder, as soon as practicable and in accordance with Section 4.1, Section 4.2 and Section 4.4(c), (i) a cheque (or other form of immediately available funds) representing the cash amount that such Company Shareholder is entitled to receive under the Arrangement, (ii) a treasury order or other evidence of, Acquiror Common Stock that such Company Shareholder is entitled to receive under the Arrangement, less any amounts withheld pursuant to Section 6.3.
- (c) As soon as practicable after the Effective Time, the Depositary shall deliver to each holder of any Company DSU Awards, if applicable, and IQ Warrants (as reflected on the register maintained by or on behalf of the Company in respect of each of the Company DSU Awards and IQ Warrants), a cheque (or other form of immediately available funds) representing the cash amount that such holder is entitled to receive under the Arrangement, as applicable, less any amounts withheld pursuant to Section 6.3.
- (d) Until surrendered as contemplated by this Section 6.1, each certificate that immediately prior to the Effective Time represented outstanding Company Common Shares shall be deemed, immediately after the completion of the transactions contemplated in Section 4.4(c), to represent only the right to receive upon such surrender the Per Share Cash Amount or the Per Share Stock Consideration, or any combination thereof, in lieu of such certificate as contemplated in Section 4.4(c). Any such certificate formerly representing outstanding Company Common Shares not duly surrendered on or before the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Effective Date shall cease to represent a claim by or interest of any former Company Shareholder of any kind or nature against or in Acquiror, Acquiror Sub or Company.

- (e) Any payment made by way of cheque by the Depositary or by the Company, pursuant to the Arrangement that has not been deposited or has been returned to the Depositary or the Company or that otherwise remains unclaimed, in each case, on or before the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Effective Time, and any right or claim to payment hereunder that remains outstanding on the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Effective Time shall cease to represent a right or claim of any kind or nature and the right of any Affected Securityholder to receive the consideration for any Affected Securities pursuant to the Arrangement shall terminate and be deemed to be surrendered and forfeited to Acquiror, Acquiror Sub or Company, as applicable for no consideration.
- (f) No Affected Securityholder shall be entitled to receive any consideration with respect to Affected Securities other than the consideration to which such Affected Securityholder is entitled to receive in accordance with Section 3.1 and no such Affected Securityholder shall be entitled to receive any interest, dividends, premium or other payment in connection therewith, other than any declared but unpaid dividends with a record date prior to the Effective Date. No dividend or other distribution declared or made after the Effective Time with respect to Affected Securities or with a record date on or after the Effective Date shall be delivered to the holder of any unsurrendered certificate which, immediately prior to the Effective Date, represented outstanding Affected Securities.
- (g) All dividends payable with respect to any Acquiror Common Stock allotted and issued pursuant to this Arrangement for which a certificate has not been issued shall be paid or delivered to the Depositary to be held by the Depositary in trust for the registered holder thereof. All monies received by the Depositary shall be invested by it in interest-bearing trust accounts upon such terms as the Depositary may reasonably deem appropriate. The Depositary shall pay and deliver to any such registered holder to the Depositary in such form as the Depositary may reasonably require, such dividends and any interest thereon to which such holder is entitled, net of applicable withholding and other taxes.

Section 6.2 Lost Certificates.

(a) In the event any certificate which immediately prior to the Effective Time represented one or more outstanding Company Common Shares that were transferred pursuant to this Plan of Arrangement shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the Person claiming such certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed, the Depositary will pay and deliver, in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, the Per Share Cash Amount or the Per Share Stock Consideration which such holder is entitled to receive pursuant to Section 4.4(c) (subject to Section 4.2), net of amounts required to be withheld pursuant to Section 6.3. When authorizing such payment and delivery in exchange for any lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, the Person to whom the payment is made shall, as a condition precedent to the delivery thereof, give a bond satisfactory to the Company, Acquiror and the Depositary in such sum as Acquiror may direct or otherwise indemnify Acquiror in a manner satisfactory to Acquiror against any claim that may be made against Acquiror with respect to the certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed.

Section 6.3 Withholding Rights.

(a) Each of Company, Acquiror, Acquiror Sub and the Depositary shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from any consideration otherwise payable to any Affected Securityholder under this Plan of Arrangement, such amounts as Company, Acquiror, Acquiror Sub or the Depositary is required to deduct and withhold with respect to such payment under the Tax Act or any provision of applicable Laws and shall remit such amounts to the appropriate Governmental Entity. To the extent that amounts are so deducted, withheld and remitted, such deducted, withheld and remitted amounts shall be treated for all purposes as having been paid to the Affected Securityholder in respect of which such deduction and withholding was made.

(b) Each of Company, Acquiror, Acquiror Sub and the Depositary that makes a payment to any Company Shareholder under this Plan of Arrangement shall be authorized to sell or otherwise dispose of such number of Acquiror Common Stock otherwise issuable to such Company Shareholder (if any) as is necessary to provide sufficient funds to enable it to comply with its deducting or withholding requirements and such party shall notify the applicable Company Shareholder and remit any unapplied balance of the net proceeds of such sale to such Company Shareholder.

ARTICLE 7 AMENDMENTS

Section 7.1 Amendments to Plan of Arrangement.

- (a) Company shall make any amendments to this Plan of Arrangement referred to in Section 1.6 of the Arrangement Agreement.
- (b) In addition, and subject to Acquiror's rights under section 1.6 of the Arrangement Agreement:
 - (i) Company and Acquiror may amend, modify and/or supplement this Plan of Arrangement at any time and from time to time prior to the Effective Time, provided that each such amendment, modification and/or supplement must (i) be set out in writing, (ii) be approved by Company and Acquiror, each acting reasonably, (iii) be filed with the Court and, if made following the Company Special Meeting, approved by the Court and (iv) be communicated to the Affected Securityholders if and as required by the Court.
 - (ii) Any amendment, modification or supplement to this Plan of Arrangement may be proposed by Company or Acquiror at any time prior to the Company Special Meeting (provided that the Company or Acquiror, as applicable, shall have consented thereto) with or without any other prior notice or communication, and if so proposed and accepted by the Persons voting at the Company Special Meeting (other than as may be required under the Interim Order), shall become part of this Plan of Arrangement for all purposes.
 - (iii) Any amendment, modification or supplement to this Plan of Arrangement that is approved or directed by the Court following the Company Special Meeting shall be effective only if (i) it is consented to in writing by each of Company and Acquiror (in each case, acting reasonably) and (ii) if required by the Court, it is consented to by some or all of the Company Shareholders voting in the manner directed by the Court.
 - (iv) Any amendment, modification or supplement to this Plan of Arrangement may be made following the Effective Date unilaterally by Company or Acquiror, provided that it concerns a matter which, in the reasonable opinion of Acquiror, is of an administrative nature required to better give effect to the implementation of this Plan of Arrangement.

ARTICLE 8 FURTHER ASSURANCES

Section 8.1 Further Assurances

Notwithstanding that the Arrangement and other events set out herein shall occur and be deemed to occur in the order set out in this Plan of Arrangement without any further act or formality, each of the parties to the Arrangement Agreement shall make, do and execute, or cause to be made, done and executed, all such further acts, deeds, agreements, transfers, assurances, instruments or documents as may reasonably be required by any of them in order to further document or evidence any of the transactions or events set out therein.

EXHIBIT I

Tembec Construction Preferred Shares

- 1. The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares are as follows:
 - (a) **Payment of Dividends:** The holders of the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares are entitled to receive any dividend declared by the Corporation, in Canadian dollars, without so declaring dividends on any other class of shares, the amount of which as well as the date, the time and the terms or manner of payment of which shall be left to the entire discretion of the board of directors, provided the amount of any such dividend does not exceed, in the aggregate and on an annual basis, five per cent (5%) of the Redemption Amount (as hereinafter defined).
 - (b) **Participation upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up:** In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation or other distribution of assets of the Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding up its affairs, the holders of the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares will be entitled to receive from the assets of the Corporation, a sum equivalent to the aggregate Redemption Amount (as hereinafter defined) of all Tembec Construction Preferred Shares held by them respectively, before any amount is paid or any assets of the Corporation are distributed to the holders of any other class of shares. After payment to the holders of the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares in any further distribution of assets of the Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding up its affairs.
 - Retraction at Option of Holder: A holder of Tembec Construction Preferred Shares will be (c) entitled to require the Corporation to redeem, subject to the requirements of the Canada Business Corporations Act, at any time or times all or any of the Tember Construction Preferred Shares held by such holder by tendering to the Corporation at its registered office a share certificate or certificates representing the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares which such holder desires to have the Corporation redeem together with a request in writing specifying (i) that such holder desires to have the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares represented by such certificate or certificates redeemed by the Corporation and, if part only of the shares represented by such certificate or certificates is to be redeemed, the number thereof so to be redeemed and (ii) the business day (herein referred to as the "Redemption Date") on which such holder desires to have the Corporation redeem such Tembec Construction Preferred Shares. The Redemption Date will occur not fewer than 30 days (or such shorter period to which the Corporation may consent) after the day on which such request in writing is given to the Corporation. Upon receipt of a share certificate or certificates representing the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares which such holder desires to have the Corporation redeem together with such a request the Corporation will on the Redemption Date redeem such Tembec Construction Preferred Shares by paying to such holder an amount equal to the fair market value of the consideration received by the Corporation for the issuance of the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares, such consideration being herein referred to as the "Redemption Price", plus all declared and unpaid dividends thereon, the whole constituting and being herein referred to as the "Redemption Amount". Such payment will be made by cheque payable at par at any branch of the Corporation's bankers for the time being in Canada. If a part only of the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed a new certificate for the balance will be issued at the expense of the Corporation. Such Tembec Construction Preferred Shares will be redeemed on the Redemption Date and from and after the Redemption Date the holder of such shares will cease to be entitled to dividends and will not be entitled to exercise any of the rights of a holder of Tembec Construction Preferred Shares in respect thereof unless payment of the Redemption Amount is not made on the Redemption Date, in which event the rights of the holder of such Tembec Construction Preferred Shares will remain unaffected.
 - (d) **Redemption by the Corporation:** The Corporation may, upon giving notice as hereinafter provided, redeem at any time the whole or from time to time any part of the then outstanding Tembec Construction Preferred Shares from any one or more of the holders thereof as the board of

directors of the Corporation may in its sole discretion determine on payment of an amount for each Tembec Construction Preferred Share to be redeemed equal to the Redemption Amount.

In the case of redemption of Tembec Construction Preferred Shares under the provisions of clause 1(d) hereof, the Corporation will at least 21 days (or, if all of the holders of the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares to be redeemed consent, such shorter period to which they may consent) before the date specified for redemption, mail (or, with the consent of any particular holder, otherwise) to each person who at the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive notice is a holder of Tembec Construction Preferred Shares to be redeemed. Such notice will (subject to the consent of any particular holder referred to above) be mailed by letter, postage prepaid, addressed to each such holder at such holder's address as it appears on the records of the Corporation or in the event of the address of any such holder not so appearing then to the last known address of such holder; provided, however, that accidental failure to give any such notice to one or more of such holders will not affect the validity of such redemption. Such notice will set out the Redemption Amount and the date on which redemption is to take place and if part only of the shares held by the person to whom it is addressed is to be redeemed the number thereof so to be redeemed. On or after the date so specified for redemption, the Corporation will pay or cause to be paid to or to the order of the holders of the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares to be redeemed the Redemption Amount thereof on presentation and surrender at the registered office of the Corporation or any other place designated in such notice of the certificates representing the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares called for redemption. Such payment will be made by cheque payable at par at any branch of the Corporation's bankers in Canada. If a part only of the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed a new certificate for the balance will be issued at the expense of the Corporation. From and after the date specified for redemption in any such notice the holders of the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares called for redemption will cease to be entitled to dividends and will not be entitled to exercise any of the rights of holders of Tembec Construction Preferred Shares in respect thereof unless payment of the Redemption Amount is not made upon presentation of certificates in accordance with the foregoing provisions, in which case the rights of the holders of such Tembec Construction Preferred Shares will remain unaffected. The Corporation will have the right at any time after the mailing (or delivery, as the case may be) of notice of its intention to redeem any Tembec Construction Preferred Shares to deposit the Redemption Amount of the shares so called for redemption or of such of such shares represented by certificates as have not at the date of such deposit been surrendered by the holders thereof in connection with such redemption to a special account in any chartered bank or in any trust company in Canada named in such notice, to be paid without interest to or to the order of the respective holders of such Tembec Construction Preferred Shares called for redemption upon presentation and surrender to such bank or trust company of the certificates representing the same, and upon such deposit being made or upon the date specified for redemption in such notice, whichever is the later, the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares in respect whereof such deposit has been made will be redeemed and the rights of the holders thereof after such deposit or such redemption date, as the case may be, will be limited to receiving without interest their proportionate part of the total Redemption Amount so deposited against presentation and surrender of such certificates held by them respectively and any interest allowed on such deposit will belong to the Corporation.

- (e) Fair Market Value Adjustment: If any taxing authority having jurisdiction asserts, by assessment or reassessment, proposed assessment or reassessment or otherwise (in this clause 1(e), a "proceeding"), that:
 - (i) the fair market value of the consideration received by the Corporation for the issuance of the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares differs from the aggregate fair market value of all such Tembec Construction Preferred Shares as at the date of such issuance; or
 - (ii) any gift, benefit or advantage is or has been conferred on any person by reason of the issuance of, or of the redemption or purchase for cancellation or otherwise of, any Tembec Construction Preferred Share,

then the Redemption Price per Tembec Construction Preferred Share will be increased or decreased, as the case may be, to an amount equal to the fair market value of the consideration that was received that:

- (iii) is agreed upon by such taxing authority, the Corporation and all the holders of Tembec Construction Preferred Shares in settlement of such proceeding;
- (iv) serves as the basis for such proceeding against which no defence or appeal is taken; or
- (v) is established by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction on the defence of or appeal from such proceeding after all rights of appeal have been exhausted or after all times for appeal have expired without appeals having been taken by either the Corporation or any of the holders of Tembec Construction Preferred Shares or such taxing authority.

The Redemption Price per Tembec Construction Preferred Share as so adjusted will be deemed to be and always to have been the amount so determined.

(f) **Voting Rights:** Except where the provisions of the Canada Business Corporations Act otherwise specifically confer on holders of Tembec Construction Preferred Shares the right to vote, the holders of the Tembec Construction Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to receive notice of or to attend any meeting of the shareholders of the Corporation and shall not be entitled to vote at any such meeting.

EXHIBIT II

Tembec Investments Preferred Shares

- 1. The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares are as follows:
 - (a) **Payment of Dividends:** The holders of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares are entitled to receive any dividend declared by the Corporation, in Canadian dollars, without so declaring dividends on any other class of shares, the amount of which as well as the date, the time and the terms or manner of payment of which shall be left to the entire discretion of the board of directors, provided the amount of any such dividend does not exceed, in the aggregate and on an annual basis, five per cent (5%) of the Redemption Amount (as hereinafter defined).
 - (b) **Participation upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up:** In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation or other distribution of assets of the Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding up its affairs, the holders of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares will be entitled to receive from the assets of the Corporation, a sum equivalent to the aggregate Redemption Amount (as hereinafter defined) of all Tembec Investments Preferred Shares held by them respectively, before any amount is paid or any assets of the Corporation are distributed to the holders of any other class of shares. After payment to the holders of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares negative to share in any further distribution of assets of the Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding up its affairs.
 - Retraction at Option of Holder: A holder of Tembec Investments Preferred Shares will be (c) entitled to require the Corporation to redeem, subject to the requirements of the Canada Business Corporations Act, at any time or times all or any of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares held by such holder by tendering to the Corporation at its registered office a share certificate or certificates representing the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares which such holder desires to have the Corporation redeem together with a request in writing specifying (i) that such holder desires to have the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares represented by such certificate or certificates redeemed by the Corporation and, if part only of the shares represented by such certificate or certificates is to be redeemed, the number thereof so to be redeemed and (ii) the business day (herein referred to as the "Redemption Date") on which such holder desires to have the Corporation redeem such Tembec Investments Preferred Shares. The Redemption Date will occur not fewer than 30 days (or such shorter period to which the Corporation may consent) after the day on which such request in writing is given to the Corporation. Upon receipt of a share certificate or certificates representing the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares which such holder desires to have the Corporation redeem together with such a request the Corporation will on the Redemption Date redeem such Tembec Investments Preferred Shares by paying to such holder an amount equal to the fair market value of the consideration received by the Corporation for the issuance of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares, such consideration being herein referred to as the "Redemption Price", plus all declared and unpaid dividends thereon, the whole constituting and being herein referred to as the "Redemption Amount". Such payment will be made by cheque payable at par at any branch of the Corporation's bankers for the time being in Canada. If a part only of the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed a new certificate for the balance will be issued at the expense of the Corporation. Such Tembec Investments Preferred Shares will be redeemed on the Redemption Date and from and after the Redemption Date the holder of such shares will cease to be entitled to dividends and will not be entitled to exercise any of the rights of a holder of Tembec Investments Preferred Shares in respect thereof unless payment of the Redemption Amount is not made on the Redemption Date, in which event the rights of the holder of such Tembec Investments Preferred Shares will remain unaffected.
 - (d) **Redemption by the Corporation:** The Corporation may, upon giving notice as hereinafter provided, redeem at any time the whole or from time to time any part of the then outstanding Tembec Investments Preferred Shares from any one or more of the holders thereof as the board of

directors of the Corporation may in its sole discretion determine on payment of an amount for each Tembec Investments Preferred Share to be redeemed equal to the Redemption Amount.

In the case of redemption of Tembec Investments Preferred Shares under the provisions of clause 1(d) hereof, the Corporation will at least 21 days (or, if all of the holders of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares to be redeemed consent, such shorter period to which they may consent) before the date specified for redemption, mail (or, with the consent of any particular holder, otherwise) to each person who at the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive notice is a holder of Tembec Investments Preferred Shares to be redeemed. Such notice will (subject to the consent of any particular holder referred to above) be mailed by letter, postage prepaid, addressed to each such holder at such holder's address as it appears on the records of the Corporation or in the event of the address of any such holder not so appearing then to the last known address of such holder; provided, however, that accidental failure to give any such notice to one or more of such holders will not affect the validity of such redemption. Such notice will set out the Redemption Amount and the date on which redemption is to take place and if part only of the shares held by the person to whom it is addressed is to be redeemed the number thereof so to be redeemed. On or after the date so specified for redemption, the Corporation will pay or cause to be paid to or to the order of the holders of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares to be redeemed the Redemption Amount thereof on presentation and surrender at the registered office of the Corporation or any other place designated in such notice of the certificates representing the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares called for redemption. Such payment will be made by cheque payable at par at any branch of the Corporation's bankers in Canada. If a part only of the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed a new certificate for the balance will be issued at the expense of the Corporation. From and after the date specified for redemption in any such notice the holders of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares called for redemption will cease to be entitled to dividends and will not be entitled to exercise any of the rights of holders of Tembec Investments Preferred Shares in respect thereof unless payment of the Redemption Amount is not made upon presentation of certificates in accordance with the foregoing provisions, in which case the rights of the holders of such Tembec Investments Preferred Shares will remain unaffected. The Corporation will have the right at any time after the mailing (or delivery, as the case may be) of notice of its intention to redeem any Tembec Investments Preferred Shares to deposit the Redemption Amount of the shares so called for redemption or of such of such shares represented by certificates as have not at the date of such deposit been surrendered by the holders thereof in connection with such redemption to a special account in any chartered bank or in any trust company in Canada named in such notice, to be paid without interest to or to the order of the respective holders of such Tembec Investments Preferred Shares called for redemption upon presentation and surrender to such bank or trust company of the certificates representing the same, and upon such deposit being made or upon the date specified for redemption in such notice, whichever is the later, the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares in respect whereof such deposit has been made will be redeemed and the rights of the holders thereof after such deposit or such redemption date, as the case may be, will be limited to receiving without interest their proportionate part of the total Redemption Amount so deposited against presentation and surrender of such certificates held by them respectively and any interest allowed on such deposit will belong to the Corporation.

- (e) **Fair Market Value Adjustment:** If any taxing authority having jurisdiction asserts, by assessment or reassessment, proposed assessment or reassessment or otherwise (in this clause 1(e), a "**proceeding**"), that:
 - (i) the fair market value of the consideration received by the Corporation for the issuance of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares differs from the aggregate fair market value of all such Tembec Investments Preferred Shares as at the date of such issuance; or
 - (ii) any gift, benefit or advantage is or has been conferred on any person by reason of the issuance of, or of the redemption or purchase for cancellation or otherwise of, any Tembec Investments Preferred Share,

then the Redemption Price per Tembec Investments Preferred Share will be increased or decreased, as the case may be, to an amount equal to the fair market value of the consideration that was received that:

- (iii) is agreed upon by such taxing authority, the Corporation and all the holders of Tembec Investments Preferred Shares in settlement of such proceeding;
- (iv) serves as the basis for such proceeding against which no defence or appeal is taken; or
- (v) is established by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction on the defence of or appeal from such proceeding after all rights of appeal have been exhausted or after all times for appeal have expired without appeals having been taken by either the Corporation or any of the holders of Tembec Investments Preferred Shares or such taxing authority.

The Redemption Price per Tembec Investments Preferred Share as so adjusted will be deemed to be and always to have been the amount so determined.

(f) **Voting Rights:** Except where the provisions of the Canada Business Corporations Act otherwise specifically confer on holders of Tembec Investments Preferred Shares the right to vote, the holders of the Tembec Investments Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to receive notice of or to attend any meeting of the shareholders of the Corporation and shall not be entitled to vote at any such meeting.

APPENDIX E NOTICE OF PRESENTATION FOR THE FINAL ORDER

NOTICE OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINAL ORDER

TAKE NOTICE that Tembec Inc., Tembec Investments Inc., Tembec Compagnie de Construction Inc. and Mattagami Railroad Company (the "**Applicants**") have filed an *Application for Interim and Final Orders With Respect to an Arrangement* before the Superior Court of Québec, district of Montreal.

The Application is expected to be presented for adjudication of the Final Order sought therein to the Superior Court of Québec (Commercial Division), sitting in the district of Montreal, on August 7, 2017, in room 2.13 of the Courthouse located at 1 rue Notre-Dame E, Montreal (Québec) H2Y 1B6 (or such other room or location that the Court may determine), at 9:00 a.m. (Montreal Time) (or as soon as counsel may be heard).

Pursuant to the Interim Order issued by the Superior Court of Québec on June 13, 2017, if you wish to make representations before the Court, you are required to file an answer at the Office of the Clerk of the Superior Court of Québec, district of Montreal, no later than 5:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) on July 25, 2017, and to serve a copy of this a notice of appearance on July 25, 2017, by fax and by mail on Me Frédéric Paré of Stikeman Elliott LLP, attorneys for Applicants at the following address and fax number:

STIKEMAN ELLIOTT LLP 1155 René-Lévesque blvd West 41st floor, Montréal, Québec H3B 3V2 c/o Me Frédéric Paré (514) 397-5429

If you wish to contest the issuance by the Superior Court of Québec of the Final Order, you are required, pursuant to the terms of the Interim Order, to prepare a written contestation containing the reasons why the Court should not issue the Final Order. This written contestation must be supported as to the facts by affidavit(s), and exhibit(s) if any, and must be filed at the Office of the Clerk of the Superior Court of Québec, district of Montreal, no later than 5:00 p.m. (Montreal Time) on July 25, 2017, and served on July 25, 2017, on Me Frédéric Paré of Stikeman Elliott LLP, attorneys for the Petitioners at the above-mentioned address and fax number.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that if you do not file and serve a written contestation and/or answer within the above-mentioned time limit, you will not be entitled to contest the Application for Final Order or make representations before the Court, and the Applicants may be granted a judgment without further notice or extension.

If you wish to make representations or contest the issuance by the Court of the Final Order, it is important that you take action within the time limit indicated, either by retaining the services of an attorney who will represent you and act in your name, or by doing so yourself in accordance with the formalities of the Law.

PLEASE ACT ACCORDINGLY.

MONTRÉAL, June 13, 2017

(Signed) "Stikeman Elliott LLP"

STIKEMAN ELLIOTT LLP Attorneys for the Applicants Tembec Inc., Tembec Investments Inc., Tembec Compagnie de Construction Inc. and Mattagami Railroad Company

APPENDIX F INTERIM ORDER

SUPERIOR COURT (COMMERCIAL DIVISION)

CANADA

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC DISTRICT OF MONTRÉAL

No.: 500-11-052751-175

DATE : JUNE 13, 2017

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE HONOURABLE LOUIS J. GOUIN, S.C.J.

IN THE MATTER OF

TEMBEC INC.

-and-

TEMBEC INVESTMENTS INC.

-and-

TEMBEC COMPAGNIE DE CONSTRUCTION INC.

Applicants

-and-

MATTAGAMI RAILROAD COMPANY

-and-

RAYONIER ADVANCED MATERIALS INC.

-and-

THE DIRECTOR APPOINTED UNDER SECTION 260 OF THE CBCA

Impleaded Parties

INTERIM ORDER¹

¹ Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Circular, Exhibit R-2.

- [1] GIVEN the Applicants' Tembec Inc. ("Tembec"), Tembec Investments Inc. ("Investments"), Tembec Compagnie de Construction Inc. ("Construction" and, collectively with Tembec, Investments and Construction, the "Applicants") Application for the Issuance of Interim and Final Orders With Respect to an Arrangement pursuant to the Canada Business Corporations Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-44 (as amended, the "CBCA"), the exhibits, and the affidavit of Patrick LeBel filed in support thereof (the "Application")
- [2] **GIVEN** that this Court is satisfied that the Director appointed pursuant to the CBCA has been duly served with the Application and has confirmed in writing that he would not appear or be heard on the Application;
- [3] **GIVEN** the provisions of the CBCA;
- [4] **GIVEN** the representations of counsel for the Applicants;
- [5] **GIVEN** that this Court is satisfied, at the present time, that the proposed transaction is an "arrangement" within the meaning of Section 192(1) of the CBCA;
- [6] **GIVEN** that this Court is satisfied, at the present time, that it is not practicable for the Applicants to effect the arrangement proposed under any other provision of the CBCA;
- [7] **GIVEN** that this Court is satisfied, at the present time, that the requirements set out in Subsections 192(2)(a) and (b) of the CBCA are met;
- **[8] GIVEN** that this Court is satisfied, at the present time, that the arrangement is put forward in good faith and, in all likelihood, for a valid business purpose;

FOR THESE REASONS, THE COURT:

- [9] **GRANTS** the interim order sought in the Application (the "Interim Order");
- [10] **DISPENSES** the Applicants from describing at length the names of the holders (the "Shareholders") of common shares of Tembec (the "Tembec Shares") and IQ Warrant holder in the description of the Impleaded Parties;
- [11] **ORDERS** that all Shareholders and IQ Warrant holder be deemed parties, as Impleaded Parties, to the present proceedings and be bound by the terms of any Order rendered herein;
- [12] **DISPENSES** the Applicants of the obligation, if any, to notify any person other than the Director appointed pursuant to the CBCA with respect to the Interim Order;

Calling of the Meeting

[13] ORDERS that Tembec may convene, hold and conduct a special meeting of Shareholders (the "Meeting") on July 27, 2017, commencing at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern time) on the 41st Floor – Rooms Mont-Royal 1 and 2, at the offices of Stikeman Elliott LLP located at 1155 René-Lévesque Blvd. West in Montreal, Québec, at which time the Shareholders will be asked, among other things, to consider and, if thought advisable, to pass, with or without variation, a special resolution (the "Arrangement Resolution")

substantially in the form set forth in Appendix "C" to the management information circular (the "**Circular**", Exhibit R-2) to, among other things, authorize, approve and adopt the proposed arrangement (the "**Arrangement**"), and to transact such further and other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any postponement or adjournment thereof, the whole in accordance with the notice of the Meeting (the "**Notice of Meeting**") the terms, restrictions and conditions of the articles and by-laws of Tembec (Exhibit R-6), the CBCA, this Interim Order and the rulings and directions of the chairman of the Meeting (the "**Chair of the Meeting**"), provided that to the extent there is an inconsistency between this Interim Order and the articles and by-laws of Tembec (Exhibit R-6), the CBCA and the directions of the Chair of the Meeting, this Interim Order and the articles and by-laws of Tembec (Exhibit R-6), the CBCA and the directions of the Chair of the Meeting, this Interim Order and the articles and by-laws of Tembec (Exhibit R-6), the CBCA and the directions of the Chair of the Meeting, this Interim Order and the articles and by-laws of Tembec (Exhibit R-6), the CBCA and the directions of the Chair of the Meeting, this Interim Order shall prevail;

Proxy and solicitation of Proxies

[14] AUTHORIZES Tembec to use proxies at the Meeting in substantially the same form as the draft Proxies, Exhibit R-3, subject to Tembec's ability to insert date and other relevant information in the final proxies, and further AUTHORIZES Tembec, in accordance with the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, to solicit Proxies on behalf of their management, directly or through their officers, directors and employees, and through such agents or representatives as they may retain for that purpose, and by mail or such other forms of personal or electronic communication as they may determine, and further AUTHORIZES Tembec to waive, in its discretion, the time limits for the deposit of proxies by the Shareholders if they consider it advisable to do so;

Record Date

[15] **ORDERS** that the "**Record Date**" for the determination of the Shareholders entitled to receive the Notice Materials (as defined below), to attend and be heard at the Meeting and to vote on the Arrangement Resolution shall be the close of business (Eastern time) on June 19, 2017;

The Notice Materials

- [16] ORDERS that Tembec shall give notice of the Meeting, and that service of the Application for a Final Order shall be made by mailing or delivering, in the manner hereinafter described and to the persons hereinafter specified, a copy of this Interim Order, together with the following documents, with such non-material amendments thereto as Tembec may deem to be necessary or desirable, provided that such amendments are not inconsistent with the terms of this Interim Order (collectively, the "Notice Materials"):
 - (a) the Circular with its appendices, essentially similar to the draft communicated as Exhibit R-2;
 - (b) the Notice of Meeting, essentially similar to the draft communicated in the Circular (Exhibit R-2);
 - (c) a notice of presentation of the Application at the final stage (the "**Notice of Final Hearing**"), essentially similar to the draft communicated as Appendix "E" of the Circular (Exhibit R-2) giving notice, *inter alia*, of the date, time and location where it is proposed to hold the hearing on the Application for the Final Order;

- (d) proxy forms for the Shareholders (the "**Proxy Forms**"), essentially similar to the draft communicated as Exhibit R-3, which shall be finalized by inserting the relevant dates and other information;
- (e) a letter of transmittal and election form to the Shareholders essentially similar to the draft communicated as Exhibit R-4;
- [17] **ORDERS** that the Notice Materials shall be distributed:
 - (a) to the registered Shareholders and IQ Warrant holder, by mailing the same to such persons in accordance with the CBCA and Tembec's by-laws, Exhibits R-6, at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the date of the Meeting;
 - (b) to the non-registered Shareholders, in compliance with National Instrument 54-101 Communication with Beneficial Owners of securities of a Reporting Issuer;
 - to the directors and auditors of Tembec, by delivering same at least twenty-one
 (21) days prior to the date of the Meeting in person, by recognized courier service or by email; and
 - (d) to the Director appointed pursuant to the CBCA, by delivering same at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the date of the Meeting in person, by recognized courier service or by email;
- [18] ORDERS that Tembec may make, in accordance with this Interim Order, such additions, amendments or revision to the Notice Materials as it determines to be appropriate (the "Additional Materials"), which shall be distributed to the persons entitled to receive the Notice Materials pursuant to this Interim Order by the method and in the time determined by Tembec to be most practicable in the circumstances;
- [19] **DECLARES** that the mailing or delivery of the Notice Materials and any Additional Materials in accordance with this Interim Order as set out above constitutes good and sufficient notice of the Meeting upon all persons, and that no other form of service of the Notice Materials and any Additional Materials or any portion thereof, or of the Application need be made, or notice given or other material served in respect of the Meeting to any persons;
- [20] **ORDERS** that the Notice Materials and any Additional Materials shall be deemed, for the purposes of the present proceedings, to have been received and served upon:
 - (a) in the case of distribution by mail, on the day of delivery to the post office or to the depositary, as the case may be;
 - (b) in the case of delivery in person or by courier, upon receipt thereof at the intended recipient's address; and
 - (c) in the case of delivery by facsimile transmission or by e-mail, on the day of transmission;

- [21] DECLARES that the accidental failure or omission to give notice of the Meeting to, or the non-receipt of such notice by, one or more of the persons specified in the Interim Order shall not invalidate any resolution passed at the Meeting or the proceedings herein, and shall not constitute a breach of the Interim Order or defect in the calling of the Meeting, provided that if any such failure or omission is brought to the attention of Tembec, they shall use reasonable efforts to rectify such failure or omission by the method and in the time they determine to be most reasonably practicable in the circumstances;
- [22] **ORDERS** that the only persons entitled to receive the Notice Materials shall be the registered Shareholders at the close of business on the Record Date;
- [23] **ORDERS** that the Interim Order be posted on SEDAR (<u>www.sedar.ca</u>) at the same time the Notice Materials are mailed;

Dissenting Shareholders' Rights

- [24] ORDERS that in accordance with Section 190 of the CBCA and subject to the Dissent Rights set forth in the Plan of Arrangement, any registered Shareholder who wishes to dissent (a "Dissenting Shareholder") must provide a written objection to the Arrangement Resolution (a "Dissent Notice"), which Dissent Notice shall be received by the Corporate Secretary of Tembec at its office located at 100-4 Place Ville-Marie, Montreal, Québec, H3B 2E7, on or prior to 5:00 p.m. (Eastern time) two Business Days immediately preceding the date of the Meeting (as it may be adjourned or postponed from time to time), and that such Dissent Notice be otherwise conform with the requirements of the CBCA;
- [25] DECLARES that a Dissenting Shareholder who has submitted a Dissent Notice and who votes in favour of the Arrangement Resolution shall no longer be considered a Dissenting Shareholder, and that a vote against the Arrangement Resolution or an abstention shall not constitute a Dissent Notice;
- [26] ORDERS that any Dissenting Shareholder wishing to apply to a Court to fix a fair value for Shares in respect of which Dissent Rights have been duly exercised must apply to the Superior Court of Québec and that for the purposes of the Arrangement contemplated in these proceedings, the "Court" referred to in section 190 of the CBCA means the Superior Court of Québec;

The Meeting and Vote on the Arrangement Resolution

- [27] **ORDERS** that the quorum for the Meeting is fixed at two persons who are, or who represent by proxy, Shareholders, who in the aggregate, hold at least 20% of the total number of issued and outstanding Tembec Shares entitled to be voted at the Meeting;
- [28] ORDERS that the only persons entitled to attend and be heard at the Meeting (as it may be adjourned or postponed) shall be the registered Shareholders at the close of business on the Record Date, their proxy holders, and the directors and advisors of Tembec and Rayonier AM, provided however that such other persons having the permission of the Chair of the Meeting shall also be entitled to attend and be heard at the Meeting;

- [29] ORDERS that in respect of the vote on the Arrangement Resolution or any matter determined by the Chair of the Meeting to be related to the Arrangement, each Shareholder entitled to vote at the Meeting shall be entitled to cast one vote in respect of each Tembec Share held by such Shareholder;
- [30] ORDERS that for the purpose of the vote on the Arrangement Resolution, or any vote taken by show of hand or by ballot at the Meeting, any spoiled ballots, illegible ballots and defective ballots shall be deemed not to be votes cast by Shareholders and further ORDERS that the Proxy Forms that are properly signed and dated but which do not contain voting instructions shall be voted in favour of the Arrangement Resolution;
- [31] ORDERS that Tembec, if it deems it advisable, be authorized to adjourn or postpone the Meeting on one or more occasions (whether or not a quorum is present), without the necessity of first convening the Meeting or first obtaining any vote of Shareholders respecting the adjournment or postponement; further ORDERS that notice of any such adjournment or postponement shall be given by press release, by newspaper advertisement, by email or by mail, as determined to be the most appropriate method of communication determined by Tembec; further ORDERS that any adjournment or postponement of the Meeting will not change the Record Date for Shareholders entitled to notice of, and to attend, to be heard and to vote at, the Meeting and further ORDERS that any subsequent reconvening of the Meeting, all proxies will be voted in the same manner as the proxies would have been voted at the original convening of the Meeting, except for any proxies that have been effectively revoked or withdrawn prior to the subsequent reconvening of the Meeting;
- [32] **ORDERS** that, to be effective, the Arrangement Resolution, with or without variation, must be approved by the affirmative vote of not less than 66³/₃% of the total votes cast on the Arrangement Resolution by the Shareholders;
- [33] **ORDERS** that such vote shall be sufficient to authorize and direct Tembec to do all such acts and things as may be necessary or desirable to give effect to the Arrangement and the Plan of Arrangement on a basis consistent with what has been disclosed to the Shareholders in the Notice Materials;

Amendment to the Plan of Arrangement

- [34] ORDERS that Tembec may make, subject to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, and paragraph [35] below, such amendments, modifications or supplements to the Plan of Arrangement at any time and from time to time prior to the Effective Time, without any additional notice to the Tembec Shareholders or others entitled to receive the Notice Materials under paragraph [17] above, and the Arrangement and Plan of Arrangement, as so amended, modified or supplemented shall be the Arrangement and Plan of Arrangement to be submitted to the Tembec Shareholders at the Meeting and shall be the subject of the Arrangement Resolution. Amendments, modifications or supplements may be made following the Meeting, but shall be subject to review and, if appropriate, further direction by this Court at the Final Hearing for the approval of the Arrangement, unless it is non-material and concerns a matter which is of an administrative nature required to better give effect to the implementation of this Plan of Arrangement;
- [35] **ORDERS** that, if any amendments, modifications or supplements to the Plan of Arrangement as referred to in paragraph [34] above, would, if disclosed, reasonably be

expected to affect a Tembec Shareholder's decision to vote in favor or against the Arrangement Resolution, notice of such amendment, modification or supplement shall be distributed, subject to further order of this Court, by press release, newspaper advertisement, prepaid ordinary mail, or by the method most reasonably practical in the circumstances, as Tembec may determine;

The Final Hearing

- [36] **ORDERS** that, subject to the approval by the Shareholders of the Arrangement Resolutions in the manner set forth in this Interim Order, the Applicants may apply for this Court to sanction the Arrangement by way of a final order (the "**Final Order**");
- [37] ORDERS that the Application for Final Order be presented on August 7, 2017, before the Superior Court of Québec, sitting in the Commercial Division in and for the district of Montreal, at the Montreal Courthouse, located at 1, Notre-Dame Street East in Montreal, Québec, Room 2.13 at 9:00 a.m. or so soon thereafter as counsel may be heard, or at any other place, date or time this Court may see fit (the "Final Hearing");
- [38] **ORDERS** that the mailing or delivery of the Notice Materials constitutes good and sufficient service of the Application and good and sufficient notice of presentation of the Application for Final Order to all persons, whether those persons reside within Québec or in another jurisdiction;
- [39] **ORDERS** that the only persons entitled to appear and be heard at the Final Hearing shall be the Applicants, the Purchaser and any person that:
 - (a) files an answer with this Court's registry and serve same on the Applicants' counsels, c/o Me Frédéric Paré of Stikeman Elliott LLP, 1155, René-Lévesque Blvd West, 40th floor, Montreal (Québec) H3B 3V2, Fax: (514) 397-5429, no later than 5:00 p.m. (Eastern time) on or before July 25, 2017; and
 - (b) if such answer is with a view to contesting the Application for a Final Order, serves on the Applicants' counsels (at the above address and Fax numbers), no later than 5:00 p.m. (Eastern time) on or before July 25, 2017, a written contestation supported as to the facts alleged by affidavit(s) and exhibit(s), if any;
- [40] ALLOWS the Applicants to file any further evidence they deem appropriate, by way of supplementary affidavits or otherwise, in connection with the Application for a Final Order;

Miscellaneous

- [41] **DECLARES** that the Applicants shall be entitled to seek leave to vary this Interim Order upon such terms and such notice as this Court deems just;
- [42] **REQUESTS** the aid and recognition of any court or any judicial regulatory or administrative body in any province or territory of Canada the Federal Court of Canada and any judicial, regulatory or administrative body of any other nation or state, to assist the Applicants and its agents in carrying the terms of this Interim Order;

- [43] **ORDERS** provisional execution of this Interim Order notwithstanding any appeal therefrom and without the necessity of furnishing any security;
- [44] **THE WHOLE** without costs.

Aus Juni s.c.s

HONOURABLE LOUIS J. GOUIN, S.C.J.

Stikeman Elliott LLP

Mtre Frédéric Paré Mtre Rémi Leprévost Attorneys for the Applicants **Tembec Inc.**, **Tembec Investments Inc. and Tembec Compagnie de Construction Inc.** and the Impleaded Party **Mattagami Railroad Company**

McCarthy Tétrault LLP

Mtre François Giroux Attorneys for the Impleaded Party Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc.

Date of hearing: June 13, 2017

APPENDIX G SCOTIA CAPITAL FAIRNESS OPINION

Scotia Capital Inc. Scotia Plaza 40 King Street West Box 4085, Station "A" Toronto, Ontario Canada M5W 2X6



May 24, 2017

The Board of Directors Tembec Inc. 4 Place Ville Marie, Suite 100 Montreal, QC, H3B 2E7

To the Members of the Board:

Scotia Capital Inc. ("Scotia Capital", "we" or "us") understands that Tembec Inc. ("Tembec" or the "Company") and Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc. ("Rayonier AM" or the "Acquirer") intends to enter into an agreement (the "Arrangement Agreement") whereby Rayonier AM will acquire all of the outstanding common shares (the "Shares") of the Company by way of a court-approved plan of arrangement (the "Plan of Arrangement") under the *Canada Business Corporations Act* (the "Transaction").

Pursuant to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement and related Plan of Arrangement, holders of the Shares have the right to elect to receive, for each Share held, either (i) C\$4.05 in cash or (ii) 0.2302 of a common share of Rayonier AM. These elections are subject to pro-ration to ensure that no more than 63.3% of the aggregate Shares shall receive the cash consideration and no more than 36.7% of the aggregate Shares shall receive the stock consideration (the "Consideration"). The terms of the Arrangement Agreement relating to the Transaction are to be more fully described in a management information circular which will be mailed to the shareholders of the Company (the "Disclosure Document").

Background and Engagement of Scotia Capital

Scotia Capital was retained by the Company on June 22, 2016 pursuant to an engagement letter (the "Engagement Agreement") to perform such financial advisory and investment banking services for the Company as are customary in transactions of this type including assisting the Company in analyzing strategic alternatives and, if requested, structuring, negotiating and effecting a Transaction (as defined in the Engagement Agreement). Pursuant to the Engagement Agreement, the Board of Directors of the Company has requested that Scotia Capital provide an opinion (the "Opinion") as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the Consideration to be received by the holders of the Shares (the "Shareholders") pursuant to the Transaction. The terms of the Engagement Agreement provide that Scotia Capital is to be paid a fee for its services as financial advisor, including fees that are contingent on the completion of the Transaction and fees payable upon delivery of an Opinion. The fees payable for delivery of an Opinion are not contingent on the completion of the Transaction. In addition, Scotia Capital is to be reimbursed for its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and to be indemnified by the Company in certain circumstances.

The Board of Directors of the Company has not instructed Scotia Capital to prepare, and Scotia Capital has not prepared, a formal valuation of the Company or any of its securities or assets, and the Opinion should not be construed as such. Scotia Capital has, however, conducted such analyses as it considered necessary in the circumstances to prepare and deliver the Opinion.

Subject to the terms of the Engagement Agreement, Scotia Capital consents to the inclusion of the Opinion in its entirety and a summary thereof in the Disclosure Document and to the filing of the Opinion, as necessary, with the securities commissions, stock exchanges and other similar regulatory authorities in Canada.

Overview of Tembec

Tembec is an integrated forest products company with operations principally located in Canada and France. Its business segments are specialty cellulose pulp, forest products, paper pulp and paper. Tembec operates 12 manufacturing locations in North America and France and directly manages approximately 10 million hectares (approximately 25 million acres) of Canadian forestlands.

Credentials of Scotia Capital

Scotia Capital represents the global corporate and investment banking and capital markets business of Scotiabank Group ("Scotiabank"), one of North America's premier financial institutions. In Canada, Scotia Capital is one of the country's largest investment banking firms with operations in all facets of corporate and government finance, mergers and acquisitions, equity and fixed income sales and trading and investment research. Scotia Capital has participated in a significant number of transactions involving private and public companies and has extensive experience in preparing fairness opinions.

The Opinion expressed herein represents the opinion of Scotia Capital as a firm. The form and content of the Opinion have been approved for release by a committee of directors and other professionals of Scotia Capital, all of whom are experienced in merger, acquisition, divestiture, fairness opinion and valuation matters.

Relationships of Scotia Capital

Neither Scotia Capital nor any of its affiliates, is an insider, associate or affiliate (as those terms are defined in the *Securities Act* (Ontario)) of the Company, Acquirer or any of their respective associates or affiliates. Subject to the following, there are no understandings, agreements or commitments between Scotia Capital and the Company, Acquirer or any of their respective associates or affiliates with respect to any future business dealings. Scotia Capital or its affiliates have in the past provided, and may in the future provide, traditional banking, financial advisory or investment banking services to the Company or any of its affiliates and may in the future provide similar services to the Acquirer or its affiliates.

Scotia Capital acts as a trader and dealer, both as principal and agent, in the financial markets in Canada, the United States and elsewhere and, as such, it and Scotiabank, may have had and may have positions in the securities of the Company, the Acquirer, or their respective affiliates from time to time and may have executed or may execute transactions on behalf of such companies or clients for which it receives compensation. As an investment dealer, Scotia Capital conducts research on securities and may, in the ordinary course of business, provide research reports and investment advice to its clients on investment matters, including with respect to the Company or any of its affiliates, the Acquirer or any of its affiliates or with respect to the Transaction.

Scope of Review

In preparing the Opinion, Scotia Capital has reviewed, considered and relied upon, without attempting to verify independently the completeness or accuracy thereof, among other things:

- (a) a draft Arrangement Agreement dated May 24, 2017, including the Plan of Arrangement appended thereto (the "Arrangement Agreement");
- (b) a draft form of voting support agreement (the "Support Agreement") dated May 24, 2017 to be entered into between the Acquirer and certain of Tembec's directors and members of executive management;
- (c) annual reports of the Company and the Acquirer for the fiscal years ended 2014 to 2016;
- (d) the Management Information Circular of the Company for the fiscal years ended 2014 to 2016;

- (e) audited financial statements and management discussion and analysis of the Company and the Acquirer for the fiscal years ended 2014 to 2016;
- (f) annual information forms of the Company for the fiscal years ended 2014 to 2016;
- (g) the budget for each of the Company and the Acquirer for the fiscal year ending 2017;
- (h) financial projections for each of the Company and the Acquirer for the fiscal years ending 2017 to 2019 prepared by the management of the Company and Acquirer respectively;
- (i) various detailed internal Company management reports;
- (j) discussions with senior management of the Company and the Acquirer;
- (k) discussions with the Company's legal counsel;
- (I) various research publications prepared by industry and equity research analysts regarding the Company, the Acquirer and other selected entities considered relevant;
- (m) public information relating to the business, operations, financial performance and stock trading history of the Company, the Acquirer and other selected public companies considered by us to be relevant;
- (n) public information with respect to other transactions of a comparable nature considered by us to be relevant;
- (o) representations contained in a certificate addressed to Scotia Capital, as of the date hereof, from senior officers of the Company as to the completeness, accuracy and fair presentation of the information upon which the Opinion is based; and
- (p) such other corporate, industry and financial market information, investigations and analyses as Scotia Capital considered necessary or appropriate in the circumstances.

Scotia Capital has not, to the best of its knowledge, been denied access by the Company to any information requested by Scotia Capital.

Prior Valuations

The Company has represented to Scotia Capital that, to the best of its knowledge, there have been no prior valuations or appraisals of the Company or any material property of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates, made in the preceding twenty-four (24) months and in the possession or control or knowledge of the Company other than those provided to Scotia Capital or, in the case of valuations known to the Company which it does not have within its control, notice of which has been given to Scotia Capital.

Assumptions and Limitations

The Opinion is subject to the assumptions, explanations and limitations set forth below.

Scotia Capital has, subject to the exercise of its professional judgment, relied, without independent verification, upon the completeness, accuracy and fair presentation of all of the financial and other information, data, advice, opinions and representations obtained by it from public sources, or that was provided to us, by the Company, and its associates and affiliates and advisors (collectively, the "Information"), and we have assumed that this Information did not omit to state any material fact or any fact necessary to be stated to make that information not misleading. The Opinion is conditional upon the completeness, accuracy and fair presentation of such Information. With respect to the Company's

financial projections provided to Scotia Capital by management of the Company and used in the analysis supporting the Opinion, we have assumed that they have been reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of management of the Company as to the matters covered thereby_± and in rendering the Opinion we express no view as to the reasonableness of such forecasts or budgets or the assumptions on which they are based.

Senior management of the Company has represented to Scotia Capital in certificates delivered as at the date hereof, among other things, that to the best of their knowledge (a) the Company has no information or knowledge of any facts public or otherwise not specifically provided to Scotia Capital relating to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates which would reasonably be expected to affect materially the Opinion; (b) with the exception of forecasts, projections or estimates referred to in (d), below, the written Information provided to Scotia Capital by or on behalf of the Company in respect of the Company and its subsidiaries or affiliates, in connection with the Transaction is or, in the case of historical information or data, was, at the date of preparation, true and accurate in all material respects, and no additional material, data or information would be required to make the data provided to Scotia Capital by the Company not misleading in light of circumstances in which it was prepared; (c) to the extent that any of the Information identified in (b), above, is historical, there have been no changes in material facts or new material facts since the respective dates thereof which have not been disclosed to Scotia Capital or updated by more current Information that has been disclosed; and (d) any portions of the Information provided to Scotia Capital which constitute forecasts, projections or estimates were prepared using the assumptions identified therein, which, in the reasonable opinion of the Company, are (or were at the time of preparation) reasonable in the circumstances.

The Opinion is rendered on the basis of the securities markets, economic, financial and general business conditions prevailing as at the date hereof and the conditions and prospects, financial and otherwise, of the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates, as they were reflected in the Information. In its analyses and in preparing the Opinion, Scotia Capital made numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance, general business and economic conditions and other matters, which Scotia Capital believes to be reasonable and appropriate in the exercise of its professional judgment, many of which are beyond the control of Scotia Capital or any party involved in the Transaction.

For the purposes of rendering the Opinion, Scotia Capital has also made several assumptions, including that the final version of the Arrangement Agreement will conform in all material respects to the draft provided to Scotia Capital, the representations and warranties of each party contained in the Arrangement Agreement are true and correct in all material respects, each party to the Arrangement Agreement will perform all of the covenants and agreements required to be performed by it under the Transaction, the Company will be entitled to fully enforce its rights under the Arrangement Agreement and receive the benefits therefrom in accordance with the terms thereof, and all of the conditions required to implement the Transaction will be satisfied.

The Opinion has been provided for the sole use of the Board of Directors of the Company in connection with its consideration of the Transaction and may not be used or relied upon by any other person. Our Opinion does not constitute a recommendation to the Board of Directors of the Company or to any Shareholder as to how such Shareholder should vote or act with respect to the Transaction. The Opinion is given as of the date hereof, and Scotia Capital disclaims any undertaking or obligation to advise any person of any change in any fact or matter affecting the Opinion which may come or be brought to the attention of Scotia Capital after the date hereof. Without limiting the foregoing, in the event that there is any material change in any fact or matter affecting the Opinion after the date hereof, Scotia Capital reserves the right to change, modify or withdraw the Opinion.

Our Opinion does not address the relative merits of the Transaction as compared to other business strategies or transactions that might be available with respect to the Company or the Company's underlying business decision to effect the Transaction. This Opinion addresses only the fairness, from a financial point of view, as of the date hereof, of the Consideration to be received by the Shareholders pursuant to the Transaction. Without limiting the foregoing, we do not express any view on, and our Opinion does not address, any other term or aspect of the Arrangement Agreement or any term or aspect of any other agreement or instrument contemplated by the Transaction or entered into or amended in

connection with the Transaction. Scotia Capital is not an expert on, and did not render advice to the Board of Directors of the Company regarding legal, tax, accounting and regulatory matters.

The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process and it is not amenable to partial analysis or summary description. Scotia Capital believes that its analyses must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of its analyses or the factors considered by it, without considering all facts and analyses together, could create an incomplete view of the process and analyses underlying the Opinion.

Approach to Fairness

In considering the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the Consideration to be received by the Shareholders pursuant to the Transaction, Scotia Capital reviewed, considered and relied upon, among other things, the following: (i) a comparison of the Consideration to the results of a discounted cash flow analysis of Tembec; (ii) a comparison of the Consideration to the results of the financial analysis of Tembec on a sum-of-the-parts basis; (iii) a comparison of selected financial multiples implied by the Consideration to multiples paid, to the extent publicly available, in selected precedent transactions; (iv) a comparison of selected financial multiples implied by the Consideration to the recent financial multiples of comparable companies whose securities are publicly traded to the multiples implied by the Consideration; (v) a comparison of the Consideration to the recent market trading prices of the Tembec Shares; (vi) a review of the form of Consideration and perspectives on the pro forma company including the potential synergies associated with the Transaction; (vii) a review of the process to solicit third party interest in certain assets of the Company; and (viii) such other factors, studies and analyses, as we deemed appropriate. In arriving at its fairness determination, Scotia Capital considered the results of all of its analyses and did not attribute any particular weight to any factor or analysis considered by it. Rather, Scotia Capital made its determination as to fairness on the basis of its experience and professional judgment after considering the results of all of its analyses.

Conclusion

Based upon and subject to the foregoing and such other matters as we considered relevant, Scotia Capital is of the opinion that, as of the date hereof, the Consideration to be received by the Shareholders pursuant to the Transaction is fair, from a financial point of view, to such Shareholders.

Yours very truly,

Scotia Capital luc.

SCOTIA CAPITAL INC.

APPENDIX H NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL FAIRNESS OPINION



May 24, 2017

The Special Committee of the Board of Directors of Tembec Inc. 4 Place Ville-Marie, Suite 100 Montréal, QC H3B 2E7

To the Special Committee:

National Bank Financial Inc. ("National Bank Financial", "we", or "us") understands that Tembec Inc. ("Tembec" or the "Company") and Rayonier Advanced Materials Inc. ("Rayonier AM") propose to enter into an arrangement agreement to be dated May 24, 2017 (the "Arrangement Agreement"). Under the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, Rayonier AM will acquire all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Tembec (each a "Tembec Share" and collectively the "Tembec Shares") and each holder of a Tembec Share (the "Tembec Shareholders") will have the right to elect to receive either (i) C\$4.05 in cash or (ii) 0.2302 of a share of Rayonier AM common stock, for each Tembec Share held (the "Consideration"). These elections are subject to proration to ensure that no more than 63.3% of the aggregate Tembec Shares shall receive the cash consideration and no more than 36.7% will receive the stock consideration. The transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement will be effected pursuant to a court-approved plan of arrangement under the Canada Business Corporations Act (the "Arrangement") and will require the approval of at least 66 2/3% of the votes cast by Tembec Shareholders.

National Bank Financial understands that Rayonier AM will enter into lock-up agreements with all Tembec directors and senior officers who hold Tembec Shares (the "Locked-Up Shareholders") with respect to the Tembec Shares beneficially owned, controlled or directed by the Locked-Up Shareholders (the "Lock-Up Agreements"), whereby the Locked-Up Shareholders will commit to vote such securities in favour the Arrangement, subject to the terms and conditions of the Lock-Up Agreements.

National Bank Financial further understands that the terms and conditions of the Arrangement will be more fully described in an information circular (the "Circular") to be prepared by Tembec and mailed to Tembec Shareholders in connection with a shareholders' special meeting to be called by Tembec to seek shareholder approval of the Arrangement.

National Bank Financial also understands that a special committee (the "Special Committee") of the board of directors (the "Board of Directors") of Tembec has been constituted to consider the Arrangement and make recommendations with respect thereto to the Board of Directors.

Engagement of National Bank Financial

Pursuant to an engagement agreement dated May 10, 2017 (the "Engagement Agreement"), Tembec retained, at the direction of the Special Committee, the services of National Bank Financial as financial advisor to the Special Committee in connection with a potential offer for the Tembec Shares, which services include providing advice and assistance to the Special Committee and the preparation and delivery to the Special Committee of an opinion (the "Fairness Opinion") as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the Consideration to be received by the Tembec Shareholders pursuant to the Arrangement.

National Bank Financial understands that the Fairness Opinion and a summary thereof will be included in the Circular and, subject to the terms of the Engagement Agreement, National Bank Financial consents to such disclosure. National Bank Financial has not been engaged to prepare a formal valuation of Tembec or Rayonier AM or a valuation of any of the securities or assets of either Tembec or Rayonier AM and this Fairness Opinion should not be construed as such.

National Bank Financial will be paid a fee for rendering the Fairness Opinion. The fee to be paid to National Bank Financial under the Engagement Agreement was agreed between National Bank Financial and the Special Committee. The fee payable to National Bank Financial is not contingent upon the conclusions reached by National Bank Financial in the Fairness Opinion or on the completion of the Arrangement or any alternative transaction. In the Engagement Agreement, Tembec has agreed to indemnify National Bank Financial in respect of certain liabilities that might arise out of its engagement and to reimburse it for its reasonable expenses.

Relationship with Interested Parties

National Bank Financial is not an "associated" or "affiliated" entity or an "issuer insider" (as such terms are used in Multilateral Instrument 61-101 – Protection of Minority Security Holders in Special Transactions ("MI 61-101")) of Tembec, nor is it a financial advisor to Rayonier AM in connection with the Arrangement.

National Bank Financial acts as a trader and dealer, both as principal and agent, in major financial markets and, as such, may have had and may in the future have positions in the securities of Tembec or Rayonier AM and, from time to time, may have executed or may execute transactions for such companies and clients from whom it received or may receive compensation. National Bank Financial, as an investment dealer, conducts research on securities and may, in the ordinary course of its business, provide research reports and investment advice to its clients on investment matters, including with respect to Tembec or Rayonier AM.

Credentials of National Bank Financial

National Bank Financial is a leading Canadian investment dealer whose businesses include corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, equity and fixed income sales and trading and investment research. The Fairness Opinion is the opinion of National Bank Financial and the form and content herein has been reviewed and approved for release by a group of managing directors of National Bank Financial, each of whom is experienced in merger, acquisition, divestiture, valuation and fairness opinion matters.

Scope of Review

In connection with rendering our Fairness Opinion, we have reviewed and relied upon, or carried out (as the case may be), among other things, the following:

- a) a draft of the Arrangement Agreement dated May 24, 2017;
- b) publicly available documents regarding Tembec and Rayonier AM, including annual and quarterly reports, financial statements, annual information forms, management circulars and other filings deemed relevant;
- c) a presentation to the Board of Directors regarding the budget for the year ending September 30, 2017;
- d) internal budgets prepared by Tembec for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017, 2018 and 2019;
- e) a financial model including detailed historical financial statements for fiscal year 2016 and forecasts for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017, 2018 and 2019;
- f) various reports published by equity research analysts and industry sources regarding Tembec, Rayonier AM and other public companies, to the extent deemed relevant by us;
- g) review of industry statistics on pricing patterns, capacity levels, trade issues and other industry related drivers, as well as economic forecasts relating to foreign exchange;

- h) trading statistics and selected financial information of Tembec, Rayonier AM and other selected public companies;
- i) comparable acquisition transactions considered by us to be relevant;
- j) certain other non-public information prepared and provided to us by Tembec's management, primarily financial in nature, concerning the business, assets, liabilities and prospects;
- k) consultation with legal advisors to the Special Committee;
- in addition to the written information described above, National Bank Financial participated in discussions with Tembec's management with regards to, among other things, the proposed Arrangement, as well as Tembec's business, operations, financial position, budget, capex plans, key assets and prospects;
- m) such other information, discussions and analyses as National Bank Financial considered necessary or appropriate in the circumstances; and
- n) a certificate addressed to National Bank Financial, from senior officers of Tembec regarding the completeness and accuracy of the information upon which this Fairness Opinion is based.

National Bank Financial has not, to the best of its knowledge, been denied access by Tembec to any information under the control of Tembec that has been requested by National Bank Financial.

Prior Valuations

Management of Tembec has represented to National Bank Financial that, to the best of their knowledge, there have been no prior valuations (as defined for the purposes of MI 61-101) of Tembec or any of its material assets or subsidiaries prepared within the past twenty-four (24) months.

Assumptions and Limitations

National Bank Financial has relied upon the completeness, accuracy and fair presentation of all financial and other information, data, advice, opinions and representations obtained by us from public sources, or provided to us by Tembec, its subsidiaries or their respective directors, officers, associates, affiliates, consultants, advisors and representatives (collectively, the "Information"). Our Fairness Opinion is conditional upon such completeness, accuracy and fair presentation of the Information. We have not been requested to nor, subject to the exercise of professional judgment, have we attempted to verify independently the completeness, accuracy or fair presentation of the Information.

Senior officers of Tembec have represented to National Bank Financial in a certificate delivered as of the date hereof, among other things, that (i) the Information provided orally by, or in the presence of, an officer or employee of Tembec or in writing by Tembec or any of its subsidiaries, associates or affiliates or their respective representatives, was, at the date the Information was provided to National Bank Financial, and is at the date hereof complete, true and correct in all material respects, and did not and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact in respect of Tembec, its subsidiaries, associates or affiliates, or the Arrangement and did not and does not omit to state a material fact in respect of Tembec, its subsidiaries, associates or affiliates, or the Arrangement necessary to make the Information or any statement contained therein not misleading in light of the circumstances under which the Information was provided or any such statement was made; and that (ii) since the dates on which the Information was provided to National Bank Financial, except as disclosed in writing to National Bank Financial, there has been no material change, financial or otherwise, in the financial condition, assets, liabilities (contingent or otherwise), business, operations or prospects of Tembec or any of its subsidiaries and no material change has occurred in the Information or any part thereof which would have or which would reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the Fairness Opinion. With respect to any forecasts, projections, estimates and/or budgets provided to National Bank Financial and used in its analyses, National Bank Financial notes that projecting future results of any company is inherently subject to uncertainty. National Bank Financial has assumed, however, that such forecasts, projections, estimates and/or budgets were prepared using the assumptions identified therein and that

such assumptions in the opinion of Tembec, are (or were at the time and continue to be) reasonable in the circumstances.

National Bank Financial has assumed that, in all respects material to its analysis, the Arrangement Agreement executed by the parties will be in substantially the form of the draft provided to us, the representations and warranties of the parties to the Arrangement Agreement contained therein are true, accurate and complete in all material respects, such parties will each perform all of the respective covenants and agreements to be performed by them under the Arrangement Agreement, and all conditions to the obligations of such parties as specified in the Arrangement Agreement will be satisfied without any waiver thereof. National Bank Financial has also assumed that all material approvals and consents required in connection with the consummation of the Arrangement will be obtained.

We have also assumed that the Lock-Up Agreements will be entered into by the Locked-Up Shareholders, that all of the representations and warranties to be contained in the Lock-Up Agreements will be correct as of the date hereof and that the Locked-Up Shareholders will vote all of their securities in favour of the Arrangement.

We are not legal, tax or accounting experts and we express no opinion concerning any legal, tax or accounting matters concerning the Arrangement or the sufficiency of this Fairness Opinion for your purposes.

This Fairness Opinion is rendered as at the date hereof and on the basis of securities markets, economic and general business and financial conditions prevailing as at the date hereof and the conditions and prospects, financial and otherwise, of Tembec as they are reflected in the Information and as they were represented to us in our discussions with the management of Tembec. In our analyses and in connection with the preparation of our Fairness Opinion, we made numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance, general business, market and economic conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond the control of National Bank Financial and any party involved in the Arrangement. This Fairness Opinion is provided to the Special Committee of the Board of Directors for its use only and may not be relied upon by any other person. National Bank Financial disclaims any undertaking or obligation to advise any person of any change in any fact or matter affecting the Fairness Opinion which may come or be brought to the attention of National Bank Financial after the date hereof. Without limiting the foregoing, in the event that there is any material change in any fact or matter affecting the Fairness Opinion after the date hereof, National Bank Financial reserves the right to change, modify or withdraw the Fairness Opinion. The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process and is not necessarily capable of being partially analyzed or summarized. National Bank Financial believes that its analyses must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of the analyses or the factors considered by it, without considering all factors and analyses together, could create an incomplete view of the process underlying the Fairness Opinion. The Fairness Opinion should be read in its entirety.

This Fairness Opinion is addressed to and is for the sole use and benefit of the Special Committee and may not be referred to, summarized, circulated, publicized or reproduced or disclosed to or used or relied upon by any party without the express written consent of National Bank Financial. This Fairness Opinion is not to be construed as a recommendation to any holder of Tembec Shares to vote in favour or against the Arrangement.

Approach to Fairness

In considering the fairness of the Consideration under the Arrangement, from a financial point of view, to the Tembec Shareholders, National Bank Financial principally considered and relied upon the following approaches: (i) a comparison of the Consideration under the Arrangement to the results of a discounted cash flow analysis of Tembec; (ii) a comparison of the selected financial multiples, to the extent publicly available, of selected precedent transactions to the multiples implied by the Consideration under the Arrangement, on a sum-of-the-parts basis; (iii) a comparison of the selected financial multiples of selected comparable companies whose securities are publicly traded plus a control premium, based on premiums paid to acquire Canadian companies historically to reflect the "en bloc" value, to the multiples implied by the Consideration under the Arrangement, on a sum-of-the-parts basis; (iv) a review of the sale process to solicit third party interest in an acquisition of certain assets of Tembec; (v) a comparison of the Consideration under the Arrangement to the recent market trading prices of the Tembec Shares; and (vi) such other factors and analyses as we considered appropriate.

Conclusion

Based upon and subject to the foregoing and such other matters as National Bank Financial considered relevant, it is our opinion, as of the date hereof, that the Consideration to be received by the Tembec Shareholders pursuant to the Arrangement is fair, from a financial point of view, to the Tembec Shareholders.

Yours very truly,

National Benk Sincucial Sne.

NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL INC.

APPENDIX I SECTION 190 OF THE CBCA

Right to dissent

190 (1) Subject to sections 191 and 241, a holder of shares of any class of a corporation may dissent if the corporation is subject to an order under paragraph 192(4)(d) that affects the holder or if the corporation resolves to

(a) amend its articles under section 173 or 174 to add, change or remove any provisions restricting or constraining the issue, transfer or ownership of shares of that class;

(b) amend its articles under section 173 to add, change or remove any restriction on the business or businesses that the corporation may carry on;

(c) amalgamate otherwise than under section 184;

(d) be continued under section 188;

(e) sell, lease or exchange all or substantially all its property under subsection 189(3); or

(f) carry out a going-private transaction or a squeeze-out transaction.

Further right

(2) A holder of shares of any class or series of shares entitled to vote under section 176 may dissent if the corporation resolves to amend its articles in a manner described in that section.

If one class of shares

(2.1) The right to dissent described in subsection (2) applies even if there is only one class of shares.

Payment for shares

(3) In addition to any other right the shareholder may have, but subject to subsection (26), a shareholder who complies with this section is entitled, when the action approved by the resolution from which the shareholder dissents or an order made under subsection 192(4) becomes effective, to be paid by the corporation the fair value of the shares in respect of which the shareholder dissents, determined as of the close of business on the day before the resolution was adopted or the order was made.

No partial dissent

(4) A dissenting shareholder may only claim under this section with respect to all the shares of a class held on behalf of any one beneficial owner and registered in the name of the dissenting shareholder.

Objection

(5) A dissenting shareholder shall send to the corporation, at or before any meeting of shareholders at which a resolution referred to in subsection (1) or (2) is to be voted on, a written objection to the resolution, unless the corporation did not give notice to the shareholder of the purpose of the meeting and of their right to dissent.

Notice of resolution

(6) The corporation shall, within ten days after the shareholders adopt the resolution, send to each shareholder who has filed the objection referred to in subsection (5) notice that the resolution has been adopted, but such notice is not required to be sent to any shareholder who voted for the resolution or who has withdrawn their objection.

Demand for payment

(7) A dissenting shareholder shall, within twenty days after receiving a notice under subsection (6) or, if the shareholder does not receive such notice, within twenty days after learning that the resolution has been adopted, send to the corporation a written notice containing

(a) the shareholder's name and address;

- (b) the number and class of shares in respect of which the shareholder dissents; and
- (c) a demand for payment of the fair value of such shares.

Share certificate

(8) A dissenting shareholder shall, within thirty days after sending a notice under subsection (7), send the certificates representing the shares in respect of which the shareholder dissents to the corporation or its transfer agent.

Forfeiture

(9) A dissenting shareholder who fails to comply with subsection (8) has no right to make a claim under this section.

Endorsing certificate

(10) A corporation or its transfer agent shall endorse on any share certificate received under subsection (8) a notice that the holder is a dissenting shareholder under this section and shall forthwith return the share certificates to the dissenting shareholder.

Suspension of rights

(11) On sending a notice under subsection (7), a dissenting shareholder ceases to have any rights as a shareholder other than to be paid the fair value of their shares as determined under this section except where

(a) the shareholder withdraws that notice before the corporation makes an offer under subsection (12),

(b) the corporation fails to make an offer in accordance with subsection (12) and the shareholder withdraws the notice, or

(c) the directors revoke a resolution to amend the articles under subsection 173(2) or 174(5), terminate an amalgamation agreement under subsection 183(6) or an application for continuance under subsection 188(6), or abandon a sale, lease or exchange under subsection 189(9),

in which case the shareholder's rights are reinstated as of the date the notice was sent.

Offer to pay

(12) A corporation shall, not later than seven days after the later of the day on which the action approved by the resolution is effective or the day the corporation received the notice referred to in subsection (7), send to each dissenting shareholder who has sent such notice

(a) a written offer to pay for their shares in an amount considered by the directors of the corporation to be the fair value, accompanied by a statement showing how the fair value was determined; or

(b) if subsection (26) applies, a notification that it is unable lawfully to pay dissenting shareholders for their shares.

Same terms

(13) Every offer made under subsection (12) for shares of the same class or series shall be on the same terms.

Payment

(14) Subject to subsection (26), a corporation shall pay for the shares of a dissenting shareholder within ten days after an offer made under subsection (12) has been accepted, but any such offer lapses if the corporation does not receive an acceptance thereof within thirty days after the offer has been made.

Corporation may apply to court

(15) Where a corporation fails to make an offer under subsection (12), or if a dissenting shareholder fails to accept an offer, the corporation may, within fifty days after the action approved by the resolution is effective or within such further period as a court may allow, apply to a court to fix a fair value for the shares of any dissenting shareholder.

Shareholder application to court

(16) If a corporation fails to apply to a court under subsection (15), a dissenting shareholder may apply to a court for the same purpose within a further period of twenty days or within such further period as a court may allow.

Venue

(17) An application under subsection (15) or (16) shall be made to a court having jurisdiction in the place where the corporation has its registered office or in the province where the dissenting shareholder resides if the corporation carries on business in that province.

No security for costs

(18) A dissenting shareholder is not required to give security for costs in an application made under subsection (15) or (16).

Parties

(19) On an application to a court under subsection (15) or (16),

(a) all dissenting shareholders whose shares have not been purchased by the corporation shall be joined as parties and are bound by the decision of the court; and

(b) the corporation shall notify each affected dissenting shareholder of the date, place and consequences of the application and of their right to appear and be heard in person or by counsel.

Powers of court

(20) On an application to a court under subsection (15) or (16), the court may determine whether any other person is a dissenting shareholder who should be joined as a party, and the court shall then fix a fair value for the shares of all dissenting shareholders.

Appraisers

(21) A court may in its discretion appoint one or more appraisers to assist the court to fix a fair value for the shares of the dissenting shareholders.

Final order

(22) The final order of a court shall be rendered against the corporation in favour of each dissenting shareholder and for the amount of the shares as fixed by the court.

Interest

(23) A court may in its discretion allow a reasonable rate of interest on the amount payable to each dissenting shareholder from the date the action approved by the resolution is effective until the date of payment.

Notice that subsection (26) applies

(24) If subsection (26) applies, the corporation shall, within ten days after the pronouncement of an order under subsection (22), notify each dissenting shareholder that it is unable lawfully to pay dissenting shareholders for their shares.

Effect where subsection (26) applies

(25) If subsection (26) applies, a dissenting shareholder, by written notice delivered to the corporation within thirty days after receiving a notice under subsection (24), may

(a) withdraw their notice of dissent, in which case the corporation is deemed to consent to the withdrawal and the shareholder is reinstated to their full rights as a shareholder; or

(b) retain a status as a claimant against the corporation, to be paid as soon as the corporation is lawfully able to do so or, in a liquidation, to be ranked subordinate to the rights of creditors of the corporation but in priority to its shareholders.

Limitation

(26) A corporation shall not make a payment to a dissenting shareholder under this section if there are reasonable grounds for believing that

- (a) the corporation is or would after the payment be unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or
- (b) the realizable value of the corporation's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities.

APPENDIX J COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF TEMBEC SHAREHOLDERS AND RAYONIER AM STOCKHOLDERS

The rights of Tembec Shareholders are governed by the CBCA, Tembec Articles and Tembec By-Laws. Following the Arrangement, Tembec Shareholders who receive Rayonier AM Shares as part of the Arrangement will become stockholders of Rayonier AM and as such their rights will be governed by the DGCL and by Rayonier AM's certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

The following is a summary of the material differences between the rights of Tembec Shareholders and the rights of stockholders of Rayonier AM. This summary is not a complete comparison of rights that may be of interest, and Tembec Shareholders should therefore read the full text of the respective certificates of incorporation, articles and by-laws of Tembec, available at www.sedar.com under the Tembec profile, and Rayonier AM, available at www.sec.gov under the Rayonier AM profile. Reference should be made to the full text of the CBCA and the DGCL for particulars of the differences between them.

	Tembec Shareholder Rights	Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights
Authorized Share Capital	Tembec is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number of Class A Preferred Shares issuable in series. Tembec has only one class of common shares outstanding – the Tembec Shares. Tembec Shareholders are entitled to all of the respective rights and obligations provided to shareholders under the CBCA, the Tembec Articles and the Tembec By- Laws.	Rayonier AM is authorized by its amended and restated certificate of incorporation to issue (i) 140,000,000 shares of common stock, par value US\$0.01 per share, and (ii) 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value US\$0.01 per share. The board of directors may fix the designations and powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions, on the preferred stock, or any series thereof, to the extent permitted by Section 151 of the DGCL.
Voting Rights	Tembec Shareholders are entitled to receive notice of and to attend all meetings of shareholders of Tembec and to vote thereat, except at meetings at which only holders of a specified class of shares (other than Tembec Shares) or specified series of shares are entitled to vote. At all meetings for which notice must be given to the Tembec Shareholders, each Tembec Shareholder is entitled to one vote in respect of each Tembec Share held by such Tembec Shareholder.	Subject to the rights of holders of preferred stock, each holder of shares of common stock is entitled to cast one vote for each outstanding share of common stock held of record by such stockholder upon any matter upon which stockholders are entitled to vote generally. There are no cumulative voting rights.
	Tembec Shareholders have no cumulative voting rights and all of the members of the Board are elected annually. Under the Tembec By-Laws, Tembec Shareholders take action by a majority of votes cast, unless otherwise provided by the CBCA or Tembec Articles or the Tembec By- Laws.	
	Under the CBCA, some matters, such	

as changing Tembec's name, creating a new class of authorized shares, voluntarily winding-up Tembec and others, require the approval of Tembec Shareholders by a special resolution. A special resolution is a resolution that is either passed at a meeting duly called and held for that purpose by not less than two-thirds of the votes cast by the Tembec Shareholders who voted in respect of that resolution or that is signed by all the Tembec Shareholders entitled to vote on that resolution.

There are no limitations imposed by the CBCA or Tembec Articles or the Tembec By-Laws on the right of Tembec Shareholders residing outside of Canada to hold or vote their Tembec Shares.

The Tembec By-Laws provide that the the presence, in person, at commencement of a shareholders meeting, of two persons, each being a shareholder entitled to vote thereat or a duly appointed proxy for an absent shareholder so entitled. and collectively holding or representing not less than 20% of the total number of issued and outstanding shares of Tembec having voting rights at such meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of shareholders.

Under the CBCA, certain fundamental changes such as articles amendments, certain by-law amendments, certain amalgamations (other than with certain affiliated corporations), continuances to another jurisdiction and sales, leases or exchanges of all or substantially all of the property of a corporation (other than in the ordinary course of business) and other extraordinary corporate actions such liquidations, dissolutions and as arrangements (if ordered by a court) are required to be approved by special resolution. A special resolution is a resolution (i) passed by not less than two-thirds of the votes cast by the shareholders who voted in respect of

Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

Rayonier AM's amended and restated bylaws provide that the holders of the majority of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of Rayonier AM entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of stockholders, except that when specified business is to be voted on by a class or series of stock voting as a class, the holders of a majority of the shares of such class or series shall constitute a quorum of such class or series for the transaction of such business.

Under the DGCL, a merger, consolidation, sale, lease, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the property of a corporation, or a dissolution of the corporation, is generally required to be approved by the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote on the matter, unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise.

Under the DGCL, mergers in which one corporation owns 90% or more of each class of stock of a second corporation may be completed without the vote of the second corporation's board of directors or stockholders.

Quorum of Shareholders / Stockholders

Shareholder Approval of Business Combinations; Fundamental Changes

the resolution at a meeting duly called and held for that purpose or (ii) signed by all shareholders entitled to vote on the resolution. In certain cases, a special resolution to approve an extraordinary corporate action is also required to be approved separately by the holders of a class or series of shares, including in certain cases a class or series of shares not otherwise carrying voting rights (unless in certain cases the share provisions with respect to such class or series of shares otherwise provide).

In addition, the CBCA provides that, where it is not practicable for a corporation (that is not an insolvent corporation) to effect such a fundamental change under any other provision contemplated under the CBCA, the corporation may apply to a court for an order approving an arrangement.

In general, a plan of arrangement is approved by a corporation's board of directors and then is submitted to a court for approval. It is not unusual for a corporation in such circumstances to apply to court initially for an interim order governing various procedural matters prior to calling any security holder meeting to consider the proposed arrangement. The court determines, among other things, to whom notice shall be given and whether, and in what manner, approval of any person is to be obtained, and also determines whether any shareholders may dissent from the proposed arrangement and receive payment of the fair value of their shares. Following compliance with the procedural steps contemplated in any such interim order (including as to obtaining security holder approval), the court would conduct a final hearing and approve or reject the proposed arrangement.

Subject to approval by the persons entitled to notice and to issuance of the final order, articles of arrangement are executed and filed by the corporation. The articles of arrangement must contain details of Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

The DGCL does not contain a procedure comparable to a plan of arrangement under the CBCA.

Special approval requirements apply under Section 203 of the DGCL in connection with certain transactions between Rayonier AM and a person that beneficially owns 15% or more of Rayonier AM's outstanding voting stock.

Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

the plan, the court's approval and the manner in which the plan was approved, if so required by the court order. Finally, the articles of arrangement are filed with Industry Canada, which after such filing issues a certificate of arrangement. The arrangement becomes effective on the date shown in the certificate of arrangement.

Multilateral Instrument 61-101 -Protection of Minority Security Holders in Special Transactions ("MI 61-101") of the Canadian Securities Administrators contains detailed requirements in connection with transactions with related parties (including "related party transactions", "business combinations", "insider bids" and "issuer bids"). A transaction with related parties means, generally, any transaction by which an issuer, directly or indirectly, consummates one or more specified transactions with a related party, including purchasing or disposing of an asset, • issuing securities or assuming liabilities. "Related party" as defined in MI 61-101 includes (i) directors and senior officers of the issuer, (ii) holders of voting securities of the issuer carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all the issuer's outstanding voting securities and (iii) holders of a sufficient number of any securities of the issuer to materially affect control of the issuer.

MI 61-101 requires, subject to certain exceptions, specific detailed disclosure in the proxy (information) circular sent to security holders in connection with a related party transaction where a meeting is required and, subject to certain exceptions, the preparation of a formal valuation of the subject matter of the related party transaction and any non-cash consideration offered in connection therewith. and the inclusion of a summary of the valuation in the proxy circular. MI 61-101 also requires, subject to certain exceptions, that an issuer not engage in a related party transaction unless the disinterested shareholders of the issuer have approved the related party

Rayonier AM is subject to Section 203 of the DGCL which generally prohibits a corporation from engaging in any business combination with an interested stockholder for a period of 3 years following the time that such stockholder became an interested stockholder, unless:

- the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;
- upon consummation of the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding for this purpose shares owned by persons who are directors and also officers of the corporation and by specified employee benefit plans; or
- at or after such time the business combination is approved by the board of directors and by the affirmative vote of at least 66²/₃% of the outstanding voting stock which is not owned by the interested stockholder.

•

For the purpose of Section 203, a "business combination" is broadly defined to include mergers, asset sales and other transactions resulting in a financial benefit to the interested

Special Vote Required for Combinations with Interested Shareholders / Stockholders

transaction by a simple majority of the votes cast.

The CBCA provides that holders of

shares of any class a corporation are

entitled to exercise dissent rights in

respect of certain matters and to be

paid the fair value of their shares in

connection therewith. The dissent

right is applicable, among certain

other things, in respect of resolutions

of the corporation to (a) amend its

articles to add, change or remove any

provisions restricting or constraining

the issue, transfer or ownership of

shares of that class; (b) amend its

articles to add, change or remove any

businesses that the corporation may

carry on; (c) amalgamate (with certain

exceptions); (d) be continued into

another jurisdiction or under another

federal act; (e) sell, lease or exchange

all or substantially all its property; or

transaction. A court may also make an

order permitting a shareholder to

а

а

out

or

business

going-private

squeeze-out

or

restriction on the

(f)

carry

transaction

dissent.

Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

For the purpose of Section 203, an "interested stockholder" is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, (i) owns 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation, or (ii) is an affiliate or associate of the corporation and owned 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation at any time within the previous 3 years.

Appraisal Rights

stockholder.

Under the DGCL, a stockholder of a corporation does not have appraisal rights in connection with a merger or consolidation, if, among other things: (i) the corporation's shares are listed on a national securities exchange or are held of record by more than 2,000 stockholders; and (ii) the corporation will be the surviving corporation of the merger and no vote of its stockholders is required to approve the merger.

Appraisal rights under the DGCL are limited to mergers or consolidations and not available in the case of a sale or transfer of assets or a purchase of assets for stock. However, а stockholder is entitled to appraisal rights in the case of a merger or consolidation if the stockholder is required to accept in exchange for the shares anything other than: (i) shares of stock of the corporation surviving or resulting from the merger or consolidation; (ii) shares of any other corporation that on the effective date of the merger or consolidation will be either listed on a national securities exchange or held of record by more than 2,000 stockholders; (iii) cash in lieu of fractional shares of the corporation or (iv) any combination of the foregoing.

Under the DGCL, no stockholder shall have any preemptive right to subscribe to an additional issue of stock or to any security convertible into stock unless, and except to the extent that, such right is expressly granted to such stockholder in the certificate of

Appraisal Rights; Rights to Dissent

Preemptive Rights of Shareholders / Stockholders

Under the CBCA, Tembec Shareholders are not entitled to statutory preemptive or subscription rights. The CBCA provides that if, within

120 days after the date of a take-over

incorporation.

Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation does not provide any preemptive or subscription rights to holders of its common stock.

Short-Form Merger

Under the DGCL, a corporation which owns at least 90% of the shares of each class of stock of a second corporation may unilaterally merge with the second corporation without the vote of the second corporation's board of directors or stockholders.

Oppression Remedies

Compulsory Acquisition

bid made to shareholders of a corporation, the bid is accepted by the holders of not less than 90% of the shares (other than the shares held by the offeror or an affiliate of the offeror) of any class of shares to which the bid relates, the offeror is entitled to acquire (on the same terms on which the offeror acquired shares under the take-over bid) the shares held by those holders of shares of that class who did not accept the take-over bid. If a shareholder who did not accept the take-over bid (a dissenting offeree) does not receive an offeror's notice, with respect to a compulsory acquisition (as described in the preceding sentence), that shareholder may require the offeror to acquire those shares on the same terms under which the offeror acquired (or will acquire) the shares owned by the shareholders who accepted the takeover bid.

The CBCA provides an oppression remedy that enables a court to make any order, whether interim or final, to rectify matters that are oppressive or unfairly prejudicial to, or that unfairly disregard the interests of, any securityholder, director or officer of the corporation if an application is made to a court by a "complainant", which includes:

- a present or former registered holder or beneficial owner of securities of the corporation or any of its affiliates;
- a present or former officer or director of the corporation or any of its affiliates;
- the director appointed under the CBCA; and
- any other person who, in the

Rayonier AM's shares are currently listed on the NYSE under the trading symbol "RYAM". Although Delaware law imposes upon directors and officers fiduciary duties of loyalty (i.e., a duty to act in a manner believed to be in the best interest of the corporation and its stockholders) and care, there is no remedy under the DGCL that is comparable to the CBCA's oppression remedy.

discretion of the court, is a proper person to make such application.

The oppression remedy provides the court with very broad and flexible powers to intervene in corporate affairs to protect shareholders and other complainants. While conduct that is in breach of fiduciary duties of directors or that is contrary to the legal right of a complainant will normally trigger the court's jurisdiction under the oppression remedy, the exercise of that jurisdiction does not depend on a finding of a breach of those legal and equitable rights.

Furthermore, the court may order a corporation to pay the interim expenses of a complainant seeking an oppression remedy, but the complainant may be held accountable for interim costs on final disposition of the complaint (as in the case of a derivative action).

Under the CBCA, shareholder action without a meeting may be taken by written resolution signed by all shareholders who would be entitled to vote on the relevant issue at a meeting (other than where a written statement is submitted by a director or auditor giving reasons for resigning or for opposing any proposed action or resolution, in accordance with the CBCA). For a public company such as Tembec, this effectively means that all actions requiring shareholder approval must be taken at a duly convened shareholders' meeting.

Under the CBCA and the Tembec By-Laws, notice of the date, time and place of a meeting of Tembec Shareholders must be given not less than 21 days nor more than 60 days prior to the meeting to each director, auditor and to each shareholder entitled to vote at the meeting.

Under the CBCA, the directors may fix in advance a date as the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive notice of a meeting of shareholders, but the record date must not precede by more than 60 Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that, subject to the rights of holders of preferred stock, stockholder action may not be effected by a written consent of stockholders in lieu of a meeting of stockholders.

Under the DGCL and Rayonier AM's amended and restated bylaws, , whenever stockholders are required or permitted to take any action at a meeting, written notice shall be given not less than 10 nor more than 60 days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting as of the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to notice of the meeting.

Shareholder Consent to Action Without a Meeting

Notice of Annual and Special Meetings of Shareholders / Stockholders

days nor less than 21 days (30 days under Canadian Securities Laws) the date on which the meeting is to be held. If no record date is fixed, the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive notice of a meeting of shareholders will be at the close of business on the day immediately preceding the day on which the notice is given or, if no notice is given, the day on which the meeting is held.

Under the CBCA, the holders of not less than 5% of the issued shares of a corporation that carry the right to vote at the special meeting sought to be held may require that the directors call a meeting of shareholders. Upon meeting the technical requirements set out in the CBCA for making such a requisition, the directors of the corporation must call a meeting of shareholders. If they do not call such meeting within 21 days after receiving the requisition, any shareholder who signed the requisition may call the special meeting. In addition, the Tembec By-Laws provide that the directors may call special meetings of shareholders at any time.

Distributions and Dividends; Repurchases and Redemptions

Ability to Call Special Meetings

of Shareholders / Stockholders

Dividends

Under the CBCA, a corporation may pay a dividend by issuing fully paid shares of the corporation. Α corporation may also pay a dividend in money or property unless there are reasonable grounds for believing that: (i) the corporation is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) realizable value of the the corporation's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and stated capital of all classes of shares.

Repurchase and Redemption

Under the CBCA, subject to solvency tests similar to those applicable to the payment of dividends (as set out above), with certain modifications, a corporation may redeem, on the terms and in the manner provided in its Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation and its amended and restated bylaws provide that, subject to the rights of holders of preferred stock, stockholders do not have the ability to requisition a special meeting of stockholders.

Dividends

Under the DGCL, a corporation may, subject to any restrictions in its certificate of incorporation, pay dividends (i) out of its surplus, or (ii) if there is no surplus, out of net profits for the current and/or the preceding fiscal year, unless the net assets of the corporation are less than the capital represented by issued and outstanding shares having a preference on asset distributions.

Surplus is defined as the excess of the net assets over capital, as such capital may be adjusted by the board.

Except with respect to the rights of holders of preferred stock, there are no restrictions in Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation limiting Rayonier AM's ability to pay dividends. Since its separation from Rayonier Inc. on articles, any of its shares that has a right of redemption attached to it. The Tembec Shares are not subject to a right of redemption.

Under the CBCA, the purchase or other acquisition by a corporation of its shares is generally subject to a corporation's articles and to the solvency tests similar to those applicable to the payment of dividends (as set out above). Tembec is permitted, under the Tembec Articles, to acquire any of the Tembec Shares, which shares may then be cancelled or returned to the status of authorized and unissued shares.

Number of Directors; Vacancies on the Board of Directors

Number of Directors

The CBCA provides that a corporation shall have one or more directors, but a corporation whose shares are publicly traded shall have not fewer than three directors, at least two of whom are not officers or employees of the corporation or its affiliates.

The Tembec Articles provide that Tembec may have a minimum of one and a maximum of 20 directors.

Tembec's board of directors currently has eight members.

The CBCA and the Tembec By-Laws provide that directors will be elected by ordinary resolution passed at an annual meeting of Tembec Shareholders.

Vacancies on the Board of Directors

Under the CBCA and the Tembec By-Laws, a vacancy among the directors created by the removal of a director may be filled at a meeting of shareholders at which the director is removed. The CBCA also allows a vacancy on the board of directors to be filled by a quorum of directors, except when the vacancy results from an

Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

June 27, 2014, Rayonier AM has paid regular quarterly dividends on its common stock. On March 24, 2017, Rayonier AM's board of directors declared a cash dividend of US\$2.00 per share of Series A Preferred Stock.

Repurchase and Redemption

A Delaware corporation may purchase or redeem shares except when its capital is impaired or would be impaired by the purchase or redemption. A Delaware corporation may, however, purchase or redeem out of capital shares that are entitled, upon any distribution of its assets, to a preference over another class or series of its shares if the shares are to be retired and the capital reduced.

Neither Rayonier AM's common stock nor its outstanding preferred stock is subject to redemption.

Number of Directors

The DGCL provides that the board of directors of a corporation shall consist of one or more members.

Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that the number of directors shall be fixed from time to time exclusively pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the total number of directors that Rayonier AM would have if there were no vacancies.

Rayonier AM's board of directors currently has nine members.

Vacancies on the Board of Directors

Under the DGCL, unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation or bylaws, vacancies and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors then in office, although less than a quorum.

Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, subject to the rights of holders of

	Tembec Shareholder Rights	Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights
	increase in the number or the minimum or maximum number of directors or from a failure of shareholders to elect the number or minimum number of directors provided for in the the articles.	preferred stock, vacancies resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause, and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors, may be filled only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors, and in the event that there is only one director remaining in office, by such sole remaining director, and directors so chosen shall hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders at which the term of office of the class to which they have been appointed expires and until such director's successor shall have been duly elected and qualified.
Constitution and Residency of Directors	The CBCA provides that at least 25% of the directors (or if a corporation has less than four directors, at least one director) must be resident Canadians. Except as permitted by the CBCA, no business may be transacted by the board of directors except at a meeting of directors at which a quorum is present and at least 25% of the directors present are resident Canadians or, if the corporation has less than four directors, at least one director present is a resident Canadian. There is no residency requirement with respect to board committees.	The DGCL does not impose any residency requirements on directors, but a corporation can prescribe qualifications for directors in its certificate of incorporation or bylaws. Neither Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation nor its amended and restated bylaws impose any qualification requirements for directors.

Removal of Directors; Terms of Directors

Officers

Under the CBCA, provided that articles of a corporation do not provide for cumulative voting, shareholders of the corporation may, by ordinary resolution passed at a special meeting, remove any director or directors from office.

The Tembec Articles do not provide for cumulative voting.

If holders of a class or series of shares have the exclusive right to elect one or more directors, a director elected by them may only be removed by an ordinary resolution at a meeting of the shareholders of that class or series.

The Tembec Articles do not specify a term for which directors shall hold office. The Tembec By-Laws provide that, subject to the provisions with respect to filling vacancies on the board, the directors shall hold office from the date of the meeting at which they are elected or appointed until the close of the following annual meeting of the shareholders at which an election of directors takes place or until his or her office is vacated.

Indemnification of Directors and Under the CBCA, a corporation may indemnify a director or officer, a former director or officer or a person who acts or acted at the corporation's request as a director or officer or an individual acting in a similar capacity of another entity (an "indemnifiable person"), against all costs, charges and expenses, including an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment, reasonably incurred by him or her in respect of any civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or other proceeding in which he or she is involved because of that association with the corporation or other entity, if: (i) the individual acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of such corporation (or the other entity, as the case may be); and (ii) in the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is enforced by a monetary penalty, the individual had reasonable grounds for believing that the individual's conduct was lawful. An indemnifiable

Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

Under the DGCL, except in the case of a corporation with a classified board of directors or with cumulative voting, any director or the entire board of directors may be removed, with or without cause, by the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote at an election of directors. In the case of a corporation with a classified board of directors, stockholders may remove a director only for cause.

Rayonier AM's board of directors is divided into three classes of directors, with each class serving staggered, three-year terms.

Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that directors may be removed from office only for cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class.

Under the DGCL, a corporation is generally permitted to indemnify its directors and officers against expenses, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred in connection with a third-party action, other than a derivative action, and against expenses actually and reasonably incurred in the defense or settlement of a derivative action, provided in each case that there is a determination that the individual acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation. That determination must be made by:

a majority of the disinterested directors, even though less than a quorum;

•

a committee of disinterested directors designated by a majority vote of disinterested directors, even though less than a quorum;

person may require the corporation to indemnify the individual in respect of all costs, charges and expenses reasonably incurred by the individual in connection with the defense of any civil. criminal. administrative. investigative or other proceeding to which the individual is subject because of the individual's association with the corporation (or other entity, as the case may be) if the individual was not judged by the court or other competent authority to have committed any fault or omitted to do anything that the individual ought to have done and the individual fulfills the conditions set out in (i) and (ii) above. A corporation may, with the approval of a court, also indemnify an indemnifiable person against all costs, charges and expenses in respect of an action by or on behalf of the corporation or other entity to procure a judgment in its favor, to which such person is made a party by reason of being or having been a director or an officer of the corporation or other entity, if he or she fulfills the conditions set forth in (i) and (ii), above.

As permitted by the CBCA, the Tembec By-Laws require Tembec to indemnify directors and officers of Tembec, former directors or officers of Tembec or persons who act or acted, at Tembec's request, as directors or officers of a corporation of which Tembec is or was a shareholder or creditor, and their heirs and legal representatives, against all costs, charges and expenses (including an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment) reasonably incurred in respect of any civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which they are made a party because of their being or having been a director or officer of Tembec or such corporation.

To be entitled to indemnification, the Tembec By-Laws state that such persons must have (i) acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of Tembec or the other entity for which the individual acted as Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

- independent legal counsel, regardless of whether a quorum of disinterested directors exists; or
- a majority vote of the stockholders at a meeting at which a quorum is present.

Without court approval, however, no indemnification of a director or officer may be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter in which such person is adjudged liable to the corporation.

The DGCL requires indemnification of directors and officers for expenses relating to a successful defense on the merits or otherwise of a third-party action. Under the DGCL. а corporation may advance expenses relating to the defense of any proceeding to directors and officers contingent upon those individuals' commitment to repay any advances, unless it is determined ultimately that those individuals are not entitled to be indemnified.

Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws require to indemnify Rayonier AM its directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL against all expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgments. fines. excise taxes. penalties and amounts paid in settlement, incurred in connection with any action, suit or proceeding, to which such person was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party or is otherwise involved by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director, officer, trustee, employee or agent of Rayonier AM or is or was serving at the request of Ravonier AM as a director, officer. trustee, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise (including service with respect to employee benefit plans maintained or sponsored by Rayonier AM); provided, however, that Rayonier AM shall indemnify any such person seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person

a director or officer or in a similar capacity at Tembec's request, as the case may be, and (ii) in the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is enforced by a monetary penalty, he or she had reasonable grounds for believing that his or her conduct was lawful. As permitted by the CBCA, the Tembec By-Laws also require Tembec to advance money to such individuals for costs, charges and expenses of any such proceeding. In the case of an action by or on behalf of Tembec or the other entity, as the case may be, to procure a judgment in its favor to which the person is made a party because of his or her association with Tembec or the other entity, as the case may be, if the individual fulfills the conditions set out in the Tembec By-Laws. Tembec shall seek and obtain approval of a court before indemnifying the person against all costs, charges and expenses he or she reasonably incurred in connection with such action or prior to advancing any moneys to such individual.

Limited Liability of Directors Under the CBCA, a director or officer of a company must (i) act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the corporation; (ii) exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person comparable would exercise in circumstances.

> Under the CBCA, the directors of a corporation who vote for or consent to a resolution that authorizes (i) an issue of shares for a consideration other than money; (ii) a purchase, redemption or other acquisition of shares contrary to described provisions in the "Distributions and Dividends; Repurchases and Redemptions" above; (iii) a commission to any person in consideration of, or in connection • with, a purchase of shares of the corporation, which commission is not reasonable; (iv) a payment of dividend contrary to the provisions described in "Distributions and Dividends; Repurchases and Redemptions" above;

Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the board of directors. Rayonier AM's amended and restated bylaws require Rayonier AM to advance expenses in accordance with the requirements of DGCL to any director, officer, trustee, employee or agent of another corporation or if a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit plans maintained or sponsored by the Corporation who may be entitled to indemnification as described above in advance of the final disposition of an action, suit or proceeding.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the U.S. Securities Act may be permitted to officers directors, or persons controlling Rayonier AM pursuant to foregoing the provisions, Rayonier AM has been informed that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the U.S. Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

Under DGCL, a corporation may adopt a provision in its certificate of incorporation limiting or eliminating the personal liability of a director to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, provided that such provisions shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a director for:

breaching the duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders;

•

- acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;
- obtaining an improper personal benefit from any transaction; or
- paying а dividend or approving a stock repurchase illegal that was under

(v) a payment of indemnity contrary to, among other things, the provisions described in "Indemnification of Directors and Officers" above; and (vi) a payment to a shareholder contrary to the provisions of the CBCA with respect to dissent rights and oppression remedies; may be jointly and severally, or solidarily, liable to the corporation.

Under the CBCA, a director is not subject to statutory liability for the above acts if the director relied, in good faith, on (i) financial statements of the corporation represented to the director by an officer of the corporation or in a written report of the auditor of the corporation to fairly reflect the financial condition of the corporation, (ii) a report of a person whose profession lends credibility to a statement made by the professional person.

Under the CBCA, a shareholder, director or officer of a corporation and any person who, in the discretion of the court, is a proper person to make an application to court to bring an action on behalf of a corporation (a derivative action) may, with judicial leave, bring an action in the name and on behalf of a corporation or any of its subsidiaries, or intervene in an action to which any such body corporate is a party, for the purpose of prosecuting, defending or discontinuing the action on behalf of the body corporate.

Derivative Actions

Under the CBCA, the court may grant leave if: (i) the complainant has given notice to the directors of the corporation or its subsidiary of the complainant's intention to apply to the court not less than fourteen days before bringing the application, or as otherwise ordered by the court, if the directors of the corporation or its subsidiary do not bring, diligently prosecute or defend or discontinue the action; (ii) the complainant is acting in good faith; and (iii) it appears to be in the interests of the corporation or its subsidiary that the action be brought, prosecuted, defended or discontinued. Under the CBCA, the court in a

Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

applicable law.

Rayonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains a provision limiting the personal liability of its directors to Rayonier AM or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of a fiduciary duty as a director to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL.

Under the DGCL, a stockholder bringing a derivative suit must have been a stockholder at the time of the wrong complained of or the stockholder must have received stock in the corporation by operation of law from a person who was such a stockholder at the time of the wrong complained of.

In addition, a stockholder-plaintiff must at the time he files a complaint have been the continuous owner of some of the stock so held or received and must continue to hold shares throughout the litigation.

Rayonier AM is not required to advance the expenses of a lawsuit to a stockholder bringing a derivative suit. derivative action may make any order it determines to be appropriate. In addition, under the CBCA, a court may order the corporation or its subsidiary to pay reasonable legal fees incurred by the complainant in connection with the action.

CBCA, shareholder Under the proposals, including proposals with respect to the nomination of candidates for election to the board of directors, may be made by certain registered or beneficial holders of shares entitled to be voted at an annual meeting of shareholders. To be eligible to submit a proposal, a shareholder must be the registered or beneficial holder of, or have the support of the registered or beneficial holders of, (i) at least 1% of the total number of outstanding voting shares of the corporation; or (ii) voting shares whose fair market value is at least \$2,000 and such registered or beneficial holder(s) must have held such shares for at least six months immediately prior to the day upon which the shareholder submits the proposal. In order for a proposal to include nominations of directors, it must be signed by one or more holders of shares representing not less than 5% of the shares (or shares of a class) entitled to vote at the meeting to which the proposal is to be presented.

A proposal under the CBCA must include the name and address of the person submitting the proposal, the names and addresses of the person's supporters (if applicable), the number of shares of the corporation owned by such persons, the date upon which such shares were acquired and such other information as may be required in the by-laws.

If the proposal is submitted at least 90 days before the anniversary date of the notice of meeting sent to shareholders in connection with the previous annual meeting and the proposal meets other specified requirements, then the corporation shall either set out the proposal in the proxy circular of the corporation or attach the proposal

Under Rayonier AM's amended and restated bylaws, a stockholder of record may propose business to be considered at the annual meeting of stockholders only in compliance with the notice requirements set forth therein.

Under Rayonier AM's amended and restated bylaws, stockholders of record entitled to vote for the election of directors may nominate persons for election as directors only in compliance with the notice requirements set forth therein.

The notice requirements include the stockholder providing written notice to the secretary of Rayonier AM not earlier than the close of business on the 120th day and not later than the close of business on the 90th day prior to the first anniversary of the preceding meeting, or, in the case of a special meeting, not earlier than the close of business on the 120th day prior to the date of such special meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the 10th day prior to the date of such special meeting or, if the first public announcement of the date of such special meeting is less than 100 days prior to the date of such special meeting, the 10th day following the day on which public announcement is first made of the date of the special meeting.

The particulars of the information that must be included in the notices referred to above are set forth in Rayonier AM's amended and restated bylaws.

Advance Notification Requirements for Proposals of Shareholders / Stockholders

thereto. In addition, if so requested by the person submitting the proposal, the corporation shall include in or attach to the proxy circular a statement in support of the proposal by the person and the name and address of the person.

If a corporation refuses to include a proposal in a management proxy circular, the corporation shall notify the person in writing within 21 days after its receipt of the proposal (or proof of the person's ownership of securities) of its intention to omit the proposal and the reasons therefor. In any such event, the person submitting the proposal may make application to a court and a court may restrain the holding of the meeting to which the proposal is sought to be presented and make any further order it sees fit. In addition, a corporation may apply to a court for an order permitting the corporation to omit the proposal from the management proxy circular and the court may make such order as it determines appropriate.

Shareholder Rights Plans Tembec currently has no shareholder rights plan in place. Tembec had adopted a shareholder rights plan that expired on January 31, 2016.

Inspection of Books and Records Under the CBCA, shareholders, creditors, and their representatives may, after giving the required notice, examine certain of the records of a corporation during usual business hours and take copies of extracts free of charge.

The Tembec By-Laws provide that the Board may from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what time and place and under what conditions the accounts and books of Tembec or any of them shall be open to the inspection of Tembec shareholders.

Articles

Under the CBCA, an amendment to the articles of incorporation of a corporation generally requires approval by special resolution of the voting shareholders. Specified Rayonier AM has not adopted a shareholder rights plan.

Under the DGCL, any stockholder, in person or by attorney or other agent, may, upon written demand, inspect the corporation's books and records for a proper purpose.

Certificate of Incorporation

Under the DGCL, a corporation's certificate of incorporation may be amended if:

the board of directors sets forth the proposed amendment

Amendment of Governing Documents

amendments may also require the approval of other classes or series of shares, as applicable. If the amendment is of a nature affecting a particular class or series in a manner requiring a separate class or series vote, that class or series is entitled to vote on the amendment whether or not it otherwise carries the right to vote.

By-Laws

Under the CBCA, the board of directors of a corporation may, by resolution, make, amend or repeal any by-laws that regulate the business or affairs of the corporation. Where the directors make, amend or repeal a by-law, they are required under the CBCA to submit that action to the shareholders at the next meeting of shareholders and the shareholders may confirm, reject or amend that action by simple majority. or ordinary resolution. If the action is rejected by shareholders, or the directors of a corporation do not submit the action to the shareholders at the next meeting of shareholders, the action will cease to be effective, and no subsequent resolution of the directors to make, amend or repeal a by-law having substantially the same purpose or effect will be effective until it is confirmed by the shareholders.

Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

in a resolution, declares the advisability of the amendment and directs that it be submitted to a vote at a meeting of stockholders; and

the holders of a majority (or such higher voting requirement as may be specified in the certificate of incorporation) of shares of stock entitled to vote on the matter approves the amendment.

Ravonier AM's amended and restated certificate of incorporation expressly provides that Rayonier AM may alter, amend, repeal or adopt, in whole or in part, any provisions of the amended restated and certificate of incorporation, provided that the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, shall be required for certain provisions relating to the number, term and removal of its directors, the ability of the board to issue preferred stock, the filling of board vacancies, the calling of special meetings of stockholders, stockholder action by written consent and director officer indemnification. and The affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, is required to amend or repeal this restriction.

Bylaws

Under the DGCL, the power to adopt, amend or repeal bylaws shall be in the stockholders entitled to vote. If authorized in the certificate of incorporation, the board of directors may also adopt, amend or repeal bylaws.

Rayonier AM's amended and restated bylaws provide that the affirmative vote of shares representing a majority of voting power of all of the then-

Rayonier AM Stockholder Rights

outstanding voting stock, voting together as a single class, may alter, amend or repeal the bylaws, in whole or in part, and adopt new bylaws, provided that certain provisions relating to the number, term and removal of Rayonier AM's directors, the filling of board vacancies, the calling of special meetings of stockholders, stockholder action by written consent and director and officer indemnification require the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of Rayonier AM's voting stock then outstanding to be amended. The affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, is required to amend or repeal this restriction.

Questions and Further Assistance

QUESTIONS MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE PROXY SOLICITOR

Shorecrest

NORTH AMERICAN TOLL-FREE 1-888-637-5789 Banks and Brokers and collect calls outside North America 647-931-7454 Email: contact@shorecrestgroup.com